
 

 
11749755.1 

 

COMBINED QUARTERLY MEETING OF THE RETIREMENT BOARDS FOR THE 

EMPLOYEES AND RETIREES OF THE SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT DISTRICT 

9:00 A.M., WEDNESDAY, MARCH 16, 2016 

REGIONAL TRANSIT AUDITORIUM 

1400 29
TH

 STREET, SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 
Website Address:   www.sacrt.com 

(29th St. Light Rail Station/Bus  38, 67, 68) 

 

 

MEETING NOTE: This is a joint and concurrent meeting of the five independent Retirement 

Boards for the pension plans for the employees and retirees of the Sacramento 

Regional Transit District.  This single, combined agenda designates which 

items will be subject to action by which board(s).  Members of each board may 

be present for the other boards’ discussions and actions, except during 

individual closed sessions. 

 

ROLL CALL  ATU Retirement Board:  Directors: Wiley, Morin, Niz, De La Torre  
       Alternates: Jennings, Muniz 
 
   IBEW Retirement Board: Directors: Wiley, Morin, Ohlson, Burdick 
       Alternates: Jennings, Gallow 
 
   AEA Retirement Board: Directors: Wiley, Morin, Drake, Devorak 
       Alternates: Jennings, Robison 
 
   AFSCME Retirement Board: Directors: Wiley, Morin, Mallonee, Hoslett 
       Alternates: Jennings, Kent 
 
   MCEG Retirement Board: Directors: Wiley, Morin, Masui, Thorn    
       Alternates: Jennings, Sanchez-Ochoa 
 

PUBLIC ADDRESSES BOARD ON MATTERS ON CONSENT AND MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA  
At this time the public may address the Retirement Board(s) on subject matters pertaining to Retirement Board business listed on 
the Consent Calendar, any Closed Sessions or items not listed on the agenda. Remarks may be limited to 3 minutes subject to 
the discretion of the Common Chair. Members of the public wishing to address one or more of the Boards may submit a “Public 
Comment Speaker Card” to the Assistant Secretary. While the Retirement Boards encourage your comments, State law prevents 
the Boards from discussing items that are not set forth on this meeting agenda. The Boards and staff take your comments very 
seriously and, if appropriate, will follow up on them. 

  

CONSENT CALENDAR 

  ATUIBEWAEAAFSCMEMCEG

1.  Motion: Approving the Minutes for the December 16, 2015 Quarterly 
Retirement Board Meeting (AEA). (Bonnel) 

     

      

2.  Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended 
December 31, 2015 for the Salaried Pension Plan 
(AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger) 

    

      

 

 

                                                              
Sacramento Regional Transit District 

Agenda   



 

 
11749755.1 

  ATUIBEWAEAAFSCMEMCEG

3. Motion: Receive and File the Independent Auditor’s Report for the Twelve 
Month Period Ended June 30, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger)   

    

      

4. Motion: Receive and File the Fiscal Year 2015 State Controller’s Report for the 
Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional Transit District Salaried 
Employees (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger)  

    

      

5. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the December 16, 2015  Quarterly 
Retirement Board Meeting (AFSCME). (Bonnel) 

    

      

6. Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended 
December 31, 2015 for the Salaried Pension Plan 
(AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger) 

    

      

7. Motion: Receive and File the Independent Auditor’s Report for the Twelve 
Month Period Ended June 30, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger)   

    

      

8. Motion: Receive and File the Fiscal Year 2015 State Controller’s Report for the 
Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional Transit District Salaried 
Employees (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger) 

    

      

9. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the December 16, 2015  Quarterly 
Retirement Board Meeting (ATU). (Bonnel) 

    

      

10. Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended 
December 31, 2015 for the ATU/IBEW Pension Plan (ATU/IBEW). 
(Bernegger) 

    

      

11. Motion: Receive and File the Independent Auditor’s Report for the Twelve 
Month Period Ended June 30, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger)   

    

      

12. Motion: Receive and File the Fiscal Year 2015 State Controller’s Report for the 
Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional Transit District Employees 
Who are Members of ATU/IBEW (ATU/IBEW). (Bernegger)  

    

      

13. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the December 16, 2015  Quarterly 
Retirement Board Meeting (IBEW). (Bonnel) 

    

      

14. Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended 
December 31, 2015 for the ATU/IBEW Pension Plan (ATU/IBEW). 
(Bernegger) 

    

      

15. Motion: Receive and File the Independent Auditor’s Report for the Twelve 
Month Period Ended June 30, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger)   

    

      

16. Motion: Receive and File the Fiscal Year 2015 State Controller’s Report for the 
Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional Transit District Employees 
Who are Members of ATU/IBEW (ATU/IBEW). (Bernegger) 

    

      

17. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the December 16, 2015  Quarterly 
Retirement Board Meeting (MCEG). (Bonnel) 

    

      

18. Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended 
December 31, 2015 for the Salaried Pension Plan 
(AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger) 

    

      

19. Motion: Receive and File the Independent Auditor’s Report for the Twelve 
Month Period Ended June 30, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger)   

    



 

 
11749755.1 

 
 

     

      

20. Motion: Receive and File the Fiscal Year 2015 State Controller’s Report for the 
Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional Transit District Salaried 
Employees (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger) 

    

 

NEW BUSINESS 

  ATU IBEW  AEA AFSCME MCEG 

21. Information: Investment Performance Review by JP Morgan for the ATU/IBEW and 
Salaried Retirement Funds for the International Equity Asset Class for 
the Quarter Ended December 31, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger) 

    

      

22. Motion: Receive and File the Investment Performance Results for the 
ATU/IBEW and Salaried Employee Retirement Plans for the Quarter 
Ended December 31, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger)  

    

      

23. Information: Receive Updated Information on Status of Retirement Plans 
Experience and Valuation Studies and Resulting Actuarially 
Determined Contribution Rate (ALL). (Bonnel) 

    

      

24. Information:  Update on Roles and Responsibilities Related to Pension 
Administration (ALL). (Bonnel) 

    

      

25. Information: Update on Status of Trust Document (ALL). (Bernegger)     

      

26. Information: Staff Update on Status of Actuary and Legal Services Request for 
Proposals (ALL). (Bonnel) 

    

      

27. Information: Update on 2016 Work Plan (ALL). (Bonnel)     

       

28. Information: Addition of Second Staff Member to Support Pension Plan Activities 
(ALL). (Bonnel) 

    

      

29. Resolution: Approving a Contract Renewal with Federal Insurance Company 
(CHUBB) for Fiduciary Insurance for All Retirement Boards (ALL). 
(Bonnel) 

    

      

30. Resolution: Approving the First Amendment to the Agreement with Hanson Bridgett 
and Non-Core Task Work Orders with Hanson Bridgett for Legal Services 
Under the Principal Agreement (ALL). (Bonnel) 

    

      

31. Resolution: Election and Appointment of Governing Board Officers of the 
Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional Transit District (District) 
Employees who are members of the Administrative Employees 
Association Group (AEA). (Bonnel) 

    

      

32. Resolution: Election and Appointment of Governing Board Officers of the Retirement 
Plan for Sacramento Regional Transit District (District) Employees who 
are members of the Management and Confidential Employee Group 
(MCEG). 
 

    

      

      

REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES 

REPORTS, IDEAS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

ADJOURN 



 

 
11749755.1 

 

 
NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 

It is the policy of the Boards of Directors of the Sacramento Regional Transit District Retirement Plans to encourage participation in the meetings of the 
Boards of Directors. At each open meeting, members of the public shall be provided with an opportunity to directly address the Board on items of interest 
to the public that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Boards.   
 

This agenda may be amended up to 72 hours prior to the meeting being held.  An agenda, in final form, is located by the front door of Regional Transit’s 
building at 1400 – 29th Street and posted to RT’s website at www.sacrt.com.  

 

Any person(s) requiring accessible formats of the agenda or assisted listening devices/sign language interpreters should contact the Human Resources 
Manager at 916-556-0280 or TDD 916/483-4327 at least 72 business hours in advance of the Board Meeting. 
 

Copies of staff reports or other written documentation relating to each item of business referred to on the agenda are on file with the Human Resources 
Administrative Technician at 916-556-0298 and/or Clerk to the Board of Directors of the Sacramento Regional Transit District and are available for public 
inspection at 1400 29th Street, Sacramento, CA. Any person who has questions concerning any agenda item may call the Human Resources 
Administrative Technician of Sacramento Regional Transit District to make inquiry. 



Item 1 

1 
12015925.1 

Sacramento Regional Transit District 
AEA Quarterly Retirement Board Meeting 

Wednesday, December 16, 2015 
MEETING SUMMARY 

 
 

ROLL CALL 

 
The Retirement Board was brought to order at 9:04 a.m. A quorum was present comprised as 
follows: Directors Morin, Drake, Bennett and Alternate Devorak were present. Director Wiley 
was absent. Alternate Hansen was absent.  
 
This meeting was held as a common meeting of the five Sacramento Regional Transit District 
Retirement Boards.  
 
By AEA Resolution No. 14-12-153 for calendar year 2015, the Governing Board Member in 
attendance served as Common Chair of this Retirement Board meeting.  
 
 
PUBLIC ADDRESSES BOARD ON MATTERS ON CONSENT AND MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

 
None. 
 
 
Consent Calendar: 
 
1.  Motion: Approving the Minutes for the September 16, 2015 Quarterly Retirement 

Board Meeting (AEA). (Bonnel) 
 
2.  Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended September 

30, 2015 for the Salaried Pension Plan (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). 
(Bernegger) 

 
11. Resolution: Adopting Regional Transit Retirement Boards 2016 Meeting Calendar 

(ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Director Drake moved to adopt Items 1, 2, and 11. Director Bennett seconded the motion. Items 
1, 2, and 11 were carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Directors Drake, Bennett, and  
Morin. Noes: None. 
 
 
New Business: 
 
The order of New Business items was adjusted to ensure all of the items requiring action 
would be addressed in case members had to leave resulting in loss of a quorum.  The 
reordering was: 12-16, 18, 20, 21, 17, 19. 
 
12. Information Fiduciary Training provided by Hanson Bridgett (ALL). 
 
Donna Bonnel introduced Lance Kjeldgaard, fiduciary counsel contracted through the board’s 
Legal Counsel, Hanson Bridgett LLP to provide a fiduciary responsibility and liability training. 
 



Item 1 

2 
12015925.1 

MCEG Alternate Thorn left the meeting at 10:04 a.m.  
 
IBEW Alternate Gallow left the meeting at 10:04 a.m.   
 
13. Information: Investment Performance Review by Dimensional Fund Advisors (DFA) for 

the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Retirement Funds for the International 
Emerging Markets Asset Class for the Quarter Ended September 30, 2015 
(ALL). (Bernegger) 

 
Jamie Adelman introduced Ted Simpson from DFA, who provided the performance results for 
the quarter ended September 30, 2015 for the international emerging markets asset class. 
 
Director Bennett noted that he would like a list of the stocks that are owned in the portfolio. Mr. 
Simpson noted that he would send the list to Brent Bernegger to distribute to the Boards. 
 
14. Information: Investment Performance Review of the S&P 500 Index and MSCI EAFE 

Funds by State Street Global Advisors (SSgA) for the ATU/IBEW and 
Salaried Employee Retirement Funds for the Quarter Ended September 30, 
2015 (ALL). (Bernegger) 

 
Jamie Adelman introduced Linda Ng from State Street Global Advisors, who presented the 
performance results for the Domestic Large Capitalization and International Equity Index Funds 
for the quarter ended September 30, 2015. 
 
Director Bennett remarked that the Boards may want to modify having reports from index funds 
provided during the meeting.  
 
Legal Counsel Shayna van Hoften with Hanson Bridgett noted that the fiduciary training 
provided earlier discussed the duty of care and being a prudent expert and the Boards’ need to 
hear from all fund managers to be in a position to consider whether or not they are serving their 
purpose.  
 
15. Motion: Receive and File the Investment Performance Results for the ATU/IBEW 

and Salaried Employee Retirement Plans for the Quarter Ended September 
30, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger) 

 
Jamie Adelman introduced Ann Heaphy and Uvan Tseng from Callan Associates, who provided 
a market overview for the Quarter Ended September 30, 2015. 
 
Director Drake moved to adopt Item 15. Director Bennett seconded the motion. Item 15 was 
carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Directors Drake, Bennett, and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
16. Resolution: Authorizing Execution of Plan Trust Documents (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel provided information on the request to authorize the execution of plan trust 
documents. Ms. Bonnel noted that the plan trust documents were distributed to each Retirement 
Board Chair electronically. 
 
Director Bennett asked if the trust language presented for approval would result in losing the 
right to buy securities directly (Section 3.3) and if the Boards would be limited to investing in 
firms with a national reputation (Section 3.6). Director Bennett also asked if both points are in 
the final trust document the board is being asked to approve. Legal Counsel Anne Hydorn with 



Item 1 

3 
12015925.1 

Hanson Bridgett responded that both issues were addressed in the trust document and the 
boards would be able to invest with firms of regional reputation and would not lose the ability to 
directly invest.  
 
Director Drake moved to adopt Item 16. Director Bennett seconded the motion. Item 16 was 
carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Directors Drake, Bennett, and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
18. Resolution: Adopting Procurement Policy and Procedures (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel stated that an updated version of the Procurement Policy and Procedures was 
distributed at each board member’s seat on the dais because some changes were made since 
distribution of the board packet, and that this revised version was the document recommended 
by staff for adoption. 
 
Ms. Bonnel introduced Valerie Weekly to provide an update on the changes to the document. 
Valerie Weekly noted that the language provided in the prior version allowed for the Finance 
Department or Human Resources Department to complete some of the smaller procurements 
without going through the Procurement Department. The updated version reflects that all 
procurements will go through the Procurement Department.    
    
Director Drake moved to approve Item 18 for adoption of the resolution and updated attachment 
provided at the meeting. Director Morin seconded the motion. Item 18 was carried unanimously 
by roll call vote: Ayes: Directors Drake, Bennett, and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
20. Resolution: Adopting Policy on Allocation of Staff Costs (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel presented Jamie Adelman and Valerie Weekly to provide information on adopting 
a policy on the allocation of staff costs.  
 
Jamie Adelman noted that in March 2015, Staff presented issue papers on the roles and 
responsibilities of various District staff related to the tasks associated with the overall 
administration of RT’s Pension Plans. In June, Staff began tracking times associated with 
performance of those responsibilities. Staff also completed benchmarking on various similarly 
sized pension plans and determined the total number of staff needed to manage similarly sized 
plans.  
 
Staff contacted Cheiron to see what the implications of charging additional administrative cost to 
the plans might be. Ms. Adelman noted that there would be no impact on staff members’ 
employment status, employer identification, nor the funded status of any plan. There also would 
be no increase in employee contributions. The administrative costs are attributed to each plan 
after the contribution of the normal cost, which is what the employees contribute.   
 
Based on the benchmarking results, Staff proposes that the Boards adopt the Policy on 
Allocation of Staff Costs. 
 
ATU Retirement Board Director Niz asked how long the $25,000 per quarter would be charged. 
Ms. Adelman responded that the cost allocation would continue for the rest of the life of the 
Plans.  MCEG Retirement Board Director Mattos asked if the cost would be reflected as an 
increased expense when the actuarial contribution rate is determined. Ms. Adelman responded 
in the affirmative. 
   



Item 1 

4 
12015925.1 

Director Drake moved to adopt Item 20. Director Bennett seconded the motion. Item 20 was 
carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Directors Drake, Bennett, and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
21. Resolution: Adopting Qualified Domestic Relations Order (QDRO) Policy and 

Procedure (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Valerie Weekly presented information on adopting a policy for processing QDROs.  
 
Legal Counsel has advised that it is in the best interest of the Retirement Plans and their 
participants for the Retirement Boards to adopt procedures that will help Staff efficiently and 
effectively process and implement the domestic relations orders it receives.  
 
Legal Counsel and Staff recommend that all of the Boards adopt the proposed policy and 
procedures for processing QDROs. 
  
Director Drake asked about the process if someone seeks a QDRO and the member in question 
is part of two different plans. Ms. Weekly confirmed that the QDRO has to address both plans, 
and both have to be named in the court records.   
 
Director Drake moved to adopt Item 21. Director Bennett seconded the motion. Item 21 was 
carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Directors Drake, Bennett, and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
17. Information: Implementation of Electronic Distribution of Quarterly Retirement Board 

Packages (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel introduced Valerie Weekly to present information on the implementation of 
electronic distribution of quarterly retirement board packages.  
 
Valerie Weekly noted that Staff has reviewed the current processes associated with the collation 
and distribution of the agenda packages for Quarterly and Special Retirement Board Meetings 
and has determined that there is the opportunity for potential cost and time savings by adopting 
an electronic distribution process similar to that of RT’s governing Board. Staff anticipates 
having the changes in place for the March 2016 Quarterly Retirement Board Meeting. 
  
ATU Retirement Board Director Niz asked if the board packages would still be available five or 
so days prior to the board meeting. Ms. Weekly noted that staff expects the time frame to 
remain the same.  
 
19. Information: Update on Roles and Responsibilities for Pension Administration (ALL). 

(Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel provided an update on the roles and responsibilities of various District staff 
members and Legal Counsel related to the administration of the Pension Plans. 
 
Legal Counsel Shayna van Hoften with Hanson Bridgett outlined the accomplishments of the 
Retirement Boards in 2015. 
 
 
REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES 
 
None. 
 



Item 1 

5 
12015925.1 

REPORTS, IDEAS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
None. 
 
With no further business to discuss, the AEA Retirement Board meeting was adjourned 
by Assistant Secretary Bonnel at 11:18 a.m. 
 
 
 

 
    ________________________________________ 
    James Drake, Chair 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
Russel Devorak Secretary 
 
 
By:___________________________________ 
      Donna Bonnel, Assistant Secretary 
 



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 1 of 2
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

03/16/16 Retirement Action 01/27/16

Subject: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended December 31, 2015 for
the Salaried Pension Plan (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger)

Approved: Presented:

Final 02/26/16
Chief Financial Officer, Acting Senior Accountant

ISSUE

Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended December 31, 2015 for the
Salaried Pension Plan (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger)

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended December 31, 2015 for
the Salaried Pension Plan (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger)

FISCAL IMPACT

None

DISCUSSION

Attached hereto are unaudited financial statements for the quarter and the year-to-date ended
December 31, 2015.  The financial statements are presented on an accrual basis and consist of a
Statement of Plan Net Position (balance sheet) (Attachment 1), a Statement of Changes in Plan
Net Position (income statement) for the quarter ended December 31, 2015 (Attachment 2), and a
year-to-date Statement of Changes in Plan Net Position (Attachment 3).

The Statement of Plan Net Position includes a summary of fund assets showing the amounts in
the following categories: cash, money market, and securities.  This statement also provides
amounts due from/to the District and Total Fund Equity (net position).

The Statement of Changes in Plan Net Position includes activities in the following categories:
investment gains/losses, dividends, interest income, unrealized gains/losses, benefit
contributions/payouts, and investment management and administrative expenses.

Asset Rebalancing

Pursuant to Section IV, Asset Rebalancing Policy of the Statement of Investment Objectives and
Policy Guidelines for the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Employees’ Retirement Funds, the Retirement
Boards have delegated authority to manage pension plan assets in accordance with the approved
rebalancing policy to the District’s Director of Finance/Treasury.  The Director is required to report
asset rebalancing activity to the Boards at their quarterly meetings.  Rebalancing can occur for
one or more of the following reasons:

1. The Pension Plan ended the month with an accounts receivable or payable balance due to
the District.  A payable or receivable net amount of the monthly required contribution

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
2



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 2 of 2
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

03/16/16 Retirement Action 01/27/16

Subject: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended December 31,
2015 for the Salaried Pension Plan (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger)

(required contribution is the percentage of covered payroll determined by the annual
actuarial valuation) less the Plan’s actual expenses.

2. The Pension Plan hires or removes a Fund Manager, in which case securities must be
moved to a new fund manager.

3. The Pension Plan investment mix is under or over the minimum or maximum asset
allocation as defined in the Statement of Investment Objectives and Policy Guidelines.

Attached hereto as Attachment 4 is the Salaried Plan’s Schedule of Cash Activities for the three
months ended December 31, 2015. The schedule of cash activities includes a summary of Plan
activities showing the amounts in the following categories: District’s pension contributions to the
Plan, payments to retirees, and the Pension Plan’s cash expenditures paid.  This schedule also
lists the rebalancing activity that occurred for the three months ended December 31, 2015.  The
Salaried Plan received $80,275.56 from the District as the result of the net cash activity between
the pension plan expenses and the required pension contributions.

Attached hereto as Attachment 5 is the Salaried Plan’s Asset Allocation as of December 31, 2015.
This statement shows the Salaried Plan’s asset allocation as compared to targeted allocation

percentages as defined in the Statement of Investment Objectives and Policy Guidelines.

Attached hereto as Attachment 6 is a reconciliation between the Callan Performance Report and
the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Pension Plans’ unaudited financial statements.  The reports differ in
that the unaudited financial statements reflect both investment activities and the pension fund’s
inflows and outflows. Callan’s report only reflects the investment activities.  The “Net Difference”
amounts shown are the results of Callan and State Street using different valuations for the same
securities and/or litigation settlements received by the Plans.

Included also as Attachment 7 is a reconciliation between the Callan Performance Report and the
Schedule of Cash Activities for payments made from/to the District.  Callan’s report classifies
gains from trades and litigation income as “net new investments.”  Finance staff classifies gains
from trades and litigation income in the Pension Plan’s unaudited Statement of Changes in
Fiduciary Net Assets as “Other Income,” which is combined in the category of “Interest, Dividend,
& Other Inc”.

Attached hereto as Attachment 8 is a schedule reflecting Fund Managers’ quarterly investment
returns and their investment fees.  Additionally, the schedule reflects annual rates of return on
investment net of investment fees for the one-year and three-year periods ended December 31,
2015 as compared to their benchmarks.

Attached hereto as Attachment 9 is a schedule reflecting all retirements that occurred, as well as
any transfer of employees or plan assets from the ATU/IBEW Plan to the Salaried Plan during the
three months ended December 31, 2015.

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
2





















REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 1 of 1
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

03/16/16 Retirement Action 1/27/16

Subject: Receive and File the Independent Auditor’s Report for the Twelve Month Period Ended
June 30, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger)

Approved: Presented:

Final 02/26/16
Chief Financial Officer, Acting Senior Accountant

ISSUE

Receive and File the Independent Auditor’s Report for the Twelve Month Period Ended June 30,
2015 (ALL). (Bernegger)

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Motion: Receive and File the Independent Auditor’s Report for the Twelve Month Period Ended
June 30, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger)

FISCAL IMPACT

None

DISCUSSION

In accordance with California Government Code Section 7504, the Retirement Plans are required
to have an annual audit performed. Gilbert Associates, Inc. conducted the Plans’ audit in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards.  The standards require that the auditors
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that the Plans’ financial statements are
free of material misstatements.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the investment assets for the ATU/IBEW and Salaried
Plans were combined into one commingled investment portfolio.  The balance of investments
owned by the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans are calculated based on a percentage of ownership
as determined by the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ custodian.

The financial results are shown on a comparative basis.  As noted in the report (Attachment 1),
the combined net position held in trust for pension benefits increased $5,379,733 or 2.18% from
the beginning of year balance of $241,322,621 to the end of year balance of $246,702,354.  The
audit confirmed that the District made 100% of its actuarially determined contribution of
$17,682,871.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 labor negotiations resulted in a new tier of employees in
each of the bargaining groups. Notes to the Financial Statement 1, Description of the Plans,
pages 7 through 12, detail the changes to Plan provisions.

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
3



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR  
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT 

DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WITH 
 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED 

 JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

JAdelman
Text Box
Attachment #1



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR  
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  

DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 PAGE 
 
MEMBERS OF THE RETIREMENT BOARD AND ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF i 
 
FINANCIAL SECTION 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 1 
 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

Statements of Plan Net Position - 2015 3 
 
Statements of Plan Net Position – 2014 4 
 
Statements of Changes in Plan Net Position - 2015 5 
 
Statements of Changes in Plan Net Position – 2014 6 

 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

 
Description of the Plans 7 

 
Significant Accounting Policies 12 

 
Contribution Requirements 13 

 
Cash and Investments 14 

 
Net Pension Liability 22 

 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

 
Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios – ATU/IBEW 26 

 
Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios – Salaried 26 
 
Schedule of District Contributions – ATU/IBEW 27 

 
Schedule of District Contributions – Salaried 29 
 
Schedule of Investment Returns – ATU/IBEW and Salaried 30 

 
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES  

 
Schedules of Investment and Administrative Expenses – ATU/IBEW 31 
 
Schedules of Investment and Administrative Expenses – Salaried 32 

 
 
 

i 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR 
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  

DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 
MEMBERS OF THE RETIREMENT BOARD AND ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 

 
 

Amalgamated Transit Union Local 256 
Ralph Niz, Chairperson 

Corina De La Torre, Member 
Steve Muniz, Alternate 

 
International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers Local 1245 

Eric Ohlson, Chairperson 
Lorrin Burdick, Member 
Stevie Gallow, Alternate 

 
Administrative Employees Association 

James Drake, Chairperson 
Mark Bennett, Member 

Russel Devorak, Alternate 
 

American Federation of State, County & Municipal Employees, Local 146, AFL-CIO 
Charles Mallonee, Chairperson 

Rob Hoslett, Member 
Tim Kent, Alternate 

 
Management and Confidential Employees 

Mike Mattos, Chairperson 
Alane Masui, Member 
Roger Thorn, Alternate 

 
Sacramento Regional Transit District 

Andy Morin, Common Chairperson 
Michael R. Wiley, Member 

Steve Hansen, Alternate 
 

Assistant Secretary, Acting 
Donna Bonnel, Director of Human Resources 

 
Legal Counsel 

Shayna M. van Hoften, Partner 
Anne C. Hydorn, Partner 

Hanson Bridgett 
 

Finance Department 
Les Tyler, Chief Financial Officer, Acting 

Brent Bernegger, Director of Finance/Treasury 
Jamie Adelman, Senior Accountant 

 
Human Resources Department 

Valerie Weekly, Pension and Retiree Services Administrator 
 

i 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
Members of the Board of Directors 
Sacramento Regional Transit District 
Sacramento, California 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the ATU/IBEW Plan and Salaried Plan for the 
Sacramento Regional Transit District Employees, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the ATU/IBEW Plan’s and Salaried Plan’s basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement.   
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Plan’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Plan’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the fiduciary net 
position of the ATU/IBEW Plan and the Salaried Plan for the Sacramento Regional Transit District Employees as 
of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in fiduciary net position for the year then ended in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
The basic financial statements of the ATU/IBEW Plan and the Salaried Plan as of June 30, 2014, were audited 
by other auditors whose report dated November 7, 2014, expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial 
statements.

 
(Continued) 

 
1. 

schmidtla
Color - No address



Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Schedules of Changes 
in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios, Schedules of District Contributions, and the Schedule of 
Investment Returns, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain 
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Management has omitted the Management’s Discussion and Analysis that governmental accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion 
on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information. 
 
Supplementary Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the ATU/IBEW Plan and the Salaried Plan basic financial statements. The accompanying supplemental 
Schedules of Investment and Administrative Expenses are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are 
not a required part of the financial statements. 
 
The accompanying 2015 Schedules of Investment and Administrative Expenses are the responsibility of 
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the 2015 basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the 2015 basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing 
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
2015 basic financial statements or to the 2015 basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the Schedules of Investment and Administrative Expenses are fairly stated, in all material respects, in 
relation to the 2015 basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
The accompanying 2014 Schedules of Investment and Administrative Expenses are the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the 2014 basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied by other auditors in the audit of the 2014 basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the 2014 basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and whose report dated November 7, 2014 expressed an opinion that such information was fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the 2014 basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
 
 
 
 Crowe Horwath LLP 
 
Sacramento, California 
December 30, 2015 

 
 

 
2. 

schmidtla
Crowe Horwath



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR  
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  

DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 
 

STATEMENTS OF PLAN NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 
 

ATU/IBEW Salaried Total
Assets

Investments, at fair value:
Equity securities 110,296,011$       49,875,031$       160,171,042$     
Fixed income securities 67,050,762           26,496,478         93,547,240         

Total investments 177,346,773         76,371,509         253,718,282       

Cash and short-term investments 2,888,256             1,209,251           4,097,507           

Receivables
Securities sold 447,809                197,273              645,082              
Interest and dividends 166,280                68,825                235,105              
Other receivables and prepaids 58,825                  165,256              224,081              

Total receivables 672,914                431,354              1,104,268           

   Total assets 180,907,943         78,012,114         258,920,057       

Liabilities
Securities purchased payable 8,391,320         3,339,493       11,730,813         
Accounts payable 410,569            76,321            486,890              

Total liabilities 8,801,889             3,415,814           12,217,703         

Net position restricted for pension benefits 172,106,054$       74,596,300$       246,702,354$     

 
(Schedules of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios for the Plans are presented on 
pages 26 and 27.) 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

  3 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR  
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  

DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 
 

STATEMENTS OF PLAN NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2014 

 
 
 

ATU/IBEW Salaried Total
Assets

Investments, at fair value:
Equity securities 102,436,610$     43,662,164$       146,098,774$     
Fixed income securities 67,330,781         26,610,171         93,940,952         

Total investments 169,767,391       70,272,335         240,039,726       

Cash and short-term investments 9,766,996           3,926,522           13,693,518         

Receivables
Securities sold 1,412,085           563,042              1,975,127           
Interest and dividends 290,759              116,727              407,486              
Other receivables and prepaids 36,492                92,712                129,204              

Total receivables 1,739,336           772,481              2,511,817           

   Total assets 181,273,723       74,971,338         256,245,061       

Liabilities
Securities purchased payable 10,226,692     4,041,748       14,268,440         
Accounts payable 549,358          104,642          654,000              

Total liabilities 10,776,050         4,146,390           14,922,440         

Net position restricted for pension benefits 170,497,673$     70,824,948$       241,322,621$     

 
(Schedules of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios for the Plans are presented on 
pages 26 and 27.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

  4 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR  
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  

DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 
 

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET POSITION 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED  

JUNE 30, 2015 
 

 
 

 ATU/IBEW  Salaried Total
Additions

Contributions:
Employer  $      10,343,620  $        7,335,308 17,678,928$       
Member                   3,682                      261 3,943                  

Total contributions 10,347,302         7,335,569           17,682,871         
Investment Income:

Net appreciation in fair value of investments            3,147,172            1,523,789 4,670,961           
Interest, dividends, and other income            2,208,131               925,197 3,133,328           
Investment expenses              (745,797)              (316,850) (1,062,647)         

Net investment income 4,609,506           2,132,136           6,741,642           
Total additions          14,956,808            9,467,705 24,424,513         

Deductions
Benefits paid to participants          13,157,985            5,502,144 18,660,129         
Administrative expenses               190,442               194,209 384,651              

Total deductions 13,348,427         5,696,353           19,044,780         

Net increase in plan net position 1,608,381           3,771,352           5,379,733           

Net position restricted for pension benefits - 
Beginning of fiscal year 170,497,673       70,824,948         241,322,621       

Net position restricted for pension benefits - 
End of fiscal year 172,106,054$     74,596,300$       246,702,354$     

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

  5 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR  
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  

DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 
 

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET POSITION 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED  

JUNE 30, 2014 
 

 
 

 ATU/IBEW  Salaried Total
Additions

Contributions:
Employer  $        9,711,107  $        6,609,083 16,320,190$       
Member                 22,425                   1,678 24,103                

Total contributions 9,733,532           6,610,761           16,344,293         
Investment Income:

Net appreciation in fair value of investments          20,970,171            8,631,373 29,601,544         
Interest, dividends, and other income            2,394,445               964,719 3,359,164           
Investment expenses              (732,797)              (298,448) (1,031,245)         

Net investment income 22,631,819         9,297,644           31,929,463         
Total additions          32,365,351          15,908,405 48,273,756         

Deductions
Benefits paid to participants          12,877,177            5,664,400 18,541,577         
Administrative expenses               230,365               176,367 406,732              

Total deductions 13,107,542         5,840,767           18,948,309         

Transfers in/(out) of plans (174,166)            174,166              -                         

Net increase in plan net position 19,083,643         10,241,804         29,325,447         

Net position restricted for pension benefits - 
Beginning of fiscal year 151,414,030       60,583,144         211,997,174       

Net position restricted for pension benefits - 
End of fiscal year 170,497,673$     70,824,948$       241,322,621$      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

  6 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
1. DESCRIPTION OF THE PLANS 

ATU/IBEW Plan 

The Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional Transit District Employees who are Members of Amalgamated 
Transit Union (ATU) Local 256 and International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW) Local 1245 (the 
ATU/IBEW Plan) is a single employer defined benefit pension plan covering contract employees of Sacramento 
Regional Transit District (the District).  Participants should refer to their respective ATU/IBEW Plan 
agreements for more complete information. The ATU Plan and the IBEW Plan are accounted for by the District 
as one Plan (collectively, the “ATU/IBEW Plan”).  The ATU/IBEW Plan is reported as a pension trust fund in 
the District’s financial statements. 

Salaried Plan 

The Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional Transit District Salaried Employees (the Salaried Plan) is a 
single employer defined benefit pension plan covering full or part-time employees in the following employee 
groups: Administrative Employees’ Association (AEA), Management and Confidential Employees’ Group 
(MCEG), and Members of the American Federation of State, County & Municipal Employees, Local 146, AFL-
CIO (AFSCME). AFSCME is further split into two groups AFSCME-Technical and AFSCME-Supervisors.  
Participants should refer to the Salaried Plan agreement for more complete information.  The Salaried Plan is 
reported as a pension trust fund in the District’s financial statements. 

Plan Tier Definition – As a result of labor negotiations and the court ruling on the Public Employees’ Pension 
Reform Act, a new tier to both the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Pension Plans were created. The Tier effective 
date was directly affected by labor negotiations and whether the union/employee group was under a current 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU). As of December 30, 2014 the ATU, IBEW, and AFSCME – 
Technical unions were bound by a current MOU. Whereas, the AEA, MCEG, and AFSCME – Supervisors had 
not settled negotiations and were not bound by a current MOU; therefore, PEPRA was required to be 
implemented for these groups.  

• ATU, IBEW, and AFSCME – Technical - Tier 1 for the ATU/IBEW Plan and AFSCME – Technical 
union consists of all employees hired on or before December 31, 2014, Tier 2 consists of all 
employees hired on or after January 1, 2015.  

• AEA, MCEG, and AFSCME – Supervisors - Tier 1 for the AEA, MCEG, and AFSCME – 
Supervisors consists of all employees hired on or before December 30, 2014, Tier 2 consists of all 
employees hired on or after December 31, 2014.  

Tier 1 is closed to new entrants as all newly hired employees will be placed into the respective Tier 2 plans.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  7 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
1. DESCRIPTION OF THE PLANS (Continued) 

PEPRA Employees 

The Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) of 2013 created new pension rules for employees hired 
after January 1, 2013. ‘PEPRA employees’ were hired under both the ATU/IBEW Plan and the Salaried Plan 
and the employees are required to contribute 50% of the normal cost of their plan. The benefits under PEPRA 
were reduced in an effort to reduce the pension liability of local agencies in the state of California.  

 
On October 4, 2013 Assembly Bill 1222 provided a temporary exemption to the January 1, 2013 PEPRA law 
for employees of Transit Agencies. Along with changes to employee retirement benefits, this 
exemption eliminated employee contributions through January 1, 2015. Therefore all contributions received 
were refunded in November 2013 and the employees hired between January 1, 2013 and October 4, 2013 were 
included in the Tier 1 Plans. On September 28, 2014 Assembly Bill 1783 was signed by Governor Brown which 
extended the Districts PEPRA exemption to January 1, 2016.  
 
On December 30, 2014 a court ruling was released in which PEPRA became a requirement for Transit Agencies 
in the state of California. The ruling indicated that if a bargaining group was within a current MOU, PEPRA 
would not apply until the expiration of said MOU. As of December 30, 2014 the ATU, IBEW, and AFSCME – 
Technical groups were under a current MOU. For all other employee groups not under current contract (MCEG, 
AEA, and AFSCME – Supervisors), PEPRA applies to all new hires as of December 30, 2014. 

General Provisions ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans 

Contributions to the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans are authorized or amended by the Retirement Board based 
on an actuarial basis.  The authority under which benefit provisions are established and amended rests with the 
District’s Board of Directors as a result of labor negotiations.  Assembly Bill 1064, effective January 1, 2004, 
mandates that the Retirement Boards be comprised of equal representation of management and Bargaining 
Group employees.  The Retirement Board shall consist of not more than 4 members and 2 alternates.  Two (2) 
voting members and one (1) alternate shall be appointed by the District’s Board of Directors and two (2) voting 
members and one (1) alternate shall be appointed by the ATU, IBEW, AEA, AFSCME, and MCEG member 
groups. 

The ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans provide defined pension, disability, and death benefits to employees who 
are members of the ATU, IBEW, AEA, MCEG, AFSCME-Technical, and AFSCME-Supervisors.  

ATU/IBEW Plan membership for both Tier 1 and Tier 2, at June 30, consisted of: 

2015 2014

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 507          493          
Terminated members entitled to but not yet collecting benefits 42            39            
Current active members 696          708          

1,245       1,240       
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
  8 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
1. DESCRIPTION OF THE PLANS (Continued) 
 

Salaried Plan membership for both Tier 1 and Tier 2, as of June 30, consisted of: 
 

 
2015 2014

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 227          221          
Terminated members entitled to but not yet collecting benefits 45            47            
Current active members 250          252          

522          520          
 

RETIREMENT BENEFITS 
 
 Table 1 below presents a summary of the retirement benefits for Tier 1 employees for each of the employee 

groups represented by the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans. 
 

Table 1 

 TIER 1 ATU/IBEW Plan Salaried Plan 

Employee 
Unions/Groups ATU IBEW AFSCME - 

Technical 
AFSCME - 
Supervisors AEA MCEG 

Plan Terms MOU MOU MOU MOU MOU MOU 

Vesting Period: 
Years of Service - 
% Vested 

10 - 100% 5 - 100% 

5 - 20%                               
6 - 40%                                    
7 - 60%                                        
8 - 80%                               

9 - 100% 

9 - 100% 5 - 100% 5 - 100% 

Employer 
Contribution 27.55% 27.55% 32.04% 32.04% 32.04% 32.04% 

Employee 
Contribution 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

Vacation sell back 
towards pension 
calculation 

Allowable Allowable Allowable Allowable Allowable Allowable 

Sick leave sell 
back towards 
pension calculation 

Allowable Allowable Allowable Allowable Allowable Allowable 

Retirement Age 
Eligible and 
Multiplier 

See  
Table 3 

See  
Table 3 

See  
Table 3 

See  
Table 3 

See  
Table 3 

See  
Table 3 

Disability 
Retirement 
Multiplier 

Equal to applicable retirement age multiplier or 2% if age and service are not met. 
Vesting required 

  9 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
 
1. DESCRIPTION OF THE PLANS (Continued) 
 

Table 2 below presents a summary of the retirement benefits for Tier 2 employees for each of the employee 
groups represented by the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans. 
 
Table 2 

TIER 2 ATU/IBEW Plan Salaried Plan 

 Employee 
Unions/Groups ATU IBEW AFSCME - 

Technical 
AFSCME - 
Supervisors AEA MCEG 

Plan Terms MOU MOU MOU PEPRA PEPRA PEPRA 

Vesting Period: 
Years of Service - 
% Vested 

10 - 100% 10 - 100% 

5 - 10%                               
6 - 30%                                    
7 - 50%                                        
8 - 70%                               
9 - 90%                             

10 - 100% 

5 - 100% 5 - 100% 5 - 100% 

Employer 
Contribution 24.55% 26.05% 30.54% 26.29% 26.29% 26.29% 

Employee 
Contribution 3.0% 1.5% to 

4.5% 1.5% to 4.5% 1/2 Normal 
Cost 

1/2 Normal 
Cost 

1/2 Normal 
Cost 

Vacation sell back 
towards pension 
calculation 

Allowable Allowable Allowable Not 
Allowable 

Not 
Allowable 

Not 
Allowable 

Sick sell back 
towards pension 
calculation 

Allowable Allowable Allowable Not 
Allowable 

Not 
Allowable 

Not 
Allowable 

Retirement Age 
Eligible and 
Multiplier 

See  
Table 4 

See  
Table 4 

See  
Table 4 

See  
Table 4 

See  
Table 4 

See  
Table 4 

Disability 
Retirement 
Multiplier 

Equal to applicable retirement age multiplier or 2% if age and service are not met. 
Vesting required 

  10 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
1. DESCRIPTION OF THE PLANS (Continued) 

 
The retirement ages, years of service and pension calculation multipliers vary by employee union/group. The 
specific benefits for the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plan Tier 1 and Tier 2 employees are outlined below in 
Table 3 and Table 4, respectively: 

 
Table 3 Table 4

Employee 
Unions/ Groups Age

Years of 
Service Multiplier

Employee 
Unions/ Groups Age

Years of 
Service Multiplier

ATU 55 25 2.00% ATU 55 25 2.00%
56 26 2.10% 56 26 2.10%
57 27 2.20% 57 27 2.20%
58 28 2.30% 58 28 2.30%
59 29 2.40% 59 29 2.40%
60 30 or more 2.50% 60 30 or more 2.50%

IBEW 55-59 25-29 or more 2.00% IBEW 55-62 N/A 2.00%
60 30 or more 2.50% 63 N/A 2.10%

64 N/A 2.20%
Salaried 55 25 2.00% 65 N/A 2.30%

(AEA, MCEG, 56 26 2.10% 66 N/A 2.40%
and AFSCME) 57 27 2.20% 67 N/A 2.50%

58 28 2.30%
59 29 2.40% AFSCME- 55 25 2.00%
60 30 or more 2.50% Technical 56 26 2.10%

57 27 2.20%
58 28 2.30%
59 29 2.40%
60 30 or more 2.50%

AEA, MCEG, 55 N/A 1.30%
and AFSCME - 56 N/A 1.40%

Supervisors 57 N/A 1.50%
58 N/A 1.60%
59 N/A 1.70%
60 N/A 1.80%
61 N/A 1.90%
62 N/A 2.00%
63 N/A 2.10%
64 N/A 2.20%
65 N/A 2.30%
66 N/A 2.40%
67 N/A 2.50%

Tier 2Tier 1

 

  11 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
1. DESCRIPTION OF THE PLANS (Continued) 

The benefits for both Tier 1 and Tier 2 members begin at retirement and continue for the participant’s life with 
no cost of living adjustment. The participant can elect to receive reduced benefits with continuing benefits to a 
beneficiary after death. 

Disability Benefits – A participant is eligible for a disability benefit if the participant is unable to perform the 
duties of his or her job with the District, cannot be transferred to another job with the District, and has submitted 
satisfactory medical evidence of permanent disqualification from his or her job.  Members are required to be 
vested in their respective union or employee group to qualify for disability retirement.  The disability benefit is 
equal to the retirement allowance, as defined by the ATU/IBEW or Salaried Plan, multiplied by service accrued 
through the date of disability.  The disability benefit cannot exceed the retirement benefit.  The benefit begins at 
disability and continues until recovery or for the participant’s life unless the participant elects to receive reduced 
benefits with continuing benefits to a beneficiary after death. 

Pre-Retirement Death Benefit – A participant’s surviving spouse is eligible for a pre-retirement death benefit 
if the participant is vested, based on the respective bargaining agreements.  The pre-retirement death benefit is 
the actuarial equivalent of the normal retirement benefit, as if the participant retired on the date of death.  The 
death benefit begins when the participant dies and continues for the life of the surviving spouse or until 
remarriage. 

Administration – The ATU/IBEW Plan is administered by the ATU/IBEW Plan’s Retirement Board.  All 
expenses incurred in the administration of the ATU/IBEW Plan are paid by the ATU/IBEW Plan. The Salaried 
Plan is administered by the Salaried Plan’s Retirement Boards.  All expenses incurred in the administration of 
the Salaried Plan are paid by the Salaried Plan. 

Plan Termination – Should the ATU/IBEW or the Salaried Plan be terminated, the Plan’s net position will first 
be applied to provide for retirement benefits to retired members.  Any remaining net position will be allocated 
to other members, oldest first both active and inactive, on the basis of the actuarial present value of their 
benefits. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

Basis of Accounting – The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  The ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans 
are reported as pension trust funds which report resources that are required to be held in trust for the members 
and beneficiaries of the defined benefit pension plans.  The ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans are accounted for on 
the flow of economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  

 
The ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans have adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 25, as their 
source of accounting and reporting principles.  The District’s contributions to the ATU/IBEW and Salaried 
Plans are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due pursuant to formal commitments or 
contractual requirements.  Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the 
ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ agreements. 

Cash and Short-Term Investments – The ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans consider all highly liquid 
investments with a maturity of three months or less to be short-term investments. 

 

 

  12 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Investments – Investments are stated at fair value based on quoted market prices (or, if not available, at 
estimated fair value determined by third-party pricing services).  Realized gains or losses on the sale of 
investments are recorded on the trade date as the difference between proceeds received and the fair value at the 
beginning of the year, or cost if acquired during the year.  Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair value of 
investments includes net unrealized market appreciation and depreciation of investments and net realized gains 
and losses on the sale of investments during the period.  Interest income includes dividends and interest paid on 
the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ investments.  The investment assets for the ATU/IBEW and the Salaried 
Plans are combined into one commingled investment portfolio.  The balances of investments owned by the 
plans are calculated based on a percentage of ownership as determined by the Plans’ custodian, State Street. 

 
Estimates – The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans administrator to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.  Accordingly, actual results may differ from those estimates. 

New Pronouncements – For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans did not 
implement new GASB pronouncements as they did not apply to the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ financial 
activity or were immaterial.  

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans implemented GASB 
pronouncement 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, an amendment of GASB 25.  This statement replaces 
the requirements of Statements No. 25, “Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note 
Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans”, and No. 50, “Pension Disclosures”, as they relate to pension plans 
that are administered through trusts or equivalent arrangements. For defined benefit pension plans, this 
Statement establishes standards of financial reporting for separately issued financial reports and specifies the 
required approach to measuring the pension liability of employers and nonemployer contributing entities for 
benefits provided through the pension plan (the net pension liability), about which information is required to be 
presented. The implementation of the GASB statement resulted in certain changes in presentation but did not 
have a material impact on the Plans’ financial Statements.  

There are currently no future pronouncements that will be applicable to the ATU/IBEW and Salaried 
Retirement Plans financial statements.  
 

3. CONTRIBUTION REQUIREMENTS  
 
EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 
 
The ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ funding policy provides for actuarially determined periodic contributions.  
Contribution rates for retirement benefits are determined using the entry age normal cost method.  During the 
fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014, the District made 100% of the actuarially determined 
contributions to the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans of $17,678,928 and $16,320,190, respectively, for all 
employees.    

 
TIER 1 EMPLOYEES 
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, the actuarially determined rate for the ATU/IBEW Plan was 
27.55% and 26.27%, respectively, of covered payroll. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, the 
actuarially determined rate for the Salaried Plan was 32.04% and 29.95%, respectively, of covered payroll. No 
contributions are required by the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ members pursuant to each respective 
bargaining agreement for employees hired before January 1, 2015. 

  13 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
3. CONTRIBUTION REQUIREMENTS (Continued) 
 

TIER 2 EMPLOYEES 
 
As of January 1, 2015, all new employees were required to contribute to their pension based upon the terms of 
the bargaining groups MOU or based on PEPRA.  
 
ATU employees are required to contribute 3.00% of their annual salary. The employer portion of the actuarially 
determined rate for the ATU members was 24.55% of covered payroll for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015. 
IBEW employees are required to contribute 1.5% the first year of service increasing to 4.5% in the third year of 
service and beyond. The employer portion of the actuarially determined rate for the IBEW members was 
26.05% of covered payroll for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015. The total contribution by Tier 2 employees 
of the ATU/IBEW Plan as of June 30, 2015 was $3,682. 
 
AFSCME – Technical employees are required to contribute 1.5% the first year of service increasing to 4.5% in 
the third year of service and beyond. The employer portion of the actuarially determined rate for the AFSCME - 
Technical members was 30.54% of covered payroll for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.  Members of AEA, 
MCEG, and AFSCME – Supervisors are required to contribute 50% of normal cost which is currently 5.75% of 
their annual salary. The employer portion of the actuarially determined rate for the AEA, MCEG, and AFSCME 
- Supervisors members was 26.29% of covered payroll for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015. The total 
contribution by Tier 2 employees of the Salaried Plan as of June 30, 2015 was $260.  
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 all new employees were required to contribute 50% of the normal cost 
of the pension benefit under the terms of PEPRA. The employee contributions for the fiscal year ending June 
30, 2014 were 5.75% or $22,425 and 4.75% or $1,678, for the ATU/IBEW Plan and the Salaried Plan, 
respectively. The employer portion of the actuarially determined rate for the ATU/IBEW Plan and Salaried Plan 
was 18.18% and 21.61%, respectively, of covered payroll for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014.  
 
The PEPRA related contribution rates for June 30, 2015 and 2014 were actuarially determined on April 20, 
2015 and July 9, 2013, respectively, using the member data from actuarial valuations of the Plans as of June 30, 
2014 and 2012, respectively. 
 

4. CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

CASH AND SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS 

At June 30, 2015 and 2014, the reported amount of cash and short-term investments of the ATU/IBEW and 
Salaried Plans was $4,097,507 and $13,693,518, respectively.  The amount was collateralized with securities 
held by the counterparty’s trust department or agent in the District’s name on behalf of the Retirement Plan. 
 

  14 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
4.    CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 

INVESTMENTS  
 

An annual Board-adopted policy, the Statement of Investment Objectives and Policy Guidelines for the 
Sacramento Regional Transit District Retirement Plans (Policy), governs the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ 
investments. This Policy focuses on the continued feasibility of achieving, and the appropriateness of, the Asset 
Allocation Policy, the Investment Objectives, the Investment Policies and Guidelines, and the Investment 
Restrictions. The Retirement Boards have the authority to amend the asset allocation targets as well as establish 
and amend investment policies. The following was the Plans adopted asset allocation policy as of June 30: 

 

Asset Class 2015 2014

Domestic Equity Large Cap 32% 30%
Domestic Equity Small Cap 8% 7%
International Equity Developed 19% 18%
International Equity Emerging Markets 6% 5%
Domestic Fixed Income 35% 40%

Target Allocation

 
 

All of the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ investments are reported at fair value measured by quoted market 
prices. 

 
For the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, the annual money-weighted rate of return on pension plan 
investments, net of pension plan investment expenses, was 3.25% and 15.64%, respectively. The money-
weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing 
amounts actually invested.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
  15 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
4. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 

The following table identifies the investment types that are authorized by the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ 
Retirement Boards. The table also identifies certain provisions of the Investment Objectives and Policy that 
address interest rate risk, credit risk and concentration of credit risk. 

 

Authorized Investment Type Maximum 
Maturity (1)

 Minimum 
Rating (3)

Maximum 
Percentage of 

Portfolio

Maximum 
Investment in 

One Issuer
Cash None N/A None None
U.S. Treasury Bills None N/A None None
Agency Discount Notes None N/A None None
Certificates of Deposit None N/A None None
Bankers Acceptances None N/A None None
Commercial Paper None A2/P2 None None
Asset-Backed Commercial Paper None A2/P2 None None
Money Market Funds and Bank Short-Term 
Investment Funds (STIF) None N/A None None
Repurchase Agreements None N/A None None
U.S. Government and Agency Securities None N/A None None
Credit Securities/Corporate Debt (4) None N/A None None
Securitized Investments (5) None N/A None None
Emerging Markets None N/A None None
International Fixed Income Securities None N/A None None
Other Fixed Income Securities (6) None N/A None None
Mutual Funds N/A N/A 25% (2) 5%
Real Estate Investment Trust N/A N/A 25% (2) 5%
Depository Receipt N/A N/A 25% (2) 5%
Stocks N/A N/A 25% (2) 5%

 
(1) The fixed income portion of the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans shall be limited in duration to between 

75% and 125% of the benchmark. 
(2) No more than 25% of the fair value on the purchase cost basis of the total common stock portfolio (equity 

securities) shall be invested in a single industry at the time of purchase. 
(3) The investment managers shall maintain a minimum overall portfolio quality rating of “A” equivalent or 

better at all times (based on market-weighted portfolio average). Minimum quality (at purchase) must be at 
least 80% Baa or above.  

(4) Credit Securities and Corporate Debt include: debentures, medium-term notes, capital securities, trust 
preferred securities, Yankee bonds, Eurodollar securities, floating rate notes and perpetual floaters, 
structured notes, municipal bonds, preferred stock, private placements (bank loans and 144(a) securities), 
and EETCs. 

(5) Securitized investments includes: agency and non-agency mortgage-backed securities, asset-backed 
securities (144(a) securities), and commercial mortgage-backed securities. 

 (6) Other Fixed Income Securities includes: Fixed income commingled and mutual funds, futures and options, 
swap agreements, and reverse repurchase agreements. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
  16 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
4. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 

INVESTMENT RISK FACTORS 
 
There are many factors that can affect the value of investments.  Such factors as interest rate risk, credit risk, 
custodial credit risk, concentration of credit risk, and foreign currency risk may affect both equity and fixed 
income securities.   

 
INTEREST RATE RISK 

 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of fixed income securities will decline because of rising interest rates.  
The prices of fixed income securities with a longer time to maturity, measured by duration, tend to be more 
sensitive to changes in interest rates and, therefore, more volatile than those with shorter duration. 
 
The following table provides information about the interest rate risks associated with the ATU/IBEW and 
Salaried Plans’ investments at June 30, 2015.  
 

Less More Fair
than 1 1 – 5 6 – 10 than 10 Value

Collateralized Mortgage Obligations -$                      934,271$           3,333,281$        6,468,937$        10,736,489$      
Corporate Bonds 295,879            6,661,195          3,725,380          4,714,205          15,396,659        
Municipal Bonds -                        -                         476,583             246,142             722,725             
U.S. Government Agency Obligations -                        254,983             2,199,814          19,363,859        21,818,656        
U.S. Government Issued Obligations 9,188,966         11,542,035        6,288,225          4,259,693          31,278,919        
Asset-Backed Securities -                        -                         2,123,916          11,469,876        13,593,792        
Total 9,484,845$       19,392,484$      18,147,199$      46,522,712$      93,547,240$      

Maturity in Years

 
The following table provides information about the interest rate risks associated with the ATU/IBEW and 
Salaried Plan’s investments at June 30, 2014.  

Less More Fair
than 1 1 – 5 6 – 10 than 10 Value

Collateralized Mortgage Obligations -$                    363,661$          2,977,041$       7,637,213$       10,977,915$     
Corporate Bonds 1,139,096       6,470,913         3,527,154         3,763,174         14,900,337       
Municipal Bonds -                      -                        438,356            681,598            1,119,954         
U.S. Government Agency Obligations -                      2,735                2,311,794         20,467,290       22,781,819       
U.S. Government Issued Obligations 6,980,614       14,397,839       8,803,837         3,399,803         33,582,093       
Asset-Backed Securities -                      -                        1,513,343         9,065,491         10,578,834       
Total 8,119,710$     21,235,148$     19,571,525$     45,014,569$     93,940,952$     

Maturity in Years

 
In accordance with the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ investment policy, investments may include mortgage 
pass-through securities, collateralized mortgage obligations, asset-backed securities, callable bonds and 
corporate debts that are considered to be highly sensitive to changes in interest rates. 

  17 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
4. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

 
COLLATERALIZED MORTGAGE OBLIGATIONS 
 
Collateralized mortgage obligations (CMO’s) are bonds that represent claims to specific cash flow from large 
pools of home mortgages.  The streams of principal and interest payments on the mortgages are distributed to 
the different classes of CMO interests. 
 
CMO’s are often highly sensitive to changes in interest rates and any resulting change in the rate at which 
homeowners sell their properties, refinance, or otherwise pre-pay their loans.  Investors in these securities may 
not only be subjected to such prepayment risk, but also exposed to significant market and liquidity risks. 
 
CORPORATE DEBT – RANGE NOTES  
 
Range notes are securities which pay two different interest rates depending on whether or not a benchmark 
index falls within a pre-determined range as structured per the note.  If the benchmark index rate does not fall 
within the pre-determined range, the note will not earn the coupon rate for that time period.  With this pre-
determined range feature, range notes are highly sensitive to changes in interest rates.  As of June 30, 2015, the 
ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans held range notes with a fair value of $422,100.  As of June 30, 2014, the 
ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans held range notes with a fair value of $446,243.   
 
MORTGAGE PASS-THROUGH SECURITIES 
 
These securities are issued by Government Sponsored Enterprises (GSEs), which are a group of financial 
services corporations created by the United States Congress.  The GSEs include: the Federal National Mortgage 
Association (Fannie Mae), the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Association (Freddie Mac), and the Federal Home 
Loan Banks.  Another institution that issues these securities is the Government National Mortgage Association 
(Ginnie Mae).  These securities are highly sensitive to interest rate fluctuations because they are subject to early 
payment.  In a period of declining interest rate, the resulting reduction in expected total cash flows affects the 
fair value of these securities. 

 
ASSET-BACKED SECURITIES 
 
Asset-backed securities generate a return based upon either the payment of interest or principal on obligations in 
an underlying pool.  The relationship between interest rates and prepayments make the fair value highly 
sensitive to changes in interest rates. 
 
CALLABLE BONDS 
 
Although bonds are issued with clearly defined maturities, an issuer may be able to redeem, or call, a bond 
earlier than its maturity date.  The Plans must then replace the called bond with a bond that may have a lower 
yield than the original bond.  The call feature causes the fair value to be highly sensitive to changes in interest 
rates.   As of June 30, 2015, the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans held callable bonds with a fair value of 
$4,008,874.  As of June 30, 2014, the ATU/IBEW Plan and the Salaried Plan held callable bonds with a fair 
value of $3,450,766. 
 
CREDIT RISK 
 
Fixed income securities are subject to credit risk, which is the risk that a bond issuer or other counterparty to a 
debt instrument will not fulfill its obligation to pay interest or principal in a timely manner, or that negative 
perceptions of the issuer’s ability to make these payments will cause security prices to decline.  The 
circumstances may arise due to a variety of factors such as financial weakness, bankruptcy, litigation and/or 
adverse political developments. 

  18 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
4. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

 
A bond’s credit quality is an assessment of the issuer’s ability to pay interest on the bond, and ultimately, to pay 
the principal.  Credit quality is evaluated by one of the independent bond-rating agencies, for example Moody’s 
Investors Services (Moody’s).  The lower the rating the greater the chance, in the rating agency’s opinion, the 
bond issuer will default, or fail to meet their payment obligations.  Generally, the lower a bond’s credit rating, 
the higher its yield should be to compensate for the additional risk. 
 
Certain fixed income securities, including obligations of the U.S. government or those explicitly guaranteed by 
the U.S. government, are not considered to have credit risk. 
 
For the fiscal years ending June 30, 2015 and 2014, the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans were in adherence with 
the credit risk provisions of the Statement of Investment Objectives and Policy Guidelines which require a 
minimum overall portfolio quality rating and a minimum credit rating at the time of purchase. 
 
The following table provides information on the credit ratings and fair value associated with the ATU/IBEW 
and Salaried Plans’ investments as of June 30, 2015. 

Investment Rating Fair Value
Percentage of 

Portfolio
Not Applicable 164,268,550$          63.72%

Not Rated 56,033,893 21.73%
Aaa 16,157,305 6.27%
Aa1 458,580 0.18%
Aa2 1,216,262 0.47%
Aa3 351,245 0.14%
A1 1,384,654 0.54%
A2 2,328,805 0.90%
A3 3,630,204 1.41%

Baa1 3,776,868 1.46%
Baa2 2,901,380 1.13%
Baa3 2,492,310 0.97%
Ba1 807,401 0.31%
Ba2 671,768 0.26%
Ba3 98,024 0.04%
B1 127,875 0.05%
B2 610,069 0.24%

Caa3 441,415 0.17%
Ca 9,043 0.00%

WR 50,138 0.02%

257,815,789$          100.00%

 

 
 

  19 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
4. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 

The following table provides information on the credit ratings and fair value associated with the ATU/IBEW 
and Salaried Plans’ investments as of June 30, 2014. 
 
 
 

 
CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK 

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of an entity’s investment in a single 
issuer. 

The investment policies of the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans state that an investment in each domestic or 
international equity fund managers’ securities of a single issuer shall not exceed 5% (at cost) of the value of the 
portfolios and/or of the total outstanding shares.  As of June 30, 2015 and 2014, the ATU/IBEW and Salaried 
Plans did not have domestic or international equity fund managers’ investments in a single issuer that exceeded 
5% (at cost) of the value of the portfolios and/or of the total outstanding shares. As of June 30, 2015 and 2014, 
the Plans held more than 5% of the Plans’ investments and more than 5% of the Plans’ fiduciary net position in 
the following fixed-income securities investment. 
 

2015 2014
Federal National Morgtage Association 16,273,430$         21,236,745$         
Federal Home Loan Bank 12,907,787           13,963,182           
US Treasury 17,046,158           22,002,362           

 
 

Investment Rating Fair Value
Percentage of 

Portfolio
 Not applicable  $     159,792,291 62.98%

Not rated           57,905,099 22.82%
Aaa           14,259,652 5.62%
Aa1                977,535 0.39%
Aa2             1,771,440 0.70%
Aa3                354,555 0.14%
A1             1,448,258 0.57%
A2             1,520,943 0.60%
A3             2,409,478 0.95%

Baa1             4,660,839 1.84%
Baa2             4,642,177 1.83%
Baa3             1,235,670 0.49%
Ba1                116,350 0.05%
Ba2                161,895 0.06%
Ba3                827,823 0.33%
B1                616,190 0.24%
B2                132,728 0.05%

Caa1                503,608 0.20%
Caa3                386,167 0.15%
Ca                  10,546 0.00%

Total Cash & Investments 253,733,244$     100.00%

  20 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
4.    CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

 
CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK 
 
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a 
government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in 
the possession of an outside party. 
 
The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., 
broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral 
securities that are in the possession of another party.  The ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ investment policy 
does not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits 
or investments. The ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ investment securities are not exposed to custodial credit 
risk because all securities are held by the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ custodian bank in the District’s name. 
 
FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK 

 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment or a deposit.  The ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ investment policy states international equity 
securities shall be comprised of American Depository Receipts (ADR) of non-U.S. companies, common stocks 
of non-U.S. companies, preferred stocks of non-U.S. companies, foreign convertible securities including 
debentures convertible to common stocks, and cash equivalents. 

 
The following table provides information on deposits and investments held in various foreign currencies, which 
are stated in U.S. dollars.  The ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans do have foreign currency deposits and 
investments which may be used for hedging purposes. 

 
At June 30, 2015 and 2014, the U.S. dollar balances organized by investment type and currency denominations 
for the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans are as follows: 
 

2015 2014
Asset Class Foreign Currency U.S. Dollars U.S. Dollars 
Cash

EURO 430$            528$            
Japanese Yen 87                -               
Swiss Franc 6,367           -               

Total 6,884$         528$            

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  21 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
5. NET PENSION LIABILITY 
 

ATU/IBEW Plan 

The components of the net pension liability of the ATU/IBEW Plan at June 30, 2015, were as follows:  

Total pension liability 222,705,517$         
Plan fiduciary net position (172,106,054)          
ATU/IBEW net pension liability 50,599,463$           

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
total pension liability 77.28%  

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2014, using the following 
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, and using update procedures to roll 
forward the total pension liability to the pension plan’s fiscal year-end: 
 
  Inflation    3.15% 
  Amortization growth rate  3.25% 
  Salary increases   3.25%, plus merit component  
  Investment Rate of Return   7.65%, net of investment expense 
  Post-retirement mortality  Sex distinct RP-2000 Combined Blue Collar Mortality, 3 year  
      setback for females 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2011. 
  
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension 
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to 
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target 
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for 
each major asset class included in the pension plan’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2015, are summarized 
in the following table:  
 

Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Real Rate of Return

Domestic Equity Large Cap 8.90%
Domestic Equity Small Cap 10.15%
International Equity Developed 9.80%
International Equity Emerging 11.45%
Domestic Fixed Income 3.05%  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

  22 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
5.   NET PENSION LIABILITY (continued) 

 
The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 7.65%.  The discount rate was decreased 
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 to 7.65% from 7.75% as of June 30, 2014. The reduction is due to a 
review of potential investment returns over the next ten to twenty year horizon. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that the District will continue to contribute to the Plan based on an 
actuarially determined contribution, reflecting a payment equal to annual Normal Cost, the expected 
administrative expenses, and an amount necessary to amortize the remaining Unfunded Actuarial Liability as a 
level percentage of payroll over a closed period (18 years remaining as of the June 30, 2014 actuarial valuation). 
 
Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of the current Plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return 
on Plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the Total Pension 
Liability.    

 
The following presents the net pension liability of the ATU/IBEW Plan, calculated using the discount rate of 
7.65 percent, as well as what the ATU/IBEW Plans net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.65%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.65%) than the current 
rate: 
 
 

1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase

6.65% 7.65% 8.65%
Total pension liability 244,369,554$    222,705,517$    204,025,934$    
Plan fiduciary net position (172,106,054)     (172,106,054)     (172,106,054)    
Net pension liability 72,263,500$      50,599,463$      31,919,880$      

Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension liability 70.43% 77.28% 84.35%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  23 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
5.    NET PENSION LIABILITY (continued)  
 

Salaried Plan 
 
The components of the net pension liability of the Salaried Plan at June 30, 2015, were as follows:  

Total pension liability 116,410,752$         
Plan fiduciary net position (74,596,300)            
Salaried net pension liability 41,814,452$           

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
total pension liability 64.08%  

 
The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2014, using the following 
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, and using update procedures to roll 
forward the total pension liability to the pension plan’s fiscal year-end: 
 
  Inflation    3.15% 
  Amortization growth rate  3.25% 
  Salary increases   3.25%, plus merit component  
  Investment Rate of Return   7.65%, net of investment expense 
  Post-retirement mortality  Sex distinct RP-2000 Combined White Collar Mortality, 3  
      year setback for females 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2011. 
  
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension 
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to 
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target 
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for 
each major asset class included in the pension plan’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2015, are summarized 
in the following table:  
 

Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Real Rate of Return

Domestic Equity Large Cap 8.90%
Domestic Equity Small Cap 10.15%
International Equity Developed 9.80%
International Equity Emerging 11.45%
Domestic Fixed Income 3.05%  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  24 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
5.    NET PENSION LIABILITY (continued) 

 
The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 7.65%. The discount rate was decreased 
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 to 7.65% from 7.75% as of June 30, 2014. The reduction is due to a 
review of potential investment returns over the next ten to twenty year horizon. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that the District will continue to contribute to the Plan based on an 
actuarially determined contribution, reflecting a payment equal to annual Normal Cost, the expected 
administrative expenses, and an amount necessary to amortize the remaining Unfunded Actuarial Liability as a 
level percentage of payroll over a closed period (18 years remaining as of the June 30, 2014 actuarial valuation) 
 
Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of the current Plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return 
on Plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the Total Pension 
Liability.     

 
The following presents the net pension liability of the Salaried Plan, calculated using the discount rate of 7.65 
percent, as well as what the Salaried Plans net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount 
rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.65%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.65%) than the current rate: 
 

1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase

6.65% 7.65% 8.65%
Total pension liability 129,004,006$     116,410,752$     105,681,770$    
Plan fiduciary net position (74,596,300)        (74,596,300)       (74,596,300)       
Net pension liability 54,407,706$       41,814,452$       31,085,470$      

Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension liability 57.82% 64.08% 70.59%

 
 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions 
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to 
continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the 
future.  Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and are based on the benefits provided under the 
terms of the substantive plan in effect at the time of each valuation.  Actuarial methods and assumptions used 
include techniques designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value 
of plan assets. 

 
The projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes does not explicitly incorporate the potential effect of 
legal or contractual funding limitations.   
 
 

  25 



 

 

 

 

 

 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

 



 

2015 2014

Total pension Liability
Service Cost  $        5,753,143  $       5,599,479 
Intrest          16,384,487         15,740,342 
Difference between expected and actual returns          (2,941,777)                        -   
Changes of assumptions            1,621,574                        -   
Transfers out - Salaried Plan                        -               (174,166)
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions        (13,157,985)        (12,877,177)

Net change in total pension liability            7,659,442           8,288,478 

Total pension liability - beginning 215,046,075      206,757,597      
Total pension liability - ending 222,705,517$    215,046,075$    

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer 10,343,620$      9,711,107$        
Contributions - member 3,682                 22,425               
Net investment income 4,609,506          22,631,819        
Transfers out - Salaried Plan -                     (174,166)           
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (13,157,985)       (12,877,177)      
Administrative expense (190,442)            (230,365)           

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 1,608,381          19,083,643        

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 170,497,673      151,414,030      
Plan fiduciary net position - ending 172,106,054$    170,497,673$    

Net pension liability - ending 50,599,463$      44,548,402$      

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension 
liability 77.28% 79.28%

Covered employee payroll 37,950,269$      38,857,668$      

Net pension liability as a percentage of covered employee payroll 133.33% 114.65%

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES

EMPLOYEES WHO ARE MEMBERS OF
ATU LOCAL 256 AND IBEW LOCAL 1245

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

 
 
 

Notes to schedule: In fiscal year 2015, amounts reported as changes of assumptions resulted from lowering the discount 
rate from 7.75% to 7.65% 

 
 
 

 26 



 

2015 2014

Total pension Liability
Service Cost  $       3,476,103  $              3,321,337 
Transfers In - ATU/IBEW Plan                        -                       174,166 
Interest (includes interest on service cost)           8,434,365                  7,978,675 
Difference between expected and actual returns             (753,076)                              -   
Changes of assumptions              930,863                              -   
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions          (5,502,144)                (5,664,400)

Net change in total pension liability           6,586,111                  5,809,778 

Total pension liability - beginning 109,824,641      104,014,863            
Total pension liability - ending 116,410,752$    109,824,641$          

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer 7,335,308$        6,609,083$              
Contributions - member 261                    1,678                       
Transfers in - ATU/IBEW Plan -                    174,166                   
Net investment income 2,132,136          9,297,644                
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (5,502,144)        (5,664,400)               
Administrative expense (194,209)           (176,367)                  

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 3,771,352          10,241,804              

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 70,824,948        60,583,144              
Plan fiduciary net position - ending 74,596,300$      70,824,948$            

Net pension liability - ending 41,814,452$      38,999,693$            

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension 
liability 64.08% 64.49%

Covered employee payroll 23,022,281$      22,008,809$            

Net pension liability as a percentage of covered employee payroll 181.63% 177.20%

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES

SALARIED EMPLOYEES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

 
Notes to schedule: In fiscal year 2015, amounts reported as changes of assumptions resulted from lowering the discount 
rate from 7.75% to 7.65%

 27 



 

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Actuarially determined contribution  $ 10,344  $  9,711  $  8,694  $  7,885  $  6,809  $ 7,426  $ 6,937  $ 7,681  $ 7,088  $ 6,227 
Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contribution     10,344      9,711      8,694      7,885      6,809     7,426     6,937     7,681     7,088     6,227 
Contribution deficiency (excess)  $         -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -   
Covered-employee payroll     37,950    38,858    37,110    38,558    38,343   43,626   44,916   44,718   42,897   41,284 
Contributions as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll 27.26% 24.99% 23.43% 20.45% 17.76% 17.02% 15.44% 17.18% 16.52% 15.08%

Note: Beginning in FYE2015, payroll amounts are based on actual total payroll of the District. In previous years the schedule used covered payroll which is different than actual payroll and there   
contributions as a percentage of covered payroll will differ from what was actually contributed. 

LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS
EMPLOYEES WHO ARE MEMBERS OF

ATU LOCAL 256 AND IBEW LOCAL 1245

 
 
Notes to Schedule 
 
Valuation Date   7/1/2013 (to determine FY14-15 contribution) 
Timing    Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated based on the actuarial valuation one year prior to the  
    beginning of the plan year 
 
Key methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates: 
Actuarial cost method  Entry Age 
Amortization method  Level percentage of payroll, closed 19 year period as of 6/30/2013 
Asset valuation method  5-year smoothed market 
Discount Rate   7.75% 
Amortization growth rate  3.25% 
Price inflation   3.25% 
Salary Increases   3.25%, plus merit component on employee classification and years of service 
Mortality    Sex distinct RP-2000 Combined Blue Collar Mortality, 3 year setback for females  
 
Other information: 
A complete description of the methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates for the year ending June 30, 2015, can be found in the July 1, 2013 
actuarial valuation report.     

 28 



 

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Actuarially determined contribution  $   7,335  $  6,609  $  5,800  $  4,580  $  3,718  $ 4,269  $ 3,820  $ 4,132  $ 3,694  $ 2,564 
Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contribution       7,335      6,609      5,800      4,580      3,718     4,269     3,820     4,132     3,694     2,564 
Contribution deficiency (excess)  $         -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -   
Covered-employee payroll     23,022    22,009    19,627    19,105    19,466   22,602   21,115   21,929   21,363   21,217 
Contributions as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll 31.86% 30.03% 29.55% 23.97% 19.10% 18.89% 18.09% 18.84% 17.29% 12.08%

Note: Beginning in FYE2015, payroll amounts are based on actual total payroll of the District. In previous years the schedule used covered payroll which is different than actual payroll and there   
contributions as a percentage of covered payroll will differ from what was actually contributed. 

LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS
SALARIED EMPLOYEES

 
 
 
Notes to Schedule 
 
Valuation Date   7/1/2013(to determine FY14-15 contribution) 
Timing    Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated based on the actuarial valuation one year prior to the  
    beginning of the plan year 
 
Key methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates: 
Actuarial cost method  Entry Age 
Amortization method  Level percentage of payroll, closed 19 year period as of 6/30/2013 
Asset valuation method  5-year smoothed market 
Discount Rate   7.75% 
Amortization growth rate  3.25% 
Price inflation   3.25% 
Salary Increases   3.25%, plus merit component on employee classification and years of service 
Mortality    Sex distinct RP-2000 Combined White Collar Mortality, 3 year setback for females  
 
Other information: 
A complete description of the methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates for the year ending June 30, 2015, can be found in the July 1, 2013 
actuarial valuation report.  

 29 



 

2015 2014

Annual money-weighted rate of return, net of investment expense 3.25% 15.64%

Note: Information prior to 2014 was not available.

LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS
EMPLOYEES WHO ARE MEMBERS OF

ATU LOCAL 256 AND IBEW LOCAL 1245
AND SALARIED EMPLOYEES

DISTRICT EMPLOYEES

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 30 



 

 
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES 

 
 
 

 



 

RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 
 

SCHEDULES OF INVESTMENT AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 
EMPLOYEES WHO ARE MEMBERS OF 

ATU LOCAL 256 AND IBEW LOCAL 1245 
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

 
 

Investment Expenses:

Vendor Names Type of Services 2015 2014

Metropolitan West Asset Management, L.L.C. Asset Management 180,559$     169,601$     
Boston Partners Investment Management Asset Management 147,872       146,791       
Atlanta Capital Management Co. Asset Management 108,578       113,462       
JP Morgan Investment Management, Inc. Asset Management 110,147       108,346       
SSgA S&P 500 Asset Management 13,553         13,583         
SSgA MSCI EAFE Asset Management 14,749         13,472         
Callan Associates, Inc. Investment Advisor 80,658         78,529         
State Street Bank and Trust Company Custodian Services 89,681         89,013         

Total 745,797$     732,797$     

Administrative Expenses:

Vendor Names Type of Services 2015 2014

Hanson Bridgett Consulting Services 87,848$       151,242$     
Sacramento Regional Transit District Plan Administration 37,744         -                   
Cheiron EFI Actuarial Services 34,805         44,649         
AON Risk Services, Inc. Fiduciary Insurance 29,126         23,603         
Information Services Technical Support 408              375              
CALAPRS Dues & Training Course 300              5,250           
United Parcel Service Shipping 13                18                
Sacramento Occupational Medical Group Medical Evaluation -                   3,010           
Callan Associates Training Workshop -                   1,081           
Other Misc 198              1,137           

Total 190,442$     230,365$     

 
 
 

 

 31 



 

RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 
 

SCHEDULES OF INVESTMENT AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 
SALARIED EMPLOYEES  

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 
 
 

Investment Expenses:

Vendor Names Type of Services 2015 2014

Metropolitan West Asset Management, L.L.C. Asset Management 76,740$         69,461$         
Boston Partners Investment Management Asset Management 62,886           60,081           
Atlanta Capital Management Co. Asset Management 46,215           46,407           
JP Morgan Investment Management, Inc. Asset Management 46,848           44,327           
SSgA S&P 500 Asset Management 5,759             5,560             
SSgA MSCI EAFE Asset Management 6,275             5,517             
Callan Associates, Inc. Investment Advisor 34,142           31,871           
State Street Bank and Trust Company Custodian Services 37,985           35,224           

Total 316,850$       298,448$       

Administrative Expenses:

Vendor Names Type of Services 2015  2014

Hanson Bridgett Consulting Services 107,517$       117,416$       
Sacramento Regional Transit District Pension Administration 37,744           -                 
AON Risk Services, Inc. Fiduciary Insurance 29,013           23,603           
Cheiron EFI Actuarial Services 18,920           30,276           
Information Services Technical Support 406                -                 
CALAPRS Dues & Training Course 300                2,750             
United Parcel Service Shipping 2                    18                  
Callan Associates, Inc. Training Workshop -                 1,081             
Other Miscellaneous 307                1,223             

Total 194,209$       176,367$       

 

 32 



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 1 of 1
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

03/16/16 Retirement Action 01/29/16

Subject: Receive and File the Fiscal Year 2015 State Controller's Report for the Retirement Plan
for Sacramento Regional Transit District Salaried Employees (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG).
(Bernegger)

Approved: Presented:

Final 02/26/16
Chief Financial Officer, Acting Senior Accountant

ISSUE

Receive and File the Fiscal Year 2015 State Controller's Report for the Retirement Plan for
Sacramento Regional Transit District Salaried Employees (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger)

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Motion: Receive and File the Fiscal Year 2015 State Controller's Report for the Retirement Plan
for Sacramento Regional Transit District Salaried Employees (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger)

FISCAL IMPACT

None

DISCUSSION

The financial data for the annual State Controller’s Public Retirement Systems Financial
Transactions Report is prepared in accordance with California Government Code Section 7504.
This statute requires all state and local retirement systems to annually submit audited financial
statements of their Pension Plans to the State Controller’s Office by the close of each calendar
year. The State Controller’s Public Retirement Systems Financial Transactions Report
(Attachment 1) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 was filed on December 30, 2015.

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
4



JAdelman
Text Box
Attachment #1





















Item 5 

1 
  

12015926.1 

Sacramento Regional Transit District 
AFSCME Quarterly Retirement Board Meeting 

Wednesday, December 16, 2015 
MEETING SUMMARY 

 
 

ROLL CALL 
 
The Retirement Board was brought to order at 9:04 a.m.  A quorum was present comprised as 
follows: Directors Morin, Mallonee, Hoslett and Alternate Kent. Director Wiley was absent. 
Alternate Hansen was absent. 
 
This meeting was held as a common meeting of the five Sacramento Regional Transit District 
Retirement Boards.  
 
By AFSCME Resolution No. 14-12-120 for calendar year 2015, the Governing Board Member in 
attendance served as Common Chair of this Retirement Board meeting.    
 
 
PUBLIC ADDRESSES BOARD ON MATTERS ON CONSENT AND MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

 
None. 
 
 
Consent Calendar: 
 
3.  Motion: Approving the Minutes for the September 16, 2015  Quarterly Retirement 

Board Meeting (AFSCME). (Bonnel) 
 
4.  Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended September 

30, 2015 for the Salaried Pension Plan (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). 
(Bernegger) 

 
11. Resolution: Adopting Regional Transit Retirement Boards 2016 Meeting Calendar 

(ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Director Mallonee moved to adopt Items 3, 4, and 11. Director Hoslett seconded the motion. 
Items 3, 4, and 11 were carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Directors Mallonee, Hoslett, 
and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
New Business: 
 
The order of New Business items was adjusted to ensure all of the items requiring action 
would be addressed in case members had to leave resulting in loss of a quorum.  The 
reordering was: 12-16, 18, 20, 21, 17, 19. 
 
12. Information Fiduciary Training provided by Hanson Bridgett (ALL). 
 
Donna Bonnel introduced Lance Kjeldgaard, fiduciary counsel contracted through the board’s 
Legal Counsel, Hanson Bridgett LLP to provide a fiduciary responsibility and liability training. 
 
MCEG Alternate Thorn left the meeting at 10:04 a.m.  



Item 5 

2 
  

12015926.1 

 
IBEW Alternate Gallow left the meeting at 10:04 a.m.    
 
13. Information: Investment Performance Review by Dimensional Fund Advisors (DFA) for 

the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Retirement Funds for  the International 
Emerging Markets Asset Class for the Quarter Ended September 30, 2015 
(ALL). (Bernegger) 

 
Jamie Adelman introduced Ted Simpson from DFA, who provided the performance results for 
the quarter ended September 30, 2015 for the international emerging markets asset class. 
 
AEA Retirement Board Director Bennett noted that he would like a list of the stocks that are 
owned in the portfolio. Mr. Simpson noted that he would send the list to Brent Bernegger to 
distribute to the Boards. 
 
14. Information: Investment Performance Review of the S&P 500 Index and MSCI EAFE 

Funds by State Street Global Advisors (SSgA) for the ATU/IBEW and 
Salaried Employee Retirement Funds for the Quarter Ended September 30, 
2015 (ALL). (Bernegger) 

 
Jamie Adelman introduced Linda Ng from State Street Global Advisors, who presented the 
performance results for the Domestic Large Capitalization and International Equity Index Funds 
for the quarter ended September 30, 2015. 
 
AEA Director Bennett remarked that the Boards may want to modify having reports from index 
funds provided during the meeting.  
 
Legal Counsel Shayna van Hoften with Hanson Bridgett noted that the fiduciary training 
provided earlier discussed the duty of care and being a prudent expert and the Boards’ need to 
hear from all fund managers to be in a position to consider whether or not they are serving their 
purpose.  
 
15. Motion: Receive and File the Investment Performance Results for the ATU/IBEW 

and Salaried Employee Retirement Plans for the Quarter Ended September 
30, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger) 

 
Jamie Adelman introduced Ann Heaphy and Uvan Tseng from Callan Associates, who provided 
a market overview for the Quarter Ended September 30, 2015. 
 
Director Mallonee moved to adopt Item 15. Director Hoslett seconded the motion. Item 15 was 
carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Directors Mallonee, Hoslett, and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
16. Resolution: Authorizing Execution of Plan Trust Documents (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel provided information on the request to authorize the execution of plan trust 
documents. Ms. Bonnel noted that the plan trust documents were distributed to each Retirement 
Board Chair electronically. 
 
AEA Retirement Board Director Bennett asked if the trust language presented for approval 
would result in losing the right to buy securities directly (Section 3.3) and if the Boards would be 
limited to investing in firms with a national reputation (Section 3.6). Director Bennett also asked 
if both points are in the final trust document the board is being asked to approve. Legal Counsel 



Item 5 

3 
  

12015926.1 

Anne Hydorn with Hanson Bridgett responded that both issues were addressed in the trust 
document and the boards would be able to invest with firms of regional reputation and would not 
lose the ability to directly invest.  
 
Director Mallonee moved to adopt Item 16. Director Morin seconded the motion. Item 16 was 
carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Directors Mallonee, Hoslett, and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
18. Resolution: Adopting Procurement Policy and Procedures (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel stated that an updated version of the Procurement Policy and Procedures was 
distributed at each board member’s seat on the dais because some changes were made since 
distribution of the board packet, and that this revised version was the document recommended 
by staff for adoption. 
 
Ms. Bonnel introduced Valerie Weekly to provide an update on the changes to the document. 
Valerie Weekly noted that the language provided in the prior version allowed for the Finance 
Department or Human Resources Department to complete some of the smaller procurements 
without going through the Procurement Department. The updated version reflects that all 
procurements will go through the Procurement Department.    
 
Director Mallonee moved to approve Item 18 for adoption of the resolution and updated 
attachment provided at the meeting. Director Hoslett seconded the motion. Item 18 was carried 
unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Directors Mallonee, Hoslett, and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
20. Resolution: Adopting Policy on Allocation of Staff Costs (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel presented Jamie Adelman and Valerie Weekly to provide information on adopting 
a policy on the  allocation of staff costs.  
 
Jamie Adelman noted that in March 2015, Staff presented issue papers on the roles and 
responsibilities of various District staff related to the tasks associated with the overall 
administration of RT’s Pension Plans. In June, Staff began tracking times associated with 
performance of those responsibilities. Staff also completed benchmarking on various similarly 
sized pension plans and determined the total number of staff needed to manage similarly sized 
plans.  
 
Staff contacted Cheiron to see what the implications of charging additional administrative cost to 
the plans might be. Ms. Adelman noted that there would be no impact on staff members’ 
employment status, employer identification, nor the funded status of any plan. There also would 
be no increase in employee contributions. The administrative costs are attributed to each plan 
after the contribution of the normal cost, which is what the employees contribute.   
 
Based on the benchmarking results, Staff proposes that the Boards adopt the Policy on 
Allocation of Staff Costs. 
 
ATU Retirement Board Director Niz asked how long the $25,000 per quarter would be charged. 
Ms. Adelman responded that the cost allocation would continue for the rest of the life of the 
Plans.  MCEG Retirement Board Director Mattos asked if the cost would be reflected as an 
increased expense when the actuarial contribution rate is determined. Ms. Adelman responded 
in the affirmative. 
 
 



Item 5 

4 
  

12015926.1 

Director Mallonee moved to adopt Item 20. Director Hoslett seconded the motion. Item 20 was 
carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Directors Mallonee, Hoslett, and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
21. Resolution: Adopting Qualified Domestic Relations Order (QDRO) Policy and 

Procedure (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Valerie Weekly presented information on adopting a policy for processing QDROs.  
 
Legal Counsel has advised that it is in the best interest of the Retirement Plans and their 
participants for the Retirement Boards to adopt procedures that will help Staff efficiently and 
effectively process and implement the domestic relations orders it receives.  
 
Legal Counsel and Staff recommend that all of the Boards adopt the proposed policy and 
procedures for processing QDROs. 
  
AEA Retirement Board Director Drake asked about the process if someone seeks a QDRO and 
the member in question is part of two different plans. Ms. Weekly confirmed that the QDRO has 
to address both plans, and both have to be named in the court records.   
 
Director Mallonee moved to adopt Item 21. Director Hoslett seconded the motion. Item 21 was 
carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Directors Mallonee, Hoslett, and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
17. Information: Implementation of Electronic Distribution of Quarterly Retirement Board 

Packages (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel introduced Valerie Weekly to present information on the implementation of 
electronic distribution of quarterly retirement board packages.  
 
Valerie Weekly noted that Staff has reviewed the current processes associated with the collation 
and distribution of the agenda packages for Quarterly and Special Retirement Board Meetings 
and has determined that there is the opportunity for potential cost and time savings by adopting 
an electronic distribution process similar to that of RT’s governing Board. Staff anticipates 
having the changes in place for the March 2016 Quarterly Retirement Board Meeting. 
  
ATU Retirement Board Director Niz asked if the board packages would still be available five or 
so days prior to the board meeting. Ms. Weekly noted that staff expects the time frame to 
remain the same.  
 
19. Information: Update on Roles and Responsibilities for Pension Administration (ALL). 

(Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel provided an update on the roles and responsibilities of various District staff 
members and Legal Counsel related to the administration of the Pension Plans. 
 
Legal Counsel Shayna van Hoften with Hanson Bridgett outlined the accomplishments of the 
Retirement Boards in 2015. 
 
REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES 
 
None. 
 
REPORTS, IDEAS AND COMMUNICATIONS 



Item 5 

5 
  

12015926.1 

 
None. 
 
With no further business to discuss, the AFSCME Retirement Board meeting was 
adjourned by Assistant Secretary Bonnel at 11:18 a.m. 
 
 
 

 
    ________________________________________ 
    Charles Mallonee, Chair 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
Rob Hoslett, Secretary 
 
 
By:___________________________________ 
      Donna Bonnel, Assistant Secretary 
 



CONSENT 
CALENDAR 

 
Agenda Item 6 

AFSCME 
 

Please refer to 
Agenda Item 2 

AEA 



CONSENT 
CALENDAR 

 
Agenda Item 7 

AFSCME 
 

Please refer to 
Agenda Item 3 

AEA 



CONSENT 
CALENDAR 

 
Agenda Item 8 

AFSCME 
 

Please refer to 
Agenda Item 4 

AEA 
 



Item 9 

1 
12015930.1 

Sacramento Regional Transit District 
ATU Quarterly Retirement Board Meeting 

Wednesday, December 16, 2015 
MEETING SUMMARY 

 
 

ROLL CALL 
 
The Retirement Board was brought to order at 9:04 a.m.  A quorum was present comprised as 
follows: Directors Morin, Niz, De La Torre and Alternate Muniz were present. Director Wiley was 
absent. Alternate Hansen was absent. 
 
This meeting was held as a common meeting of the five Sacramento Regional Transit District 
Retirement Boards.  
 
By ATU Resolution No. 14-12-0253 for calendar year 2015, the Governing Board Member in 
attendance served as Common Chair of this Retirement Board meeting. 
 
 
PUBLIC ADDRESSES BOARD ON MATTERS ON CONSENT AND MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

 
None. 
 
 
Consent Calendar: 
 
  
5.  Motion: Approving the Minutes for the September 16, 2015  Quarterly Retirement 

Board Meeting (ATU). (Bonnel) 
 
6.  Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended September  

30, 2015 for the ATU/IBEW Pension Plan (ATU/IBEW). (Bernegger) 
 
11. Resolution: Adopting Regional Transit Retirement Boards 2016 Meeting Calendar 

(ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Director De La Torre moved to adopt Items 5, 6, and 11. Director Niz seconded the motion. 
Items 5, 6, and 11 were carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Niz, De La Torre, and Morin. 
Noes: None. 
 
 
New Business: 
 
The order of New Business items was adjusted to ensure all of the items requiring action 
would be addressed in case members had to leave resulting in loss of a quorum.  The 
reordering was: 12-16, 18, 20, 21, 17, 19. 
 
12. Information Fiduciary Training provided by Hanson Bridgett (ALL). 
 
Donna Bonnel introduced Lance Kjeldgaard, fiduciary counsel contracted through the board’s 
Legal Counsel, Hanson Bridgett LLP to provide a fiduciary responsibility and liability training. 
 



Item 9 

2 
12015930.1 

MCEG Alternate Thorn left the meeting at 10:04 a.m.  
 
IBEW Alternate Gallow left the meeting at 10:04 a.m.    
 
13. Information: Investment Performance Review by Dimensional Fund Advisors (DFA) for 

the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Retirement Funds for  the International 
Emerging Markets Asset Class for the Quarter Ended September 30, 2015 
(ALL). (Bernegger) 

 
Jamie Adelman introduced Ted Simpson from DFA, who provided the performance results for 
the quarter ended September 30, 2015 for the international emerging markets asset class. 
 
AEA Retirement Board Director Bennett noted that he would like a list of the stocks that are 
owned in the portfolio. Mr. Simpson noted that he would send the list to Brent Bernegger to 
distribute to the Boards. 
 
14. Information: Investment Performance Review of the S&P 500 Index and MSCI EAFE 

Funds by State Street Global Advisors (SSgA) for the ATU/IBEW and 
Salaried Employee Retirement Funds for the Quarter Ended September 30, 
2015 (ALL). (Bernegger) 

 
Jamie Adelman introduced Linda Ng from State Street Global Advisors, who presented the 
performance results for the Domestic Large Capitalization and International Equity Index Funds 
for the quarter ended September 30, 2015. 
 
AEA Director Bennett remarked that the Boards may want to modify having reports from index 
funds provided during the meeting.  
 
Legal Counsel Shayna van Hoften with Hanson Bridgett noted that the fiduciary training 
provided earlier discussed the duty of care and being a prudent expert and the Boards’ need to 
hear from all fund managers to be in a position to consider whether or not they are serving their 
purpose.  
 
15. Motion: Receive and File the Investment Performance Results for the ATU/IBEW 

and Salaried Employee Retirement Plans for the Quarter Ended September 
30, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger) 

 
Jamie Adelman introduced Ann Heaphy and Uvan Tseng from Callan Associates, who provided 
a market overview for the Quarter Ended September 30, 2015. 
 
Director De La Torre moved to adopt Item 15. Director Niz seconded the motion. Item 15 was 
carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Niz, De La Torre, and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
16. Resolution: Authorizing Execution of Plan Trust Documents (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel provided information on the request to authorize the execution of plan trust 
documents. Ms. Bonnel noted that the plan trust documents were distributed to each Retirement 
Board Chair electronically. 
 
AEA Retirement Board Director Bennett asked if the trust language presented for approval 
would result in losing the right to buy securities directly (Section 3.3) and if the Boards would be 
limited to investing in firms with a national reputation (Section 3.6). Director Bennett also asked 



Item 9 

3 
12015930.1 

if both points are in the final trust document the board is being asked to approve. Legal Counsel 
Anne Hydorn with Hanson Bridgett responded that both issues were addressed in the trust 
document and the boards would be able to invest with firms of regional reputation and would not 
lose the ability to directly invest.  
 
Director De La Torre moved to adopt Item 16. Director Niz seconded the motion. Item 16 was 
carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Niz, De La Torre, and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
18. Resolution: Adopting Procurement Policy and Procedures (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel stated that an updated version of the Procurement Policy and Procedures was 
distributed at each board member’s seat on the dais because some changes were made since 
distribution of the board packet, and that this revised version was the document recommended 
by staff for adoption. 
 
Ms. Bonnel introduced Valerie Weekly to provide an update on the changes to the document. 
Valerie Weekly noted that the language provided in the prior version allowed for the Finance 
Department or Human Resources Department to complete some of the smaller procurements 
without going through the Procurement Department. The updated version reflects that all 
procurements will go through the Procurement Department.    
 
Director De La Torre moved to approve Item 18 for adoption of the resolution and updated 
attachment provided at the meeting. Director Niz seconded the motion. Item 18 was carried 
unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Niz, De La Torre, and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
20. Resolution: Adopting Policy on Allocation of Staff Costs (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel presented Jamie Adelman and Valerie Weekly to provide information on adopting 
a policy on the  allocation of staff costs.  
 
Jamie Adelman noted that in March 2015, Staff presented issue papers on the roles and 
responsibilities of various District staff related to the tasks associated with the overall 
administration of RT’s Pension Plans. In June, Staff began tracking times associated with 
performance of those responsibilities. Staff also completed benchmarking on various similarly 
sized pension plans and determined the total number of staff needed to manage similarly sized 
plans.  
 
Staff contacted Cheiron to see what the implications of charging additional administrative cost to 
the plans might be. Ms. Adelman noted that there would be no impact on staff members’ 
employment status, employer identification, nor the funded status of any plan. There also would 
be no increase in employee contributions. The administrative costs are attributed to each plan 
after the contribution of the normal cost, which is what the employees contribute.   
 
Based on the benchmarking results, Staff proposes that the Boards adopt the Policy on 
Allocation of Staff Costs. 
 
Retirement Board Director Niz asked how long the $25,000 per quarter would be charged. Ms. 
Adelman responded that the cost allocation would continue for the rest of the life of the Plans. 
MCEG Retirement Board Director Mattos asked if the cost would be reflected as an increased 
expense when the actuarial contribution rate is determined. Ms. Adelman responded in the 
affirmative. 
 



Item 9 

4 
12015930.1 

Director De La Torre moved to adopt Item 20. Director Niz seconded the motion. Item 20 was 
carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Niz, De La Torre, and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
21. Resolution: Adopting Qualified Domestic Relations Order (QDRO) Policy and 

Procedure (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Valerie Weekly presented information on adopting a policy for processing QDROs.  
 
Legal Counsel has advised that it is in the best interest of the Retirement Plans and their 
participants for the Retirement Boards to adopt procedures that will help Staff efficiently and 
effectively process and implement the domestic relations orders it receives.  
 
Legal Counsel and Staff recommend that all of the Boards adopt the proposed policy and 
procedures for processing QDROs. 
  
AEA Retirement Board Director Drake asked about the process if someone seeks a QDRO and 
the member in question is part of two different plans. Ms. Weekly confirmed that the QDRO has 
to address both plans, and both have to be named in the court records.  
 
Director De La Torre moved to adopt Item 21. Director Niz seconded the motion. Item 21 was 
carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Niz, De La Torre, and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
 
17. Information: Implementation of Electronic Distribution of Quarterly Retirement Board 

Packages (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel introduced Valerie Weekly to present information on the implementation of 
electronic distribution of quarterly retirement board packages.  
 
Valerie Weekly noted that Staff has reviewed the current processes associated with the collation 
and distribution of the agenda packages for Quarterly and Special Retirement Board Meetings 
and has determined that there is the opportunity for potential cost and time savings by adopting 
an electronic distribution process similar to that of RT’s governing Board. Staff anticipates 
having the changes in place for the March 2016 Quarterly Retirement Board Meeting. 
  
Director Niz asked if the board packages would still be available five or so days prior to the 
board meeting. Ms. Weekly noted that staff expects the time frame to remain the same.  
 
19. Information: Update on Roles and Responsibilities for Pension Administration (ALL). 

(Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel provided an update on the roles and responsibilities of various District staff 
members and Legal Counsel related to the administration of the Pension Plans. 
 
Legal Counsel Shayna van Hoften with Hanson Bridgett outlined the accomplishments of the 
Retirement Boards in 2015. 
 
REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES 
 
None. 
 
REPORTS, IDEAS AND COMMUNICATIONS 



Item 9 

5 
12015930.1 

 
None. 
 
With no further business to discuss, the ATU Retirement Board meeting was adjourned 
by Assistant Secretary Bonnel at 11:18 a.m. 
 
 
 
 

    ________________________________________ 
    Ralph Niz, Chair 

ATTEST: 
 
Corina Delatorre, Secretary 
 
 
By:___________________________________ 
      Donna Bonnel, Assistant Secretary 



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 1 of 2
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

03/16/16 Retirement Action 01/27/16

Subject: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended December 31, 2015 for
the ATU/IBEW Pension Plan (ATU/IBEW). (Bernegger)

Approved: Presented:

Final 02/26/16
Senior Accountant

Chief Financial Officer, Acting

ISSUE

Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended December 31, 2015 for the
ATU/IBEW Pension Plan (ATU/IBEW). (Bernegger)

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended December 31, 2015 for
the ATU/IBEW Pension Plan (ATU/IBEW). (Bernegger)

FISCAL IMPACT

None.

DISCUSSION

Unaudited Financial Statements

Attached hereto are unaudited financial statements for the quarter and the year-to-date ended
December 31, 2015.  The financial statements are presented on an accrual basis and consist of a
Statement of Plan Net Position (balance sheet) (Attachment 1), a Statement of Changes in Plan
Net Position (income statement) for the quarter ended December 31, 2015 (Attachment 2), and a
year-to-date Statement of Changes in Plan Net Position (Attachment 3).

The Statement of Plan Net Position includes a summary of fund assets showing the amounts in
the following categories: cash, money market, and securities.  This statement also provides
amounts due from/to the District and Total Fund Equity (net position).

The Statement of Changes in Plan Net Position includes activities in the following categories:
investment gains/losses, dividends, interest income, unrealized gains/losses, benefit
contributions/payouts, and investment management and administrative expenses.

Asset Rebalancing

Pursuant to Section IV, Asset Rebalancing Policy of the Statement of Investment Objectives and
Policy Guidelines for the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Employees’ Retirement Funds, the Retirement
Boards have delegated authority to manage pension plan assets in accordance with the approved
rebalancing policy to the District’s Director of Finance/Treasury.  The Director is required to report
asset rebalancing activity to the Boards at their quarterly meetings.  Rebalancing can occur for
one or more of the following reasons:

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
10



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 2 of 2
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

03/16/16 Retirement Action 01/27/16

Subject: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended December 31,
2015 for the ATU/IBEW Pension Plan (ATU/IBEW). (Bernegger)

1. The Pension Plan ended the month with an accounts receivable or payable balance due to
the District.  A payable or receivable is the net amount of the monthly required contribution
(required contribution is the percentage of covered payroll determined by the annual
actuarial valuation) less the Plan’s actual expenses.

2. The Pension Plan hires or removes a Fund Manager, in which case securities must be
moved to a new fund manager.

3. The Pension Plan investment mix is under or over the minimum or maximum asset
allocation as defined in the Statement of Investment Objectives and Policy Guidelines.

Attached hereto as Attachment 4 is the ATU/IBEW Plan’s Schedule of Cash Activities for the
three months ended December 31, 2015. The schedule of cash activities includes a summary of
Plan activities showing the amounts in the following categories: District’s pension contributions to
the Plan, payments to retirees, and the Pension Plan’s cash expenditures paid.  This schedule
also lists the rebalancing activity that occurred for the three months ended December 31, 2015.
The ATU/IBEW Plan reimbursed $896,673.05 to the District as the result of the net cash activity
between the pension plan expenses and the required pension contributions.

Attached hereto as Attachment 5 is the ATU/IBEW Plan’s Asset Allocation as of December 31,
2015. This statement shows the ATU/IBEW Plan’s asset allocation as compared to targeted
allocation percentages as defined in the Statement of Investment Objectives and Policy
Guidelines.

Attached hereto as Attachment 6 is a reconciliation between the Callan Performance Report and
the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Pension Plans’ unaudited financial statements.  The reports differ in
that the unaudited financial statements reflect both investment activities and the pension fund’s
inflows and outflows. Callan’s report only reflects the investment activities.  The “Net Difference”
amounts shown are the results of Callan and State Street using different valuations for the same
securities and/or litigation settlements received by the Plans.

Included also as Attachment 7 is a reconciliation between the Callan Performance Report and the
Schedule of Cash Activities for payments made from/to the District.  Callan’s report classifies
gains from trades and litigation income as “net new investments.”  Finance staff classifies gains
from trades and litigation income in the Pension Fund’s unaudited Statement of Changes in Plan
Net Position as “Other Income,” which is combined in the category of “Interest, Dividend, & Other
Inc”.

Attached hereto as Attachment 8 is a schedule reflecting Fund Managers’ quarterly investment
returns and their investment fees. Additionally, the schedule reflects annual rates of return on
investment net of investment fees for the one-year and three-year periods ended December 31,
2015 as compared to their benchmarks.

Attached hereto as Attachment 9 is a schedule reflecting all retirements that occurred, as well
as any transfer of employees or plan assets from the ATU/IBEW Plan to the Salaried Plan
during the three months ended December 31, 2015.

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
10





















REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 1 of 1
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

03/16/16 Retirement Action 1/27/16

Subject: Receive and File the Independent Auditor’s Report for the Twelve Month Period Ended
June 30, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger)

Approved: Presented:

Final 02/26/16
Chief Financial Officer, Acting Senior Accountant

ISSUE

Receive and File the Independent Auditor’s Report for the Twelve Month Period Ended June 30,
2015 (ALL). (Bernegger)

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Motion: Receive and File the Independent Auditor’s Report for the Twelve Month Period Ended
June 30, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger)

FISCAL IMPACT

None

DISCUSSION

In accordance with California Government Code Section 7504, the Retirement Plans are required
to have an annual audit performed. Gilbert Associates, Inc. conducted the Plans’ audit in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards.  The standards require that the auditors
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that the Plans’ financial statements are
free of material misstatements.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the investment assets for the ATU/IBEW and Salaried
Plans were combined into one commingled investment portfolio.  The balance of investments
owned by the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans are calculated based on a percentage of ownership
as determined by the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ custodian.

The financial results are shown on a comparative basis.  As noted in the report (Attachment 1),
the combined net position held in trust for pension benefits increased $5,379,733 or 2.18% from
the beginning of year balance of $241,322,621 to the end of year balance of $246,702,354.  The
audit confirmed that the District made 100% of its actuarially determined contribution of
$17,682,871.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 labor negotiations resulted in a new tier of employees in
each of the bargaining groups. Notes to the Financial Statement 1, Description of the Plans,
pages 7 through 12, detail the changes to Plan provisions.

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
11



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR  
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT 

DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WITH 
 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED 

 JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

JAdelman
Text Box
Attachment #1



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR  
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  

DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 PAGE 
 
MEMBERS OF THE RETIREMENT BOARD AND ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF i 
 
FINANCIAL SECTION 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 1 
 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

Statements of Plan Net Position - 2015 3 
 
Statements of Plan Net Position – 2014 4 
 
Statements of Changes in Plan Net Position - 2015 5 
 
Statements of Changes in Plan Net Position – 2014 6 

 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

 
Description of the Plans 7 

 
Significant Accounting Policies 12 

 
Contribution Requirements 13 

 
Cash and Investments 14 

 
Net Pension Liability 22 

 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

 
Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios – ATU/IBEW 26 

 
Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios – Salaried 26 
 
Schedule of District Contributions – ATU/IBEW 27 

 
Schedule of District Contributions – Salaried 29 
 
Schedule of Investment Returns – ATU/IBEW and Salaried 30 

 
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES  

 
Schedules of Investment and Administrative Expenses – ATU/IBEW 31 
 
Schedules of Investment and Administrative Expenses – Salaried 32 

 
 
 

i 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR 
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  

DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 
MEMBERS OF THE RETIREMENT BOARD AND ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 

 
 

Amalgamated Transit Union Local 256 
Ralph Niz, Chairperson 

Corina De La Torre, Member 
Steve Muniz, Alternate 

 
International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers Local 1245 

Eric Ohlson, Chairperson 
Lorrin Burdick, Member 
Stevie Gallow, Alternate 

 
Administrative Employees Association 

James Drake, Chairperson 
Mark Bennett, Member 

Russel Devorak, Alternate 
 

American Federation of State, County & Municipal Employees, Local 146, AFL-CIO 
Charles Mallonee, Chairperson 

Rob Hoslett, Member 
Tim Kent, Alternate 

 
Management and Confidential Employees 

Mike Mattos, Chairperson 
Alane Masui, Member 
Roger Thorn, Alternate 

 
Sacramento Regional Transit District 

Andy Morin, Common Chairperson 
Michael R. Wiley, Member 

Steve Hansen, Alternate 
 

Assistant Secretary, Acting 
Donna Bonnel, Director of Human Resources 

 
Legal Counsel 

Shayna M. van Hoften, Partner 
Anne C. Hydorn, Partner 

Hanson Bridgett 
 

Finance Department 
Les Tyler, Chief Financial Officer, Acting 

Brent Bernegger, Director of Finance/Treasury 
Jamie Adelman, Senior Accountant 

 
Human Resources Department 

Valerie Weekly, Pension and Retiree Services Administrator 
 

i 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
Members of the Board of Directors 
Sacramento Regional Transit District 
Sacramento, California 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the ATU/IBEW Plan and Salaried Plan for the 
Sacramento Regional Transit District Employees, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the ATU/IBEW Plan’s and Salaried Plan’s basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement.   
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Plan’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Plan’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the fiduciary net 
position of the ATU/IBEW Plan and the Salaried Plan for the Sacramento Regional Transit District Employees as 
of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in fiduciary net position for the year then ended in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
The basic financial statements of the ATU/IBEW Plan and the Salaried Plan as of June 30, 2014, were audited 
by other auditors whose report dated November 7, 2014, expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial 
statements.

 
(Continued) 

 
1. 

schmidtla
Color - No address



Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Schedules of Changes 
in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios, Schedules of District Contributions, and the Schedule of 
Investment Returns, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain 
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Management has omitted the Management’s Discussion and Analysis that governmental accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion 
on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information. 
 
Supplementary Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the ATU/IBEW Plan and the Salaried Plan basic financial statements. The accompanying supplemental 
Schedules of Investment and Administrative Expenses are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are 
not a required part of the financial statements. 
 
The accompanying 2015 Schedules of Investment and Administrative Expenses are the responsibility of 
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the 2015 basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the 2015 basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing 
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
2015 basic financial statements or to the 2015 basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the Schedules of Investment and Administrative Expenses are fairly stated, in all material respects, in 
relation to the 2015 basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
The accompanying 2014 Schedules of Investment and Administrative Expenses are the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the 2014 basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied by other auditors in the audit of the 2014 basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the 2014 basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and whose report dated November 7, 2014 expressed an opinion that such information was fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the 2014 basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
 
 
 
 Crowe Horwath LLP 
 
Sacramento, California 
December 30, 2015 

 
 

 
2. 

schmidtla
Crowe Horwath



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR  
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  

DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 
 

STATEMENTS OF PLAN NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 
 

ATU/IBEW Salaried Total
Assets

Investments, at fair value:
Equity securities 110,296,011$       49,875,031$       160,171,042$     
Fixed income securities 67,050,762           26,496,478         93,547,240         

Total investments 177,346,773         76,371,509         253,718,282       

Cash and short-term investments 2,888,256             1,209,251           4,097,507           

Receivables
Securities sold 447,809                197,273              645,082              
Interest and dividends 166,280                68,825                235,105              
Other receivables and prepaids 58,825                  165,256              224,081              

Total receivables 672,914                431,354              1,104,268           

   Total assets 180,907,943         78,012,114         258,920,057       

Liabilities
Securities purchased payable 8,391,320         3,339,493       11,730,813         
Accounts payable 410,569            76,321            486,890              

Total liabilities 8,801,889             3,415,814           12,217,703         

Net position restricted for pension benefits 172,106,054$       74,596,300$       246,702,354$     

 
(Schedules of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios for the Plans are presented on 
pages 26 and 27.) 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

  3 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR  
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  

DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 
 

STATEMENTS OF PLAN NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2014 

 
 
 

ATU/IBEW Salaried Total
Assets

Investments, at fair value:
Equity securities 102,436,610$     43,662,164$       146,098,774$     
Fixed income securities 67,330,781         26,610,171         93,940,952         

Total investments 169,767,391       70,272,335         240,039,726       

Cash and short-term investments 9,766,996           3,926,522           13,693,518         

Receivables
Securities sold 1,412,085           563,042              1,975,127           
Interest and dividends 290,759              116,727              407,486              
Other receivables and prepaids 36,492                92,712                129,204              

Total receivables 1,739,336           772,481              2,511,817           

   Total assets 181,273,723       74,971,338         256,245,061       

Liabilities
Securities purchased payable 10,226,692     4,041,748       14,268,440         
Accounts payable 549,358          104,642          654,000              

Total liabilities 10,776,050         4,146,390           14,922,440         

Net position restricted for pension benefits 170,497,673$     70,824,948$       241,322,621$     

 
(Schedules of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios for the Plans are presented on 
pages 26 and 27.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

  4 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR  
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  

DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 
 

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET POSITION 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED  

JUNE 30, 2015 
 

 
 

 ATU/IBEW  Salaried Total
Additions

Contributions:
Employer  $      10,343,620  $        7,335,308 17,678,928$       
Member                   3,682                      261 3,943                  

Total contributions 10,347,302         7,335,569           17,682,871         
Investment Income:

Net appreciation in fair value of investments            3,147,172            1,523,789 4,670,961           
Interest, dividends, and other income            2,208,131               925,197 3,133,328           
Investment expenses              (745,797)              (316,850) (1,062,647)         

Net investment income 4,609,506           2,132,136           6,741,642           
Total additions          14,956,808            9,467,705 24,424,513         

Deductions
Benefits paid to participants          13,157,985            5,502,144 18,660,129         
Administrative expenses               190,442               194,209 384,651              

Total deductions 13,348,427         5,696,353           19,044,780         

Net increase in plan net position 1,608,381           3,771,352           5,379,733           

Net position restricted for pension benefits - 
Beginning of fiscal year 170,497,673       70,824,948         241,322,621       

Net position restricted for pension benefits - 
End of fiscal year 172,106,054$     74,596,300$       246,702,354$     

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

  5 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR  
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  

DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 
 

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET POSITION 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED  

JUNE 30, 2014 
 

 
 

 ATU/IBEW  Salaried Total
Additions

Contributions:
Employer  $        9,711,107  $        6,609,083 16,320,190$       
Member                 22,425                   1,678 24,103                

Total contributions 9,733,532           6,610,761           16,344,293         
Investment Income:

Net appreciation in fair value of investments          20,970,171            8,631,373 29,601,544         
Interest, dividends, and other income            2,394,445               964,719 3,359,164           
Investment expenses              (732,797)              (298,448) (1,031,245)         

Net investment income 22,631,819         9,297,644           31,929,463         
Total additions          32,365,351          15,908,405 48,273,756         

Deductions
Benefits paid to participants          12,877,177            5,664,400 18,541,577         
Administrative expenses               230,365               176,367 406,732              

Total deductions 13,107,542         5,840,767           18,948,309         

Transfers in/(out) of plans (174,166)            174,166              -                         

Net increase in plan net position 19,083,643         10,241,804         29,325,447         

Net position restricted for pension benefits - 
Beginning of fiscal year 151,414,030       60,583,144         211,997,174       

Net position restricted for pension benefits - 
End of fiscal year 170,497,673$     70,824,948$       241,322,621$      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

  6 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
1. DESCRIPTION OF THE PLANS 

ATU/IBEW Plan 

The Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional Transit District Employees who are Members of Amalgamated 
Transit Union (ATU) Local 256 and International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW) Local 1245 (the 
ATU/IBEW Plan) is a single employer defined benefit pension plan covering contract employees of Sacramento 
Regional Transit District (the District).  Participants should refer to their respective ATU/IBEW Plan 
agreements for more complete information. The ATU Plan and the IBEW Plan are accounted for by the District 
as one Plan (collectively, the “ATU/IBEW Plan”).  The ATU/IBEW Plan is reported as a pension trust fund in 
the District’s financial statements. 

Salaried Plan 

The Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional Transit District Salaried Employees (the Salaried Plan) is a 
single employer defined benefit pension plan covering full or part-time employees in the following employee 
groups: Administrative Employees’ Association (AEA), Management and Confidential Employees’ Group 
(MCEG), and Members of the American Federation of State, County & Municipal Employees, Local 146, AFL-
CIO (AFSCME). AFSCME is further split into two groups AFSCME-Technical and AFSCME-Supervisors.  
Participants should refer to the Salaried Plan agreement for more complete information.  The Salaried Plan is 
reported as a pension trust fund in the District’s financial statements. 

Plan Tier Definition – As a result of labor negotiations and the court ruling on the Public Employees’ Pension 
Reform Act, a new tier to both the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Pension Plans were created. The Tier effective 
date was directly affected by labor negotiations and whether the union/employee group was under a current 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU). As of December 30, 2014 the ATU, IBEW, and AFSCME – 
Technical unions were bound by a current MOU. Whereas, the AEA, MCEG, and AFSCME – Supervisors had 
not settled negotiations and were not bound by a current MOU; therefore, PEPRA was required to be 
implemented for these groups.  

• ATU, IBEW, and AFSCME – Technical - Tier 1 for the ATU/IBEW Plan and AFSCME – Technical 
union consists of all employees hired on or before December 31, 2014, Tier 2 consists of all 
employees hired on or after January 1, 2015.  

• AEA, MCEG, and AFSCME – Supervisors - Tier 1 for the AEA, MCEG, and AFSCME – 
Supervisors consists of all employees hired on or before December 30, 2014, Tier 2 consists of all 
employees hired on or after December 31, 2014.  

Tier 1 is closed to new entrants as all newly hired employees will be placed into the respective Tier 2 plans.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  7 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
1. DESCRIPTION OF THE PLANS (Continued) 

PEPRA Employees 

The Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) of 2013 created new pension rules for employees hired 
after January 1, 2013. ‘PEPRA employees’ were hired under both the ATU/IBEW Plan and the Salaried Plan 
and the employees are required to contribute 50% of the normal cost of their plan. The benefits under PEPRA 
were reduced in an effort to reduce the pension liability of local agencies in the state of California.  

 
On October 4, 2013 Assembly Bill 1222 provided a temporary exemption to the January 1, 2013 PEPRA law 
for employees of Transit Agencies. Along with changes to employee retirement benefits, this 
exemption eliminated employee contributions through January 1, 2015. Therefore all contributions received 
were refunded in November 2013 and the employees hired between January 1, 2013 and October 4, 2013 were 
included in the Tier 1 Plans. On September 28, 2014 Assembly Bill 1783 was signed by Governor Brown which 
extended the Districts PEPRA exemption to January 1, 2016.  
 
On December 30, 2014 a court ruling was released in which PEPRA became a requirement for Transit Agencies 
in the state of California. The ruling indicated that if a bargaining group was within a current MOU, PEPRA 
would not apply until the expiration of said MOU. As of December 30, 2014 the ATU, IBEW, and AFSCME – 
Technical groups were under a current MOU. For all other employee groups not under current contract (MCEG, 
AEA, and AFSCME – Supervisors), PEPRA applies to all new hires as of December 30, 2014. 

General Provisions ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans 

Contributions to the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans are authorized or amended by the Retirement Board based 
on an actuarial basis.  The authority under which benefit provisions are established and amended rests with the 
District’s Board of Directors as a result of labor negotiations.  Assembly Bill 1064, effective January 1, 2004, 
mandates that the Retirement Boards be comprised of equal representation of management and Bargaining 
Group employees.  The Retirement Board shall consist of not more than 4 members and 2 alternates.  Two (2) 
voting members and one (1) alternate shall be appointed by the District’s Board of Directors and two (2) voting 
members and one (1) alternate shall be appointed by the ATU, IBEW, AEA, AFSCME, and MCEG member 
groups. 

The ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans provide defined pension, disability, and death benefits to employees who 
are members of the ATU, IBEW, AEA, MCEG, AFSCME-Technical, and AFSCME-Supervisors.  

ATU/IBEW Plan membership for both Tier 1 and Tier 2, at June 30, consisted of: 

2015 2014

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 507          493          
Terminated members entitled to but not yet collecting benefits 42            39            
Current active members 696          708          

1,245       1,240       
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
  8 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
1. DESCRIPTION OF THE PLANS (Continued) 
 

Salaried Plan membership for both Tier 1 and Tier 2, as of June 30, consisted of: 
 

 
2015 2014

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 227          221          
Terminated members entitled to but not yet collecting benefits 45            47            
Current active members 250          252          

522          520          
 

RETIREMENT BENEFITS 
 
 Table 1 below presents a summary of the retirement benefits for Tier 1 employees for each of the employee 

groups represented by the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans. 
 

Table 1 

 TIER 1 ATU/IBEW Plan Salaried Plan 

Employee 
Unions/Groups ATU IBEW AFSCME - 

Technical 
AFSCME - 
Supervisors AEA MCEG 

Plan Terms MOU MOU MOU MOU MOU MOU 

Vesting Period: 
Years of Service - 
% Vested 

10 - 100% 5 - 100% 

5 - 20%                               
6 - 40%                                    
7 - 60%                                        
8 - 80%                               

9 - 100% 

9 - 100% 5 - 100% 5 - 100% 

Employer 
Contribution 27.55% 27.55% 32.04% 32.04% 32.04% 32.04% 

Employee 
Contribution 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

Vacation sell back 
towards pension 
calculation 

Allowable Allowable Allowable Allowable Allowable Allowable 

Sick leave sell 
back towards 
pension calculation 

Allowable Allowable Allowable Allowable Allowable Allowable 

Retirement Age 
Eligible and 
Multiplier 

See  
Table 3 

See  
Table 3 

See  
Table 3 

See  
Table 3 

See  
Table 3 

See  
Table 3 

Disability 
Retirement 
Multiplier 

Equal to applicable retirement age multiplier or 2% if age and service are not met. 
Vesting required 

  9 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
 
1. DESCRIPTION OF THE PLANS (Continued) 
 

Table 2 below presents a summary of the retirement benefits for Tier 2 employees for each of the employee 
groups represented by the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans. 
 
Table 2 

TIER 2 ATU/IBEW Plan Salaried Plan 

 Employee 
Unions/Groups ATU IBEW AFSCME - 

Technical 
AFSCME - 
Supervisors AEA MCEG 

Plan Terms MOU MOU MOU PEPRA PEPRA PEPRA 

Vesting Period: 
Years of Service - 
% Vested 

10 - 100% 10 - 100% 

5 - 10%                               
6 - 30%                                    
7 - 50%                                        
8 - 70%                               
9 - 90%                             

10 - 100% 

5 - 100% 5 - 100% 5 - 100% 

Employer 
Contribution 24.55% 26.05% 30.54% 26.29% 26.29% 26.29% 

Employee 
Contribution 3.0% 1.5% to 

4.5% 1.5% to 4.5% 1/2 Normal 
Cost 

1/2 Normal 
Cost 

1/2 Normal 
Cost 

Vacation sell back 
towards pension 
calculation 

Allowable Allowable Allowable Not 
Allowable 

Not 
Allowable 

Not 
Allowable 

Sick sell back 
towards pension 
calculation 

Allowable Allowable Allowable Not 
Allowable 

Not 
Allowable 

Not 
Allowable 

Retirement Age 
Eligible and 
Multiplier 

See  
Table 4 

See  
Table 4 

See  
Table 4 

See  
Table 4 

See  
Table 4 

See  
Table 4 

Disability 
Retirement 
Multiplier 

Equal to applicable retirement age multiplier or 2% if age and service are not met. 
Vesting required 

  10 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
1. DESCRIPTION OF THE PLANS (Continued) 

 
The retirement ages, years of service and pension calculation multipliers vary by employee union/group. The 
specific benefits for the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plan Tier 1 and Tier 2 employees are outlined below in 
Table 3 and Table 4, respectively: 

 
Table 3 Table 4

Employee 
Unions/ Groups Age

Years of 
Service Multiplier

Employee 
Unions/ Groups Age

Years of 
Service Multiplier

ATU 55 25 2.00% ATU 55 25 2.00%
56 26 2.10% 56 26 2.10%
57 27 2.20% 57 27 2.20%
58 28 2.30% 58 28 2.30%
59 29 2.40% 59 29 2.40%
60 30 or more 2.50% 60 30 or more 2.50%

IBEW 55-59 25-29 or more 2.00% IBEW 55-62 N/A 2.00%
60 30 or more 2.50% 63 N/A 2.10%

64 N/A 2.20%
Salaried 55 25 2.00% 65 N/A 2.30%

(AEA, MCEG, 56 26 2.10% 66 N/A 2.40%
and AFSCME) 57 27 2.20% 67 N/A 2.50%

58 28 2.30%
59 29 2.40% AFSCME- 55 25 2.00%
60 30 or more 2.50% Technical 56 26 2.10%

57 27 2.20%
58 28 2.30%
59 29 2.40%
60 30 or more 2.50%

AEA, MCEG, 55 N/A 1.30%
and AFSCME - 56 N/A 1.40%

Supervisors 57 N/A 1.50%
58 N/A 1.60%
59 N/A 1.70%
60 N/A 1.80%
61 N/A 1.90%
62 N/A 2.00%
63 N/A 2.10%
64 N/A 2.20%
65 N/A 2.30%
66 N/A 2.40%
67 N/A 2.50%

Tier 2Tier 1

 

  11 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
1. DESCRIPTION OF THE PLANS (Continued) 

The benefits for both Tier 1 and Tier 2 members begin at retirement and continue for the participant’s life with 
no cost of living adjustment. The participant can elect to receive reduced benefits with continuing benefits to a 
beneficiary after death. 

Disability Benefits – A participant is eligible for a disability benefit if the participant is unable to perform the 
duties of his or her job with the District, cannot be transferred to another job with the District, and has submitted 
satisfactory medical evidence of permanent disqualification from his or her job.  Members are required to be 
vested in their respective union or employee group to qualify for disability retirement.  The disability benefit is 
equal to the retirement allowance, as defined by the ATU/IBEW or Salaried Plan, multiplied by service accrued 
through the date of disability.  The disability benefit cannot exceed the retirement benefit.  The benefit begins at 
disability and continues until recovery or for the participant’s life unless the participant elects to receive reduced 
benefits with continuing benefits to a beneficiary after death. 

Pre-Retirement Death Benefit – A participant’s surviving spouse is eligible for a pre-retirement death benefit 
if the participant is vested, based on the respective bargaining agreements.  The pre-retirement death benefit is 
the actuarial equivalent of the normal retirement benefit, as if the participant retired on the date of death.  The 
death benefit begins when the participant dies and continues for the life of the surviving spouse or until 
remarriage. 

Administration – The ATU/IBEW Plan is administered by the ATU/IBEW Plan’s Retirement Board.  All 
expenses incurred in the administration of the ATU/IBEW Plan are paid by the ATU/IBEW Plan. The Salaried 
Plan is administered by the Salaried Plan’s Retirement Boards.  All expenses incurred in the administration of 
the Salaried Plan are paid by the Salaried Plan. 

Plan Termination – Should the ATU/IBEW or the Salaried Plan be terminated, the Plan’s net position will first 
be applied to provide for retirement benefits to retired members.  Any remaining net position will be allocated 
to other members, oldest first both active and inactive, on the basis of the actuarial present value of their 
benefits. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

Basis of Accounting – The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  The ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans 
are reported as pension trust funds which report resources that are required to be held in trust for the members 
and beneficiaries of the defined benefit pension plans.  The ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans are accounted for on 
the flow of economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  

 
The ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans have adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 25, as their 
source of accounting and reporting principles.  The District’s contributions to the ATU/IBEW and Salaried 
Plans are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due pursuant to formal commitments or 
contractual requirements.  Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the 
ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ agreements. 

Cash and Short-Term Investments – The ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans consider all highly liquid 
investments with a maturity of three months or less to be short-term investments. 

 

 

  12 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Investments – Investments are stated at fair value based on quoted market prices (or, if not available, at 
estimated fair value determined by third-party pricing services).  Realized gains or losses on the sale of 
investments are recorded on the trade date as the difference between proceeds received and the fair value at the 
beginning of the year, or cost if acquired during the year.  Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair value of 
investments includes net unrealized market appreciation and depreciation of investments and net realized gains 
and losses on the sale of investments during the period.  Interest income includes dividends and interest paid on 
the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ investments.  The investment assets for the ATU/IBEW and the Salaried 
Plans are combined into one commingled investment portfolio.  The balances of investments owned by the 
plans are calculated based on a percentage of ownership as determined by the Plans’ custodian, State Street. 

 
Estimates – The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans administrator to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.  Accordingly, actual results may differ from those estimates. 

New Pronouncements – For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans did not 
implement new GASB pronouncements as they did not apply to the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ financial 
activity or were immaterial.  

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans implemented GASB 
pronouncement 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, an amendment of GASB 25.  This statement replaces 
the requirements of Statements No. 25, “Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note 
Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans”, and No. 50, “Pension Disclosures”, as they relate to pension plans 
that are administered through trusts or equivalent arrangements. For defined benefit pension plans, this 
Statement establishes standards of financial reporting for separately issued financial reports and specifies the 
required approach to measuring the pension liability of employers and nonemployer contributing entities for 
benefits provided through the pension plan (the net pension liability), about which information is required to be 
presented. The implementation of the GASB statement resulted in certain changes in presentation but did not 
have a material impact on the Plans’ financial Statements.  

There are currently no future pronouncements that will be applicable to the ATU/IBEW and Salaried 
Retirement Plans financial statements.  
 

3. CONTRIBUTION REQUIREMENTS  
 
EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 
 
The ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ funding policy provides for actuarially determined periodic contributions.  
Contribution rates for retirement benefits are determined using the entry age normal cost method.  During the 
fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014, the District made 100% of the actuarially determined 
contributions to the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans of $17,678,928 and $16,320,190, respectively, for all 
employees.    

 
TIER 1 EMPLOYEES 
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, the actuarially determined rate for the ATU/IBEW Plan was 
27.55% and 26.27%, respectively, of covered payroll. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, the 
actuarially determined rate for the Salaried Plan was 32.04% and 29.95%, respectively, of covered payroll. No 
contributions are required by the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ members pursuant to each respective 
bargaining agreement for employees hired before January 1, 2015. 

  13 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
3. CONTRIBUTION REQUIREMENTS (Continued) 
 

TIER 2 EMPLOYEES 
 
As of January 1, 2015, all new employees were required to contribute to their pension based upon the terms of 
the bargaining groups MOU or based on PEPRA.  
 
ATU employees are required to contribute 3.00% of their annual salary. The employer portion of the actuarially 
determined rate for the ATU members was 24.55% of covered payroll for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015. 
IBEW employees are required to contribute 1.5% the first year of service increasing to 4.5% in the third year of 
service and beyond. The employer portion of the actuarially determined rate for the IBEW members was 
26.05% of covered payroll for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015. The total contribution by Tier 2 employees 
of the ATU/IBEW Plan as of June 30, 2015 was $3,682. 
 
AFSCME – Technical employees are required to contribute 1.5% the first year of service increasing to 4.5% in 
the third year of service and beyond. The employer portion of the actuarially determined rate for the AFSCME - 
Technical members was 30.54% of covered payroll for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.  Members of AEA, 
MCEG, and AFSCME – Supervisors are required to contribute 50% of normal cost which is currently 5.75% of 
their annual salary. The employer portion of the actuarially determined rate for the AEA, MCEG, and AFSCME 
- Supervisors members was 26.29% of covered payroll for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015. The total 
contribution by Tier 2 employees of the Salaried Plan as of June 30, 2015 was $260.  
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 all new employees were required to contribute 50% of the normal cost 
of the pension benefit under the terms of PEPRA. The employee contributions for the fiscal year ending June 
30, 2014 were 5.75% or $22,425 and 4.75% or $1,678, for the ATU/IBEW Plan and the Salaried Plan, 
respectively. The employer portion of the actuarially determined rate for the ATU/IBEW Plan and Salaried Plan 
was 18.18% and 21.61%, respectively, of covered payroll for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014.  
 
The PEPRA related contribution rates for June 30, 2015 and 2014 were actuarially determined on April 20, 
2015 and July 9, 2013, respectively, using the member data from actuarial valuations of the Plans as of June 30, 
2014 and 2012, respectively. 
 

4. CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

CASH AND SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS 

At June 30, 2015 and 2014, the reported amount of cash and short-term investments of the ATU/IBEW and 
Salaried Plans was $4,097,507 and $13,693,518, respectively.  The amount was collateralized with securities 
held by the counterparty’s trust department or agent in the District’s name on behalf of the Retirement Plan. 
 

  14 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
4.    CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 

INVESTMENTS  
 

An annual Board-adopted policy, the Statement of Investment Objectives and Policy Guidelines for the 
Sacramento Regional Transit District Retirement Plans (Policy), governs the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ 
investments. This Policy focuses on the continued feasibility of achieving, and the appropriateness of, the Asset 
Allocation Policy, the Investment Objectives, the Investment Policies and Guidelines, and the Investment 
Restrictions. The Retirement Boards have the authority to amend the asset allocation targets as well as establish 
and amend investment policies. The following was the Plans adopted asset allocation policy as of June 30: 

 

Asset Class 2015 2014

Domestic Equity Large Cap 32% 30%
Domestic Equity Small Cap 8% 7%
International Equity Developed 19% 18%
International Equity Emerging Markets 6% 5%
Domestic Fixed Income 35% 40%

Target Allocation

 
 

All of the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ investments are reported at fair value measured by quoted market 
prices. 

 
For the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, the annual money-weighted rate of return on pension plan 
investments, net of pension plan investment expenses, was 3.25% and 15.64%, respectively. The money-
weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing 
amounts actually invested.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
  15 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
4. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 

The following table identifies the investment types that are authorized by the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ 
Retirement Boards. The table also identifies certain provisions of the Investment Objectives and Policy that 
address interest rate risk, credit risk and concentration of credit risk. 

 

Authorized Investment Type Maximum 
Maturity (1)

 Minimum 
Rating (3)

Maximum 
Percentage of 

Portfolio

Maximum 
Investment in 

One Issuer
Cash None N/A None None
U.S. Treasury Bills None N/A None None
Agency Discount Notes None N/A None None
Certificates of Deposit None N/A None None
Bankers Acceptances None N/A None None
Commercial Paper None A2/P2 None None
Asset-Backed Commercial Paper None A2/P2 None None
Money Market Funds and Bank Short-Term 
Investment Funds (STIF) None N/A None None
Repurchase Agreements None N/A None None
U.S. Government and Agency Securities None N/A None None
Credit Securities/Corporate Debt (4) None N/A None None
Securitized Investments (5) None N/A None None
Emerging Markets None N/A None None
International Fixed Income Securities None N/A None None
Other Fixed Income Securities (6) None N/A None None
Mutual Funds N/A N/A 25% (2) 5%
Real Estate Investment Trust N/A N/A 25% (2) 5%
Depository Receipt N/A N/A 25% (2) 5%
Stocks N/A N/A 25% (2) 5%

 
(1) The fixed income portion of the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans shall be limited in duration to between 

75% and 125% of the benchmark. 
(2) No more than 25% of the fair value on the purchase cost basis of the total common stock portfolio (equity 

securities) shall be invested in a single industry at the time of purchase. 
(3) The investment managers shall maintain a minimum overall portfolio quality rating of “A” equivalent or 

better at all times (based on market-weighted portfolio average). Minimum quality (at purchase) must be at 
least 80% Baa or above.  

(4) Credit Securities and Corporate Debt include: debentures, medium-term notes, capital securities, trust 
preferred securities, Yankee bonds, Eurodollar securities, floating rate notes and perpetual floaters, 
structured notes, municipal bonds, preferred stock, private placements (bank loans and 144(a) securities), 
and EETCs. 

(5) Securitized investments includes: agency and non-agency mortgage-backed securities, asset-backed 
securities (144(a) securities), and commercial mortgage-backed securities. 

 (6) Other Fixed Income Securities includes: Fixed income commingled and mutual funds, futures and options, 
swap agreements, and reverse repurchase agreements. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
  16 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
4. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 

INVESTMENT RISK FACTORS 
 
There are many factors that can affect the value of investments.  Such factors as interest rate risk, credit risk, 
custodial credit risk, concentration of credit risk, and foreign currency risk may affect both equity and fixed 
income securities.   

 
INTEREST RATE RISK 

 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of fixed income securities will decline because of rising interest rates.  
The prices of fixed income securities with a longer time to maturity, measured by duration, tend to be more 
sensitive to changes in interest rates and, therefore, more volatile than those with shorter duration. 
 
The following table provides information about the interest rate risks associated with the ATU/IBEW and 
Salaried Plans’ investments at June 30, 2015.  
 

Less More Fair
than 1 1 – 5 6 – 10 than 10 Value

Collateralized Mortgage Obligations -$                      934,271$           3,333,281$        6,468,937$        10,736,489$      
Corporate Bonds 295,879            6,661,195          3,725,380          4,714,205          15,396,659        
Municipal Bonds -                        -                         476,583             246,142             722,725             
U.S. Government Agency Obligations -                        254,983             2,199,814          19,363,859        21,818,656        
U.S. Government Issued Obligations 9,188,966         11,542,035        6,288,225          4,259,693          31,278,919        
Asset-Backed Securities -                        -                         2,123,916          11,469,876        13,593,792        
Total 9,484,845$       19,392,484$      18,147,199$      46,522,712$      93,547,240$      

Maturity in Years

 
The following table provides information about the interest rate risks associated with the ATU/IBEW and 
Salaried Plan’s investments at June 30, 2014.  

Less More Fair
than 1 1 – 5 6 – 10 than 10 Value

Collateralized Mortgage Obligations -$                    363,661$          2,977,041$       7,637,213$       10,977,915$     
Corporate Bonds 1,139,096       6,470,913         3,527,154         3,763,174         14,900,337       
Municipal Bonds -                      -                        438,356            681,598            1,119,954         
U.S. Government Agency Obligations -                      2,735                2,311,794         20,467,290       22,781,819       
U.S. Government Issued Obligations 6,980,614       14,397,839       8,803,837         3,399,803         33,582,093       
Asset-Backed Securities -                      -                        1,513,343         9,065,491         10,578,834       
Total 8,119,710$     21,235,148$     19,571,525$     45,014,569$     93,940,952$     

Maturity in Years

 
In accordance with the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ investment policy, investments may include mortgage 
pass-through securities, collateralized mortgage obligations, asset-backed securities, callable bonds and 
corporate debts that are considered to be highly sensitive to changes in interest rates. 

  17 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
4. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

 
COLLATERALIZED MORTGAGE OBLIGATIONS 
 
Collateralized mortgage obligations (CMO’s) are bonds that represent claims to specific cash flow from large 
pools of home mortgages.  The streams of principal and interest payments on the mortgages are distributed to 
the different classes of CMO interests. 
 
CMO’s are often highly sensitive to changes in interest rates and any resulting change in the rate at which 
homeowners sell their properties, refinance, or otherwise pre-pay their loans.  Investors in these securities may 
not only be subjected to such prepayment risk, but also exposed to significant market and liquidity risks. 
 
CORPORATE DEBT – RANGE NOTES  
 
Range notes are securities which pay two different interest rates depending on whether or not a benchmark 
index falls within a pre-determined range as structured per the note.  If the benchmark index rate does not fall 
within the pre-determined range, the note will not earn the coupon rate for that time period.  With this pre-
determined range feature, range notes are highly sensitive to changes in interest rates.  As of June 30, 2015, the 
ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans held range notes with a fair value of $422,100.  As of June 30, 2014, the 
ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans held range notes with a fair value of $446,243.   
 
MORTGAGE PASS-THROUGH SECURITIES 
 
These securities are issued by Government Sponsored Enterprises (GSEs), which are a group of financial 
services corporations created by the United States Congress.  The GSEs include: the Federal National Mortgage 
Association (Fannie Mae), the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Association (Freddie Mac), and the Federal Home 
Loan Banks.  Another institution that issues these securities is the Government National Mortgage Association 
(Ginnie Mae).  These securities are highly sensitive to interest rate fluctuations because they are subject to early 
payment.  In a period of declining interest rate, the resulting reduction in expected total cash flows affects the 
fair value of these securities. 

 
ASSET-BACKED SECURITIES 
 
Asset-backed securities generate a return based upon either the payment of interest or principal on obligations in 
an underlying pool.  The relationship between interest rates and prepayments make the fair value highly 
sensitive to changes in interest rates. 
 
CALLABLE BONDS 
 
Although bonds are issued with clearly defined maturities, an issuer may be able to redeem, or call, a bond 
earlier than its maturity date.  The Plans must then replace the called bond with a bond that may have a lower 
yield than the original bond.  The call feature causes the fair value to be highly sensitive to changes in interest 
rates.   As of June 30, 2015, the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans held callable bonds with a fair value of 
$4,008,874.  As of June 30, 2014, the ATU/IBEW Plan and the Salaried Plan held callable bonds with a fair 
value of $3,450,766. 
 
CREDIT RISK 
 
Fixed income securities are subject to credit risk, which is the risk that a bond issuer or other counterparty to a 
debt instrument will not fulfill its obligation to pay interest or principal in a timely manner, or that negative 
perceptions of the issuer’s ability to make these payments will cause security prices to decline.  The 
circumstances may arise due to a variety of factors such as financial weakness, bankruptcy, litigation and/or 
adverse political developments. 

  18 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
4. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

 
A bond’s credit quality is an assessment of the issuer’s ability to pay interest on the bond, and ultimately, to pay 
the principal.  Credit quality is evaluated by one of the independent bond-rating agencies, for example Moody’s 
Investors Services (Moody’s).  The lower the rating the greater the chance, in the rating agency’s opinion, the 
bond issuer will default, or fail to meet their payment obligations.  Generally, the lower a bond’s credit rating, 
the higher its yield should be to compensate for the additional risk. 
 
Certain fixed income securities, including obligations of the U.S. government or those explicitly guaranteed by 
the U.S. government, are not considered to have credit risk. 
 
For the fiscal years ending June 30, 2015 and 2014, the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans were in adherence with 
the credit risk provisions of the Statement of Investment Objectives and Policy Guidelines which require a 
minimum overall portfolio quality rating and a minimum credit rating at the time of purchase. 
 
The following table provides information on the credit ratings and fair value associated with the ATU/IBEW 
and Salaried Plans’ investments as of June 30, 2015. 

Investment Rating Fair Value
Percentage of 

Portfolio
Not Applicable 164,268,550$          63.72%

Not Rated 56,033,893 21.73%
Aaa 16,157,305 6.27%
Aa1 458,580 0.18%
Aa2 1,216,262 0.47%
Aa3 351,245 0.14%
A1 1,384,654 0.54%
A2 2,328,805 0.90%
A3 3,630,204 1.41%

Baa1 3,776,868 1.46%
Baa2 2,901,380 1.13%
Baa3 2,492,310 0.97%
Ba1 807,401 0.31%
Ba2 671,768 0.26%
Ba3 98,024 0.04%
B1 127,875 0.05%
B2 610,069 0.24%

Caa3 441,415 0.17%
Ca 9,043 0.00%

WR 50,138 0.02%

257,815,789$          100.00%

 

 
 

  19 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
4. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 

The following table provides information on the credit ratings and fair value associated with the ATU/IBEW 
and Salaried Plans’ investments as of June 30, 2014. 
 
 
 

 
CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK 

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of an entity’s investment in a single 
issuer. 

The investment policies of the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans state that an investment in each domestic or 
international equity fund managers’ securities of a single issuer shall not exceed 5% (at cost) of the value of the 
portfolios and/or of the total outstanding shares.  As of June 30, 2015 and 2014, the ATU/IBEW and Salaried 
Plans did not have domestic or international equity fund managers’ investments in a single issuer that exceeded 
5% (at cost) of the value of the portfolios and/or of the total outstanding shares. As of June 30, 2015 and 2014, 
the Plans held more than 5% of the Plans’ investments and more than 5% of the Plans’ fiduciary net position in 
the following fixed-income securities investment. 
 

2015 2014
Federal National Morgtage Association 16,273,430$         21,236,745$         
Federal Home Loan Bank 12,907,787           13,963,182           
US Treasury 17,046,158           22,002,362           

 
 

Investment Rating Fair Value
Percentage of 

Portfolio
 Not applicable  $     159,792,291 62.98%

Not rated           57,905,099 22.82%
Aaa           14,259,652 5.62%
Aa1                977,535 0.39%
Aa2             1,771,440 0.70%
Aa3                354,555 0.14%
A1             1,448,258 0.57%
A2             1,520,943 0.60%
A3             2,409,478 0.95%

Baa1             4,660,839 1.84%
Baa2             4,642,177 1.83%
Baa3             1,235,670 0.49%
Ba1                116,350 0.05%
Ba2                161,895 0.06%
Ba3                827,823 0.33%
B1                616,190 0.24%
B2                132,728 0.05%

Caa1                503,608 0.20%
Caa3                386,167 0.15%
Ca                  10,546 0.00%

Total Cash & Investments 253,733,244$     100.00%

  20 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
4.    CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

 
CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK 
 
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a 
government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in 
the possession of an outside party. 
 
The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., 
broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral 
securities that are in the possession of another party.  The ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ investment policy 
does not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits 
or investments. The ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ investment securities are not exposed to custodial credit 
risk because all securities are held by the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ custodian bank in the District’s name. 
 
FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK 

 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment or a deposit.  The ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ investment policy states international equity 
securities shall be comprised of American Depository Receipts (ADR) of non-U.S. companies, common stocks 
of non-U.S. companies, preferred stocks of non-U.S. companies, foreign convertible securities including 
debentures convertible to common stocks, and cash equivalents. 

 
The following table provides information on deposits and investments held in various foreign currencies, which 
are stated in U.S. dollars.  The ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans do have foreign currency deposits and 
investments which may be used for hedging purposes. 

 
At June 30, 2015 and 2014, the U.S. dollar balances organized by investment type and currency denominations 
for the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans are as follows: 
 

2015 2014
Asset Class Foreign Currency U.S. Dollars U.S. Dollars 
Cash

EURO 430$            528$            
Japanese Yen 87                -               
Swiss Franc 6,367           -               

Total 6,884$         528$            

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  21 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
5. NET PENSION LIABILITY 
 

ATU/IBEW Plan 

The components of the net pension liability of the ATU/IBEW Plan at June 30, 2015, were as follows:  

Total pension liability 222,705,517$         
Plan fiduciary net position (172,106,054)          
ATU/IBEW net pension liability 50,599,463$           

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
total pension liability 77.28%  

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2014, using the following 
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, and using update procedures to roll 
forward the total pension liability to the pension plan’s fiscal year-end: 
 
  Inflation    3.15% 
  Amortization growth rate  3.25% 
  Salary increases   3.25%, plus merit component  
  Investment Rate of Return   7.65%, net of investment expense 
  Post-retirement mortality  Sex distinct RP-2000 Combined Blue Collar Mortality, 3 year  
      setback for females 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2011. 
  
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension 
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to 
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target 
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for 
each major asset class included in the pension plan’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2015, are summarized 
in the following table:  
 

Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Real Rate of Return

Domestic Equity Large Cap 8.90%
Domestic Equity Small Cap 10.15%
International Equity Developed 9.80%
International Equity Emerging 11.45%
Domestic Fixed Income 3.05%  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

  22 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
5.   NET PENSION LIABILITY (continued) 

 
The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 7.65%.  The discount rate was decreased 
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 to 7.65% from 7.75% as of June 30, 2014. The reduction is due to a 
review of potential investment returns over the next ten to twenty year horizon. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that the District will continue to contribute to the Plan based on an 
actuarially determined contribution, reflecting a payment equal to annual Normal Cost, the expected 
administrative expenses, and an amount necessary to amortize the remaining Unfunded Actuarial Liability as a 
level percentage of payroll over a closed period (18 years remaining as of the June 30, 2014 actuarial valuation). 
 
Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of the current Plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return 
on Plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the Total Pension 
Liability.    

 
The following presents the net pension liability of the ATU/IBEW Plan, calculated using the discount rate of 
7.65 percent, as well as what the ATU/IBEW Plans net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.65%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.65%) than the current 
rate: 
 
 

1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase

6.65% 7.65% 8.65%
Total pension liability 244,369,554$    222,705,517$    204,025,934$    
Plan fiduciary net position (172,106,054)     (172,106,054)     (172,106,054)    
Net pension liability 72,263,500$      50,599,463$      31,919,880$      

Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension liability 70.43% 77.28% 84.35%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  23 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
5.    NET PENSION LIABILITY (continued)  
 

Salaried Plan 
 
The components of the net pension liability of the Salaried Plan at June 30, 2015, were as follows:  

Total pension liability 116,410,752$         
Plan fiduciary net position (74,596,300)            
Salaried net pension liability 41,814,452$           

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
total pension liability 64.08%  

 
The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2014, using the following 
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, and using update procedures to roll 
forward the total pension liability to the pension plan’s fiscal year-end: 
 
  Inflation    3.15% 
  Amortization growth rate  3.25% 
  Salary increases   3.25%, plus merit component  
  Investment Rate of Return   7.65%, net of investment expense 
  Post-retirement mortality  Sex distinct RP-2000 Combined White Collar Mortality, 3  
      year setback for females 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2011. 
  
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension 
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to 
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target 
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for 
each major asset class included in the pension plan’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2015, are summarized 
in the following table:  
 

Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Real Rate of Return

Domestic Equity Large Cap 8.90%
Domestic Equity Small Cap 10.15%
International Equity Developed 9.80%
International Equity Emerging 11.45%
Domestic Fixed Income 3.05%  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  24 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
5.    NET PENSION LIABILITY (continued) 

 
The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 7.65%. The discount rate was decreased 
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 to 7.65% from 7.75% as of June 30, 2014. The reduction is due to a 
review of potential investment returns over the next ten to twenty year horizon. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that the District will continue to contribute to the Plan based on an 
actuarially determined contribution, reflecting a payment equal to annual Normal Cost, the expected 
administrative expenses, and an amount necessary to amortize the remaining Unfunded Actuarial Liability as a 
level percentage of payroll over a closed period (18 years remaining as of the June 30, 2014 actuarial valuation) 
 
Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of the current Plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return 
on Plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the Total Pension 
Liability.     

 
The following presents the net pension liability of the Salaried Plan, calculated using the discount rate of 7.65 
percent, as well as what the Salaried Plans net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount 
rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.65%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.65%) than the current rate: 
 

1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase

6.65% 7.65% 8.65%
Total pension liability 129,004,006$     116,410,752$     105,681,770$    
Plan fiduciary net position (74,596,300)        (74,596,300)       (74,596,300)       
Net pension liability 54,407,706$       41,814,452$       31,085,470$      

Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension liability 57.82% 64.08% 70.59%

 
 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions 
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to 
continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the 
future.  Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and are based on the benefits provided under the 
terms of the substantive plan in effect at the time of each valuation.  Actuarial methods and assumptions used 
include techniques designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value 
of plan assets. 

 
The projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes does not explicitly incorporate the potential effect of 
legal or contractual funding limitations.   
 
 

  25 



 

 

 

 

 

 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

 



 

2015 2014

Total pension Liability
Service Cost  $        5,753,143  $       5,599,479 
Intrest          16,384,487         15,740,342 
Difference between expected and actual returns          (2,941,777)                        -   
Changes of assumptions            1,621,574                        -   
Transfers out - Salaried Plan                        -               (174,166)
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions        (13,157,985)        (12,877,177)

Net change in total pension liability            7,659,442           8,288,478 

Total pension liability - beginning 215,046,075      206,757,597      
Total pension liability - ending 222,705,517$    215,046,075$    

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer 10,343,620$      9,711,107$        
Contributions - member 3,682                 22,425               
Net investment income 4,609,506          22,631,819        
Transfers out - Salaried Plan -                     (174,166)           
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (13,157,985)       (12,877,177)      
Administrative expense (190,442)            (230,365)           

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 1,608,381          19,083,643        

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 170,497,673      151,414,030      
Plan fiduciary net position - ending 172,106,054$    170,497,673$    

Net pension liability - ending 50,599,463$      44,548,402$      

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension 
liability 77.28% 79.28%

Covered employee payroll 37,950,269$      38,857,668$      

Net pension liability as a percentage of covered employee payroll 133.33% 114.65%

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES

EMPLOYEES WHO ARE MEMBERS OF
ATU LOCAL 256 AND IBEW LOCAL 1245

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

 
 
 

Notes to schedule: In fiscal year 2015, amounts reported as changes of assumptions resulted from lowering the discount 
rate from 7.75% to 7.65% 

 
 
 

 26 



 

2015 2014

Total pension Liability
Service Cost  $       3,476,103  $              3,321,337 
Transfers In - ATU/IBEW Plan                        -                       174,166 
Interest (includes interest on service cost)           8,434,365                  7,978,675 
Difference between expected and actual returns             (753,076)                              -   
Changes of assumptions              930,863                              -   
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions          (5,502,144)                (5,664,400)

Net change in total pension liability           6,586,111                  5,809,778 

Total pension liability - beginning 109,824,641      104,014,863            
Total pension liability - ending 116,410,752$    109,824,641$          

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer 7,335,308$        6,609,083$              
Contributions - member 261                    1,678                       
Transfers in - ATU/IBEW Plan -                    174,166                   
Net investment income 2,132,136          9,297,644                
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (5,502,144)        (5,664,400)               
Administrative expense (194,209)           (176,367)                  

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 3,771,352          10,241,804              

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 70,824,948        60,583,144              
Plan fiduciary net position - ending 74,596,300$      70,824,948$            

Net pension liability - ending 41,814,452$      38,999,693$            

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension 
liability 64.08% 64.49%

Covered employee payroll 23,022,281$      22,008,809$            

Net pension liability as a percentage of covered employee payroll 181.63% 177.20%

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES

SALARIED EMPLOYEES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

 
Notes to schedule: In fiscal year 2015, amounts reported as changes of assumptions resulted from lowering the discount 
rate from 7.75% to 7.65%

 27 



 

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Actuarially determined contribution  $ 10,344  $  9,711  $  8,694  $  7,885  $  6,809  $ 7,426  $ 6,937  $ 7,681  $ 7,088  $ 6,227 
Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contribution     10,344      9,711      8,694      7,885      6,809     7,426     6,937     7,681     7,088     6,227 
Contribution deficiency (excess)  $         -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -   
Covered-employee payroll     37,950    38,858    37,110    38,558    38,343   43,626   44,916   44,718   42,897   41,284 
Contributions as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll 27.26% 24.99% 23.43% 20.45% 17.76% 17.02% 15.44% 17.18% 16.52% 15.08%

Note: Beginning in FYE2015, payroll amounts are based on actual total payroll of the District. In previous years the schedule used covered payroll which is different than actual payroll and there   
contributions as a percentage of covered payroll will differ from what was actually contributed. 

LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS
EMPLOYEES WHO ARE MEMBERS OF

ATU LOCAL 256 AND IBEW LOCAL 1245

 
 
Notes to Schedule 
 
Valuation Date   7/1/2013 (to determine FY14-15 contribution) 
Timing    Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated based on the actuarial valuation one year prior to the  
    beginning of the plan year 
 
Key methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates: 
Actuarial cost method  Entry Age 
Amortization method  Level percentage of payroll, closed 19 year period as of 6/30/2013 
Asset valuation method  5-year smoothed market 
Discount Rate   7.75% 
Amortization growth rate  3.25% 
Price inflation   3.25% 
Salary Increases   3.25%, plus merit component on employee classification and years of service 
Mortality    Sex distinct RP-2000 Combined Blue Collar Mortality, 3 year setback for females  
 
Other information: 
A complete description of the methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates for the year ending June 30, 2015, can be found in the July 1, 2013 
actuarial valuation report.     

 28 



 

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Actuarially determined contribution  $   7,335  $  6,609  $  5,800  $  4,580  $  3,718  $ 4,269  $ 3,820  $ 4,132  $ 3,694  $ 2,564 
Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contribution       7,335      6,609      5,800      4,580      3,718     4,269     3,820     4,132     3,694     2,564 
Contribution deficiency (excess)  $         -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -   
Covered-employee payroll     23,022    22,009    19,627    19,105    19,466   22,602   21,115   21,929   21,363   21,217 
Contributions as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll 31.86% 30.03% 29.55% 23.97% 19.10% 18.89% 18.09% 18.84% 17.29% 12.08%

Note: Beginning in FYE2015, payroll amounts are based on actual total payroll of the District. In previous years the schedule used covered payroll which is different than actual payroll and there   
contributions as a percentage of covered payroll will differ from what was actually contributed. 

LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS
SALARIED EMPLOYEES

 
 
 
Notes to Schedule 
 
Valuation Date   7/1/2013(to determine FY14-15 contribution) 
Timing    Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated based on the actuarial valuation one year prior to the  
    beginning of the plan year 
 
Key methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates: 
Actuarial cost method  Entry Age 
Amortization method  Level percentage of payroll, closed 19 year period as of 6/30/2013 
Asset valuation method  5-year smoothed market 
Discount Rate   7.75% 
Amortization growth rate  3.25% 
Price inflation   3.25% 
Salary Increases   3.25%, plus merit component on employee classification and years of service 
Mortality    Sex distinct RP-2000 Combined White Collar Mortality, 3 year setback for females  
 
Other information: 
A complete description of the methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates for the year ending June 30, 2015, can be found in the July 1, 2013 
actuarial valuation report.  

 29 



 

2015 2014

Annual money-weighted rate of return, net of investment expense 3.25% 15.64%

Note: Information prior to 2014 was not available.

LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS
EMPLOYEES WHO ARE MEMBERS OF

ATU LOCAL 256 AND IBEW LOCAL 1245
AND SALARIED EMPLOYEES

DISTRICT EMPLOYEES

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 30 



 

 
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES 

 
 
 

 



 

RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 
 

SCHEDULES OF INVESTMENT AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 
EMPLOYEES WHO ARE MEMBERS OF 

ATU LOCAL 256 AND IBEW LOCAL 1245 
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

 
 

Investment Expenses:

Vendor Names Type of Services 2015 2014

Metropolitan West Asset Management, L.L.C. Asset Management 180,559$     169,601$     
Boston Partners Investment Management Asset Management 147,872       146,791       
Atlanta Capital Management Co. Asset Management 108,578       113,462       
JP Morgan Investment Management, Inc. Asset Management 110,147       108,346       
SSgA S&P 500 Asset Management 13,553         13,583         
SSgA MSCI EAFE Asset Management 14,749         13,472         
Callan Associates, Inc. Investment Advisor 80,658         78,529         
State Street Bank and Trust Company Custodian Services 89,681         89,013         

Total 745,797$     732,797$     

Administrative Expenses:

Vendor Names Type of Services 2015 2014

Hanson Bridgett Consulting Services 87,848$       151,242$     
Sacramento Regional Transit District Plan Administration 37,744         -                   
Cheiron EFI Actuarial Services 34,805         44,649         
AON Risk Services, Inc. Fiduciary Insurance 29,126         23,603         
Information Services Technical Support 408              375              
CALAPRS Dues & Training Course 300              5,250           
United Parcel Service Shipping 13                18                
Sacramento Occupational Medical Group Medical Evaluation -                   3,010           
Callan Associates Training Workshop -                   1,081           
Other Misc 198              1,137           

Total 190,442$     230,365$     

 
 
 

 

 31 



 

RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 
 

SCHEDULES OF INVESTMENT AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 
SALARIED EMPLOYEES  

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 
 
 

Investment Expenses:

Vendor Names Type of Services 2015 2014

Metropolitan West Asset Management, L.L.C. Asset Management 76,740$         69,461$         
Boston Partners Investment Management Asset Management 62,886           60,081           
Atlanta Capital Management Co. Asset Management 46,215           46,407           
JP Morgan Investment Management, Inc. Asset Management 46,848           44,327           
SSgA S&P 500 Asset Management 5,759             5,560             
SSgA MSCI EAFE Asset Management 6,275             5,517             
Callan Associates, Inc. Investment Advisor 34,142           31,871           
State Street Bank and Trust Company Custodian Services 37,985           35,224           

Total 316,850$       298,448$       

Administrative Expenses:

Vendor Names Type of Services 2015  2014

Hanson Bridgett Consulting Services 107,517$       117,416$       
Sacramento Regional Transit District Pension Administration 37,744           -                 
AON Risk Services, Inc. Fiduciary Insurance 29,013           23,603           
Cheiron EFI Actuarial Services 18,920           30,276           
Information Services Technical Support 406                -                 
CALAPRS Dues & Training Course 300                2,750             
United Parcel Service Shipping 2                    18                  
Callan Associates, Inc. Training Workshop -                 1,081             
Other Miscellaneous 307                1,223             

Total 194,209$       176,367$       

 

 32 



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 1 of 1
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

03/16/16 Retirement Action 01/29/16

Subject: Receive and File the Fiscal Year 2015 State Controller's Report for the Retirement Plan
for Sacramento Regional Transit District Employees Who are Members of ATU Local
256 and IBEW Local 1245 (ATU/IBEW). (Bernegger)

Approved: Presented:

Final 02/26/16
Chief Financial Officer, Acting Senior Accountant

ISSUE

Receive and File the Fiscal Year 2015 State Controller's Report for the Retirement Plan for
Sacramento Regional Transit District Employees Who are Members of ATU Local 256 and IBEW
Local 1245 (ATU/IBEW). (Bernegger)

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Motion: Receive and File the Fiscal Year 2015 State Controller's Report for the Retirement Plan
for Sacramento Regional Transit District Employees Who are Members of ATU Local 256 and
IBEW Local 1245 (ATU/IBEW). (Bernegger)

FISCAL IMPACT

None

DISCUSSION

The financial data for the annual State Controller’s Public Retirement Systems Financial
Transactions Report is prepared in accordance with California Government Code Section 7504.
This statute requires all state and local retirement systems to annually submit audited financial
statements of their Pension Plans to the State Controller’s Office by the close of each calendar
year.  The State Controller’s Public Retirement Systems Financial Transactions Report
(Attachment 1) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 was filed on December 30, 2015.

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
12



JAdelman
Text Box
Attachment #1





















Item 13 

1 
12015929.1 

Sacramento Regional Transit District 
IBEW Quarterly Retirement Board Meeting 

Wednesday, December 16, 2015 
MEETING SUMMARY 

 
 

ROLL CALL 
 
The Retirement Board was brought to order at 9:04 a.m.  A quorum was present comprised as 
follows: Directors Morin, Ohlson, Burdick and Alternate Gallow were present. Director Wiley was 
absent. Alternate Hansen was absent.  
 
This meeting was held as a common meeting of the five Sacramento Regional Transit District 
Retirement Boards.  
 
By IBEW Resolution No. 14-12-153 for calendar year 2015, the Governing Board Member in 
attendance served as Common Chair of this Retirement Board meeting.   
 
 
PUBLIC ADDRESSES BOARD ON MATTERS ON CONSENT AND MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

 
None. 
 
 
Consent Calendar: 
 
7.  Motion: Approving the Minutes for the September 16, 2015 Quarterly Retirement 

Board Meeting (IBEW). (Bonnel)  
 
8.  Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended September 

30, 2015 for the ATU/IBEW Pension Plan (ATU/IBEW). (Bernegger) 
 
11. Resolution: Adopting Regional Transit Retirement Boards 2016 Meeting Calendar 

(ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Director Ohlson moved to adopt Items 7, 8, and 11. Director Burdick seconded the motion. 
Items 7, 8, and 11 were carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Ohlson, Burdick, and Morin. 
Noes: None. 
 
 
New Business: 
 
The order of New Business items was adjusted to ensure all of the items requiring action 
would be addressed in case members had to leave resulting in loss of a quorum.  The 
reordering was: 12-16, 18, 20, 21, 17, 19, 22. 
 
12. Information Fiduciary Training provided by Hanson Bridgett (ALL). 
 
Donna Bonnel introduced Lance Kjeldgaard, fiduciary counsel contracted through the board’s 
Legal Counsel, Hanson Bridgett LLP to provide a fiduciary responsibility and liability training. 
 
Alternate Gallow left the meeting at 10:04 a.m.    



Item 13 

2 
12015929.1 

 
MCEG Alternate Thorn left the meeting at 10:04 a.m.  
 
13. Information: Investment Performance Review by Dimensional Fund Advisors (DFA) for 

the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Retirement Funds for  the International 
Emerging Markets Asset Class for the Quarter Ended September 30, 2015 
(ALL). (Bernegger) 

 
Jamie Adelman introduced Ted Simpson from DFA, who provided the performance results for 
the quarter ended September 30, 2015 for the international emerging markets asset class. 
 
AEA Retirement Board Director Bennett noted that he would like a list of the stocks that are 
owned in the portfolio. Mr. Simpson noted that he would send the list to Brent Bernegger to 
distribute to the Boards. 
 
14. Information: Investment Performance Review of the S&P 500 Index and MSCI EAFE 

Funds by State Street Global Advisors (SSgA) for the ATU/IBEW and 
Salaried Employee Retirement Funds for the Quarter Ended September 30, 
2015 (ALL). (Bernegger) 

 
Jamie Adelman introduced Linda Ng from State Street Global Advisors, who presented the 
performance results for the Domestic Large Capitalization and International Equity Index Funds 
for the quarter ended September 30, 201. 
 
AEA Director Bennett remarked that the Boards may want to modify having reports from index 
funds provided during the meeting.  
 
Legal Counsel Shayna van Hoften with Hanson Bridgett noted that the fiduciary training 
provided earlier discussed the duty of care and being a prudent expert and the Boards’ need to 
hear from all fund managers to be in a position to consider whether or not they are serving their 
purpose.  
 
15. Motion: Receive and File the Investment Performance Results for the ATU/IBEW 

and Salaried Employee Retirement Plans for the Quarter Ended September 
30, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger) 

 
Jamie Adelman introduced Ann Heaphy and Uvan Tseng from Callan Associates, who provided 
a market overview for the Quarter Ended September 30, 2015. 
 
Director Ohlson moved to adopt Item 15. Director Burdick seconded the motion. Item 15 was 
carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Ohlson, Burdick, and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
16. Resolution: Authorizing Execution of Plan Trust Documents (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel provided information on the request to authorize the execution of plan trust 
documents. Ms. Bonnel noted that the plan trust documents were distributed to each Retirement 
Board Chair electronically. 
 
AEA Retirement Board Director Bennett asked if the trust language presented for approval 
would result in losing the right to buy securities directly (Section 3.3) and if the Boards would be 
limited to investing in firms with a national reputation (Section 3.6). Director Bennett also asked 
if both points are in the final trust document the board is being asked to approve. Legal Counsel 



Item 13 

3 
12015929.1 

Anne Hydorn with Hanson Bridgett responded that both issues were addressed in the trust 
document and the boards would be able to invest with firms of regional reputation and would not 
lose the ability to directly invest.  
 
Director Ohlson moved to adopt Item 16. Director Burdick seconded the motion. Item 16 was 
carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Ohlson, Burdick, and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
18. Resolution: Adopting Procurement Policy and Procedures (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel stated that an updated version of the Procurement Policy and Procedures was 
distributed at each board member’s seat on the dais because some changes were made since 
distribution of the board packet, and that this revised version was the document recommended 
by staff for adoption. 
 
Ms. Bonnel introduced Valerie Weekly to provide an update on the changes to the document. 
Valerie Weekly noted that the language provided in the prior version allowed for the Finance 
Department or Human Resources Department to complete some of the smaller procurements 
without going through the Procurement Department. The updated version reflects that all 
procurements will go through the Procurement Department.    
 
Director Ohlson moved to approve Item 18 for adoption of the resolution and updated 
attachment provided at the meeting. Director Burdick seconded the motion. Item 18 was carried 
unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Ohlson, Burdick, and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
20. Resolution: Adopting Policy on Allocation of Staff Costs (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel presented Jamie Adelman and Valerie Weekly to provide information on adopting 
a policy on the allocation of staff costs.  
 
Jamie Adelman noted that in March 2015, Staff presented issue papers on the roles and 
responsibilities of various District staff related to the tasks associated with the overall 
administration of RT’s Pension Plans. In June, Staff began tracking times associated with 
performance of those responsibilities. Staff also completed benchmarking on various similarly 
sized pension plans and determined the total number of staff needed to manage similarly sized 
plans.  
 
Staff contacted Cheiron to see what the implications of charging additional administrative cost to 
the plans might be. Ms. Adelman noted that there would be no impact on staff members’ 
employment status, employer identification, nor the funded status of any plan. There also would 
be no increase in employee contributions. The administrative costs are attributed to each plan 
after the contribution of the normal cost, which is what the employees contribute.   
 
Based on the benchmarking results, Staff proposes that the Boards adopt the Policy on 
Allocation of Staff Costs. 
 
ATU Retirement Board Director Niz asked how long the $25,000 per quarter would be charged. 
Ms. Adelman responded that the cost allocation would continue for the rest of the life of the 
Plans.  MCEG Retirement Board Director Mattos asked if the cost would be reflected as an 
increased expense when the actuarial contribution rate is determined. Ms. Adelman responded 
in the affirmative. 
 
 



Item 13 

4 
12015929.1 

Director Ohlson moved to adopt Item 20. Director Burdick seconded the motion. Item 20 was 
carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Ohlson, Burdick, and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
21. Resolution: Adopting Qualified Domestic Relations Order (QDRO) Policy and 

Procedure (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Valerie Weekly presented information on adopting a policy for processing Qualified Domestic 
Relations Orders.  
 
Legal Counsel has advised that it is in the best interest of the Retirement Plans and their 
participants for the Retirement Boards to adopt procedures that will help Staff efficiently and 
effectively process and implement the domestic relations orders it receives.  
 
Legal Counsel and Staff recommend that all of the Boards adopt the proposed policy and 
procedures for processing Qualified Domestic Relations Orders (QDROs). 
  
AEA Retirement Board Director Drake asked about the process if someone seeks a QDRO and 
the member in question is part of two different plans. Ms. Weekly confirmed that the QDRO has 
to address both plans, and both have to be named in the court records.   
 
Director Ohlson moved to adopt Item 21. Director Burdick seconded the motion. Item 21 was 
carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Ohlson, Burdick, and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
17. Information: Implementation of Electronic Distribution of Quarterly Retirement Board 

Packages (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel introduced Valerie Weekly to present information on the implementation of 
electronic distribution of quarterly retirement board packages.  
 
Valerie Weekly noted that Staff has reviewed the current processes associated with the collation 
and distribution of the agenda packages for Quarterly and Special Retirement Board Meetings 
and has determined that there is the opportunity for potential cost and time savings by adopting 
an electronic distribution process similar to that of RT’s governing Board. Staff anticipates 
having the changes in place for the March 2016 Quarterly Retirement Board Meeting. 
  
ATU Retirement Board Director Niz asked if the board packages would still be available five or 
so days prior to the board meeting. Ms. Weekly noted that staff expects the time frame to 
remain the same.  
 
19. Information: Update on Roles and Responsibilities for Pension Administration (ALL). 

(Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel provided an update on the roles and responsibilities of various District staff 
members and Legal Counsel related to the administration of the Pension Plans. 
 
Legal Counsel Shayna van Hoften with Hanson Bridgett outlined the accomplishments of the 
Retirement Boards in 2015. 
 
22. Resolution: Implementation of Amended Bylaws Governing the Retirement Boards and 

Election and Appointment of Officers (IBEW). (Bonnel) 
 



Item 13 

5 
12015929.1 

Director Ohlson moved to approve a resolution appointing Director Ohlson as Chair, Director 
Burdick as Vice Chair and Director Wiley as Secretary. Director Burdick seconded the motion. 
Item 22 was carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Ohlson, Burdick, and Morin. Noes: 
None. 
 
 
 
REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES 
 
None. 
 
REPORTS, IDEAS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
None. 
 
 
With no further business to discuss, the IBEW Retirement Board meeting was adjourned 
by Assistant Secretary Bonnel at 11:18 a.m. 
 
 
 
 
 

    ________________________________________ 
    Eric Ohlson, Chair 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
Lorrin Burdick, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
By:___________________________________ 
      Donna Bonnel, Assistant Secretary 



CONSENT 
CALENDAR 

 
Agenda Item 14 

IBEW 
 

Please refer to 
Agenda Item 10 

ATU 



CONSENT 
CALENDAR 

 
Agenda Item 15 

IBEW 
 

Please refer to 
Agenda Item 11 

ATU 



CONSENT 
CALENDAR 

 
Agenda Item 16 

IBEW 
 

Please refer to 
Agenda Item 12 

ATU 
 



Item 17 

1 

12015928.1 

Sacramento Regional Transit District 
MCEG Quarterly Retirement Board Meeting 

Wednesday, December 16, 2015 
MEETING SUMMARY 

 
 

ROLL CALL 
 
The Retirement Board was brought to order at 9:04 a.m.  A quorum was present comprised as 
follows: Directors Morin, Mattos, Masui and Alternate Thorn were present. Director Wiley was 
absent. Alternate Hansen was absent. 
 
This meeting was held as a common meeting of the five Sacramento Regional Transit District 
Retirement Boards.  
 
By MCEG Resolution No. 14-12-154 for calendar year 2015, the Governing Board Member in 
attendance served as Common Chair of this Retirement Board meeting. 
 
 
PUBLIC ADDRESSES BOARD ON MATTERS ON CONSENT AND MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

 
None. 
 
 
 
Consent Calendar: 
 
9   Motion: Approving the Minutes for the September 16, 2015  Quarterly Retirement 

Board Meeting (MCEG). (Bonnel) 
 
10. Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended September 

30, 2015 for the Salaried Pension Plan (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). 
(Bernegger) 

 
11. Resolution: Adopting Regional Transit Retirement Boards 2016 Meeting Calendar 

(ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Director Mattos moved to adopt Items 9 and 10. Director Masui seconded the motion. Items 9 
and 10 were carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Mattos, Masui, and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
Item 11 was pulled off of the consent calendar for questions. 
 
Item 11: Director Mattos asked if placing a Special Meeting on the calendar in advance as a part 
of the regular agenda makes it a regular meeting instead of a Special Meeting. Legal Counsel 
Shayna van Hoften with Hanson Bridgett noted that these dates are on the agenda in order to 
save the dates and that she will look into his question.  
 
Director Mattos moved to adopt Item 11. Director Masui seconded the motion. Item 11 was 
carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Mattos, Masui, and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
 
 



Item 17 

2 

12015928.1 

New Business: 
The order of New Business items was adjusted to ensure all of the items requiring action 
would be addressed in case members had to leave resulting in loss of a quorum.  The 
reordering was: 12-16, 18, 20, 21, 17, 19. 
 
12. Information Fiduciary Training provided by Hanson Bridgett (ALL). 
 
Donna Bonnel introduced Lance Kjeldgaard, fiduciary counsel contracted through the board’s 
Legal Counsel, Hanson Bridgett LLP to provide a fiduciary responsibility and liability training. 
 
Alternate Thorn left the meeting at 10:04 a.m.  
 
IBEW Alternate Gallow left the meeting at 10:04 a.m.    
 
 
13. Information: Investment Performance Review by Dimensional Fund Advisors (DFA) for 

the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Retirement Funds for  the International 
Emerging Markets Asset Class for the Quarter Ended September 30, 2015 
(ALL). (Bernegger) 

 
Jamie Adelman introduced Ted Simpson from DFA, who provided the performance results for 
the quarter ended September 30, 2015 for the international emerging markets asset class. 
 
AEA Retirement Board Director Bennett noted that he would like a list of the stocks that are 
owned in the portfolio. Mr. Simpson noted that he would send the list to Brent Bernegger to 
distribute to the Boards. 
 
14. Information: Investment Performance Review of the S&P 500 Index and MSCI EAFE 

Funds by State Street Global Advisors (SSgA) for the ATU/IBEW and 
Salaried Employee Retirement Funds for the Quarter Ended September 30, 
2015 (ALL). (Bernegger) 

 
Jamie Adelman introduced Linda Ng from State Street Global Advisors, who presented the 
performance results for the Domestic Large Capitalization and International Equity Index Funds 
for the quarter ended September 30, 2015. 
 
AEA Director Bennett remarked that the Boards may want to modify having reports from index 
funds provided during the meeting.  
 
Legal Counsel Shayna van Hoften with Hanson Bridgett noted that the fiduciary training 
provided earlier discussed the duty of care and being a prudent expert and the Boards’ need to 
hear from all fund managers to be in a position to consider whether or not they are serving their 
purpose.  
 
15. Motion: Receive and File the Investment Performance Results for the ATU/IBEW 

and Salaried Employee Retirement Plans for the Quarter Ended September 
30, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger) 

 
Jamie Adelman introduced Ann Heaphy and Uvan Tseng from Callan Associates, who provided 
a market overview for the Quarter Ended September 30, 2015. 
 



Item 17 

3 

12015928.1 

Director Mattos moved to adopt Item 15. Director Masui seconded the motion. Item 18 was 
carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Mattos, Masui, and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
16. Resolution: Authorizing Execution of Plan Trust Documents (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel provided information on the request to authorize the execution of plan trust 
documents. Ms. Bonnel noted that the plan trust documents were distributed to each Retirement 
Board Chair electronically. 
 
AEA Retirement Board Director Bennett asked if the trust language presented for approval 
would result in losing the right to buy securities directly (Section 3.3) and if the Boards would be 
limited to investing in firms with a national reputation (Section 3.6). Director Bennett also asked 
if both points are in the final trust document the board is being asked to approve. Legal Counsel 
Anne Hydorn with Hanson Bridgett responded that both issues were addressed in the trust 
document and the boards would be able to invest with firms of regional reputation and would not 
lose the ability to directly invest.  
 
Director Mattos moved to adopt Item 16. Director Masui seconded the motion. Item 16 was 
carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Mattos, Masui, and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
18. Resolution: Adopting Procurement Policy and Procedures (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel stated that an updated version of the Procurement Policy and Procedures was 
distributed at each board member’s seat on the dais because some changes were made since 
distribution of the board packet, and that this revised version was the document recommended 
by staff for adoption. 
 
Ms. Bonnel introduced Valerie Weekly to provide an update on the changes to the document. 
Valerie Weekly noted that the language provided in the prior version allowed for the Finance 
Department or Human Resources Department to complete some of the smaller procurements 
without going through the Procurement Department. The updated version reflects that all 
procurements will go through the Procurement Department.    
 
Director Mattos moved to approve Item 18 for adoption of the resolution and updated 
attachment provided at the meeting. Director Masui seconded the motion. Item 18 was carried 
unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Mattos, Masui, and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
20. Resolution: Adopting Policy on Allocation of Staff Costs (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel presented Jamie Adelman and Valerie Weekly to provide information on adopting 
a policy on the  allocation of staff costs.  
 
Jamie Adelman noted that in March 2015, Staff presented issue papers on the roles and 
responsibilities of various District staff related to the tasks associated with the overall 
administration of RT’s Pension Plans. In June, Staff began tracking times associated with 
performance of those responsibilities. Staff also completed benchmarking on various similarly 
sized pension plans and determined the total number of staff needed to manage similarly sized 
plans.  
 
Staff contacted Cheiron to see what the implications of charging additional administrative cost to 
the plans might be. Ms. Adelman noted that there would be no impact on staff members’ 
employment status, employer identification, nor the funded status of any plan. There also would 



Item 17 

4 

12015928.1 

be no increase in employee contributions. The administrative costs are attributed to each plan 
after the contribution of the normal cost, which is what the employees contribute.   
 
Based on the benchmarking results, Staff proposes that the Boards adopt the Policy on 
Allocation of Staff Costs. 
 
ATU Retirement Board Director Niz asked how long the $25,000 per quarter would be charged. 
Ms. Adelman responded that the cost allocation would continue for the rest of the life of the 
Plans.  MCEG Retirement Board Director Mattos asked if the cost would be reflected as an 
increased expense when the actuarial contribution rate is determined. Ms. Adelman responded 
in the affirmative. 
 
Director Mattos moved to adopt Item 20. Director Masui seconded the motion. Item 20 was 
carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Mattos, Masui, and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
21. Resolution: Adopting Qualified Domestic Relations Order (QDRO) Policy and 

Procedure (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Valerie Weekly presented information on adopting a policy for processing QDROs.  
 
Legal Counsel has advised that it is in the best interest of the Retirement Plans and their 
participants for the Retirement Boards to adopt procedures that will help Staff efficiently and 
effectively process and implement the domestic relations orders it receives.  
 
Legal Counsel and Staff recommend that all of the Boards adopt the proposed policy and 
procedures for processing QDROs. 
  
AEA Retirement Board Director Drake asked about the process if someone seeks a QDRO and 
the member in question is part of two different plans. Ms. Weekly confirmed that the QDRO has 
to address both plans, and both have to be named in the court records.   
 
Director Mattos moved to adopt Item 21. Director Masui seconded the motion. Item 21 was 
carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Mattos, Masui, and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
17. Information: Implementation of Electronic Distribution of Quarterly Retirement Board 

Packages (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel introduced Valerie Weekly to present information on the implementation of 
electronic distribution of quarterly retirement board packages.  
 
Valerie Weekly noted that Staff has reviewed the current processes associated with the collation 
and distribution of the agenda packages for Quarterly and Special Retirement Board Meetings 
and has determined that there is the opportunity for potential cost and time savings by adopting 
an electronic distribution process similar to that of RT’s governing Board. Staff anticipates 
having the changes in place for the March 2016 Quarterly Retirement Board Meeting. 
  
ATU Retirement Board Director Niz asked if the board packages would still be available five or 
so days prior to the board meeting. Ms. Weekly noted that staff expects the time frame to 
remain the same.  
 
19. Information: Update on Roles and Responsibilities for Pension Administration (ALL). 

(Bonnel) 



Item 17 

5 

12015928.1 

 
Donna Bonnel provided an update on the roles and responsibilities of various District staff 
members and Legal Counsel related to the administration of the Pension Plans. 
 
Legal Counsel Shayna van Hoften with Hanson Bridgett outlined the accomplishments of the 
Retirement Boards in 2015. 
 
REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES 
 
None. 
 
REPORTS, IDEAS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
None. 
 
With no further business to discuss MCEG Retirement Board meeting was adjourned by 
Assistant Secretary Bonnel at 11:11 a.m. 
 
 
 
 
 

    ________________________________________ 
    Roger Thorn, Chair 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
Alane Masui, Secretary 
 
 
 
By:___________________________________ 
      Donna Bonnel, Assistant Secretary 



CONSENT 
CALENDAR 

 
Agenda Item 18 

MCEG 
 

Please refer to 
Agenda Item 2 

AEA 



CONSENT 
CALENDAR 

 
Agenda Item 19 

MCEG 
 

Please refer to 
Agenda Item 3 

AEA 



CONSENT 
CALENDAR 

 
Agenda Item 20 

MCEG 
 

Please refer to 
Agenda Item 4 

AEA 
 



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 1 of 1
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

03/16/16 Retirement Information 01/29/16

Subject: Investment Performance Review by JP Morgan for the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Funds
for the International Equity Asset Class for the Quarter Ended December 31, 2015
(ALL). (Bernegger)

Approved: Presented:

Final 02/26/16
Chief Financial Officer, Acting Senior Accountant

ISSUE

Investment Performance Review by JP Morgan for the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Funds for the
International Equity Asset Class for the Quarter Ended December 31, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger)

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Information only.

FISCAL IMPACT

None.

DISCUSSION

Retirement funds are invested consistent with the Statement of Investment Objectives and Policy
Guidelines (Policy) adopted by each Retirement Board (Board). The Board shall meet at least
every eighteen (18) months with each investment manager to review the performance of its
investment, the adherence to the Policy, and any material changes to its organization.  The Policy
also establishes the Retirement Funds’ asset allocation policy and the asset classes in which the
Plans funds are invested.  The asset classes established by the Policy are (1) Domestic Large
Capitalization Equity, (2) Domestic Small Capitalization Equity, (3) International Equity, (4)
International Emerging Markets, and (5) Domestic Fixed-Income.

JP Morgan is one of the Retirement Boards’ International Equity fund managers. JP Morgan will
be presenting performance results for the quarter ended December 31, 2015, shown in
Attachment 1, and answering any questions.

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
21



FOR INSTITUTIONAL/WHOLESALE/PROFESSIONAL CLIENTS AND QUALIFIED INVESTORS ONLY | NOT FOR RETAIL USE OR DISTRIBUTION 

STRICTLY PRIVATE | CONFIDENTIAL 

J.P. Morgan EAFE Plus Strategy 

Portfolio Performance Review | March 2016 

JAdelman
Text Box
Attachment #1



1   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

Executive Summary 
Process 

 Process pushes us towards faster growing companies with strong balance sheets at an attractive valuation 

 Alpha is targeted from identifying stronger profitability than market estimates, together with rerating potential 

 Avoiding the structural “destroyers of capital” should add alpha over time 

Performance 

 Our focus on growth, quality and valuation underpinned a period of out-performance beginning in the second quarter of 2007 through 2012.  

 Over time, we believe our focus on growth, quality and valuation will generate superior results  

 The strategy however, has struggled in periods when speculative pressures cause markets to disconnect from fundamentals.  

- 1st 4 months of 2013: Post Abe’s election, low-quality, ex-growth, domestic-facing Japanese names soared, though to this day, Japan’s economy continues to flirt with 

recession 

- Q1 2014: European peripheral stocks re-rated sharply despite their low quality and a lack of earnings. 

- Q3 2015: Concerns about the Fed raising rates and a sell-off in Chinese equities triggered a global market rout, prompting a flight to ‘expensive defensives’ and a sell-off of 

cyclicals and companies exposed to EM 

Positioning 

 Concerns about the global economy have prompted investors to bid up the valuations of companies with relative earnings visibility to levels that we would consider over priced   

 The portfolio remains positioned for a market characterized by moderate but continued economic growth. We are finding value in companies, that have worked to improve 

efficiency and, consequently, possess significant operating leverage. These companies will require a bit more top-line growth to realize their full potential but  should benefit as 

the recovery broadens out 

 In this respect, there are encouraging signs : the European economic recovery is gaining breadth and domestic demand in the US remains solid. This should, should allow for 

growth to become more diversified, sectorally. In the emerging world, China’s economy is decelerating, but even  as “old” manufacturing industries show signs of withering, 

others more service/consumer oriented industries are rising up to take their place. 

 While we have undertaken a series of transactions to take advantage of price movements over the last 12 months, there has been little change to portfolio positioning, which 

continues to be a function of high conviction positions driven by bottom up stock selection 

 

 

Past performance is not indicative of future results. 



2   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

Investment Philosophy 

What we believe 

 Well managed companies experiencing stronger growth than peers with attractive valuations will outperform over a 

market cycle 

What we do 

 Leverage the insights of both regional teams and global sector specialists.  We diversify both sector and country risk, 

seeking to deliver alpha through active stock selection 

What we seek to deliver 

 Portfolios of high conviction holdings, focusing on quality, sustainable earnings and valuations 

The manager seeks to achieve the stated objectives. There can be no guarantee the objectives will be met. 



3   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

What we look for 

Valuation 

• Attractive multiples 

• Versus peers, history, and 
growth rate 

• Potential to re-rate 

Growth 

• Revenue opportunity 

• Margin expansion 

• Earnings growth  > market 
expectations 

Quality 

• Competitive position 

• Management 

• Sound capital structure 

Faster growing companies with strong quality credentials purchased at attractive valuations will out-

perform over a market cycle…Our research focuses on three key factors: 

For illustrative purposes only 



4   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

EAFE Plus: Portfolio characteristics reflect adherence to our philosophy (1) 

Source: JPMAM, characteristics of a representative account in the EAFE Plus composite 

12/31/2015 12/31/2012 12/31/2009 12/31/2007 12/31/2005 12/31/2003 

EAFE Plus Benchmark EAFE Plus Benchmark EAFE Plus Benchmark EAFE Plus Benchmark EAFE Plus Benchmark EAFE Plus Benchmark 

Historic sales 

growth (5 yr) 
6.4% 5.1% 6.4% 3.5% 9.6% 8.3% 12.0% 9.8% 6.0% 6.1% 10.4% 9.7% 

Historic EPS  

growth (5 yr) 
8.6% 6.4% 3.4% 0.3% 7.1% 6.0% 24.5% 24.6% 13.3% 12.1% 7.6% 8.5% 

Operating margin 19.1% 16.2% 18.9% 16.7% 15.9% 14.1% 16.5% 15.7% 17.3% 15.9% 14.6% 13.0% 

Return on Equity 15.4% 15.3% 17.7% 15.9% 14.4% 11.4% 19.5% 19.4% 19.3% 17.0% 15.3% 13.0% 

Return on Invested 

Capital 
10.4% 10.2% 10.7% 9.8% 9.0% 8.0% 14.7% 13.2% 12.0% 11.1% 9.7% 8.3% 

LT Debt / capital 30.5% 32.9% 29.1% 33.5% 31.3% 34.0% 25.4% 29.9% 35.8% 38.5% 32.6% 36.2% 

Price / earnings  

(1 yr forward) 
15.1x 15.5x 12.1x 12.7x 15.5x 15.3x 13.6x 13.8x 14.8x 15.4x 15.7x 17.5x 

Price / earnings  

(2 yr forward) 
13.9x 14.5x 11.1x 11.6x 12.8x 13.4x 12.5x 12.8x 13.5x 14.2x 14.2x 15.6x 

Faster  

Growth 

Higher  

Profitability 

Attractive 

Valuation 

Less  

Debt 



5   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

J. P. Morgan EAFE Plus: A stable, experienced team 

Portfolio Managers 

Neil Gregson 

Hugo 

Alexander  
(Non-banks) 

Tom Murray 

Marc 

Gration 

(S-ware,Svcs) 

Peter Kirkman 

Chris 

Korpan 

(Materials) 

Sam 

Witherow  

(Energy) 

James 

Andrew  

(Discretionary) 

Niranjan 

Aiyagari 

(Industrials) 

Jeremy 

Kelton 
(Banks) 

Shane Duffy 

Paul 

Neoh 

 (H-ware, Tcom) 

Stuart  

Price 

(Staples) 

Global Sector Specialists and Research Cluster Heads 

Premal 

Pajwani 

(Healthcare) 

Average years industry experience1: 18; Average years with firm1:  10 

Resources Cyclicals Financials Consumer 

Regional Teams 

 199 regional investment professionals 

Located around the world 

Managing local portfolios 

Average years industry experience:  13 

Average years with firm:  8 

Tim 

Leask 

Kit 

Rodrigo 

Client Portfolio Managers 

Tim 

Devlin 

Nigel  

Emmett 

Average years industry experience:  21 

Average years with firm:  10 

Jason 

Castelluccio 

Shane 

Duffy 

 

James 

Fisher 

Lead PM  
 

Tom  

Murray 

International 

Experience 

• Industry: 30 

• Firm: 30 

Experience 

• Industry: 16 

• Firm: 16 

Experience 

• Industry: 18 

• Firm: 18 

As of December 31, 2015.  Regional team experience shown as of September 30, 2015.  There can be no assurance that the professionals currently employed by J.P. Morgan Asset Management will 

continue to be employed by J.P. Morgan Asset Management or that the past performance or success of any such professional serves as an indicator of such professional's future performance or 

success.  



6   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

Investment process – three resources working collaboratively to deliver alpha 

Regional Teams 
Global Sector 

Specialists 
Portfolio Managers 

 Deep stock level insights from 

experienced investors & analysts 

 Output: research, ideas, company 

meetings, portfolio positioning 

 Extensive and valuable internal 

network 

 Harness regional team insights 

 Identify long term themes and 

value drivers 

 Evaluate stocks in Growth, 

Quality, Valuation framework 

 Fair value analysis drives stock 

ranks (A – D) 

 Help direct and manage the GSS 

research agenda 

 Own buy and sell decisions in 

portfolios 

 Portfolio construction 

 

For illustrative purposes only 



7   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

Our investment process 

Having our own “feet on the ground” around the globe is a powerful competitive advantage 

 

 

As of June 30, 2015 

EMAP Team 

 102 professionals 

 AUM $90 billion 

European Team 

 38 Professionals 

 AUM $37 billion 

US  Team 

 59 professionals 

 AUM $245 billion 

 Our information edge comes from 

– a strong local presence, with analysis of universe undertaken regionally 

– experienced and stable investment teams 

– investment processes relevant to local markets 

 Output from regional teams  

– Company meetings and updates 

– Regular communication and ongoing relationships with Global team 

– Portfolios: Stock actives and transactions 



8   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

Our investment process 

Global Sector Specialists: Research Clusters 

 

 

As of September 30, 2014. There can be no assurance that the professionals currently employed by J.P. Morgan Asset Management will continue to be employed by J.P. Morgan Asset Management or 

that the past performance or success of any such professional serves as an indicator of such professional's future performance or success. 

Consumer 

Cyclicals 

Financials 

Resources 

Shane Duffy — Portfolio manager  

James Andrew — Consumer discretionary 

Stuart Price — Consumer staples 

Premal Pajwani – Healthcare 

Tom Murray — Portfolio manager 

Niranjan Aiyagari — Industrials 

Marc Gration — Software, IT, business services, chemicals 

Paul Neoh — Hardware and telecoms 

Peter Kirkman— Portfolio manager  

Jeremy Kelton — Financials - banks 

Hugo Alexander — Financials - non banks 

Neil Gregson — Portfolio manager  

Christopher Korpan – Materials 

Sam Witherow — Energy 

 Enables idea generation through setting and 
management of research agenda 

 

 Ensures research is relevant and consistent 

 

 Facilitates sharing of best practice and 
collaborative work 



9   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

Our investment process 

Global Sector Specialists 

Their remit 

 Deep global sector knowledge balanced with detailed stock level analysis 

 Provide PMs with a universe of high conviction well-researched stock ideas through their ranks (A to D) 

 

Their resources 

 Access to local insights from regional investment teams: regional teams’ portfolios and transactions, highly interactive 

dialogue, intranet enabled research database 

 Company meetings  

 External research sources – sell side research, industry experts 

Their advantage 

 Balance of local insight with global industry knowledge 

 Focus on major value drivers over longer-term horizon rather than maintenance research 

 Consistent investment criteria shaped by daily interaction with PMs 

 



10   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

Anne Marden MBA, CFA (28) 

Victoria Darbyshire, CFA (10) 
Laurence McGrath (17) 

Daphne Karydas (19) 

Dr. Charles Silberstein (19) 

Holly Fleiss (9) 

Dr Matthew Cohen, MBA (17) 

 

Nobuaki Sawada, CMA (24) 

Atena Lu (1) 

(x) = x Years industry experience as at end March 2014. There can be no assurance that the professionals currently employed by J.P. Morgan Asset 

Management will continue to be employed by J.P. Morgan Asset Management or that the past performance or success of any such professional serves as an 

indicator of such professional's future performance or success. 

Global Sector Specialists – leveraging the internal network 

US 

Europe 

Japan 

Premal Pajwani – Healthcare 

Global Sector Specialist 

10 



11   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

Our investment process 

Portfolio construction 

 

 

The manager seeks to achieve the stated objectives. There can be no guarantee that the objective will be met. 

 Focus on highest conviction (A&B ranked)  ideas from the research 

platform 

 Look for balance of growth, quality and valuation 

 Emphasize active share 

 

 Emphasize stock specific risk 

 Focus on uncorrelated high conviction ideas 

 Avoid single factor bets. Manage sector and region deviations 

Capture alpha 

 Change to fundamental thesis 

 Valuation no longer attractive 

 A more attractive opportunity exists 

Diversify risk 

Sell discipline 



12   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

Stock example: Anheuser Busch InBev 

Peer group comparison 

 Global sector specialist analyzes industry trends 

 Compares growth, quality and valuation metrics across sector 

 Ranks stock versus global peers 

 

Source: Factset, J. P. Morgan Asset Management. December 31, 2012 

The companies showed above are illustrative and discussion purposes only. 

It should not be assumed that recommendations made in the future will be 

profitable or will equal the performance of the securities listed above.  

Investment Process 

 Leading global brewer 

 Owned and supported by regional team 

 Global rank ‘A’ 

 
Investment Thesis 

 Superior management with a strong track 

record executing integrations 

 Strong market position in Europe and LatAm. 

Adding US dominance with AB deal. 

 Cash flow sufficient to service debt and asset 

sales to be accelerated to strengthen balance 

sheet. 

 Attractive valuation versus global peers 

ABI SABMiller Heineken Kirin Tsingtao 

EM growth   

 

  

 

 

 

 

Consolidator  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Market position  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Margin 

improvement 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Balance sheet  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Valuation  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Global Rank A B C D C 

STRICTLY PRIVATE | CONFIDENTIAL  



13   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

Our investment process 

Portfolio construction 

 

 

The manager seeks to achieve the stated objectives. There can be no guarantee that the objective will be met. 

 Capture and preserve alpha from regional teams and global sector 

specialists 

 

 Own stocks which are strongly sponsored 

 

 Ensure no single position can derail performance 

 

 Build portfolios from a large set of uncorrelated positions 

Invest in  

“high conviction” stocks 

Ranked A & B 

 Concentrate majority of risk in stock selection 

 Drive performance by stocks and not by a style, country, sector or 

currency bias 

Apply comprehensive  

risk management 

Achieve consistent,  

competitive performance 

STRICTLY PRIVATE | CONFIDENTIAL  



14   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

Portfolio managers deliver a well diversified portfolio 

As of December 31, 2015 

Geographic and sector exposures driven by bottom-up considerations 

 Source: J.P. Morgan Asset Management, Factset, *Relative to MSCI EAFE Index 

The characteristics above are taken from a representative J.P. Morgan EAFE Plus account.  Actual account characteristics may differ.  The manager seeks to achieve the stated objective.  There can be 

no guarantee it will be achieved.  

Difference 
Emerging 

Markets 

United 

Kingdom 

Europe ex 

UK 
Japan 

Pacific ex 

Japan 

Cons. Discretionary 1.2 1.7 0.6 -0.1 -1.4 0.4 

Consumer Staples -2.4 0.0 0.2 -2.1 0.1 -0.6 

Energy -0.2 0.8 -0.3 -1.0 0.6 -0.3 

Financials 2.7 3.3 1.6 0.7 -1.4 -1.5 

Health Care 1.1 0.0 -2.0 4.1 -0.6 -0.5 

Industrials -1.8 0.0 -0.3 -4.6 3.9 -0.8 

Information Technology 3.7 2.5 0.9 0.7 -0.3 -0.1 

Materials 0.2 0.0 -0.2 -0.1 -0.1 0.7 

Telecom Services -1.6 0.0 1.1 -2.0 -0.3 -0.4 

Utilities -3.7 0.0 -0.9 -1.7 -0.6 -0.6 

Cash 0.8 

8.4 0.7 -6.1 -0.1 -3.7 

STRICTLY PRIVATE | CONFIDENTIAL  



15   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

Our investment process 

Idea Generation and Discussion 

 

 

The manager seeks to achieve the stated objectives. There can be no guarantee that the objective will be met. 

Regional Teams 
Global Sector 

Specialists 
Portfolio Managers 

 Provide local stock market 

insights 

 Manage regional portfolios 

 Generate high conviction stock 

ideas for further analysis 

 Act as clearing house for 

regional insights 

 Build on local market 

analysis 

 Identify industry winners 

globally 

 Rank stocks A – D 

 Construct risk controlled 

portfolios 

 Capture best ideas from within 

the firm 

 Emphasize bottom-up stock 

picking 

Working collaboratively to exploit breadth 

STRICTLY PRIVATE | CONFIDENTIAL  



FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

Performance analysis 



17   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

SACRT Portfolio market values and fees 

Source: JPMAM 

Note: Withdrawals or additional contributions to the account are not shown. 

  

 Ending Balance   Fees  

1Q 2015 22,034,507 38,139 

2Q 2015 24,174,877 42,366 

3Q 2015 21,188,128 39,613 

4Q 2015 22,227,405 39,477 

 Contributions 

(Withdrawals) 

April, 2015 1,771,294 



18   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

Market environment and sector performance 

12 months ending December 31, 2015 (%) 

 

5.8 
9.1 

-2.2 

10.3 

-0.8 
-5.4 

-0.4 

0.1 

-7.5 

9.9 

-8.4 

-14.6 

 EAFE  Europe ex UK  UK  Japan  Pacific ex Japan  Emerging Markets

Local currency Base currency (USD)

9.2 8.3 4.8 4.3 2.1 0.3 

-2.4 -4.7 

-16.5 -17.9 

C
o

n
s
u
m

e
r 

S
ta

p
le

s

H
e

a
lt
h
 C

a
re

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
T

e
c
h
n

o
lo

g
y

T
e
le

c
o
m

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

C
o

n
s
u
m

e
r

D
is

c
re

ti
o
n
a

ry

In
d
u
s
tr

ia
ls

F
in

a
n
c
ia

ls

U
ti
lit

ie
s

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

E
n
e
rg

y

Sectors (USD, %)  

Regions/Countries (%) 

MSCI EAFE GDR 
Source: J. P. Morgan Asset Management, Factset 



19   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

As of December 31, 2015 

SACRT Performance 

Annualised returns in US$  

Source: JPMAM, Factset:  *Annualized 

Past performance is not a guarantee of comparable future results. Total return assumes reinvestment of income. Performance results are gross of investment management fees. The deduction of an 

advisory fee reduces an investor’s return.  

-0.9 

-8.1 

-1.6 

3.6 4.0 

9.0 

0.3 

-3.8 
-5.9 

-0.4 

5.5 
4.1 

8.3 

-0.7 

-4.2 
-6.0 

-0.8 

5.0 
3.6 

7.8 

-1.2 

-15

-10

-5

0

5

10

15

20

12 months ending
6/30/15

6 months 1 Year 3 Years* 5 Years* 7 Years* SI (10/31/07)

SACRT

MSCI EAFE (GDR)

MSCI EAFE (NDR)

Periods ending December 31, 2015 (%) 



20   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

SACRT 
Performance for the last ten calendar years 

  2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

SACRT -41.6 39.0 7.8 -9.7 21.2 18.1 -4.3 -1.6 

 MSCI EAFE GDR -43.1 32.5 8.2 -11.7 17.9 23.3 -4.5 -0.4 

  Excess Return 2.6 4.9 -0.4 2.3 2.8 -4.2 0.2 -1.3 

Calendar year returns (%) 

Source: JPMAM. Gross excess return is calculated geometrically, in USD. Past performance is not an indication of future performance. Performance is shown gross of fees. This means that the actual 

performance will be less than that shown as Gross Performance does not reflect the effect on performance of fees and charges associated with investment in this strategy.  

-4.0 

-0.2 
-1.6 

1.8 
1.0 

-2.4 

0.2 

Jan-Apr '13 May-Dec'13 Q1'14 Q2-Q4'14 1H'15 Q3'15 Q4'15

Excess returns^: 2013 -2015 

^calculated geometrically vs. MSCI EAFE (GDR) 



STRICTLY PRIVATE | CONFIDENTIAL 

21   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

Developed market companies with high revenue exposure to emerging economies have 
lagged the broader EAFE Index 

Performance of top 300 developed market listed companies with the highest emerging market (EM) exposure 

(defined by MSCI), and against the MSCI EAFE standard benchmark.  

 

Source : MSCI Economic Exposure index, 5 years ending December 31, 2015 performance, rebased to 100, gross, in USD. Indices do not include fees or operating expenses and are not available for actual 

investment. Past performance is not an indication of future performance. 

 

70

80

90

100

110

120

130

EAFE Standard EAFE WITH EM EXPOSURE Standard (Large+Mid Cap) Economic Exposure



22   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

Our emerging market listed holdings held up relatively well 

Performance attribution of emerging market holdings for calendar year 2015 

Source: JPMAM, FactSet. Data is based on a representative account for the EAFE PLUS strategy. 

Attribution analysis is designed to be indicative of the sources of excess returns. Figures may not add up to actual performance.  Performance data quoted represents past performance and does not 

guarantee future results. The companies/securities above are shown for illustrative purposes only. Their inclusion should not be interpreted as a recommendation to buy or sell. 

… during calendar year 2015, our EM holdings, on average, declined by 1% versus a 14.6% decline in the 

MSCI Emerging Markets index. 

Stock Sector Stock Return Impact 

HDFC Bank Financials 22 0.20 

China Overseas Land & Investment Financials 21 0.15 

Taiwan Semiconductor Information Technology 4 0.07 

Ping An Insurance Financials 10 0.07 

Naspers  Consumer Discretionary 2 0.03 

Hyundai Mobis Consumer Discretionary -0 0.02 

China Construction Bank Financials -12 -0.04 

ICBC  Financials -13 -0.05 

Pt Astra International Consumer Discretionary -25 -0.11 

Samsung Electronics Information Technology -12 -0.15 

CNOOC Energy -18 -0.15 



23   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

SACRT 
Notable contrast between 12m to 6/30/15 and 2H 2015 

Source: JPMAM, Factset 

Performance data quoted represents past performance and does not guarantee future results. 

 

(o) Indicates portfolio was  (on average) overweight the sector or region during the period; (u) indicates it was underweight; (n) indicates a neutral position (i.e. within 0.5% of the benchmark) 

Attribution analysis is designed to be indicative of the sources of excess returns. Figures may not add up to actual performance 

Stock 

Selection (%) Allocation (%) Impact (%) 

Financials (u) 2.62 0.02 2.64 

Industrials (u) 0.61 -0.02 0.59 

Health Care (o) 0.45 0.07 0.52 

Cons. Staples (u) 0.47 -0.03 0.44 

Utilities (u) -0.11 0.29 0.18 

Materials (o) 0.29 -0.19 0.10 

Energy (n) 0.28 -0.21 0.08 

Telecom Services (u) 0.21 -0.17 0.04 

Information Tech. (o) -0.26 0.17 -0.08 

Cons. Discretionary (o) -1.55 0.22 -1.33 

12m thru June 30 2015 

Stock 

Selection (%) Allocation (%) Impact (%) 

Europe ex-Uk (u) 1.92 0.00 1.92 

Emerging Markets (o) 0.00 1.15 1.15 

United Kingdom (u) 0.92 -0.02 0.90 

Japan (u) 0.27 -0.37 -0.10 

Pacific Ex Japan (u) -0.86 0.16 -0.70 

Region attribution 

Stock 

Selection (%) Allocation (%) Impact (%) 

Information Tech. (o) 0.25 0.20 0.45 

Cons. Staples (u) 0.12 -0.09 0.04 

Energy (n) -0.04 0.03 -0.01 

Telecom Services (u) -0.01 -0.03 -0.04 

Utilities (u) 0.00 -0.15 -0.15 

Health Care (o) -0.38 0.06 -0.32 

Industrials (u) -0.32 -0.02 -0.34 

Cons. Discretionary (o) -0.41 0.00 -0.41 

Materials (n) -0.59 -0.09 -0.69 

Financials (o) -0.90 -0.06 -0.96 

2H 2015 

Stock 

Selection (%) Allocation (%) Impact (%) 

Japan (u) 0.21 0.04 0.25 

Emerging Markets (o) 0.00 -0.16 -0.16 

Pacific Ex Japan (u) -0.68 0.10 -0.58 

Europe ex-Uk (u) -0.66 -0.01 -0.67 

United Kingdom (n) -1.25 -0.01 -1.26 

Region attribution 

Sector attribution Sector attribution 



24   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

Stock 

Selection 

(%) 

Allocation 

(%) Impact (%) 

Energy (n) 0.44 -0.05 0.39 

Financials (o) 0.38 -0.03 0.35 

Cons. Staples (u) 0.40 -0.11 0.30 

Information Tech. (o) -0.07 0.23 0.16 

Utilities (u) -0.05 0.13 0.07 

Telecom Services (u) 0.00 -0.07 -0.07 

Industrials (u) -0.20 -0.03 -0.23 

Health Care (o) -0.36 0.08 -0.28 

Materials (o) -0.72 -0.15 -0.88 

Cons. Discretionary (o) -1.26 0.07 -1.19 

Cash -- 0.06 0.06 

SACRT performance attribution 

Source: JPMAM, Factset 

Performance data quoted represents past performance and does not guarantee future results. 

(o) Indicates portfolio was  (on average) overweight the sector or region during the period; (u) indicates it was underweight; (n) indicates a neutral position (i.e. within 0.5% of the benchmark) 

Attribution analysis is designed to be indicative of the sources of excess returns. Figures may not add up to actual performance 

12 months ending December 31, 2015 

Sector attribution 

Stock 

Selection (%) Allocation (%) Impact (%) 

Japan (u) 0.34 -0.16 0.18 

Emerging Markets (o) 0.00 0.03 0.03 

Europe ex-Uk (u) -0.44 -0.02 -0.46 

Pacific Ex Japan (u) -0.78 0.31 -0.47 

United Kingdom (n) -0.60 -0.04 -0.64 

Cash -- 0.06 0.06 

Region attribution 

Attribution Summary 

Stock: -1.45 

Alloc.: +0.15 

Total: -1.30 

Benchmark MSCI EAFE 

Attribution Summary 

Stock: -1.48 

Alloc.: +0.18 

Total: -1.30 

Benchmark MSCI EAFE 



25   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

Top contributors and detractors 

Source: JPMAM, Factset. * Not held. 

Performance data quoted represents past performance and does not guarantee future results. Attribution analysis is designed to be indicative of the sources of excess returns. Figures may not add up 

to actual performance, The companies/securities above are shown for illustrative purposes only. Their inclusion should not be interpreted as a recommendation to buy or sell. 

1 Average weight relative to benchmark.  

12 months to December 31, 2015 vs. MSCI EAFE 

Stock attribution 

Top 10 Contributors 
Relative 

Weight (%)1 

Stock Return 

(%) Impact (%) 

Japan Tobacco 1.4 38 0.41 

Banco Santander -0.7* -38 0.33 

Makita  0.9 30 0.22 

Nitto Denko  0.6 33 0.22 

BG Group 1.8 9 0.20 

Axa 0.9 23 0.20 

HDFC Bank 1.0 22 0.20 

SAP 1.2 15 0.19 

WPP 1.4 13 0.19 

Tokyo Electron  0.4 5 0.18 

Top 10 Detractors 
Relative 

Weight (%)1 

Stock Return 

(%) Impact (%) 

Glencore  0.5 -70 -0.46 

Standard Chartered  1.0 -39 -0.40 

Lafargeholcim  0.8 -24 -0.31 

Volkswagen Pref 0.8 -32 -0.30 

Burberry 0.9 -29 -0.28 

Wynn Macau  0.3 -56 -0.24 

Rio Tinto  0.7 -31 -0.22 

Meggitt  0.7 -30 -0.21 

Schneider Electric 1.0 -20 -0.21 

BHP Billiton 0.5 -39 -0.20 



26   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

Top detractors by sector and region 

Portfolio Wt Benchmark Wt. USD Return Contribution 

By Sector 

By Region 

12 months ending December 31, 2015 vs MSCI EAFE (%) 

Portfolio Wt. Benchmark Wt. USD Return Contribution 

Source: JPMAM, FactSet. Data is based on the model portfolio for the Global Focus strategy. Attribution analysis is designed to be indicative of the sources of excess returns. Figures may not add up to 

actual performance. Performance data quoted represents past performance and does not guarantee future results. Should not be interpreted as a recommendation to buy or sell. 

Consumer Discretionary 

     Volkswagen  1.1 0.3 -32 -0.30 

     Burberry 1.0 0.1 -29 -0.28 

     Wynn Macau  0.3 0.0 -56 -0.24 

Materials 

     Glencore  0.7 0.3 -70 -0.46 

     Lafargeholcim  1.0 0.2 -24 -0.31 

     Rio Tinto  1.2 0.5 -31 -0.22 

United Kingdom 

     Glencore  0.7 0.3 -70 -0.46 

     Standard Chartered  1.2 0.3 -39 -0.40 

     Burberry  1.0 0.1 -29 -0.28 

Pacific ex-Japan 

     BHP Billiton 1.3 0.5 -39 -0.32 

     Wynn Macau. 0.3 0.0 -56 -0.24 

      Meggitt  0.8 0.0 -30 -0.21 



27   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

Top contributors by sector and region 

Portfolio Wt Benchmark Wt. USD Return Contribution 

By Sector 

By Region 

Quarter ending December 31, 2015 vs MSCI EAFE (%) 

Portfolio Wt. Benchmark Wt. USD Return Contribution 

Source: JPMAM, FactSet. Data is based on the model portfolio for the Global Focus strategy. Attribution analysis is designed to be indicative of the sources of excess returns. Figures may not add up to 

actual performance. Performance data quoted represents past performance and does not guarantee future results. Should not be interpreted as a recommendation to buy or sell. 

Energy 

     BG Group 2.2 0.4 9 0.20 

     Royal Dutch Shell 0.5 1.4 -29 0.17 

     BP Not Held 0.9 -13 0.10 

Financials 

     Banco Santander  Not Held 0.7 -38 0.33 

     Axa  1.3 0.4 23 0.20 

     HDFC Bank 1.0 0.0 22 0.20 

Japan 

     Japan Tobacco  1.7 0.3 38 0.41 

     Makita  0.9 0.0 30 0.22 

     Nitto Denko  0.7 0.1 33 0.22 



STRICTLY PRIVATE | CONFIDENTIAL 

28   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

Our large cap portfolio reflects the evolution in the investment landscape with 
globally diversified sources of revenue 

As of December 31, 2015 

Source: J.P. Morgan Asset Management, Factset, J.P. Morgan Quant, MSCI, Thomson/Reuters, revenue exposure estimates as of as of 3/31/2015. 
Based on an EAFE Plus representative account. 

Pacific 
including 

Japan 
31% 

Emerging 
Markets 

9% 

Europe 
60% 

By region of listing 

Europe 
28% 

US 
19% 

Emerging 
Markets 

35% 

Other 
18% 

By revenue contribution 



FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

Our perspectives on the market 



30   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

Following on from a period of relatively subdued volatility, the spike in volatility in Q3 2015 
approached levels last seen in Q3 2011… 

Source: J.P.Morgan Asset  Management, Bloomberg as at December 2015.  

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Dec-2010 Dec-2011 Dec-2012 Dec-2013 Dec-2014 Dec-2015

VIX Index, volatility level

VIX Index, volatility level 



31   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

Jan-95 Jan-98 Jan-01 Jan-04 Jan-07 Jan-10 Jan-13

Ec
o

n
o

m
ic

 P
o

lic
y 

U
n

ce
rt

ai
n

ty
 In

d
ex

 f
o

r 
C

h
in

a 
… as policy uncertainty in China reached extreme levels 

Source: JPMorgan Asset Management, Morgan Stanley as at 30th September 2015  



32   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

Clear divergence in economic momentum between the developed and developing 
worlds 



33   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

6.2

3.1

4.8

6.2

3.3

1.3

3.2

1.0

3.1

5.0

6.3

3.4

-0.4

2.5

1.7
1.9

4.6

1.9

1.1

3.3

1.6

Eurozone UK Japan US EM Asia Global

2013F 2014F 2015F

While emerging economic growth has slowed, they continue to enjoy stronger 
growth than their developed peers 

Source: JPMAM 



STRICTLY PRIVATE | CONFIDENTIAL 

34   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

EM currency weakness has had a significant impact on the translation of earnings of 
developed market listed stocks 

Performance over the last 5 years 

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

Aug 10 Aug 11 Aug 12 Aug 13 Aug 14 Aug 15

MSCI Emerging Markets MSCI World

Index 100 = August 2010 % 

Source: Bloomberg, MSCI. Data shown in USD. As of end November 2015 

EM Equity Weight REER Ratio – Back to ’98 levels 

85

90

95

100

105

110

115

120

Jan 97Jan 99Jan 01Jan 03Jan 05Jan 07Jan 09Jan 11Jan 13Jan 15

EM Reer Ratio

Source: J.P. Morgan Asset Management, data as of end November 2015. 



35   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

Real Supply Index* vs GDP range 

%oya, smoothed %oya 

Real Demand Index* vs historical GDP range 

China: A slowing economy consistent with a 5% run rate 

Source: NBS, JPMAM calculations 

Data as of August 2015 

Amid unreliable official GDP readings, our growth proxies show weak but stable Chinese growth 

Source: NBS, JPMAM calculations 

Data as of August 2015 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

2000 2001 2003 2004 2006 2007 2009 2010 2012 2013 2015

%oya, smoothed %oya 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

-10

-5

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

2000 2001 2003 2005 2006 2008 2010 2011 2013 2015

*Real Demand Index = .35*real retail sales+.1* residential floor space sold+.1*auto sales 

+.35*real FAI +.1*real exports 

*Real Supply Index = .2*real industrial output+.1* crude steel production+.1*cement 

production +.6*electricity production 



36   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

GTM–UK |

Imports

-1

0

1

2

'11 '12 '13 '14 '15

Change year on year

China economic indicators

Source: (Top and bottom left, top right) FactSet, National Bureau of Statistics of China, J.P Morgan Asset Management. (Bottom right) Soufun, 

J.P. Morgan Asset Management. Guide to the Markets - UK. Data as of 31 December 2015.

China industrial production, retail and auto sales Manufacturing and services components of GDP

External account Top 100 cities property prices 
Change month on month

31

%

G
lo

b
a
l 
e
co

n
o
m

y

Services

Manufacturing

%

Auto sales (rhs)

Retail sales (lhs)

Industrial production (lhs)

Change month on month, three-month moving average 12-month moving average, % of nominal GDP

%
%

%
Exports



37   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

Average months of inventory 41 cities sales volume (ex. Harbin) 

China: Real estate inventory starting to turn amid improving sales volumes 

Source: CPREIS, UBS estimates. Top 41 cities, excluding Harbin 

Data as of September 2015 

Normalizing inventory levels are a necessary condition to translate sales improvement into new construction 

Weekly average/month 

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

J
u

n
-1

0

S
e
p

-1
0

D
e

c
-1

0

M
a

r-
1
1

J
u

n
-1

1

S
e
p

-1
1

D
e

c
-1

1

M
a

r-
1
2

J
u

n
-1

2

S
e
p

-1
2

D
e

c
-1

2

M
a

r-
1
3

J
u

n
-1

3

S
e
p

-1
3

D
e

c
-1

3

M
a

r-
1
4

J
u

n
-1

4

S
e
p

-1
4

D
e

c
-1

4

M
a

r-
1
5

J
u

n
-1

5

S
e
p

-1
5

Real estate sales volumes 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

J
u
n
-1

0

S
e
p
-1

0

D
e

c
-1

0

M
a

r-
1

1

J
u
n
-1

1

S
e
p
-1

1

D
e

c
-1

1

M
a

r-
1

2

J
u
n
-1

2

S
e
p
-1

2

D
e

c
-1

2

M
a

r-
1

3

J
u
n
-1

3

S
e
p
-1

3

D
e

c
-1

3

M
a

r-
1

4

J
u
n
-1

4

S
e
p
-1

4

D
e

c
-1

4

M
a

r-
1

5

J
u
n
-1

5

Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3

Source: CPREIS, UBS estimates.  

Data as of August 2015 

Inventory levels by city type 



38   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

Emerging economies: The long term story remains intact 

GTM – US | Page 49 

Source: Source: (Left) IMF, J.P. Morgan Asset Management. (Top right) United Nations, J.P. Morgan Asset Management. (Bottom right) IMF World Economic Outlook April 2015, J.P. Morgan Asset 

Management. Urbanisation ratio refers to the proportion of the total population living within an urban area defined by national statistical offices. *Forecast for 2014 from the IMF World Economic 

Outlook April 2015. Data as of 30 September 2015.  



39   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

Attractive valuations of European stocks with higher emerging economy exposure 

Source: J.P. Morgan Asset Management, Morgan Stanley, December 2015. Pan European companies. Eurozone basket consists of Top 50 Eurozone companies excluding Financials with the highest 

domestic revenue exposure (Threshold = ~50% Eurozone exposure). Emerging Market Basket consists of Top 50 European companies with the highest revenue exposure to EM (Threshold = ~57% EM 

exposure). The companies/securities above are shown for illustrative purposes only. Their inclusion should not be interpreted as a recommendation to buy or sell  J.P. Morgan Asset Management may 

or may not hold positions on behalf of its clients in any or all of the aforementioned securities. Past performance is not necessarily a reliable indicator for future performance. 

Emerging Market exposed European companies vs Eurozone exposed companies – Price to Book value 

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

3.5

-70

-50

-30

-10

10

30

Jan-08 Jan-09 Jan-10 Jan-11 Jan-12 Jan-13 Jan-14 Jan-15

% Premium of EM exposed relative to Eurozone exposed companies

EM Exposed companies - Price to Book (rhs)



| GTM – U.S. 

40 

| European recovery 45 

-200%

-150%

-100%

-50%

0%

50%

100%

'06 '07 '08 '09 '10 '11 '12 '13 '14 '15

Source: FactSet, J.P. Morgan Asset Management; (Top left) Markit; (Top and bottom left) Eurostat; (Bottom right) ECB.
Guide to the Markets – U.S. Data are as of December 31, 2015.

Markit PMI and GDP growth in the Eurozone
Markit Composite PMI Index and Eurozone GDP q/q SAAR

Eurozone credit demand
Net % of banks reporting positive loan demand

Stronger loan 

demand

Weaker loan 

demand

3Q15: 

1.5%

Nov. 2015: 

54.2

Eurozone GDP Composite PMI

Eurozone unemployment
Persons unemployed as a percent of labor force, seasonally adjusted

Oct. 2015: 

10.7%

May 2013: 

12.1%In
te

rn
a
tio

n
a
l



41   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

European sales are also picking up strongly which should bring operating leverage into play, 
helping European companies to narrow the margin gap versus their US counterparts 

Source: ECB, Eurostat, FactSet, MSCI, J.P. Morgan Asset Management. Guide to the Markets - Europe. Data as of 31 December 2015. 



42   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

    

STRICTLY PRIVATE | CONFIDENTIAL 



| GTM – U.S. | 

43   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

Japan: Economy and markets 46 

Source: FactSet, J.P. Morgan Asset Management; (Top and bottom left) Japanese Cabinet Office; (Right) Nikkei.
Guide to the Markets – U.S. Data are as of December 31, 2015.

Japanese ¥ per U.S. $ Nikkei 225 Index

Japanese yen and the stock marketJapanese economic growth
Real GDP, y/y % change

Wage growth

Unemployment rate

Japanese labor market
Unemployment, y/y % change in wages 3-month moving average

Nov. 2015: 

3.3%

Oct. 2015: 

0.2%

3Q15: 

1.6%20-yr. average: 0.8%

In
te

rn
a
tio

n
a

l



| GTM – U.S. | 

44   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

US: Most recent activity indicators remain generally positive.  18 

$40

$45

$50

$55

$60

$65

$70

'95 '97 '99 '01 '03 '05 '07 '09 '11 '13 '15

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

22

24

'95 '97 '99 '01 '03 '05 '07 '09 '11 '13

Source: J.P. Morgan Asset Management; (Top left) BEA; (Top and bottom right, bottom left) Census Bureau, FactSet.
Capital goods orders deflated using the producer price index for capital goods with a base year of 2004. November real capital goods orders is an 
advance estimate.
SA – seasonally adjusted. 
Guide to the Markets – U.S. Data are as of December 31, 2015.

Light vehicle sales
Millions, seasonally adjusted annual rate

Average: 15.4

Nov. 2015:

18.1

Nov. 2015:

1,173

Housing starts
Thousands, seasonally adjusted annual rate

Average: 1,331

Real capital goods orders
Non-defense capital goods orders ex-aircraft, USD billions, SA

Average: 56.7

Nov. 2015:

58.2

Manufacturing and trade inventories
Days of sales, SA

Oct. 2015: 

42.0

E
co

n
o

m
y



FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

Portfolio Positioning 



46   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

EAFE PLUS 
Major transactions for 2nd half 2015 

Source: JPMAM; Data is based on a representative account. Holdings and allocations are subject to change at the discretion of the Investment Manager without 

notice. Past performance is not an indication of future performance. The companies/securities above are shown for illustrative purposes only. Their inclusion 

should not be interpreted as a recommendation to buy or sell. 

New purchases 

 Keyence 

 

Absolute sales 

 ABB 

 Nestle 

 Linde 

 Volkswagen 

 

 

Additions 

 KDDI 

 Astellas Pharma 

 Inpex 

 Mitsui Fudosan  

 Accor  

 Lloyds Bank 

 Continental AG 

 Schneider Electric 

 

 

 SMC 

 Tokyo Electron 

 Henkel 

 UBS 

 SMFG 

Reductions 

 ING Groep 

 Fresenius 

 AB Inbev 

 Imperial Tobacco  

 BG Group 

 



47   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

Top 10 over/underweights 

Source: JPMAM. Above examples are for illustrative purposes only, and are not to be considered buy or sell recommendations. 

SACRT as of December 31, 2015 vs. MSCI EAFE 

Top ten underweights Top ten overweights 

Stock 
Portfolio 

Weight (%) 

Benchmark 

Weight (%) 

Relative 

Position (%) 

Sumitomo Mitsui Fin'l Grp 2.2 0.4 1.8 

Vodafone 2.3 0.7 1.6 

Japan Tobacco  1.9 0.3 1.6 

BG Group 2.0 0.4 1.6 

Prudential Plc 2.0 0.5 1.5 

WPP 1.8 0.2 1.5 

Samsung Electronics  1.5 0.0 1.5 

UBS  2.0 0.6 1.4 

Kubota  1.6 0.1 1.4 

SAP  2.0 0.6 1.4 

TOTAL 19.2 3.9 

Stock 
Portfolio 

Weight (%) 

Benchmark 

Weight (%) 

Relative 

Position (%) 

Nestle  0.0 1.9 -1.9 

Royal Dutch Shell  0.0 1.2 -1.2 

CW Bank of Australia 0.0 0.9 -0.9 

GlaxoSmithkline 0.0 0.8 -0.8 

Total SA 0.0 0.8 -0.8 

BP 0.0 0.8 -0.8 

Astrazeneca  0.0 0.7 -0.7 

Daimler  0.0 0.7 -0.7 

Westpac Banking  0.0 0.7 -0.7 

Mitsubishi UFJ Fin'l Grp 0.0 0.7 -0.7 

TOTAL 0.0 9.0 



48   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

Region/country and sector positions 

Absolute/Active sector positions 

As of December 31, 2015 vs. MSCI EAFE 

Absolute/Active region/country positions 

Source: JPMAM, FactSet 

Figures shown above are based on a representative account as of a specific date and are subject to change. For purposes of the regional breakdown, the portfolio’s holdings of HSBC are classified 

under Pacific ex-Japan. 

-3.7 

-2.3 

-1.7 

-1.6 

-0.4 

-0.2 

0.8 

1.2 

1.3 

2.8 

3.8 

-6.0 -4.0 -2.0 0.0 2.0 4.0 6.0

z:Cash

Utilities

Consumer Staples

Industrials

Telecommunication Services

Materials

Energy

Health Care

Consumer Discretionary

Financials

Information Technology

-5.8 

-4.8 

0.8 

0.2 

3.6 

8.5 

Cash

Europe Ex Uk

Pacific Ex Japan

Japan

United Kingdom

Emerging Markets

Portfolio  

weight (%) 

Relative to  

benchmark(%) 

Portfolio  

weight (%) 

Relative to  

benchmark(%) 

8.5 

21.6 

23.7 

6.2 

39.2 

0.8 

9.0 

28.8 

14.5 

13.1 

4.3 

6.0 

3.3 

10.6 

9.6 

0.0 

0.8 



49   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

EAFE Plus: Risk and market cap breakdown 

As of December 31, 2015 vs. MSCI EAFE 

 EAFE Plus MSCI EAFE 

  (%) index (%) 

$0 to $2 bn 0 0 

$2 to $5 bn 1 5 

$5 to $10 bn 4 12 

$10 to $30 bn 22 28 

$30 bn + 73 55 

Market cap breakdown vs. benchmark 

Number of stocks 87 

Predicted tracking error* 2.48 

Active Money 73% 

Source: JPMAM, FactSet, 

Source: Factset, UBS-PAS 

Source: JPMAM, Factset. For a representative account. *As of 11/30/2015.   



50   |   FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

Appendix 



51   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

Biographies – Portfolio Managers  

James Fisher, Managing Director, is a portfolio manager in the Global Equities Team, based in London and responsible for J.P.Morgan EAFE Plus funds. An 

employee since 1985, he was previously based in Hong Kong as a portfolio manager in the Global Group responsible for European markets and prior to this a 

portfolio manager investing in the UK. He joined the company as a trainee portfolio manager. James holds a BA (Hons) in Latin from Reading University and is an 

ASIP and a member of the CFA Institute..  

 

Shane Duffy, Managing Director, is a portfolio manager in the Global Equities Team, based in London.  Shane works on EAFE portfolios, in particular those in the 

Growth and Unconstrained strategies. Previously, Shane worked as a global sector specialist with responsibility for consumer discretionary stocks.  Shane joined 

the team in 1999 as a graduate trainee, holds an MA in History from Cambridge University, and is a CFA charterholder. 

 

Tom Murray, Managing Director, is a portfolio manager in Global Equities Team based in London. Tom works on EAFE portfolios, in particular those in the ACWI 

ex-US and  Unconstrained strategies. An employee since 1996, Tom was previously the Global Sector specialist responsible for the Energy Sector. Tom holds a 

BA (Hons) in Classics from Bristol University and is a CFA charterholder.  

 

 

There can be no assurance that the professionals currently employed by J.P. Morgan Asset Management will continue to be employed by J.P. Morgan Asset Management or that the past performance 

or success of any such professional serves as an indicator of such professional's future performance or success. 



52   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

A stable, experienced investment team  
 

Name Industry Experience (Years) Firm Experience (Years) Experience in current role (Years) 

James Fisher – Lead PM 30 30 22 

Tom Murray 18 18 11 

Shane Duffy 16 16 9 

Average Total – EAFE Plus PM Team 21 21 14 

Name Industry Experience (Years) Firm Experience (Years) Experience in current role (Years) 

 Niranjan Aiyagari 11 7 7 

 Hugo Alexander 23 23 16 

 James Andrew 12 8 8 

 Marc Gration 31 10 10 

 Jeremy Kelton  28 9 9 

 Chris Korpan 11 5 5 

 Paul Neoh 13 13 13 

 Premal Pajwani 24 4 4 

 Stuart Price 18 7 7 

 Sam Witherow 7 7 7 

 Average Total 18 9 9 

Portfolio Managers 

Global Sector Specialists 

As of September 2015. There can be no assurance that the professionals currently employed by J.P. Morgan Asset Management will continue to be employed by J.P. Morgan Asset Management or that the past 

performance or success of any such professional serves as an indicator of such professional's future performance or success. 



53   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

Global equity markets vs. central bank asset purchases 

Source: Bloomberg, Citi Research. January 25, 2016 

  



54   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

-1.9 

3.4 3.9 

8.8 

3.8 

6.8 

-0.8 

5.0 
3.6 

7.8 

3.0 

4.6 

1 Year 3 Years* 5 Years* 7 Years* 10 Years* Since June 30th
1994*^

EAFE Plus MSCI EAFE (NDR)

J.P.Morgan EAFE Plus: Composite performance 

Returns in USD 

Source: JPMAM, Gross of fees, US$. *^James Fisher has been managing the EAFE Plus strategy since June 30, 1994  

*Annualized  

Past performance is not a guarantee of comparable future results. Total return assumes reinvestment of income. Performance results are gross of investment management fees. The deduction of an 

advisory fee reduces an investor’s return. Actual account performance will vary depending on individual portfolio security selection and the applicable fee schedule.  

2.6 
2.4 

3.5 

5 Years*10 Years* Since
6/30/94*

Realized tracking error relative 

to MSCI EAFE (NDR) 

Periods ending December 31, 2015 (%) 



55   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

EAFE Plus Composite: A consistent approach to producing incremental excess 
returns over the long term 

Source: JPMAM using monthly data geometric gross of fees for our EAFE Plus composite. Base year (100) is Dec 31, 1994 to December 2015 MSCI EAFE NDR;  

90

100

110

120

130

140

150

160

170

12/94 12/95 12/96 12/97 12/98 12/99 12/00 12/01 12/02 12/03 12/04 12/05 12/06 12/07 12/08 12/09 12/10 12/11 12/12 12/13 12/14

Cumulative value-added… 

Quality growth working 

Lax credit standards 

fuel leverage driven 

rally 

Quality growth working 
Market 

rotation? 

Global Financial Crisis 

QE Explosion (JP/EUR) 

Past performance is not indicative of future results. 



56   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

MSCI EAFE 

Europe ex 

UK UK Japan 

Pacific ex 

Japan 

Emerging 

Markets 

10.8 8.5 5.6 21.5 11.4 -0.8 

Financials 14.6 8.7 6.5 31.8 17.3 3.3 

Telecommunication Services 14.9 4.7 20.2 29.4 18 -2.1 

Health Care 18.5 17.5 16.4 28.2 12.1 6.4 

Consumer Staples 14.9 14.5 10.3 27.2 19.5 5.3 

Consumer Discretionary 13.2 5.0 7.9 25.0 9.3 -2.2 

Utilities 8.4 3.6 9.7 18.7 10.5 3.8 

Industrials 9.1 6.2 11.6 13.2 5.9 3.0 

Materials -4.6 1.6 -17.3 11.5 -9.3 -12.5 

Information Technology 10 7.4 21.4 11.2 1.9 2.7 

Energy 1.4 0.4 1.2 -0.2 9.6 -6.4 

Japan dominated the 1st 4 months of 2013 

Source: JPMAM, Factset. (1) Index and sector performance on a GDR basis.  

Returns by regional sector  - 1st four months of 2013 

• Japan outperformed in 8 of 10 sectors, led by ‘domestics’ 

• EM stocks trailed in 7 out of 10 sectors 

• Being underweight Japan (esp. domestics) and exposure to EM and EM-facing names undermined performance in early ‘13 

 

 



57   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

EAFE Plus 
Annual Performance Report 

 Annual Returns, US$                                                       As of December 31 

Reporting Benchmark = MSCI EAFE USD (NDR) 

Fee schedule as of 12/31/15 

For separately managed accounts: 

0.75% per annum on the first $50 million 

0.65% per annum on the next $50 million 

0.60% per annum on the balance 

 

Minimum investment: $50 million 

The Firm  
 For the purpose of GIPS® compliance, the Firm is defined as the JPMorgan London, JPMorgan Japan, JPMorgan Hong Kong and JPMorgan Singapore investment processes of JPMorgan Asset Management. Robert Fleming Holdings was acquired by the Chase Manhattan Corporation on 
1st August 2000. The Chase Manhattan Corporation and JP Morgan and Co Incorporated merged with effect from 1st January 2001. A list of business entities represented by the above investment processes, and also full details of the acquisition and merger and their impact on the 
investment processes are available upon request. The firm name was changed from JPMorgan Fleming Asset Management to JPMorgan Asset Management with effect from July 2005.  
 Verification  
 JPMorgan Asset Management claims compliance with the Global Investment Performance Standards (GIPS®) and has prepared and presented this report in compliance with the GIPS standards. JPMorgan Asset Management has been independently verified for the periods 1st January 
1996 to 31st December 2013. The verification reports are available upon request. Verification assesses whether (1) the firm has complied with all the composite construction requirements of the GIPS standards on a firm-wide basis and (2) the firm’s policies and procedures are designed to 
calculate and present performance in compliance with the GIPS standards. Verification does not ensure the accuracy of any specific composite presentation. HSBC Securities Services has verified JPMorgan Asset Management’s claim of compliance with GIPS since 1st January 2001.  
    Definition of Composite  
 This composite consists of all equity portfolios invested within the EAFE region, according to the following rules. The portfolios are managed by the Global Equities Team; they are open-ended pooled or segregated funds; they follow a general mandate and are not constrained by tax 
considerations; they are managed with the objective of outperforming a published MSCI EAFE Net benchmark with a target of 3% excess return.  The investment team comprises both active portfolio managers with final decision-making authority, as well as our global sector specialists. The 
composite is constructed from discretionary portfolios only. It does not contain any returns that have been carved out of other multi asset class portfolios. The minimum asset level for inclusion within a composite is USD 25 million (from September 2007). A complete list and description of all 
the firm's composites is available on request.  
 The benchmark of the composite has been revised from MSCI EAFE GDR to MSCI EAFE NDR from inception as this is considered to be a more appropriate benchmark since all accounts are subject to withholding tax. The composite benchmark is calculated net of withholding tax from a 
Luxembourg holding company's perspective. No portfolios in this composite are leveraged through the use of derivatives or other means. Portfolios may be permitted to use forward contracts for the purposes of hedging only.  Additionally some portfolios are permitted to use security and 
currency futures and options for positioning, according to the guidelines. The writing of uncovered options for any purpose is not permitted.  
 This composite was constructed during December 2001. The composite inception date is December 1990.     
   Valuation and Calculation  
 The returns shown for this composite are the asset-weighted averages of the performance of all of the individual portfolios in the composite using beginning of period weightings. The performance results are time-weighted rates of return net of commissions, transaction costs and 
non-reclaimable withholding taxes. They have been presented gross of investment management fees (unless otherwise stated). All portfolios in this composite have been valued at least monthly to June 2005 and daily thereafter (excluding Hong Kong accounts which continue to be valued 
monthly), on a trade date basis using accrual accounting.   
 Additional information regarding policies for valuing portfolios, calculating performance and preparing compliant presentations are available upon request.   
 The dispersion is measured by the asset-weighted standard deviation of annual returns of those portfolios that are included in the composite for the full year. The dispersion of results are not shown where the number of accounts held during the period is less than five. Furthermore, there are 
no non-fee paying portfolios included within the composites and no known inconsistencies between the source of exchange rates used to calculate composite returns and those used to calculate the benchmark.   
 The three year annualised standard deviation measures the variability of the composite and benchmark returns over the preceding 36 month period. Standard deviation measures are not shown where there are less than 36 monthly observations available.  
 There are no known local laws and regulations which conflict with GIPS®.  
   Fee  
 JPMorgan Asset Management (JPMAM)'s typical schedule of management fees for an EAFE Equity Plus institutional client is 0.75% per annum.   
   Illustration showing impact of investment management fees:-  
 An investment of USD 1,000,000 under the management of JPMAM achieves a 10% compounded gross annual return for 10 years. If a management fee of 0.75% of average assets under management were charged per year for the 10 year period, the annual return would be 9.25% and 
the value of assets would be USD 2,422,225 net of fees and compared with USD 2,593,742 gross of fees. Therefore the investment management fee, and any other expenses incurred in the management of the portfolio, will reduce the client's return. Investment advisory fees are described 
in Part II of the advisor's Form ADV.  
    
  
   
  

Year 

Composite 

Return 

Benchmark 

Return 

Composite 3-

Yr Ann St 

Dev 

Benchmark 

3-Yr Ann St 

Dev 

Number of 

Portfolios 

(*throughout 

period) Dispersion 

Market Value 

at end of 

Period 

Percentage 

of Firm 

Assets 

Total Firm 

Assets 

2005 11.72% 13.54% 12.08% 11.56% 21 (14) 0.28% 10,498 4.38% 239,417 

2006 23.95% 26.34% 9.41% 9.47% 21 (20) 0.35% 10,661 3.49% 305,720 

2007 11.33% 11.17% 9.08% 9.56% 19 (19) 0.49% 9,497 2.49% 381,609 

2008 -41.66% -43.38% 19.14% 19.51% 18 (18) 0.26% 5,117 2.22% 230,888 

2009 38.39% 31.78% 23.74% 23.91% 17 (17) 0.70% 6,981 2.23% 313,153 

2010 7.94% 7.75% 26.63% 26.61% 16 (15) 0.20% 7,430 2.46% 302,549 

2011 -9.55% -12.14% 23.24% 22.75% 14 (14) 0.26% 5,133 1.83% 279,893 

2012 20.89% 17.32% 20.23% 19.65% 13(13) 0.26% 6,160 2.16% 285,186 

2013 18.24% 22.78% 16.76% 16.48% 13 (13) 0.22% 6,286 1.85% 339,656 

2014 -4.55% -4.90% 12.84% 13.21% 12 (12) 0.35% 4,882 1.41% 346,370 

2015 -1.91% -0.81% 12.72% 12.64% 10 (10) 0.32% 4,228 n/a n/a 



58   |   FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY  |  NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION  

J.P. Morgan Asset Management 

This document is intended solely to report on various investment views held by J.P. Morgan Asset Management. Opinions, estimates, forecasts, and statements of financial market trends that are 

based on current market conditions constitute our judgment and are subject to change without notice. We believe the information provided here is reliable but should not be assumed to be accurate or 

complete. The views and strategies described may not be suitable for all investors. References to specific securities, asset classes and financial markets are for illustrative purposes only and are not 

intended to be, and should not be interpreted as, recommendations. Indices do not include fees or operating expenses and are not available for actual investment. The information contained herein 

employs proprietary projections of expected returns as well as estimates of their future volatility. The relative relationships and forecasts contained herein are based upon proprietary research and are 

developed through analysis of historical data and capital markets theory. These estimates have certain inherent limitations, and unlike an actual performance record, they do not reflect actual trading, 

liquidity constraints, fees or other costs. References to future net returns are not promises or even estimates of actual returns a client portfolio may achieve. The forecasts contained herein are for 

illustrative purposes only and are not to be relied upon as advice or interpreted as a recommendation. 

 

There can be no assurance that the professionals currently employed by JPMAM will continue to be employed by JPMAM or that the past performance or success of any such professional serves as 

an indicator of such professional’s future performance or success. 
 

Global Equity Risks: The  strategy is subject to management risk and may not achieve its objective if the adviser’s expectations regarding particular securities or markets are not met. The price of 

equity securities may rise or fall because of changes in the broad market or changes in a company’s financial condition, sometimes rapidly or  unpredictably. These price movements may result from 

factors affecting individual companies, sectors or industries selected for  a portfolio or the securities market as a whole, such as changes in economic or political conditions. When the value of  a 

portfolio’s securities goes down, your investment will decreases in value. Investments in 

foreign issuers are subject to additional risks, including political and economic risks, greater volatility, currency fluctuations, higher transaction costs, delayed settlement, possible foreign controls on 

investment, and less stringent investor protection and disclosure standards of foreign markets. These risks are magnified in countries in “emerging markets.” The manager may use derivatives in 

connection with its investment strategies. Derivatives may be riskier than other types of investments because they may be more sensitive to changes in economic or market conditions than other 

types of investments and could result in losses that significantly exceed the strategy’s original investments. Certain derivatives may give rise to a form of leverage. As a result, the strategy may be 

more volatile than if the strategy had not been leveraged because the leverage tends to exaggerate the effect of any increase or decrease in the value of the portfolio’s securities. Derivatives are also 

subject to the risk that changes in the value of a derivative may not correlate perfectly with the underlying asset, rate or index. The use of derivatives for hedging or risk management purposes or to 

increase income or gain may not be successful, resulting in losses to a portfolio, and the cost of such strategies may reduce  a portfolio’s returns. Derivatives would also expose a portfolio to the credit 

risk of the derivative counterparty. 

 

In cases where performance results  are  presented gross of investment management fees. The deduction of an advisory fee reduces an investor’s return. Actual account performance will vary 

depending on individual portfolio security selection and the applicable fee schedule. Fees are available upon request. 

Illustration showing impact of investment management fees: An investment of USD $1,000,000 under the management of JPMFAM achieves a 10% compounded gross annual return for 10 years. If a 

management fee of 0.75% of average assets under management were charged per year for the 10–year period, the annual return would be 9.25% and the value of assets would be USD $2,422,225 

net of fees, compared with USD $2,593,742 gross of fees. Therefore, the investment management fee, and any other expenses incurred in the management of the portfolio, will reduce the client’s 

return.  

Any securities/portfolio holdings mentioned throughout the presentation are shown for illustrative purposes only and should not be interpreted as recommendations to buy or sell. A full list of firm 

recommendations for the past year are available upon request.  

J.P. Morgan Asset Management is the marketing name for the asset management businesses of JPMorgan Chase & Co. Those businesses include, but are not limited to, J.P. Morgan Investment 

Management Inc., Security Capital Research & Management Incorporated and J.P. Morgan Alternative Asset Management, Inc. 

 

Copyright  2016 JPMorgan Chase & Co. 



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 1 of 2
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

03/16/16 Retirement Action 01/27/16

Subject: Receive and File Investment Performance Results for the ATU/IBEW and Salaried
Employee Retirement Plans for the Quarter Ended December 31, 2015 (ALL).
(Bernegger)

Approved: Presented:

Final 02/26/16
Chief Financial Officer, Acting Senior Accountant

ISSUE

Receive and File Investment Performance Results for the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Employee
Retirement Plans for the Quarter Ended December 31, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger)

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Motion: Receive and File Investment Performance Results for the ATU/IBEW and Salaried
Employee Retirement Plans for the Quarter Ended December 31, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger)

FISCAL IMPACT

None

DISCUSSION

Pension funds are invested consistent with the Statement of Investment Objectives and Policy
Guidelines adopted by each Retirement Board.  Attached are the two investment performance
reports prepared by the Boards’ pension investment consultants.    The first report is the Fourth
Quarter 2015 Market Update (Attachment 1) and the second is the Investment Measurement
Service Quarterly Review as of December 31, 2015 (Attachment 2).  These reports provide a
detailed analysis of the performance of each of the seven investment managers retained by the
Retirement Boards to manage the Retirement Funds for the quarter ended December 31, 2015.
The second report compares the performance of each investment manager with benchmark
indices, other fund managers of similarly invested portfolios and other indices.

Investment Compliance Monitoring
In accordance with the Statement of Investment Objectives and Policy Guidelines for the
Sacramento Regional Transit District Retirement Plans (Investment Policy), State Street Bank
performs daily investment compliance monitoring on the Plans’ three (3) actively managed funds.
As of December 31, 2015, there were no compliance warnings or alerts to be reported; therefore,
the investments are in compliance with the Investment Policy. The final attached report includes
the monitoring summary (Attachment 3).

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
22



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 2 of 2
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

03/16/16 Retirement Action 01/27/16

Subject: Receive and File Investment Performance Results for the ATU/IBEW and
Salaried Employee Retirement Plans for the Quarter Ended December 31, 2015
(ALL). (Bernegger)

The table below provides an overview of the quarter performance, quarter ending December 31,
2015 – gross of investment management fees:

Investment Manager - Description - Benchmark Benchmark
Index

ATU/IBEW
& Salaried

Fund

Investment
Gains/

(Losses)

Pension Fund
Contributions/
(Withdrawals)

Boston Partners (large cap value) Russell 1000 Value 5.64% 4.79% $1,758,056 -
S&P 500 Index 7.04% 7.07% $2,639,205 $(715,684)
Atlanta Capital  (small cap)  Russell 2000 3.59% 4.75% $938,873 -
Brandes (international equities)  MSCI EAFE - - $(254) -
JPMorgan  (international equities)  MSCI EAFE 4.71% 4.90% $1,039,276 -

MSCI EAFE Index 4.71% 4.72% $967,149 -

Dimensional Fund Advisors (emerging markets) MSCI EM 0.73% (0.03%) $(30,871) $166,206

Metropolitan West (fixed income) Barclays Agg. (0.57%) (0.34%) $(291,188) $(266,918)

Totals 3.32% 3.02% $7,020,246 $(816,396)
Bold – fund exceeding respective benchmark

The table below provides an overview of the year to date performance, as of December 31, 2015
– net of investment management fees:

Investment Manager - Description - Benchmark Benchmark
Index

ATU/IBEW
& Salaried

Fund

Investment
Gains/(Loss)

Pension Fund
Contributions/
(Withdrawals)

Boston Partners (large cap value) Russell 1000 Value (3.83%) (4.28%) $(1,740,488) $1,465,145
S&P 500 Index 1.38% 1.41% $546,457 $(151,557)
Atlanta Capital  (small cap)  Russell 2000 (4.41%) 4.29% $796,947 $998,785
Brandes  (international equities)  MSCI EAFE - - $(399) -
JPMorgan (international equities)  MSCI EAFE (1.95%) (0.81%) $(719,810) $1,771,294
MSCI EAFE Index (0.81%) (0.67%) $(298,886) $2,018,647
Dimensional Fund Advisors (emerging markets) MSCI EM (14.60%) (14.86%) $(2,113,538) $2,743,672
Metropolitan West (fixed income)  Barclays Agg. 0.55% 0.24% $318,945 $(11,259,514)

Totals (0.69%) (1.27%) $(3,210,772) $(2,413,528)
Bold – fund exceeding respective benchmark

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
22



Sacramento Regional
Transit District

Fourth Quarter 2015
Market Update

March 16, 2016

Anne Heaphy
Vice President
SF Fund Sponsor Consulting

Uvan Tseng, CFA
Vice President
SF Fund Sponsor Consulting

JAdelman
Text Box
Attachment #1



2Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Economic Commentary

● The global economy seemed to improve as 2015 unfolded, but market sentiment turned sharply negative as the year drew to a close.

● After a slow start to the year, real GDP in the U.S. grew 3.9% in the second quarter and 2.0% in the third. GDP growth slowed to just
0.7% in the fourth quarter, pulled down by an inventory cycle, the plunge in energy sector capital spending, and pain in the
manufacturing sector and exports in general due to a strong dollar. Solid growth in consumer spending and housing provided enough
of a sound foundation to fight these headwinds and keep the U.S. economy on a modest growth path. GDP grew 2.4% for the year,
matching 2014.

● Unemployment fell to 5.0% in October and held steady through December, as the labor force surged.

● The impact of energy on the measure of inflation is significant. U.S. Core CPI, which excludes energy and food, stood at 2.25% for
December (measured year-over-year). Headline CPI,  which  includes  energy,  held  near  zero  for  most  of the year.

Fourth Quarter 2015

Source: Bureau of Economic Analysis
Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics

96 97 98 99 00 01 02 03 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15
-20%

-10%

0%

10%

20%

Inflation Year-Over-Year

CPI (All Urban Consumers) PPI (All Commodities)

-10%

-8%

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

4Q954Q964Q974Q984Q994Q004Q014Q024Q034Q044Q054Q064Q074Q084Q094Q104Q114Q124Q134Q144Q15

Quarterly Real GDP Growth (20 Years)



3Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Asset Class Performance

YTD as of 3/15/16:

S&P 500:

Russell 2000:

MSCI EAFE:

MSCI EM:

BC Aggregate:

BC TIPS:

Periods Ended December 31, 2015

(20.0)

(10.0)

0.0

10.0

20.0

for Periods Ended December 31, 2015
Asset Class Performance

Last Quarter Last Year Last 5 Years Last 10 Years

R
et

ur
ns

S&P 500 Russell 2000

MSCI:EAFE US$ MSCI:Emer Markets

BC Aggregate Barclays:US TIPS Index

7.0

1.4

12.6

7.3

3.6

(4.4)

9.2
6.8

4.7

(0.8)

3.6 3.0
0.7

(14.6)

(4.5)

3.9

(0.6)

0.5

3.2
4.5

(0.6) (1.4)

2.5
3.9



4Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

US Equity
Fourth Quarter 2015

Source: Russell Investment Group

Economic Sector Exposure  (Russell 3000)Economic Sector Quarterly Returns (Russell 3000)

Fourth Quarter Index Returns

Russell 3000: 6.3%

S&P 500: 7.0%

Russell Mid Cap: 3.6%

Russell 2000: 3.6%

13.49%

8.81%

5.96%

18.16%

14.79%

10.69%

19.77%

3.10%
2.18% 3.05%

Consumer Discretionary

Consumer Staples

Energy

Financial

Health Care

Industrials

Information Technology

Materials

Telecommunications

Utilities

Health Care

Information Technology

Materials

Consumer Staples

Telecommunications

Industrials

Financials

Consumer Discretionary

Utilities

Energy

4.29%

7.20%

-1.10%

5.32%

8.83%

6.86%

8.60%

8.44%

7.01%

1.90%



5Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

U.S. Equity Style Returns

● Last Quarter: Large cap stocks outperformed smaller ones.  Performance by style was mixed with growth
generally holding up better than value.

● Trailing Year: Large cap core and growth outperformed value across the cap spectrum.

Periods Ended December 31, 2015

Represents 3 best
performing asset
classes in time period

Represents 3 worst
performing asset
classes in time period

Represents 3 middle
performing asset
classes in time period

Large Cap Core is represented by the Russell Top 200 Index, Large Cap Value is represented by the Russell Top 200 Value Index and Large Cap Growth is represented by the Russell Top 200
Growth Index. Mid Cap Core is represented by the Russell Mid Cap Index, Mid Cap Value is represented by the Russell Mid Cap Value Index and Mid Cap Growth is represented by the Russell Mid
Cap Growth Index. Small Cap Core is represented by the Russell 2000 Index, Small Cap Value is represented by the Russell 2000 Value Index and Small Cap Growth is represented by the Russell
2000 Growth Index.

Value Core Growth Value Core Growth

Large Large

Mid Mid

Small Small

4Q 2015

6.8% 7.7% 8.6%

3.1% 3.6% 4.1%

-7.5% -4.4% -1.4%2.9% 3.6% 4.3%

Annualized 1 Year Returns

-3.4% 2.4% 8.2%

-4.8% -2.4% -0.2%



6Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. Quarterly Performance Review

Non-US Equity

● Surging merger activity, robust tech sector gains, and stronger-than-expected corporate profits drove a positive fourth quarter for
non-U.S. markets (MSCI ACWI ex USA Index: +3.30%). The strong US dollar continued to dampen returns for US dollar investors
as returns in local returns were much higher.

● European stocks were up initially in the quarter due to investor expectations of amplified ECB stimulus efforts but sold off when the
announced measures weren’t as robust as expected, though the MSCI Europe Index still ended the quarter up 2.49%.

● Japanese stocks closed the year on a high note (MSCI Japan: +9.34%; YTD: +9.57%). The weak yen boosted automobile
companies, and health care companies fared well due to robust drug pipelines.

Fourth Quarter 2015

Source: MSCISources: Callan, MSCI

MSCI World
vs

Style
Global Equity

USA
MSCI ACWI ex

vs
Style

Non-U.S. Equity

Markets
MSCI Emerging

vs
Markets Style

Emerging

ex USA Sm Cap
MSCI ACWI

vs
Cap Style

Non-U.S. Small
-5%

0%

5%

10%

10th Percentile 7.67 6.42 4.24 8.75
25th Percentile 6.09 5.66 2.08 7.71

Median 5.34 4.65 1.42 6.53
75th Percentile 4.24 3.52 0.56 5.48
90th Percentile 3.44 2.59 -0.27 3.03

Benchmark 5.50 3.30 0.73 5.28

Callan Style Group Quarterly Returns

MSCI ACWI ex USA

MSCI World ex USA

MSCI EAFE

MSCI Emerging Markets

MSCI Europe

MSCI Japan

MSCI Pacific ex Japan

Regional Quarterly Performance (U.S. Dollar)

3.30%

3.91%

4.71%

0.73%

2.49%

9.34%

8.29%



7Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. Quarterly Performance Review

● Yields rose during the quarter as investors grew increasingly certain that the Federal Reserve would hike interest rates
before year-end. Sentiment proved correct as the Fed raised the Fed Funds target from its 7-year "near zero" target to
0.25% - 0.50% at its December meeting.

● The Barclays Aggregate Index was down modestly for the quarter (-0.6%) but up slightly for the year (+0.5%), thanks to
coupon payments. Investment grade credit and mortgages outperformed like-duration US Treasuries for the quarter but
underperformed for the full year.

Fixed Income
Fourth Quarter 2015

Source: Bloomberg

-1%

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

0 5 10 15 20 25 30

Maturity (Years)

US Treasury Yield Curves

December 31, 2015 September 30, 2015 December 31, 2014

Barclays Aggregate

Barclays Treasury

Barclays Agency

Barclays CMBS

Barclays ABS

Barclays Mortgage

Barclays Credit

Barclays High Yield

Absolute Returns for Quarter ended December 31, 2015

-0.57%

-0.94%

-0.64%

-1.24%

-0.57%

-0.10%

-0.52%

-2.07%



Sacramento Regional
Transit District

Total Fund Overview



9Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

RT Asset Allocation
As of December 31, 2015

Actual Asset Allocation

Large Cap Equity
33%

Small Cap Equity
9%

Intl Developed Equity
18%

Emerging Equity
5%

Domestic Fixed Income
36%

Target Asset Allocation

Large Cap Equity
32%

Small Cap Equity
8%

Intl Developed Equity
19%

Emerging Equity
6%

Domestic Fixed Income
35%

$000s Weight Percent $000s
Asset Class Actual Actual Target Dif f erence Dif f erence
Large Cap Equity          77,550   32.5%   32.0%    0.5%           1,297
Small Cap Equity          20,718    8.7%    8.0%    0.7%           1,655
Intl Dev eloped Equity          43,679   18.3%   19.0% (0.7%) (1,596)
Emerging Equity          10,991    4.6%    6.0% (1.4%) (3,307)
Domestic Fixed Income         85,352   35.8%   35.0%    0.8%           1,951
Total         238,289  100.0%  100.0%



10Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Total Fund
Performance Attribution

Relative Attribution Effects for Quarter ended December 31, 2015

Ef f ectiv e Ef f ectiv e Total
Actual Target Actual Target Manager Asset Relativ e

Asset Class Weight Weight Return Return Ef f ect Allocation Return
Large Cap Equity 33% 32% 5.94% 7.04% (0.35%) (0.00%) (0.35%)
Small Cap Equity 9% 8% 4.75% 3.59% 0.10% (0.01%) 0.09%
Domestic Fixed Income 36% 35% (0.34%) (0.57%) 0.08% (0.10%) (0.01%)
International Dev eloped E18% 19% 4.81% 4.71% 0.02% (0.02%) (0.00%)
Emerging Equity 5% 6% (0.20%) 0.73% (0.05%) 0.03% (0.02%)

Total = + +3.02% 3.32% (0.20%) (0.10%) (0.29%)

One Year Relative Attribution Effects

Ef f ectiv e Ef f ectiv e Total
Actual Target Actual Target Manager Asset Relativ e

Asset Class Weight Weight Return Return Ef f ect Allocation Return
Large Cap Equity 32% 31% (1.17%) 1.38% (0.81%) (0.06%) (0.86%)
Small Cap Equity 8% 8% 5.14% (4.41%) 0.80% (0.08%) 0.72%
Domestic Fixed Income 37% 37% 0.51% 0.55% (0.02%) (0.11%) (0.13%)
International Dev eloped E18% 19% (1.17%) (0.81%) (0.07%) (0.07%) (0.14%)
Emerging Equity 5% 6% (14.86%) (14.60%) (0.01%) 0.15% 0.14%

Total = + +(0.97%) (0.69%) (0.12%) (0.16%) (0.28%)



11Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Total Fund
Performance as of December 31, 2015

Performance vs Public Fund - Mid (100mm-1B) (Gross)

(4%)

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

Last Quarter Last Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years Last 15 Years Last 21-3/4
Year Years

(54)(30)

(83)(76)

(55)(66)
(30)

(57)

(17)

(60)

(11)
(58) (27)

(75)

(7)

(72)

10th Percentile 3.82 1.39 9.31 8.11 11.00 6.62 6.45 8.72
25th Percentile 3.47 0.84 8.23 7.70 10.41 6.05 5.96 8.24

Median 3.08 0.13 7.30 6.93 9.66 5.66 5.58 7.87
75th Percentile 2.58 (0.65) 6.41 6.29 8.71 5.23 5.20 7.32
90th Percentile 1.99 (1.58) 4.98 5.47 7.85 4.56 4.70 6.78

Total Fund 3.02 (0.97) 7.17 7.42 10.77 6.56 5.92 8.86

Target 3.32 (0.69) 6.83 6.69 9.23 5.56 5.19 7.39



12Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Total Fund
Manager Asset Allocation

December 31, 2015 September 30, 2015
Market Value Net New Inv. Inv. Return Market Value

Consolidated Plan

Domestic Equity $98,268,198 $(715,684) $5,336,133 $93,647,750

 Large Cap $77,549,707 $(715,684) $4,397,260 $73,868,132
Boston Partners 38,448,586 1 1,758,055 36,690,530
SSgA S&P 500 39,101,122 (715,685) 2,639,205 37,177,602

 Small Cap $20,718,491 $0 $938,873 $19,779,618
Atlanta Capital 20,718,491 0 938,873 19,779,618

International Equity $54,669,218 $166,206 $1,975,301 $52,527,711

  International Dev eloped Equity $43,678,685 $0 $2,006,172 $41,672,514
Brandes 11,088 0 (254) 11,342
JP Morgan 22,227,405 0 1,039,276 21,188,128
SSgA EAFE 21,440,192 0 967,149 20,473,043

  Emerging Equity $10,990,533 $166,206 $(30,871) $10,855,197
DFA Emerging Markets 10,990,533 166,206 (30,871) 10,855,197

Fixed Income $85,351,860 $(266,918) $(291,188) $85,909,966
Metropolitan West 85,351,860 (266,918) (291,188) 85,909,966

Total Plan - Consolidated $238,289,276 $(816,396) $7,020,246 $232,085,427



13Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Total Fund
Manager Returns as of December 31, 2015

*Current quarter target = 35% BC Agg, 32% S&P 500, 19% MSCI EAFE, 6% MSCI Emerging Markets Index and 8% Russell 2000

Last Last Last
Last Last  3  5  7

Quarter Year Years Years Years
Domestic Equity 5.69% 0.06% 14.81% 12.98% 16.07%

  Custom Benchmark** 6.39% 0.30% 14.51% 11.97% 14.71%

 Large Cap Equity 5.94% (1.17%) 14.59% 12.78% -
Boston Partners 4.79% (3.75%) 13.98% 12.83% 14.88%
  Russell 1000 Value Index 5.64% (3.83%) 13.08% 11.27% 13.04%
SSgA S&P 500 7.07% 1.46% 15.18% - -
  S&P 500 Index 7.04% 1.38% 15.13% 12.57% 14.82%

 Small Cap Equity 4.75% 5.14% 15.47% 13.82% -
Atlanta Capital 4.75% 5.14% 15.47% 13.82% -
  Russell 2000 Index 3.59% (4.41%) 11.65% 9.19% 14.01%

International Equity 3.77% (4.17%) 2.47% 2.43% 6.45%
  Custom International Benchmark*** 3.84% (3.91%) 3.50% 2.70% 7.16%

 International Developed Equity 4.81% (1.17%) 4.35% - -
JP Morgan 4.90% (1.75%) 3.57% 3.98% 8.73%
SSgA EAFE 4.72% (0.56%) 5.24% - -
  MSCI EAFE Index 4.71% (0.81%) 5.01% 3.60% 7.83%

 Emerging Equity (0.20%) (14.86%) - - -
DFA Emerging Markets (0.03%) (14.25%) - - -
  MSCI Emerging Mkts Idx 0.73% (14.60%) (6.42%) (4.47%) 7.85%

Domestic Fixed Income (0.34%) 0.51% 1.90% 4.21% 7.49%
Met West (0.34%) 0.51% 1.90% 4.21% 7.49%
  BC Aggregate Index (0.57%) 0.55% 1.44% 3.25% 4.09%

Total Plan 3.02% (0.97%) 7.17% 7.42% 10.77%
  Target* 3.32% (0.69%) 6.83% 6.69% 9.23%



December 31, 2015

Sacramento Regional Transit District

Retirement Plans

Investment Measurement Service

Quarterly Review

The following report was prepared by Callan Associates Inc. ("CAI") using information from sources that include the following: fund trustee(s); fund

custodian(s); investment manager(s); CAI computer software; CAI investment manager and fund sponsor database; third party data vendors; and other outside

sources as directed by the client. CAI assumes no responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of the information provided, or methodologies employed, by

any information providers external to CAI. Reasonable care has been taken to assure the accuracy of the CAI database and computer software. Callan does

not provide advice regarding, nor shall Callan be responsible for, the purchase, sale, hedge or holding of individual securities, including, without limitation

securities of the client (i.e., company stock) or derivatives in the client’s accounts. In preparing the following report, CAI has not reviewed the risks of individual

security holdings or the conformity of individual security holdings with the client’s investment policies and guidelines, nor has it assumed any responsibility to do

so. Advice pertaining to the merits of individual securities and derivatives should be discussed with a third party securities expert. Copyright 2016 by Callan

Associates Inc.

JAdelman
Text Box
Attachment #2



Table of Contents
December 31, 2015

Executive Summary 1

Capital Markets Review 4

Combined Plan

Actual vs Target Asset Allocation 27

Quarterly Total Plan Attribution 28

Cumulative Total Plan Attribution 29

Total Fund Performance 31

Asset Class Ranking 32

Historical Asset Allocation 33

Asset Growth Summary 35

Investment Manager Performance 36

Domestic Equity

Domestic Equity 42

Large Cap 45

SSgA S&P 500 48

Boston Partners 52

Atlanta Capital 61

International Equity

International Equity 71

SSgA EAFE 76

JP Morgan 82

DFA Emerging Markets 90

Domestic Fixed Income

Metropolitan West Asset Management 97

Definitions 102

Callan Research/Education 106

Disclosures 109



E
x
e

c
u

tiv
e

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

Executive Summary



*Current quarter target = 35% BC Agg, 32% S&P 500, 19% MSCI EAFE, 6% MSCI Emerging Markets Index and 8% Russell 2000 
 

Sacramento Regional Transit District 
Executive Summary for Period Ending December 31, 2015 

 
 
Asset Allocation 
 

Actual Asset Allocation

Large Cap Equity
33%

Small Cap Equity
9%

Intl Developed Equity
18%

Emerging Equity
5%

Domestic Fixed Income
36%

  

Target Asset Allocation

Large Cap Equity
32%

Small Cap Equity
8%

Intl Developed Equity
19%

Emerging Equity
6%

Domestic Fixed Income
35%

       
 
 
Performance 

Last Last Last
Last Last  3  5  7

Quarter Year Years Years Years
 

   

   
 

     
  

    

   
 

    

 
    

   
 

 
    

  
  

     

  
 

    

 
  

 

   

 
   

   
 

     
  

    

   
 

    

 
    

   
 

 
    

  
  

     

  
 

    

Total Plan 3.02% (0.97%) 7.17% 7.42% 10.77%
  Target* 3.32% (0.69%) 6.83% 6.69% 9.23%  

 
 
Recent Developments 
N/A 
 
Organizational Issues 
N/A 
 
Manager Performance 
 
  Peer Group Ranking 
Manager Last Year Last 3 Years Last 7 Years 
Boston Partners 68 40 12 
Atlanta Capital 4 26 [33] 
JP Morgan 70 83 60 
DFA 49 [35] [15] 
MetWest 71 27 4 

Brackets indicate performance linked with manager's composite 

 Watch List 
• No managers are currently on Watch 
 
Items Outstanding 
N/A 
 
 
Anne Heaphy   Uvan Tseng, CFA     
Vice President   Vice President 



C
a

p
ita

l M
a

rk
e

ts
 R

e
v
ie

w

Capital Markets Review



 

Λεϖελ ατ 35,000 Φεετ  

ΠΡΙςΑΤΕ ΕΘΥΙΤΨ

Dεχελερατινγ φροm 2014�σ 

ηιγη−ϖελοχιτψ mαρκετ, 

mοστ πριϖατε εθυιτψ mεα−

sures were lat-to-down in 2015—
αλβειτ ατ ρελατιϖελψ ηιγη αβσολυτε 

measures. While the irst half of the 
year was strong, the second half 
showed a notable pullback. 

 

Τεχη Τακεσ Οϖερ   

ΝΟΝ−Υ.Σ. ΕΘΥΙΤΨ

Νον−Υ.Σ. mαρκετσ ωερε 

propped by surging 
mεργερ αχτιϖιτψ, ροβυστ 

tech sector gains, and stronger-
than-expected corporate proits dur−
ινγ τηε φουρτη θυαρτερ. Αλτηουγη τηε 

ΜΣΧΙ Εmεργινγ Μαρκετσ Ινδεξ 

(+0.73%) βαρελψ βροκε εϖεν, τηε 

developed ΜΣΧΙ Wορλδ εξ ΥΣΑ 

Ινδεξ ροσε 3.91%.

 

Υνδερ Πρεσσυρε 

ΗΕDΓΕ ΦΥΝDΣ

Γροωινγ υνεασε ωιτη 

εχονοmιχ χηανγε ισ εϖι−

dent in the capital mar−
kets. Commodity prices slid fur−
ther, led by oil, as China struggled 
with its centrally planned shift to a 
consumer-driven economy. 

 

Χηασινγ τηε Μαρκετ

DΕΦΙΝΕD ΧΟΝΤΡΙΒΥΤΙΟΝ

Αλmοστ τηρεε−φουρτησ οφ 

τηε ασσετ χλασσεσ ιν τηε 

DC Index experienced 
net outlows in the third quarter. 
But for the irst time in two years, 
stable value experienced net 
inlows.

Α Στραιγητ βυτ  

Βυmπψ Ροαδ

ΡΕΑΛ ΕΣΤΑΤΕ

Τηε ΝΧΡΕΙΦ Προπερτψ 

Ινδεξ advanced 2.91%. 
Τηε θυαρτερ σαω 210 

asset trades, representing $11.3 
βιλλιον οφ τρανσαχτιοναλ ϖολυmε, 

comfortably ahead of the $5.1 bil−
lion 10-year average and the prior 
10-year peak of $8.7 billion in the 
second quarter of 2007.

Α Ροχκψ Ροαδ  

το Ρεϖιϖαλ

ΦΥΝD ΣΠΟΝΣΟΡ

Despite preceding quar−
ters marked with volatil−
ity, equities displayed a 

brief revival. Endowment/founda−

tions and public funds performed 
well, ahead of other fund types. 
Χορπορατε πλανσ σαω α σmαλλ 

improvement in funded ratio over 
both the quarter and the year. 

Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

Βροαδ Μαρκετ Θυαρτερλψ Ρετυρνσ 

Φουρτη Θυαρτερ 2015

Cash (90-Day T-Bills)

U.S. Equity (Russell 3000)

Non-U.S. Equity (MSCI ACWI ex USA)

Emerging Equity (MSCI Em. Mkts.)

U.S. Fixed (Barclays Aggregate)

Non-U.S. Fixed (Citi Non-U.S.)

Real Estate (NCREIF Property)

Hedge Funds (CS HFI)

Commodities (Bloomberg)

Sources: Barclays, Bloomberg, Citigroup, Credit Suisse Hedge Index, Merrill Lynch, MSCI, 

NCREIF, Russell Investment Group

-0.57%

-1.38%

2.91%

-0.12%

0.03%

-10.55%

6.27%

3.30%

0.73%

 

Βαχκ ιν Βλαχκ   

Υ.Σ. ΕΘΥΙΤΨ

Wιτη τηε στρονγεστ θυαρ−

τερ οφ τηε ψεαρ (+7.04%), 

τηε Σ&Π 500 Ινδεξ ωασ 

able to inish 2015 in the black 
(+1.38%.) All capitalization ranges 
advanced, though larger per−
formed better for the second con−

σεχυτιϖε θυαρτερ (Ρυσσελλ 1000 

Ινδεξ: +6.50% and Ρυσσελλ 2000 

Ινδεξ: +3.59%).

Υνωαρραντεδ  

Πεσσιmισm?  

ΕΧΟΝΟΜΨ

Τηε γλοβαλ εχονοmψ 

seemed to improve as 
2015 unfolded, but mar−

ket sentiment turned sharply nega−

tive as the year drew to a close. 
Moderate growth continued through 
the third and fourth quarters, par−
ticularly in the U.S., and GDP grew 
2.4% φορ τηε ψεαρ.

6
Π Α Γ Ε

2
Π Α Γ Ε

19
Π Α Γ Ε

 

Τακε Ιτ Εασψ

Υ.Σ. ΦΙΞΕD ΙΝΧΟΜΕ

Bond markets stut−
tered in the U.S. after 
the Federal Reserve 

announced a rate increase. The 
yield curve lattened and spreads 
were mixed. The Βαρχλαψσ 

Αγγρεγατε Ινδεξ dropped 0.57%; 
τηε Βαρχλαψσ Χορπορατε Ηιγη 

Ψιελδ Ινδεξ slumped 2.07%.

9
Π Α Γ Ε

4
Π Α Γ Ε

 

Σλιπ �ν Σλιδε

ΝΟΝ−Υ.Σ. ΦΙΞΕD ΙΝΧΟΜΕ 

The U.S. dollar contin−

ued its appreciation as 
the benchmark’s hedged 

equivalent returned 0.58% for the 
quarter and 1.55% for the year.  The 
Χιτι Νον−Υ.Σ. Wορλδ Γοϖερνmεντ 

Βονδ Ινδεξ declined 1.38% for the 
quarter and 5.54% for the year. 

15
Π Α Γ Ε

12
Π Α Γ Ε

20
Π Α Γ Ε

21
Π Α Γ Ε

17
Π Α Γ Ε

ΧΑΛΛΑΝ 

ΙΝςΕΣΤΜΕΝΤΣ 

ΙΝΣΤΙΤΥΤΕ Χαπιταλ 
Μαρκετ  
Ρεϖιεω



2

Υνωαρραντεδ Πεσσιmισm? 

ΕΧΟΝΟΜΨ |  ϑαψ Κλοεπφερ

The global economy seemed to improve as 2015 unfolded, but 
market sentiment turned sharply negative as the year drew to a 
close. Is this pessimism warranted? The data instead suggests 
that moderate growth continued through the third and fourth 
θυαρτερσ, παρτιχυλαρλψ ιν τηε Υ.Σ. Αφτερ α σλοω σταρτ το τηε ψεαρ, 

real GDP in the U.S. grew 3.9% in the second quarter and 2.0% 
in the third. GDP growth slowed to just 0.7% in the fourth quar−
ter, pulled down by an inventory cycle, the plunge in energy-
sector capital spending, and pain in the manufacturing sector 
and exports in general due to a strong dollar. Solid growth in 
consumer spending and housing provided enough of a sound 
foundation to ight these headwinds and keep the U.S. economy 
on a modest growth path. GDP grew 2.4% for the year, matching 
2014. Growth in non-U.S. developed markets is relatively weak 
but continued to irm up; both Japan and Europe reported GDP 
growth of 1.6% in the third quarter. 

Consumer spending in the U.S. has been supported by solid 
gains in the job market, real disposable income, and a recovery 
in housing asset values. December saw a gain of 292,000 jobs, 
the highest monthly gain in 2015. Payrolls climbed by 2.65 mil−
λιον οϖερ τηε ψεαρ φορ αν αϖεραγε οφ 221,000. Υνεmπλοψmεντ φελλ 

to 5.0% in October and held steady through December, as the 
labor force surged. With the Fed focused on unemployment and 
the labor force, the December jobs report certainly supported 
the Fed’s decision to raise interest rates. As the year drew to 
a close, the outlook for consumers was positive, and will likely 
remain so. The University of Michigan’s Index of Consumer 
Conidence slipped from a reading of 98 at the start of 2015 to 
87 in the third quarter when global equity markets were roiled by 
China, but conidence surged back to a reading of 93 through 
the last three months of the year. For reference, a reading above 
80 suggests a positive outlook by consumers. Real disposable 
(after-tax) income grew an estimated 3.6% in 2015, fueling a 
2.2% rise in consumption spending. Auto sales surged to 17.4 
million units in 2015, up from 16.4 million in 2014 and 14.4 mil−
lion in 2012. Pent-up demand may inally be close to satisied.

Consumers clearly beneitted from falling energy prices. 
Lower gasoline prices provide an effective boost to disposable 
income. Oil peaked at $135 per barrel in July 2008, started 
2015 at $52, and closed the year at $38 (the Brent crude spot 
price). The impact of energy on the measure of inlation is sig−

niicant. U.S. Core CPI, which excludes energy and food, stood 
at 2.25% for December (measured year-over-year). Headline 
CPI, which includes energy, held near zero for most of the 

02 0396 97 98 99 00 01 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15

-10%

-8%

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

Source: Bureau of  Economic Analysis

Θυαρτερλψ Ρεαλ ΓDΠ Γροωτη (20 Ψεαρσ)

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

PPI (All Commodities)CPI (All Urban Consumers)

02 0396 97 98 99 00 01 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15

Source: Bureau of  Labor Statistics

Inlation Year-Over-Year



3Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

Υ.Σ. ΕΧΟΝΟΜΨ (Continued)

year. Once energy prices stabilize, we expect they will cease 
to have the same disinlationary impact and will begin to add 
volatility to headline CPI. Similar forces are affecting Europe, 
where headline inlation is also close to zero; much of periph−

eral Europe is mired in delation.

The rise in the value of the dollar has complicated the measure 
of price inlation for consumers. Versus a trade-weighted basket 
of major currencies, the dollar was up approximately 10% over 
the course of 2015. Prices of imports fell for consumers, adding 
to disinlationary pressures. On the other hand, exports become 
more expensive, and U.S. manufacturing has clearly suffered 
from the dollar’s upward move. The ISM Index for manufactur−
ing fell to 48.2 in December, its lowest level since June 2009. 
A reading below 50 suggests contraction in activity. Adding to 
the pressure on manufacturing from a strong dollar, inventories 
were built earlier in 2015 and in 2014 in anticipation of stron−

ger global growth, and these inventories are now being worked 
down, further reducing the need for manufacturing output. The 
ISM Index for non-manufacturing remained above 50, with a 
reading of 55.3 in December, but this is the lowest level in almost 
τωο ψεαρσ.

On balance, the economic data show modest growth continuing 
ιν τηε Υ.Σ., αλτηουγη τηε ρατε ισ συβσταντιαλλψ βελοω τηατ οφ πρεϖι−

ous recoveries. GDP growth has averaged close to 2.2% since 
2010, compared to the 3% or higher achieved in the past.

 

Τηε Λονγ−Τερm ςιεω  

2015

4τη Θτρ

Περιοδσ ενδεδ Dεχεmβερ 31, 2015

Ινδεξ Ψεαρ 5 Ψρσ 10 Ψρσ 25 Ψρσ

Υ.Σ. Εθυιτψ

Russell 3000 6.27 0.48 12.18 7.35 10.03

S&P 500 7.04 1.38 12.57 7.31 9.82

Russell 2000 3.59 −4.41 9.19 6.80 10.50

Νον−Υ.Σ. Εθυιτψ

ΜΣΧΙ ΕΑΦΕ 4.71 -0.81 3.60 3.03 5.40

ΜΣΧΙ Εmεργινγ Μαρκετσ 0.73 −14.60 −4.47 3.95 8.63

S&P ex-U.S. Small Cap 5.21 5.92 5.51 5.33 6.80

Φιξεδ Ινχοmε

Βαρχλαψσ Αγγρεγατε -0.57 0.55 3.25 4.51 6.15

90−Dαψ Τ−Βιλλ 0.03 0.05 0.07 1.24 2.93

Barclays Long G/C −0.94 −3.30 6.98 6.45 8.08

Χιτι Νον−Υ.Σ. Γοϖτ -1.38 -5.54 −1.30 3.05 5.37

Ρεαλ Εστατε

NCREIF Property 2.91 13.33 12.18 7.76 8.05

FTSE NAREIT Equity 7.26 3.20 11.96 7.41 12.13

Αλτερνατιϖεσ

CS Hedge Fund −0.12 −0.71 3.55 4.97 �

Cambridge PE* � 11.38 16.03 12.65 15.73

Bloomberg Commodity -10.52 −24.66 −13.47 −6.43 �

Gold Spot Price −4.93 −10.46 -5.70 7.41 4.02

Inlation – CPI-U −0.60 0.73 1.53 1.86 2.30

*Private equity data is time-weighted return for periods ended June 30, 2015.

Sources: Barclays, Bloomberg, Citigroup, Credit Suisse, FTSE, MSCI, NCREIF, Russell 

Investment Group, Standard & Poor’s, Thomson/Cambridge, Bureau of  Economic 

Analysis.

Ρεχεντ Θυαρτερλψ Ινδιχατορσ

Εχονοmιχ Ινδιχατορσ 4Θ15 3Θ15 2Θ15 1Θ15 4Θ14 3Θ14 2Θ14 1Θ14

Εmπλοψmεντ Χοστ�Τοταλ Χοmπενσατιον Γροωτη 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.6% 2.2% 2.2% 2.0% 1.8%

Nonfarm Business–Productivity Growth -0.5%* 2.2% 3.5% −1.1% −2.2% 3.1% 2.8% -3.5%

GDP Growth 0.7% 2.0% 3.9% 0.6% 2.1% 4.3% 4.6% −0.9%

Manufacturing Capacity Utilization 76.1% 76.3% 75.9% 75.9% 76.2% 75.7% 75.1% 74.2%

Consumer Sentiment Index (1966=100)  91.3  90.8  94.2  95.5  89.8  83.0  82.8  80.9 

*Estimate.

Sources: Bureau of  Economic Analysis, Bureau of  Labor Statistics, Federal Reserve, IHS Economics, Reuters/University of  Michigan.



4

Α Ροχκψ Ροαδ το Ρεϖιϖαλ 

ΦΥΝD ΣΠΟΝΣΟΡ |  Rufash Lama

Despite preceding quarters marked with volatility, global equi−
ties displayed a brief revival, particularly in October. Central 
banks in Japan and Europe afirmed their decision to increase 
accommodative policies to support their respective economies. 
For the quarter, U.S. equity markets edged ahead of non-U.S. 
(Ρυσσελλ 3000 Ινδεξ: +6.27%, ΜΣΧΙ ΕΑΦΕ Ινδεξ: +4.71%) 

while both U.S. and non-U.S. ixed income markets retreated 
(Βαρχλαψσ Αγγρεγατε Ινδεξ: -0.57%, Χιτι Νον−Υ.Σ. Wορλδ 

Γοϖερνmεντ Βονδ Ινδεξ: -1.38%). 

Performance varied, albeit marginally, for the different fund 
types. Endowment/foundations and public funds performed 
well, leading across all percentiles. Corporate plans, although 
positive, trailed the other plan types. We have observed a con−

tinued divergence between different asset owners as corporate 
plans seek to de-risk. While performance dispersion was mod−

est, in the 90th percentile public plans surpassed corporate 
πλανσ βψ 1.10%.

Following December’s interest rate hike, bond strategies saw 
substantial outlows on concerns about high-yield issuers, to the 
dismay of corporate plans. Corporate plans saw a small improve−

ment in funded ratio over both the last quarter and the year. The 
median and average funded status of U.S. corporate deined 

beneit plans were 82.7% and 83.0%, respectively, based on a 
peer group* of seven different funded ratio measures. Over the 
ψεαρ, λιαβιλιτιεσ φελλ ασ ιντερεστ ρατεσ ροσε, ωηιλε ασσετ ρετυρνσ ιν 

both equity and ixed income were lat. 

Endowment/foundations performed well due to an overweight 
to U.S. stocks and relatively low exposure to U.S. ixed income. 
Despite trailing in the 10- and 15-year periods, Taft Hartley 
plans have performed best in the three- and ive-year periods 
primarily due to their relatively high exposure to real estate and 
λοω εξποσυρε το νον−Υ.Σ. εθυιτιεσ. 

Χαλλαν Dαταβασε Μεδιαν ανδ Ινδεξ Ρετυρνσ∗∗ φορ Περιοδσ ενδεδ Dεχεmβερ 31, 2015

Φυνδ Σπονσορ Θυαρτερ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Πυβλιχ Dαταβασε 2.96 0.33 7.50 6.99 5.78 5.64

Χορπορατε Dαταβασε 2.35 −0.97 6.33 6.95 5.89 5.64

Ενδοωmεντσ/Φουνδατιονσ Dαταβασε 2.95 −0.75 6.58 6.21 5.55 5.46

Ταφτ−Ηαρτλεψ Dαταβασε 2.78 1.15 8.02 7.31 5.51 5.38

Diversiied Manager Θυαρτερ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Ασσετ Αλλοχατορ Στψλε 3.04 −1.07 7.85 7.45 6.15 5.92

Υ.Σ. Βαλανχεδ Dαταβασε 2.98 −0.89 7.34 6.71 5.76 5.70

Γλοβαλ Βαλανχεδ Dαταβασε 1.67 −1.88 4.65 5.07 5.25 6.73

60% Russell 3000 + 40% Barclays Agg 3.53 0.66 9.40 8.82 6.65 5.70

60% MSCI World + 40% Barclays Glbl Agg 2.93 −1.61 5.05 5.02 4.76 4.62

* The peer group includes funded ratio measures provided by large, institutional investment and actuarial consultants, as well as investment management firms. 

**Returns less than one year are not annualized.

Sources: Callan, Barclays, MSCI, Russell Investment Group.

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

  Public Corporate Endow/Fndn Taft-Hartley
  Database Database Database Database

 10th Percentile  3.70 3.61 3.91 3.75

 25th Percentile  3.35 3.08 3.53 3.31

 Median  2.96 2.35 2.95 2.78

 75th Percentile  2.44 1.63 2.24 2.32

 90th Percentile  1.78 0.68 1.47 1.67

Source: Callan

Χαλλαν Φυνδ Σπονσορ Ρετυρνσ φορ τηε Θυαρτερ



5Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

ΦΥΝD ΣΠΟΝΣΟΡ (Continued)

As of the most recent quarter, all fund types have displayed 
performance within a 5–6% range over longer time frames. A 
U.S.-focused benchmark of 60% Russell 3000 + 40% Barclays 
Aggregate (+3.53%) now outperforms the broader, 60% MSCI 

World + 40% Barclays Global Aggregate (+2.93%) benchmark 
over multiple time periods. Callan’s U.S. Balanced Database 
group has outperformed the Global Balanced Database group 
in all periods except 15 years. 

*Latest median quarter return.

Source: Callan

U.S. Fixed 

Non-U.S. Fixed

Global Balanced

Real Estate

Hedge Funds

Other Alternatives

Cash

U.S. Balanced

U.S. Equity

Non-U.S. Equity

Global Equity

1.6%
3.2%
3.2%

3.6%

Public

2.96%*

33.7%

15.3%

29.4%

1.8%

2.1%
5.3%

1.2%

2.9%

3.5%

5.4%

1.4%

Endowment/

Foundation

2.95%*

33.3%

17.0%

19.7%

2.8%

1.3%

0.9%

8.3%2.3%

9.7%

1.7%

Taft-Hartley

2.78%*

0.5%

Corporate

2.35%*
0.5%

2.0%

1.4% 1.2%

34.9%

27.1%
9.4%

2.1%

5.1%

11.7%

4.6%

13.1%

1.9%

27.9%

40.9%

2.7%

0.7%
0.9%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13

U.S. Fixed 

Non-U.S. Fixed

Global Balanced

Real Estate

Hedge Funds

Other Alternatives

Cash

U.S. Balanced

U.S. Equity

Non-U.S. Equity

Global Equity

14 15

Χαλλαν Φυνδ Σπονσορ Αϖεραγε Ασσετ Αλλοχατιον

Χαλλαν Πυβλιχ Φυνδ Dαταβασε Αϖεραγε Ασσετ Αλλοχατιον (10 Ψεαρσ)

Source: Callan



6

Source: Russell Investment Group 

Βαχκ ιν Βλαχκ 

Υ.Σ. ΕΘΥΙΤΨ |  Λαυρεν Ματηιασ, ΧΦΑ 

Αλτηουγη τηε φουρτη θυαρτερ ωασ τηε στρονγεστ οφ τηε ψεαρ, τηε 

journey was volatile. October proved to be a welcome turn−

around after a stumbling third quarter as U.S. indices landed 
one of their strongest single months since the inancial crisis 
(Σ&Π 500 Ινδεξ: +8.44% in October). Yet a slowing Chinese 
economy, other weak emerging markets, commodity price 
declines, and the strength of the U.S. dollar led to a middling 
November and disappointing December. Despite this, the U.S. 
Federal Reserve deemed the U.S. economy to be in a strong 
enough position for a rate increase, citing improved labor mar−
ket conditions and subdued inlation. The price of oil continued 
to decline, and consumer conidence remained above average 
and provided a small tailwind to the market.
 

Growth continued to build its lead on value in the fourth quarter 
(Ρυσσελλ 1000 Γροωτη Ινδεξ: +7.32% and Ρυσσελλ 1000 ςαλυε 

Ινδεξ: +5.64%); over the year the difference was profound 

(+5.67% vs. -3.83%, respectively). All U.S. equity indices posted 
positive results, but larger proved better (Ρυσσελλ Μιδχαπ 

Ινδεξ: +3.62%, Ρυσσελλ 2000 Ινδεξ: +3.59%, and Ρυσσελλ 

Μιχροχαπ Ινδεξ: +3.74%). Τηε Ρυσσελλ Τοπ 50 Ινδεξ led the 
ωαψ γαινινγ 9.34%.

Large cap sectors continued their strong performance, led 
by Materials & Processing, Technology, and Health Care. In 
small cap, Energy trailed signiicantly, Health Care produced 
the strongest positive result, and only Consumer Discretionary 
showed a strong directional difference. Commodity price 
declines and slow global growth were major factors behind 
Energy’s stumble. Biotech companies led small cap Health 
Care. Active managers struggled again in such a narrow mar−
ket, especially in large cap where the S&P 500 Index total 
annual return (with dividends) would have been negative 
without three stocks: Amazon, Microsoft, and GE. Investors 

Russell 1000 Russell 2000

EnergyUtilitiesConsumer

Discretionary

Financial

Services

Producer

Durables

Consumer

Staples

Health CareTechnologyMaterials &

Processing

8.8%

4.5%

8.8%

5.9%

9.8%

7.8%

4.7%

7.4%

2.8%

5.8%

3.4%

4.9%

-2.7%

3.9%

6.0%

-0.6%

-10.6%

8.7%

Εχονοmιχ Σεχτορ Θυαρτερλψ Περφορmανχε 

Note: As of  the fourth quarter of  2015, the Capital Markets Review reports sector-specific return using the Russell Global Sectors (RGS) classification system rather than the 

Global Industry Classification Standard (GICS) system. RGS uses a three-tier classification system containing nine sectors; GICS uses a four-tier system containing ten sectors.



7Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

Υ.Σ. ΕΘΥΙΤΨ (Continued)

preferred the safety of these and other large-cap companies. 
Equity volatility as measured by the VIX increased during the 
quarter but ended the year below average. Assets contin−

ued to low into passive funds and ETFs, further challenging 
αχτιϖε mαναγερσ. 

Τηε Υ.Σ. εθυιτψ mαρκετ ωασ γενερουσ ιν τηε φουρτη θυαρτερ, 

but for the full year four stocks were down for every three that 
rose (in the S&P 500). Despite this, broad market valuations 
remain above average, leading to questionable prospects as 
ωε εντερ 2016. 

  Large Cap Large Cap Small Cap  Small Cap
  Growth Style Value Style  Growth Style Value Style

 10th Percentile  9.48 7.07 6.36 4.55

 25th Percentile  8.62 6.05 5.09 3.57

 Median  7.75 5.46 3.00 2.55

 75th Percentile  6.59 4.73 0.90 1.87

 90th Percentile  5.80 3.87 -1.35 0.44

   R1000 Growth R1000 Value  R2000 Growth  R2000 Value

 Benchmark  7.32 5.64 4.32 2.88

Sources: Callan, Russell Investment Group

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

Χαλλαν Στψλε Γρουπ Θυαρτερλψ Ρετυρνσ

02 0396 97 98 99 00 01

-30%

-20%

-10%

0%

10%

20%

30%

04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15

Russell 1000 Growth Russell 1000Russell 1000 Value

Source: Russell Investment Group

Ρολλινγ Ονε−Ψεαρ Ρελατιϖε Ρετυρνσ  (vs. Russell 1000)

Υ.Σ. Εθυιτψ Ινδεξ Χηαραχτεριστιχσ ασ οφ Dεχεmβερ 31, 2015

Σ&Π 500 Ρυσ 3000 Ρυσ 1000 Ρυσ Μιδχαπ Ρυσ 2500 Ρυσ 2000

Cap Range Min ($mm)  1,360 2 149 149 2 2

Cap Range Max ($bn) 586.86 606.41 606.41 28.85 12.06 6.42

Νυmβερ οφ Ισσυεσ 504 2,968 1,018 818 2,460 1,988

% of Russell 3000 81% 100% 92% 27% 17% 8%

Wtd Avg Mkt Cap ($bn) 128.44 106.38 115.12 12.09 4.06 1.88

Price/Book Ratio 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.3 2.0 1.9

Forward P/E Ratio 16.3 16.7 16.5 17.9 18.1 18.8

Dividend Yield 2.2% 2.1% 2.1% 1.9% 1.7% 1.6%

5-Yr Earnings (forecasted) 10.3% 10.9% 10.7% 10.9% 12.1% 13.2%

Sources: Russell Investment Group, Standard & Poor’s.



8

Χαλλαν Στψλε Μεδιαν ανδ Ινδεξ Ρετυρνσ∗ φορ Περιοδσ ενδεδ Dεχεmβερ 31, 2015

Λαργε Χαπ Εθυιτψ Θυαρτερ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Λαργε Χαπ Χορε Στψλε 6.59 1.38 15.48 12.59 7.76 5.77

Λαργε Χαπ Γροωτη Στψλε 7.75 6.43 17.03 13.23 8.65 4.82

Λαργε Χαπ ςαλυε Στψλε 5.46 −2.56 13.76 11.70 7.01 6.84

Αγγρεσσιϖε Γροωτη Στψλε 5.12 5.53 16.47 11.59 8.71 5.30

Χοντραριαν Στψλε 4.90 −4.29 13.05 11.00 6.91 7.33

Ψιελδ−Οριεντεδ Στψλε 5.78 −2.99 11.91 10.91 7.32 7.12

Russell 3000 6.27 0.48 14.74 12.18 7.35 5.39

Russell 1000 6.50 0.92 15.01 12.44 7.40 5.25

Russell 1000 Growth 7.32 5.67 16.83 13.53 8.53 4.33

Russell 1000 Value 5.64 -3.83 13.08 11.27 6.16 5.86

S&P Composite 1500 6.59 1.01 14.84 12.35 7.39 5.39

S&P 500 7.04 1.38 15.13 12.57 7.31 5.00

ΝΨΣΕ 4.11 −4.09 9.14 9.39 6.25 5.55
Dow Jones Industrials 7.70 0.21 12.66 11.30 7.75 5.80

Μιδ Χαπ Εθυιτψ Θυαρτερ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Μιδ Χαπ Χορε Στψλε 3.61 0.15 15.13 12.33 8.31 9.28

Μιδ Χαπ Γροωτη Στψλε 3.04 0.28 14.04 11.02 8.69 6.88

Μιδ Χαπ ςαλυε Στψλε 3.23 −2.95 13.46 11.02 8.46 10.13

Russell Midcap 3.62 −2.44 14.18 11.44 8.00 8.15
S&P MidCap 400 2.60 -2.18 12.76 10.68 8.18 8.32

Σmαλλ Χαπ Εθυιτψ Θυαρτερ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Σmαλλ Χαπ Χορε Στψλε 3.23 −1.80 13.86 11.38 8.04 9.88

Σmαλλ Χαπ Γροωτη Στψλε 3.00 −1.29 14.29 11.06 8.36 7.10

Σmαλλ Χαπ ςαλυε Στψλε 2.55 −3.82 12.43 10.30 7.87 10.68

Russell 2000 3.59 −4.41 11.65 9.19 6.80 7.28

S&P SmallCap 600 3.72 −1.97 13.57 11.48 8.00 8.92

ΝΑΣDΑΘ 8.71 6.96 19.80 14.97 9.72 5.75

Σmιδ Χαπ Εθυιτψ Θυαρτερ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Σmιδ Χαπ Βροαδ Στψλε 2.86 −0.99 13.35 11.31 8.66 9.41

Σmιδ Χαπ Γροωτη Στψλε 2.86 −0.37 13.99 11.70 8.61 8.03

Σmιδ Χαπ ςαλυε Στψλε 2.00 −3.85 11.96 9.99 8.13 10.42

Russell 2500 3.28 −2.90 12.46 10.32 7.56 8.08

S&P 1000 2.93 −2.11 13.02 10.92 8.11 8.48

Ρυσσελλ 3000 Σεχτορσ Θυαρτερ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Χονσυmερ Dισχρετιοναρψ 4.28 4.95 17.50 16.16 10.00 �

Χονσυmερ Σταπλεσ 7.72 7.96 17.46 15.28 11.93 �

Ενεργψ −0.93 −23.11 -4.56 −1.47 2.98 �

Φινανχιαλ Σερϖιχεσ 5.58 0.68 15.58 11.48 1.53 �

Health Care 8.81 7.14 24.32 20.51 11.22 �

Materials & Processing 8.32 -8.52 6.34 5.74 6.15 �

Producer Durables 6.99 -3.45 14.27 11.11 6.76 �

Τεχηνολογψ 8.57 4.04 16.86 12.29 9.46 �

Υτιλιτιεσ 4.06 −1.74 9.66 9.81 7.27 �

*Returns less than one year are not annualized.

Sources: Callan, Dow Jones & Company, Russell Investment Group, Standard & Poor’s, The NASDAQ Stock Market.

Υ.Σ. ΕΘΥΙΤΨ (Continued)



9Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

Τεχη Τακεσ Οϖερ 

ΝΟΝ−Υ.Σ. ΕΘΥΙΤΨ |   Ιρινα Συσηχη

Surging merger activity, robust tech sector gains, and stronger-
than-expected corporate proits drove a positive fourth quarter 
φορ νον−Υ.Σ. mαρκετσ (ΜΣΧΙ ΑΧWΙ εξ ΥΣΑ Ινδεξ: +3.30%). 

Total global M&A volume in 2015 surpassed $4.3 trillion, break−

ing the previous record set in 2007. Companies were persuaded 
to sign deals by the availability of cheap debt and the desire 
to stay competitive and eficient in a slow-growth environment. 
The strengthening dollar boosted returns of international export-
oriented companies. 

Ασ ιν τηε Υ.Σ., γροωτη (ΜΣΧΙ ΑΧWΙ εξ ΥΣΑ Γροωτη: +5.04%) 
fared better than value (ΜΣΧΙ ΑΧWΙ εξ ΥΣΑ ςαλυε: +1.50%). 
Τηε ΜΣΧΙ Εmεργινγ Μαρκετσ Ινδεξ (+0.73%) delivered paltry 
returns in comparison to its developed-market counterpart the 
ΜΣΧΙ Wορλδ εξ ΥΣΑ Ινδεξ (+3.91%). Small cap outpaced large 
cap once again due to fewer Energy holdings (ΜΣΧΙ ΑΧWΙ εξ 

ΥΣΑ Σmαλλ Χαπ Ινδεξ: +5.28%). Among sectors, Information 
Technology (+8.40%) was the darling, while Industrials (+4.67%) 
and Consumer Discretionary (+4.59%) helped with high M&A 
activity. Energy (-0.43%) and Materials (+0.36%) have now 
lagged for two straight quarters. Crude oil ended the year below 
$40 per barrel, down 17.85% for the quarter, due to unrelenting 
excess supply over global demand. 

European stocks were up for the irst two months of the quar−
ter due to investor expectations of ampliied European Central 
Bank (ECB) stimulus measures. Investors were disappointed in 
December when the central bank cut its deposit rate by only 
0.10%, and extended the existing bond-buying program by six 
months. Returns faltered, yet the ΜΣΧΙ Ευροπε Ινδεξ ended 
τηε θυαρτερ υπ 2.49%. 

Japanese stocks closed the year on a high note (ΜΣΧΙ ϑαπαν: 

+9.34%; YTD: +9.57%). The weak yen boosted automobile 
companies, and health care companies fared well due to 
robust drug pipelines. The country also completed the largest 
state asset sale since 1987 with the privatization of Japan Post 
Holdings, accompanied by ramped up stimulus measures. The 

  Global Eq Non-U.S. Eq Emg Mkt Small Cap
  Style Style  Style Style

 10th Percentile  7.67 6.42 4.24 8.75

 25th Percentile  6.09 5.66 2.08 7.71

 Median  5.34 4.65 1.42 6.53

 75th Percentile  4.24 3.52 0.56 5.48

 90th Percentile  3.44 2.59 -0.27 3.03

   MSCI MSCI MSCI  MSCI ACWI
  World ACWI ex USA Emg Mkts ex USA SC 

 Benchmark  5.50 3.30 0.73 5.28

Sources: Callan, MSCI 

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

Χαλλαν Στψλε Γρουπ Θυαρτερλψ Ρετυρνσ

remainder of Southeast Asia and the Paciic also enjoyed gains 
(MSCI Paciic ex Japan Index: +8.29%). New Zealand led the 
pack, up 18.15%, due to increased tourism and the positive 
impact of Industrials and Materials. Australia thrived (+9.96%) 
on a strong inancial sector; the largest Aussie banks raised 
ηοmε−λοαν ρατεσ. 

-40%

-30%

-20%

-10%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

02 0396 97 98 99 00 01 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15

*euro returns from 1Q99

Source: MSCI

German markJapanese yen U.K. sterling euro*

Μαϕορ Χυρρενχιεσ� Χυmυλατιϖε Ρετυρνσ (ϖσ. Υ.Σ. Dολλαρ)



10

ΝΟΝ−Υ.Σ. ΕΘΥΙΤΨ (Continued)

Emerging market countries produced a spectrum of returns, 
but collectively closed slightly ahead (+0.73%). Information 
Technology (+6.46%) buoyed returns. Insecurities about U.S. 
monetary policy were assuaged by the U.S. Federal Reserve 
raising rates. China (+4.03%) was more even-tempered than 
λαστ θυαρτερ. Ιτσ χεντραλ βανκ χυτ ιντερεστ ρατεσ ονχε αγαιν, παρτ 

οφ αν ονγοινγ στρεαm οφ στιmυλυσ mεασυρεσ το φυελ χονσυmπ−

tion. China’s currency, the renminbi, will join the dollar, euro, 
pound, and yen in the International Monetary Fund’s basket 
οφ ρεσερϖε χυρρενχιεσ λατερ ιν 2016. Τηε ρεστ οφ εmεργινγ Ασια 

also had a positive quarter (ΜΣΧΙ Εmεργινγ Μαρκετσ Ασια 

Ινδεξ: +3.53%). Indonesia gained 20.87%, with signiicant 
advances in all sectors, thanks to progressive policies and 
reforms pursued by the government. 

On the negative end, Greece’s inancial woes continued 
(-18.99%). Russian stocks declined 3.99% as the economy dete−

riorated further. Emerging Europe sank 5.13%. The Middle East 
did not fare well amid ongoing political turbulence and declining 

oil prices. South Africa plummeted 10.51% with losses in the 
inancials sector and ongoing political instability. Latin America 
(-2.61%) had another miserable quarter. Brazil dropped 3.16%, 
and its debt rating was cut to below investment grade.

 EM EAFE

Quarter Year

ACWI ex USA

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

MaterialsEnergyIndustrialsInformation
Technology

Poland

Greece

Spain

Canada

Hungary

Indonesia

Belgium

New Zealand

Source: MSCI

Source: MSCI

6.5%

10.3%

8.4%

-3.2%

6.4%

4.7%

-0.1%

0.7%

20.9%

-19.1%

11.4%

36.3%

-24.2%

-5.1%

-2.6%

-15.6%

-61.3%

-12.9%

-24.9%

-19.0%

-0.4%

-1.8%

12.1%

13.6%

1.2%
0.4%

18.2%

-6.3%

W
o
rd
 e
x
 U
S
A

E
M

W
o
rd
 e
x
 U
S
A

E
M

B
e
s
t 
Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 P
e
rf
o
rm
e
rs

W
o
rs
t 
Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 P
e
rf
o
rm
e
rs

Best Performers Worst Performers

Θυαρτερλψ ανδ Αννυαλ Χουντρψ Περφορmανχε Σναπσηοτ

Θυαρτερλψ Ρετυρνσ: Στρονγ ανδ Στρυγγλινγ Σεχτορσ 

Θυαρτερλψ Ρετυρν Αττριβυτιον φορ ΕΑΦΕ (Υ.Σ. Dολλαρ)

Χουντρψ Τοταλ Λοχαλ Χυρρενχψ Wτγ

Αυστραλια 9.96% 6.13% 3.60% 6.84%

Αυστρια 6.85% 9.80% -2.68% 0.18%

Βελγιυm 13.64% 16.77% -2.68% 1.43%

Dενmαρκ 6.69% 9.67% −2.72% 1.90%

Finland 9.64% 12.67% -2.68% 0.90%

Φρανχε 1.67% 4.47% -2.68% 9.74%

Γερmανψ 7.70% 10.67% -2.68% 9.10%

Hong Kong 6.01% 6.01% 0.00% 3.09%

Ireland 6.99% 9.94% -2.68% 0.40%

Ισραελ 8.91% 7.90% 0.87% 0.76%

Ιταλψ −2.32% 0.38% -2.68% 2.36%

ϑαπαν 9.34% 9.83% −0.44% 23.44%

Netherlands 3.14% 6.11% -2.68% 2.88%

New Zealand 18.15% 10.40% 7.02% 0.16%

Νορωαψ -0.52% 3.22% −3.63% 0.55%

Portugal 4.23% 7.11% -2.68% 0.15%

Σινγαπορε 4.24% 4.01% 0.23% 1.25%

Σπαιν -2.55% 0.14% -2.68% 3.18%

Sweden 2.43% 2.96% -0.52% 2.87%

Switzerland 2.04% 4.54% −2.39% 9.41%

Υ.Κ. 0.73% 3.52% −2.70% 19.39%

Sources: MSCI, Russell Investment Group, Standard & Poor’s.



11Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

Στψλε Μεδιαν ανδ Ινδεξ Ρετυρνσ∗ φορ Περιοδσ ενδεδ Dεχεmβερ 31, 2015

Νον−Υ.Σ. Εθυιτψ Θυαρτερ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Νον−Υ.Σ. Εθυιτψ Στψλε 4.65 0.62 5.82 4.70 4.24 5.42

ΜΣΧΙ ΕΑΦΕ 4.71 -0.81 5.01 3.60 3.03 3.54

ΜΣΧΙ ΕΑΦΕ (λοχαλ) 6.34 5.33 12.30 7.85 3.22 2.67

ΜΣΧΙ ΑΧWΙ εξ ΥΣΑ 3.30 -5.25 1.94 1.51 3.38 4.46

ΜΣΧΙ ΑΧWΙ εξ ΥΣΑ Γροωτη 5.04 −0.91 3.90 2.48 4.02 3.96

ΜΣΧΙ ΑΧWΙ εξ ΥΣΑ ςαλυε 1.50 -9.59 -0.08 0.49 2.68 4.87

Γλοβαλ Εθυιτψ Θυαρτερ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Γλοβαλ Εθυιτψ Στψλε 5.34 0.11 10.20 8.13 6.09 5.49

MSCI World 5.50 -0.87 9.63 7.59 4.98 4.04

MSCI World (local) 6.22 2.08 13.04 9.58 4.95 3.60

ΜΣΧΙ ΑΧWΙ 5.15 -1.84 8.26 6.66 5.31 4.67

Ρεγιοναλ Εθυιτψ Θυαρτερ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

ΜΣΧΙ Ευροπε 2.49 -2.84 4.51 3.88 3.36 3.47

ΜΣΧΙ Ευροπε (λοχαλ) 5.17 4.91 10.10 6.94 3.94 2.56

ΜΣΧΙ ϑαπαν 9.34 9.57 10.17 4.38 0.91 2.12

ΜΣΧΙ ϑαπαν (λοχαλ) 9.83 9.93 22.99 12.95 1.10 2.48

MSCI Paciic ex Japan 8.29 -8.47 −1.32 0.87 6.07 8.15

MSCI Paciic ex Japan (local) 5.90 -0.98 6.80 5.38 5.74 6.46

Εmεργινγ/Φροντιερ Μαρκετσ Θυαρτερ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Εmεργινγ Μαρκετ Στψλε 1.42 −13.68 −4.91 −3.46 4.79 10.13

ΜΣΧΙ Εmεργινγ Μαρκετσ 0.73 −14.60 −6.42 −4.47 3.95 8.87

ΜΣΧΙ Εmεργινγ Μαρκετσ (λοχαλ) 1.56 -5.40 1.20 1.27 6.36 10.22

ΜΣΧΙ Φροντιερ Μαρκετσ −1.23 −14.46 4.79 0.36 −1.70 �

Νον−Υ.Σ. Σmαλλ Χαπ Εθυιτψ Θυαρτερ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Νον−Υ.Σ. Σmαλλ Χαπ Στψλε 6.53 9.90 11.48 8.05 6.80 9.73

MSCI World ex USA Small Cap 5.82 5.46 7.82 4.39 4.09 7.35

ΜΣΧΙ ΑΧWΙ εξ ΥΣΑ Σmαλλ Χαπ 5.28 2.60 5.64 2.63 4.95 8.24

ΜΣΧΙ Εmεργινγ Μαρκετ Σmαλλ Χαπ 3.27 -6.85 −1.67 −3.29 6.14 10.86
*Returns less than one year are not annualized.

Sources: Callan, MSCI.

ΝΟΝ−Υ.Σ. ΕΘΥΙΤΨ (Continued)

MSCI Emerging Markets

MSCI Europe

MSCI ACWI ex USA

MSCI World ex USA

MSCI Pacific ex Japan

MSCI Japan 9.34%

2.49%

8.29%

3.91%

3.30%

0.73%

Source: MSCI

Ρολλινγ Ονε−ψεαρ Ρελατιϖε Ρετυρνσ (vs. MSCI World ex USA)

02 0396 97 98 99 00 01

-40%

-30%

-20%

-10%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15

MSCI Pacific MSCI World ex USAMSCI Europe

Source: MSCI 

Ρεγιοναλ Θυαρτερλψ Περφορmανχε (Υ.Σ. Dολλαρ)



12

Τακε Ιτ Εασψ 

Υ.Σ. ΦΙΞΕD ΙΝΧΟΜΕ |  Κεϖιν Ναγψ

Yields rose in the fourth quarter as the Federal Reserve 
raised interest rates for the irst time in nearly a decade. 
The yield curve lattened, though the effect on spreads was 
mixed: investment grade credit and mortgage backed secu−

rity (MBS) spreads tightened while asset-backed (ABS), com−

mercial MBS, and high yield spreads widened. The Βαρχλαψσ 

Αγγρεγατε Ινδεξ dropped 0.57%. 

According to the Fed, the economy showed signs of moderate 
growth, driven by ixed investment from businesses, household 
spending, and a strengthening housing sector. So after months 
of restraint, the Fed raised the federal funds rate band by 0.25% 
to 0.25%–0.50%. The Fed speciically cited a strong labor market 
as a key reason behind the decision. The 10-year U.S. Treasury 
yield increased to 2.27%. The breakeven inlation rate (the dif−
ference between nominal and real yields) on 10-year Treasuries 
increased from 1.43% to 1.58% as TIPS outperformed nominal 
Treasuries. This measure rebounded from last quarter, when it 
reached its lowest level since 2008 (1.43%).

Every sector in the Barclays Aggregate posted negative quar−
terly returns. Relative to like-duration Treasuries, the strongest 
performer was U.S. MBS which, although down 0.10%, beat 
Treasuries by 0.61%. Credit (-0.52%) was the only other sector 
to outperform Treasuries (+0.50% relative to Treasuries), buoyed 
βψ στρονγ περφορmανχε ιν τηε Φινανχιαλσ σεχτορ (+1.09% ρελατιϖε 

to Treasuries). Both ABS and U.S. agencies outperformed like-
duration Treasuries for the year, despite trailing in the quarter.

   Interm Core Bond Core Plus Ext Maturity  High Yld
  Style Style Style Style Style

 10th Percentile  -0.27 -0.19 -0.06 -0.50 -0.37

 25th Percentile  -0.41 -0.34 -0.36 -0.71 -0.98

 Median  -0.48 -0.45 -0.51 -0.82 -1.62

 75th Percentile  -0.63 -0.65 -0.72 -1.12 -2.09

 90th Percentile  -0.72 -0.87 -1.18 -1.51 -2.99

      Barclays Barclays Barclays Barclays Barclays
  Interm Agg Agg Agg Long G/C High Yld

 Benchmark  -0.51 -0.57 -0.57 -0.94 -2.07

Sources: Barclays, Callan

-4%

-3%

-2%

-1%

0%

Χαλλαν Στψλε Γρουπ Θυαρτερλψ ΡετυρνσΥ.Σ. Τρεασυρψ Ψιελδ Χυρϖεσ

-1%

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

U.S. 10-Year Treasury Yield 10-Year TIPS Yield Breakeven Inflation Rate

07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 1506

Source: Bloomberg

Ηιστοριχαλ 10−Ψεαρ Ψιελδσ 

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

Maturity (Years)

Source: Bloomberg

December 31, 2015 September 30, 2015 December 31, 2014

302520151050



13Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

Υ.Σ. ΦΙΞΕD ΙΝΧΟΜΕ (Continued)

High yield corporate bonds slumped as the Βαρχλαψσ Χορπορατε 

Ηιγη Ψιελδ Ινδεξ ended the quarter down 2.07%. The Index 
receded 4.47% for the year and underperformed Treasuries by 
5.77%. New issuance was $35.6 billion for the quarter, down 
from $42.8 billion. New issue activity for 2015 was $260.5 billion, 
16.3% λοωερ τηαν 2014.

Υ.Σ. Φιξεδ Ινχοmε Ινδεξ Χηαραχτεριστιχσ ασ οφ Dεχεmβερ 31, 2015

Βαρχλαψσ Ινδιχεσ Ψιελδ το Wορστ Μοδ Αδϕ Dυρατιον Αϖγ Ματυριτψ % οφ Βαρχλαψσ Γ/Χ % οφ Βαρχλαψσ Αγγ

Βαρχλαψσ Αγγρεγατε 2.59 5.68 7.94 100.00

Barclays Govt/Credit 2.51 6.22 8.49 100.00 68.90

Intermediate 2.06 3.97 4.31 78.98 54.42

Λονγ−Τερm 4.19 14.67 24.20 21.02 14.48

Βαρχλαψσ Γοϖτ 1.72 5.71 7.02 56.97 39.25

Barclays Credit 3.54 6.90 10.43 43.03 29.65

Βαρχλαψσ ΜΒΣ 2.77 4.49 6.89 28.64

Βαρχλαψσ ΑΒΣ 1.88 2.32 2.47 0.56

Βαρχλαψσ ΧΜΒΣ 2.97 4.99 5.62 1.83

Barclays Corp High Yield 8.74 4.34 6.19

Source: Barclays

Excess Return versus Like-Duration Treasuries

0.00%

0.32%

-0.02%

-0.28%

-0.07%

0.61%

0.50%

-1.19%

Absolute Return

Source: Barclays

Barclays Treasury

Barclays Aggregate

Barclays Agencies

Barclays MBS

Barclays CMBS

Barclays ABS

Barclays Credit

Barclays Corp. High Yield

-0.94%

-0.57%

-0.64%

-1.24%

-0.57%

-0.10%

-0.52%

-2.07%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

U.S. Credit Bellwether 10-Year Swap

Barclays High YieldMBS

ABS

CMBS ERISA

07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 1506

Source: Barclays

Φιξεδ Ινχοmε Ινδεξ Θυαρτερλψ Ρετυρνσ

Εφφεχτιϖε Ψιελδ Οϖερ Τρεασυριεσ



14

Χαλλαν Στψλε Μεδιαν ανδ Ινδεξ Ρετυρνσ∗ φορ Περιοδσ ενδεδ Dεχεmβερ 31, 2015

Βροαδ Φιξεδ Ινχοmε Θυαρτερ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Χορε Βονδ Στψλε −0.45 0.82 1.71 3.77 4.96 5.40

Χορε Βονδ Πλυσ Στψλε −0.51 0.20 1.77 4.17 5.36 5.96

Βαρχλαψσ Αγγρεγατε -0.57 0.55 1.44 3.25 4.51 4.97

Barclays Govt/Credit −0.74 0.15 1.21 3.39 4.47 5.01

Βαρχλαψσ Γοϖτ −0.91 0.86 1.01 2.77 4.10 4.53

Barclays Credit -0.52 −0.77 1.49 4.38 5.18 5.82

Citi Broad Investment Grade -0.53 0.53 1.41 3.23 4.60 5.04

Λονγ−Τερm Θυαρτερ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Εξτενδεδ Ματυριτψ Στψλε −0.82 −3.34 2.10 7.42 6.93 7.43

Barclays Long Govt/Credit −0.94 −3.30 1.70 6.98 6.45 7.07

Βαρχλαψσ Λονγ Γοϖτ -1.38 −1.16 2.55 7.65 6.67 6.97

Barclays Long Credit −0.66 -4.56 1.23 6.49 6.19 7.28

Citi Pension Discount Curve 0.77 −3.04 2.85 9.28 7.80 9.19

Ιντερmεδιατε−Τερm Θυαρτερ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Ιντερmεδιατε Στψλε −0.48 1.26 1.32 2.93 4.54 4.94

Barclays Intermediate Aggregate -0.51 1.21 1.41 2.74 4.26 4.67

Barclays Intermediate Govt/Credit −0.69 1.07 1.10 2.58 4.04 4.53

Barclays Intermediate Govt -0.84 1.18 0.81 2.02 3.71 4.07

Barclays Intermediate Credit -0.45 0.90 1.61 3.63 4.82 5.35

Σηορτ−Τερm Θυαρτερ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Dεφενσιϖε Στψλε −0.24 0.91 0.90 1.45 3.05 3.42

Αχτιϖε Dυρατιον Στψλε −0.42 1.17 1.53 3.28 4.60 5.27

Money Market Funds (net of fees) 0.00 0.01 0.01 0.01 1.17 1.41

ΜΛ Τρεασυρψ 1�3−Ψεαρ −0.44 0.54 0.51 0.70 2.42 2.84

90−Dαψ Τρεασυρψ Βιλλσ 0.03 0.05 0.05 0.07 1.24 1.61

Ηιγη Ψιελδ Θυαρτερ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Ηιγη Ψιελδ Στψλε −1.62 −3.10 2.41 5.47 6.95 7.79

Barclays Corporate High Yield −2.07 −4.47 1.69 5.04 6.96 7.59

ML High Yield Master −2.09 -4.55 1.64 4.84 6.74 7.41

Μορτγαγε/Ασσετ−Βαχκεδ Θυαρτερ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Μορτγαγε Στψλε −0.16 1.72 2.34 3.63 4.96 5.34

Βαρχλαψσ ΜΒΣ −0.10 1.51 2.01 2.96 4.64 4.90

Βαρχλαψσ ΑΒΣ -0.57 1.25 0.95 2.31 3.29 4.00

Βαρχλαψσ ΧΜΒΣ −1.24 0.97 1.68 4.09 5.20 5.79

Μυνιχιπαλ Θυαρτερ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Βαρχλαψσ Μυνι 1.50 3.30 3.16 5.35 4.72 5.01

Βαρχλαψσ Μυνι 1�10−Ψεαρ 0.79 2.45 2.24 3.56 4.08 4.25

Βαρχλαψσ Μυνι 3−Ψεαρ −0.01 1.18 1.24 1.81 3.01 3.24

ΤΙΠΣ Θυαρτερ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Barclays TIPS Full Duration −0.64 −1.44 −2.27 2.55 3.93 5.51

Barclays TIPS 1-10 Year −0.70 -0.52 −1.77 1.64 3.51 4.84

*Returns for less than one year are not annualized.

Sources: Barclays, Callan, Citigroup, Merrill Lynch.

Υ.Σ. ΦΙΞΕD ΙΝΧΟΜΕ (Continued)



15Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

GermanyU.S. Treasury U.K. Canada Japan

07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 1506

Change in 10-Year Yields from 3Q15 to 4Q15 

0.23%

0.04%

0.20%

-0.04%

-0.09%

Source: Bloomberg

Germany

U.S. Treasury

U.K.

Canada

Japan

Σλιπ �ν Σλιδε

ΝΟΝ−Υ.Σ. ΦΙΞΕD ΙΝΧΟΜΕ |  Κψλε Φεκετε

Τηε Χιτι Νον−Υ.Σ. Wορλδ Γοϖερνmεντ Βονδ Ινδεξ declined 
1.38% for the quarter and 5.54% for the year. As the U.S. dol−
lar continued to appreciate, the Index’s hedged equivalent 
inched ahead 0.48% for the quarter and 1.52% for the year. The 
yield on 10-year German bunds was volatile throughout 2015: 
it started off the year at 0.54%, sank to 0.18% on March 31, 
climbed to 0.76% on June 30, and eventually ended year at 
0.63%. Adding to the noise of 2015, German debt with maturi−
ties as far out as seven years provided negative yields, indicat−
ing bond investors would have to pay to own before adjusting for 
inlation. Approximately a third of the debt issued by European 
governments had negative yields at the end of the year. U.K. 
sovereigns lagged their European counterparts as the 10-year 
gilt fell 1.36%, pushing yields higher than the 10-year German 
bund. The Bank of England continued to battle weak inlation 
and held interest rates at an all-time low throughout the year. 

Θυαρτερλψ Ρετυρν Αττριβυτιον φορ Νον−Υ.Σ. Γοϖ�τ Ινδιχεσ 

(Υ.Σ. Dολλαρ)

Χουντρψ Τοταλ Λοχαλ Χυρρενχψ Wτγ

Αυστραλια 3.05% -0.53% 3.60% 2.14%

Αυστρια -2.86% -0.18% -2.68% 1.83%

Βελγιυm −3.13% -0.45% -2.68% 2.98%

Canada −2.79% 0.72% -3.48% 2.35%

Dενmαρκ −3.26% -0.56% −2.72% 0.72%

Finland −2.70% −0.02% -2.68% 0.72%

Φρανχε −2.69% −0.01% -2.68% 11.25%

Γερmανψ −3.03% -0.35% -2.68% 8.80%

Ireland −2.09% 0.61% -2.68% 0.93%

Ιταλψ −1.07% 1.66% -2.68% 11.43%

ϑαπαν 0.74% 1.18% −0.44% 33.36%

Μαλαψσια 4.27% 1.84% 2.38% 0.54%

Μεξιχο -0.89% 1.00% -1.88% 1.14%

Netherlands −2.77% −0.09% -2.68% 2.96%

Νορωαψ -3.58% 0.05% −3.63% 0.33%

Poland −3.09% 0.64% −3.71% 0.66%

Σινγαπορε 0.66% 0.43% 0.23% 0.42%

Σουτη Αφριχα −16.79% -6.75% −10.77% 0.48%

Σπαιν -1.48% 1.24% -2.68% 6.41%

Sweden -2.08% -1.57% -0.52% 0.57%

Switzerland -2.75% −0.37% −2.39% 0.35%

Υ.Κ. −3.99% −1.33% −2.70% 9.63%

Source: Citigroup

The Japanese 10-year bond yield declined to 0.27%, the lowest 
since January. The country dodged a recession as GDP growth 
was revised upwards to 1% through September; the original cal−
culation had it contracting by 0.8%.

In December, the ECB lowered its deposit rate to -0.3% and 
extended its quantitative easing program out to March 2017. 
Propelled by the ECB’s monetary policy and investors’ hunt for 
yield, European periphery countries outperformed their core-
eurozone counterparts. Italian and Spanish 10-year bonds 
earned 1.82% and 1.43%, respectively. Both countries contin−

ued their recovery from record-long recessions as unemploy−

ment dropped to a three-year low.

10−Ψεαρ Γλοβαλ Γοϖερνmεντ Βονδ Ψιελδσ



16

ΝΟΝ−Υ.Σ. ΦΙΞΕD ΙΝΧΟΜΕ (Continued)

Emerging markets were mired by political and economic strife. 
The dollar-denominated JPM EMBI Global Diversiied Index 
gained 1.25%, outperforming emerging local currency-denom−

inated sovereign debt. The negative currency effect pulled the 
JPM GBI-EM Global Diversiied Index down (-0.01%). 

The South African 10-year bond declined 7.26% (on a dollar-
denominated basis) over worries that the country’s political 
and economic turmoil could result in a downgrade to junk sta−

tus. Investors responded harshly after President Jacob Zuma 
ired Finance Minister Nhlanhla Nene and hired an unknown 

candidate for the job. Additionally, the rand’s exchange rate 
dropped to record lows against major currencies. The local 
currency-denominated South African 10-year bond plum−

meted 28.22% in 2015. Brazilian debt declined 30.69% in 
2015 on a local currency basis, in the midst of a corruption 
scandal and President Rousseff’s possible impeachment. 
Brazil remains in a steep recession after being cut to below 
investment grade by Standard & Poor’s earlier in the year. 

  Global Fixed Non-U.S. Fixed Emerging Emerging
  Style Style Debt DB Debt Local 

 10th Percentile  -0.34 0.41 2.22 0.66

 25th Percentile  -0.62 -0.81 1.74 0.26

 Median  -0.91 -1.19 1.51 -0.19

 75th Percentile  -1.14 -1.36 1.01 -0.44

 90th Percentile  -1.31 -1.88 0.14 -0.97

   Citi World Citi Non-U.S.  JPM EMBI JPM GBI-EM
  Gov  World Gov  Gl Div Gl Div

 Benchmark   -1.23 -1.38 1.25 -0.01

-2%

0%

2%

4%

Χαλλαν Στψλε Γρουπ Θυαρτερλψ Ρετυρνσ

Χαλλαν Στψλε Μεδιαν ανδ Ινδεξ Ρετυρνσ∗ φορ Περιοδσ ενδεδ Dεχεmβερ 31, 2015

Γλοβαλ Φιξεδ Ινχοmε Θυαρτερ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Γλοβαλ Στψλε −0.91 −3.31 −1.75 1.29 4.29 5.34

Citi World Govt −1.23 -3.57 −2.70 -0.08 3.44 4.59

Citi World Govt (Λοχαλ) 0.01 1.28 3.25 3.98 3.74 4.09

Βαρχλαψσ Γλοβαλ Αγγρεγατε −0.92 -3.15 −1.74 0.90 3.74 4.75

Νον−Υ.Σ. Φιξεδ Θυαρτερ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Νον−Υ.Σ. Στψλε −1.19 −5.89 −3.85 −0.12 3.67 5.27

Citi Non-U.S. World Govt -1.38 -5.54 −4.27 −1.30 3.05 4.43

Citi Non-U.S. World Govt (Λοχαλ) 0.48 1.52 4.20 4.49 3.72 4.01

Ευροπεαν Φιξεδ Θυαρτερ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Citi Euro Govt Bond −2.23 -8.74 -1.05 1.73 3.77 6.28
Citi Euro Govt Bond (Λοχαλ) 0.47 1.65 4.92 5.73 4.44 5.13

Εmεργινγ Μαρκετσ Φιξεδ Θυαρτερ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

JPM EMBI Global Diversiied 1.25 1.18 0.99 5.36 6.86 8.99
JPM GBI-EM Global Diversiied −0.01 −14.92 -9.95 -3.48 4.31 �

*Returns less than one year are not annualized. 

Sources: Callan, Citigroup, JPMorgan Chase.

Εmεργινγ Σπρεαδσ Οϖερ Dεϖελοπεδ (By Region)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

11 12 13 14 15

Emerging Americas Emerging EMEA (Europe, Middle East, Africa)

Source: Barclays

Emerging Asia

Sources: Callan, Citigroup, JPMorgan Chase



17Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

Α Στραιγητ βυτ Βυmπψ Ροαδ

ΡΕΑΛ ΕΣΤΑΤΕ |  Mike Pritts

Τηε ΝΧΡΕΙΦ Προπερτψ Ινδεξ advanced 2.91%, recording a 
1.20% income return and a 1.72% appreciation return during 
the quarter. The NCREIF Property Index cash-low return appre−

ciated 0.64% for the quarter and 3.10% for the trailing four quar−
ters. There were 210 asset trades, representing $11.3 billion of 
overall transactional volume, comfortably ahead of the $5.1 bil−
lion 10-year quarterly transaction average and the prior peak of 
$8.7 billion in the second quarter of 2007.

Pricing remained stable as equal-weighted transactional capi−
talization rates decreased to 5.90%, a slight retreat from the 
2015 high (+5.91%) during the third quarter. Over the course 
of the prior cycle, quarterly equal-weighted transactional capi−
talization rates dipped to a low of 5.46% in the fourth quarter of 
2007 and expanded to a peak of 8.46% in the third quarter of 
2009. During the fourth quarter of 2015, appraisal capitalization 
rates decreased from 4.67% to 4.58%. As markets peaked over 
the prior cycle, appraisal capitalization rates declined to a low of 
4.89% in the third quarter of 2008.

Τηε NCREIF Open End Diversiied Core Equity Index notched 
a 3.11% total return, comprising a 1.14% income return and a 
2.20% appreciation return. In the listed real estate market, the 
ΦΤΣΕ ΕΠΡΑ/ΝΑΡΕΙΤ Dεϖελοπεδ ΡΕΙΤ Ινδεξ (USD) gained 
4.40% and U.S. REITs tracked by the ΦΤΣΕ ΝΑΡΕΙΤ Εθυιτψ 

ΡΕΙΤσ Ινδεξ advanced an impressive 7.26%. 

In the U.S., volatility continued as REIT sectors rebounded 
sharply. Positive sector performance was led by Self-Storage 
(+16.76%), followed by Industrial (+8.69%), Residential 
(+8.38%), Retail (+8.10%), Malls (+6.77%), and Health Care 
(+2.61%). The only negative was Lodging (-2.27%).  For the 
year, Residential was the best performer of the primary real 
estate sectors (+10.22%), while Lodging lagged (-18.09%). U.S. 
REITs raised $10.2 billion following the completion of 14 unse−

cured-debt offerings raising $6.9 billion, 14 secondary offerings 

raising $3.1 billion, and two preferred-equity offerings raising 
$117 million. There was one U.S. REIT IPO during the quarter.  
Public equity inancing slightly increased from the third quarter’s 
ive-year low, but remained a challenge.  

During 2015, MSCI and S&P Dow Jones announced that in 
August 2016, they will begin to break out real estate into a dis−

tinct sector rather than continuing to include it in the broader 
group of Financials.  There are currently twenty-ive companies 
included in the S&P 500 Index that will now be included in the 
νεω ρεαλ εστατε σεχτορ.  Wηιλε mοστ χοmmερχιαλ ρεαλ εστατε ιν τηε 

U.S. is traded in the private markets, this change indicates the 
increasing importance of publicly listed real estate.  

In European core markets, pricing appears undeterred by volatil−
ity.  Capital-raising remains robust and has consolidated. Several 
large, commingled vehicles are currently in the market with new 
funds.  According to a survey produced by INREV, many (65%) 
Ευροπεαν ινϖεστορσ εξπεχτ το ινχρεασε τηειρ αλλοχατιον το ρεαλ 

εστατε οϖερ τηε νεξτ τωο ψεαρσ.    

Ρολλινγ Ονε−Ψεαρ Ρετυρνσ

-60%

-40%

-20%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

REIT Database Global REIT Database*Private Real Estate Database

02 0396 97 98 99 00 01 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15

*Global REIT returns from 3Q96

Source: Callan



18

ΡΕΑΛ ΕΣΤΑΤΕ (Continued)

Χαλλαν Dαταβασε Μεδιαν ανδ Ινδεξ Ρετυρνσ∗ φορ Περιοδσ ενδεδ Dεχεmβερ 31, 2015

Πριϖατε Ρεαλ Εστατε Θυαρτερ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Ρεαλ Εστατε Dαταβασε (νετ οφ φεεσ) 2.90 12.90 12.97 12.60 5.47 7.90

NCREIF Property 2.91 13.33 12.04 12.18 7.76 8.96

NFI-ODCE (value wtd. net) 3.11 13.95 12.77 12.60 5.55 6.94

Πυβλιχ Ρεαλ Εστατε Θυαρτερ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

ΡΕΙΤ Dαταβασε 7.50 4.48 12.03 12.89 8.32 12.13

FTSE NAREIT Equity 7.26 3.20 11.23 11.96 7.41 11.16

Γλοβαλ Ρεαλ Εστατε Θυαρτερ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Γλοβαλ ΡΕΙΤ Dαταβασε 4.38 1.03 7.61 8.95 6.15 �

FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed REIT 4.40 0.05 6.59 7.97 5.39 9.20

*Returns for less than one year are not annualized.

All REIT returns are reported gross in USD. 

Sources: Callan, NAREIT, NCREIF, The FTSE Group. NCREIF statistics are the product of  direct queries and may fluctuate over time.

ΝΧΡΕΙΦ Τρανσαχτιον ανδ Αππραισαλ Χαπιταλιζατιον Ρατεσ ΝΧΡΕΙΦ Χαπιταλιζατιον Ρατεσ βψ Προπερτψ Τψπε

0%

3%

6%

9%

Appraisal Capitalization RatesTransaction Capitalization Rates

06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15

Source: NCREIF

Note: Transaction capitalization rate is equal-weighted.

0%

3%

6%

9%

IndustrialApartment RetailOffice

06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15

Source: NCREIF

Note: Capitalization rates are appraisal-based.

Asian Real Estate funds continue to raise capital despite a slow−

ing Chinese GDP and record capital outlows in the stock market 
and pressure on the renminbi.  The big question in early 2016 is 
whether continued market uncertainty in the Chinese economy 
ωιλλ αφφεχτ χοmmερχιαλ προπερτψ ϖαλυατιονσ ιν οτηερ παρτσ οφ Ασια 

and the world. 

CMBS issuance reached $23.4 billion, remaining steady since 
the third quarter and slightly down year-over-year ($25.2 billion). 
Total issuance for the trailing-12 months was $101.0 billion, a 
reduction from its second-quarter peak. 



19Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

Πριϖατε Εθυιτψ Περφορmανχε Dαταβασε (%) (Pooled Horizon IRRs through June 30, 2015*)

Στρατεγψ 3 Μοντησ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ 20 Ψεαρσ

Αλλ ςεντυρε 6.8 26.8 21.0 18.7 11.4 4.0 27.1 

Γροωτη Εθυιτψ 5.0 11.0 15.3 14.6 12.7 9.9 14.9 

Αλλ Βυψουτσ 5.3 7.7 15.7 15.4 12.5 11.3 13.2 

Mezzanine 3.6 8.5 11.3 11.8 10.7 7.8 10.0 

Distressed 1.6 4.2 13.3 12.2 10.4 11.1 11.2 

Αλλ Πριϖατε Εθυιτψ 5.1 10.7 16.1 15.4 12.1 9.2 14.4 

S&P 500 Index 0.3 7.4 17.3 17.3 7.9 4.4 8.9 

Private equity returns are net of  fees. 

Sources: Standard & Poor’s, Thomson/Cambridge. 

*Most recent data available at time of  publication.

Λεϖελ ατ 35,000 Φεετ    

ΠΡΙςΑΤΕ ΕΘΥΙΤΨ |  Gary Robertson

In fundraising, Πριϖατε Εθυιτψ Αναλψστ reports that 2015’s fund−

raising total of $257 billion is a modest decline from 2014 (-3.6% 

or $10.5 billion). The number of funds formed declined by 83 

(-10.8%) to 682 in 2015. The fourth quarter’s new commitments 

totaled $59.7 billion with 125 new partnerships formed. While the 

dollar volume increased by 11% compared to the prior quarter’s 

$53.7 billion, the number of funds formed fell by 20% from the third 

quarter’s 179. The year’s inal quarter was surprisingly weak, likely 

due to the onset of public equity market volatility in mid-August.  

According to Βυψουτσ newsletter, announced and closed new-

company acquisitions totaled 1,911 in 2015, up 4% from 1,836 

in 2014. Announced and closed dollar volume was $303.7 billion, 

up 47% from $206.8 billion in 2014. The quarter generated 365 

announced and closed transactions, down from 548. Disclosed 

dollar volume totaled $77.2 billion, up from $66.7 billion. According 

to S&P Capital IQ, in the second half of the year average purchase 

price multiples remained just over 10x EBITDA.

According to the National Venture Capital Association, the $58.8 

βιλλιον οφ νεω ινϖεστmεντ ιν ϖεντυρε χαπιταλ χοmπανιεσ ισ α 16% 

jump for the year, up from $50.8 billion. The dollar volume in 2015 

is the second highest year on record, although signiicantly shy of  

irst place: $105.0 billion in 2000. The year produced 4,380 rounds 

of investment, slightly down from last year’s 4,441. Quarterly 

investment volume totaled $11.3 billion in 962 rounds of inancing, 

down from $16.6 billion in 1,149 rounds. 

Φυνδσ Χλοσεδ ϑανυαρψ 1 το Dεχεmβερ 31, 2015

Στρατεγψ Νο. οφ Φυνδσ Αmτ (∃mm) Περχεντ

ςεντυρε Χαπιταλ 281 34,274 13%

Βυψουτσ 263 169,694 66%

Subordinated Debt 28 12,535 5%
Distressed Debt 37 22,573 9%

Secondary and Other 15 6,637 3%

Fund-of-funds 58 10,961 4%

Τοταλσ 682 256,673 100%

Source: Private Equity Analyst

Regarding exits, Βυψουτσ reports that 2015’s aggregate disclosed 

M&A exit values of $127.4 billion is up 13% from 2014’s $111.5 

billion. The 513 private M&A exits of buyout-backed companies 

is down 35% from the 690 in 2014. Seven of the completed 99 

M&A exits had values over $1 billion, with the largest being Silver 

Lake’s $5.3 billion sale of Interactive Data Corp. to Intercontinental 

Exchange. There were only four buyout-backed IPOs, with a total 

value of $774.4 million. The full year produced 31 IPOs, raising a 

total of $9.1 billion. 

Venture-backed M&A exits for the year total 372 with 84 announced 

values totaling $16.2 billion, down from 385 exits and $48.1 billion 

in announced value last year. The quarter had 91 exits with 26 

announced values totaling $3.6 billion. The total number of M&A 

deals and announced value both declined from the third quarter’s 

109 exits totaling $6.9 billion. The year produced 77 venture-

backed IPOs raising $9.4 billion; for the quarter, there were 16 

raising $2.2 billion. The number and total loat was up versus the 

third quarter’s 15 IPOs raising $1.9 billion. 



20

Χαλλαν Dαταβασε Μεδιαν ανδ Ινδεξ Ρετυρνσ∗ φορ Περιοδσ ενδεδ Dεχεmβερ 31, 2015

Θυαρτερ 3 Θυαρτερσ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ

Ηεδγε Φυνδ−οφ−Φυνδσ Dαταβασε 0.40 −0.09 4.72 3.54 3.96 5.28

CS Hedge Fund Index −0.12 −0.71 4.30 3.55 4.97 5.95
ΧΣ Εθυιτψ Μαρκετ Νευτραλ −0.04 1.69 3.16 2.96 −1.44 1.39

ΧΣ Χονϖερτιβλε Αρβιτραγε -0.58 0.81 1.67 2.76 4.42 4.94

ΧΣ Φιξεδ Ινχοmε Αρβιτραγε 0.03 0.59 2.90 4.84 3.84 4.50
ΧΣ Μυλτι−Στρατεγψ 0.51 3.84 7.01 6.77 6.17 6.89
ΧΣ Dιστρεσσεδ −1.76 -5.30 4.05 3.81 4.82 7.80
ΧΣ Ρισκ Αρβιτραγε 0.81 0.41 1.30 1.50 3.55 3.65
ΧΣ Εϖεντ−Dριϖεν Μυλτι−Στρατεγψ -2.55 −6.67 2.86 1.08 5.12 6.45
ΧΣ Λονγ/Σηορτ Εθυιτψ 1.58 3.56 8.77 5.23 5.80 5.98
ΧΣ Dεδιχατεδ Σηορτ Βιασ −4.29 2.38 -10.15 −9.72 -8.90 −7.19

ΧΣ Γλοβαλ Μαχρο 0.62 0.17 2.52 3.70 6.79 9.04

ΧΣ Μαναγεδ Φυτυρεσ -1.05 −0.93 4.54 1.22 4.21 5.40
ΧΣ Εmεργινγ Μαρκετσ 2.79 −0.22 3.30 2.55 5.17 8.06

*Returns less than one year are not annualized. Sources: Callan, Credit Suisse. 

Υνδερ Πρεσσυρε

ΗΕDΓΕ ΦΥΝDΣ |  ϑιm ΜχΚεε

Growing unease with economic change is evident in the capi−
tal markets. Commodity prices slid further, led by oil, as China 
struggled with its centrally planned shift to a consumer-driven 
economy. Strong employment gains and record auto sales in 
the U.S. bolstered the Federal Reserve’s conidence to raise 
short-term rates for the irst time in almost a decade. Despite 
rebounding equities in developed markets, credit spreads 
widened, particularly among lower-rated bonds in the com−

modity sector. 

As a proxy for hedge funds without implementation costs, the 
Χρεδιτ Συισσε Ηεδγε Φυνδ Ινδεξ (ΧΣ ΗΦΙ) slipped 0.12% 
in the fourth quarter. By contrast, the median manager in the 
Χαλλαν Ηεδγε Φυνδ−οφ−Φυνδσ Dαταβασε edged ahead 0.40%, 
νετ οφ αλλ φεεσ.  

Within the CS HFI, the major sector winner was Λονγ/Σηορτ 

Εθυιτψ (+1.58%). Εϖεντ−Dριϖεν Μυλτι−Στρατεγψ (-2.55%), which 
is typically more focused on soft catalysts, fell particularly hard 
as investors led crowded trades in this space. Dιστρεσσεδ 

(-1.76%) also lost ground with credit spreads widening, but 
outpaced the Βαρχλαψσ Ηιγη Ψιελδ Χρεδιτ Ινδεξ (−2.07%). 

Within Callan’s Hedge Fund-of-Funds Database, market expo−

sures marginally affected performance. Aided by the U.S. 
equity market rally, the median Χαλλαν Λονγ/Σηορτ Εθυιτψ ΦΟΦ 

(+0.85%) outpaced the Χαλλαν Αβσολυτε Ρετυρν ΦΟΦ (-1.15%). 
With diversifying exposures to both non-directional and direc−

τιοναλ στψλεσ, τηε Core Diversiied FOF modestly gained 0.37%.

  Absolute Return Core Diversified Long/Short Eq
  FOF Style FOF Style FOF Style

 10th Percentile 2.21 1.41 3.14

 25th Percentile 0.43 0.94 2.54

 Median -1.15 0.37 0.85

 75th Percentile -1.58 -0.05 -0.48

 90th Percentile -2.08 -0.75 -1.01

 T-Bills + 5% 1.26 1.26 1.26

Sources: Callan, Merrill Lynch

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

Χαλλαν Στψλε Γρουπ Θυαρτερλψ Ρετυρνσ



21Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

The Callan DC Index is an equally weighted index tracking the cash lows 
ανδ περφορmανχε οφ νεαρλψ 90 πλανσ, ρεπρεσεντινγ mορε τηαν ονε mιλλιον 

DΧ παρτιχιπαντσ ανδ οϖερ ∃135 βιλλιον ιν ασσετσ. Τηε Ινδεξ ισ υπδατεδ 

θυαρτερλψ ανδ ισ αϖαιλαβλε ον Χαλλαν�σ ωεβσιτε, ασ ισ τηε θυαρτερλψ DΧ 

Οβσερϖερ νεωσλεττερ.

The Callan DC Index™ declined 5.82% in the third quarter of 
2015, relecting widespread losses in global equity markets. 

According to the Callan DC Index, the typical deined contribu−

tion (DC) plan trailed deined beneit (DB) plans by 1.83% in 
the third quarter of 2015. This is primarily because DC plans 
have little exposure to longer-term ixed income. Meanwhile, 
the average 2035 target date fund fared even worse—declin−

ing 7.34%—relecting its higher allocation to equities (78% 
αϖεραγε αλλοχατιον).

Dριϖεν αλmοστ εντιρελψ βψ ινϖεστmεντ λοσσεσ, DΧ πλαν βαλανχεσ 

shrank by 5.97% in the third quarter. However, annualized total 
growth since inception remains steady at a respectable 7.33%. 
In the long term, participant contributions (net lows) added 
2.39% αννυαλλψ, ωηιλε mαρκετ αππρεχιατιον (ρετυρν γροωτη) χον−

tributed the remaining 4.94%.

Almost three-fourths of the asset classes in the DC Index expe−

rienced net outlows in the third quarter. Predictably, target 
date funds were among the only asset class to attract inlows. 
Despite weak performance, about 60 cents of every dollar that 
moved within DC plans ended up in target date funds.

For the irst time in two years, stable value experienced net 
inlows. Conversely, U.S. large cap and company stock saw 
signiicant outlows for the second consecutive quarter. Third-
θυαρτερ τυρνοϖερ αχτιϖιτψ (ι.ε., νετ τρανσφερ αχτιϖιτψ λεϖελσ) ωιτηιν 

DC plans came in at 0.38%, which is slightly higher than the 
second quarter (0.32%) but still well below the historical average 
of 0.65%.

Χηασινγ τηε Μαρκετ 

DΕΦΙΝΕD ΧΟΝΤΡΙΒΥΤΙΟΝ |  Tom Szkwarla

Νετ Χαση Φλοω Αναλψσισ (Τηιρδ Θυαρτερ 2015)∗ 

(Top Two and Bottom Two Asset Gatherers)

Ασσετ Χλασσ

Φλοωσ ασ % οφ

Τοταλ Νετ Φλοωσ

Target Date Funds 60.70%

Σταβλε ςαλυε 22.06%

U.S. Small/Mid Cap -18.45%

Υ.Σ. Λαργε Χαπ −42.20%

Τοταλ Τυρνοϖερ∗∗ 0.38%

Source: Callan DC Index

Data provided here is the most recent available at time of  publication.

* DC Index inception date is January 2006. DB plan performance is gross of  fees. 

**Total Index “turnover” measures the percentage of  total invested assets (transfers 

only, excluding contributions and withdrawals) that moved between asset classes. 

Ινϖεστmεντ Περφορmανχε∗

Γροωτη Σουρχεσ∗

Average 2035 Fund Average Corporate DB Plan*Total DC Index

-5.82%

4.94%

Third Quarter 2015Annualized Since Inception

-7.34%

5.74%

-3.99%

4.52%

% Net Flows % Return Growth

2.39%

% Total Growth

-5.97%

7.33%

Third Quarter 2015Annualized Since Inception

-0.15%

4.94%

-5.82%



C
o

m
b

in
e

d
 P

la
n

Combined Plan



Actual vs Target Asset Allocation
As of December 31, 2015

The top left chart shows the Fund’s asset allocation as of December 31, 2015. The top right chart shows the Fund’s target
asset allocation as outlined in the investment policy statement. The bottom chart ranks the fund’s asset allocation and the
target allocation versus the Public Fund - Mid (100mm-1B).

Actual Asset Allocation

Large Cap Equity
33%

Small Cap Equity
9%

Intl Developed Equity
18%

Emerging Equity
5%

Domestic Fixed Income
36%

Target Asset Allocation

Large Cap Equity
32%

Small Cap Equity
8%

Intl Developed Equity
19%

Emerging Equity
6%

Domestic Fixed Income
35%

$000s Weight Percent $000s
Asset Class Actual Actual Target Difference Difference
Large Cap Equity          77,550   32.5%   32.0%    0.5%           1,297
Small Cap Equity          20,718    8.7%    8.0%    0.7%           1,655
Intl Developed Equity          43,679   18.3%   19.0% (0.7%) (1,596)
Emerging Equity          10,991    4.6%    6.0% (1.4%) (3,307)
Domestic Fixed Income          85,352   35.8%   35.0%    0.8%           1,951
Total         238,289  100.0%  100.0%

Asset Class Weights vs Public Fund - Mid (100mm-1B)

W
e

ig
h

ts

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Domestic Domestic Intl
Broad Eq Fixed Income Equity

(31)(37)

(15)(21)

(7)
(2)

10th Percentile 52.73 37.15 22.05
25th Percentile 44.62 34.10 20.06

Median 36.15 28.04 17.90
75th Percentile 29.67 23.21 14.71
90th Percentile 25.66 14.44 11.46

Fund 41.24 35.82 22.94

Target 40.00 35.00 25.00

% Group Invested 97.10% 97.10% 91.30%

* Current Quarter Target = 35.0% Barclays Aggregate Index, 32.0% S&P 500 Index, 19.0% MSCI EAFE Index, 8.0% Russell 2000 Index and 6.0% MSCI

Emerging Mkts Idx.

 27
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Quarterly Total Fund Relative Attribution - December 31, 2015

The following analysis approaches Total Fund Attribution from the perspective of relative return. Relative return attribution
separates and quantifies the sources of total fund excess return relative to its target. This excess return is separated into two
relative attribution effects: Asset Allocation Effect and Manager Selection Effect. The Asset Allocation Effect represents the
excess return due to the actual total fund asset allocation differing from the target asset allocation. Manager Selection Effect
represents the total fund impact of the individual managers excess returns relative to their benchmarks.

Asset Class Under or Overweighting

(2.0%) (1.5%) (1.0%) (0.5%) 0.0% 0.5% 1.0% 1.5%

Large Cap Equity 0.50%

Small Cap Equity 0.70%

Domestic Fixed Income 0.86%

International Developed E (0.75%)

Emerging Equity (1.31%)

Large Cap Equity

Small Cap Equity

Domestic Fixed Income

International Developed E

Emerging Equity

Total

Actual vs Target Returns

(2%) 0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10%

5.94%

7.04%

4.75%

3.59%

(0.34%)

(0.57%)

4.81%

4.71%

(0.20%)

0.73%

3.02%

3.32%

Actual Target

Relative Attribution by Asset Class

(0.50%)(0.40%)(0.30%)(0.20%)(0.10%) 0.00% 0.10% 0.20% 0.30%

(0.35%)
(0.00%)

(0.35%)

0.10%
(0.01%)

0.09%

0.08%
(0.10%)

(0.01%)

0.02%
(0.02%)

(0.00%)

(0.05%)
0.03%

(0.02%)

(0.20%)
(0.10%)

(0.29%)

Manager Effect Asset Allocation Total

Relative Attribution Effects for Quarter ended December 31, 2015

Effective Effective Total
Actual Target Actual Target Manager Asset Relative

Asset Class Weight Weight Return Return Effect Allocation Return
Large Cap Equity 33% 32% 5.94% 7.04% (0.35%) (0.00%) (0.35%)
Small Cap Equity 9% 8% 4.75% 3.59% 0.10% (0.01%) 0.09%
Domestic Fixed Income 36% 35% (0.34%) (0.57%) 0.08% (0.10%) (0.01%)
International Developed E18% 19% 4.81% 4.71% 0.02% (0.02%) (0.00%)
Emerging Equity 5% 6% (0.20%) 0.73% (0.05%) 0.03% (0.02%)

Total = + +3.02% 3.32% (0.20%) (0.10%) (0.29%)

* Current Quarter Target = 35.0% Barclays Aggregate Index, 32.0% S&P 500 Index, 19.0% MSCI EAFE Index, 8.0% Russell 2000 Index and 6.0% MSCI

Emerging Mkts Idx.

 28
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Cumulative Total Fund Relative Attribution - December 31, 2015

The charts below accumulate the Total Fund Attribution Analysis (shown earlier) over multiple periods to examine the
cumulative sources of excess total fund performance relative to target. These cumulative results quantify the longer-term
sources of total fund excess return relative to target by asset class. These relative attribution effects separate the cumulative
sources of total fund excess return into Asset Allocation Effect and Manager Selection Effect.

One Year Relative Attribution Effects

(1.5%) (1.0%) (0.5%) 0.0% 0.5% 1.0% 1.5%

Large Cap Equity

Small Cap Equity

Domestic Fixed Income

International Developed E

Emerging Equity

Total

Manager Effect Asset Allocation Total

Cumulative Relative Attribution Effects

(0.40%)

(0.30%)

(0.20%)

(0.10%)

0.00%

0.10%

0.20%

0.30%

0.40%

0.50%

2015

Manager Effect

Asset Allocation

Total

One Year Relative Attribution Effects

Effective Effective Total
Actual Target Actual Target Manager Asset Relative

Asset Class Weight Weight Return Return Effect Allocation Return
Large Cap Equity 32% 31% (1.17%) 1.38% (0.81%) (0.06%) (0.86%)
Small Cap Equity 8% 8% 5.14% (4.41%) 0.80% (0.08%) 0.72%
Domestic Fixed Income 37% 37% 0.51% 0.55% (0.02%) (0.11%) (0.13%)
International Developed E18% 19% (1.17%) (0.81%) (0.07%) (0.07%) (0.14%)
Emerging Equity 5% 6% (14.86%) (14.60%) (0.01%) 0.15% 0.14%

Total = + +(0.97%) (0.69%) (0.12%) (0.16%) (0.28%)

* Current Quarter Target = 35.0% Barclays Aggregate Index, 32.0% S&P 500 Index, 19.0% MSCI EAFE Index, 8.0% Russell 2000 Index and 6.0% MSCI

Emerging Mkts Idx.

 29
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Cumulative Total Fund Relative Attribution - December 31, 2015

The charts below accumulate the Total Fund Attribution Analysis (shown earlier) over multiple periods to examine the
cumulative sources of excess total fund performance relative to target. These cumulative results quantify the longer-term
sources of total fund excess return relative to target by asset class. These relative attribution effects separate the cumulative
sources of total fund excess return into Asset Allocation Effect and Manager Selection Effect.

Three Year Annualized Relative Attribution Effects

(0.30%) (0.20%) (0.10%) 0.00% 0.10% 0.20% 0.30% 0.40% 0.50%

Large Cap Equity

Small Cap Equity

Domestic Fixed Income

International Developed E

Emerging Equity

Total

Manager Effect Asset Allocation Total

Cumulative Relative Attribution Effects

(0.5%)

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2013 2014 2015

Manager Effect

Asset Allocation

Total

Three Year Annualized Relative Attribution Effects

Effective Effective Total
Actual Target Actual Target Manager Asset Relative

Asset Class Weight Weight Return Return Effect Allocation Return
Large Cap Equity 32% 31% 14.59% 15.13% (0.14%) 0.06% (0.08%)
Small Cap Equity 8% 7% 15.47% 11.65% 0.29% 0.05% 0.34%
Domestic Fixed Income 37% 39% 1.90% 1.44% 0.17% 0.11% 0.27%
International Developed E18% 18% 4.35% 5.01% (0.13%) (0.03%) (0.16%)
Emerging Equity 4% 4% - - 0.00% (0.06%) (0.05%)

Total = + +7.17% 6.85% 0.19% 0.13% 0.32%

* Current Quarter Target = 35.0% Barclays Aggregate Index, 32.0% S&P 500 Index, 19.0% MSCI EAFE Index, 8.0% Russell 2000 Index and 6.0% MSCI

Emerging Mkts Idx.

 30
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Total Fund
Period Ended December 31, 2015

Investment Philosophy
* Current Quarter Target = 35.0% Barclays Aggregate Index, 32.0% S&P 500 Index, 19.0% MSCI EAFE Index, 8.0%
Russell 2000 Index and 6.0% MSCI Emerging Mkts Idx.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
Total Fund’s portfolio posted a 3.02% return for the quarter placing it in the 54 percentile of the Public Fund - Mid
(100mm-1B) group for the quarter and in the 83 percentile for the last year.

Total Fund’s portfolio underperformed the Target by 0.29% for the quarter and underperformed the Target for the year
by 0.28%.

Performance vs Public Fund - Mid (100mm-1B) (Gross)

(4%)

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

Last Quarter Last Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years Last 15 Years Last 21-3/4
Year Years

(54)(30)

(83)(76)

(55)
(66)

(30)
(57)

(17)

(60)

(11)

(58)
(27)

(75)

(7)

(72)

10th Percentile 3.82 1.39 9.31 8.11 11.00 6.62 6.45 8.72
25th Percentile 3.47 0.84 8.23 7.70 10.41 6.05 5.96 8.24

Median 3.08 0.13 7.30 6.93 9.66 5.66 5.58 7.87
75th Percentile 2.58 (0.65) 6.41 6.29 8.71 5.23 5.20 7.32
90th Percentile 1.99 (1.58) 4.98 5.47 7.85 4.56 4.70 6.78

Total Fund 3.02 (0.97) 7.17 7.42 10.77 6.56 5.92 8.86

Target 3.32 (0.69) 6.83 6.69 9.23 5.56 5.19 7.39

Relative Return vs Target

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(1.5%)

(1.0%)

(0.5%)

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Total Fund

Public Fund - Mid (100mm-1B) (Gross)
Annualized Seven Year Risk vs Return

0 5 10 15
2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

Total Fund

Target

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 31
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Asset Class Rankings

The charts below show the rankings of each asset class component of the Total Fund relative to appropriate comparative
databases. In the upper right corner of each graph is the weighted average of the rankings across the different asset classes.
The weights of the fund’s actual asset allocation are used to make this calculation. The weighted average ranking can be
viewed as a measure of the fund’s overall success in picking managers and structuring asset classes.

Total Asset Class Performance
One Year Ended December 31, 2015

R
e

tu
rn

s

(10%)

(8%)

(6%)

(4%)

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

Plan- Plan- Intl Plan-
Dom Equity Equity  Dom Fixed

(58)(51)

(56)(57)

(33)(32)

10th Percentile 2.10 (0.01) 1.18
25th Percentile 1.11 (1.91) 0.76

Median 0.29 (3.80) (0.05)
75th Percentile (0.50) (6.05) (1.53)
90th Percentile (1.65) (8.38) (3.45)

Asset Class Composite 0.06 (4.17) 0.51

Composite Benchmark 0.26 (4.22) 0.55

Weighted
Ranking

48

Total Asset Class Performance
Seven Years Ended December 31, 2015

R
e

tu
rn

s

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

Plan- Plan- Intl Plan-
Dom Equity Equity  Dom Fixed

(11)

(54)

(81)
(70) (19)

(86)

10th Percentile 16.14 10.10 8.29
25th Percentile 15.50 9.01 7.05

Median 14.99 7.89 5.73
75th Percentile 14.34 6.88 4.62
90th Percentile 13.79 5.80 3.76

Asset Class Composite 16.07 6.45 7.49

Composite Benchmark 14.89 7.12 4.09

Weighted
Ranking

28

* Current Quarter Target = 35.0% Barclays Aggregate Index, 32.0% S&P 500 Index, 19.0% MSCI EAFE Index, 8.0% Russell 2000 Index and 6.0% MSCI

Emerging Mkts Idx.

 32
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Actual vs Target Historical Asset Allocation

The Historical asset allocation for a fund is by far the largest factor explaining its performance. The charts below show the
fund’s historical actual asset allocation, and the fund’s historical target asset allocation.

Actual Historical Asset Allocation

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Domestic Fixed Income

International Equity

Domestic Equity

Target Historical Asset Allocation

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Emerging Equity

Small Cap Broad Eq

Large Cap Broad Eq

Domestic Fixed Income

International Equity

Domestic Equity

* Current Quarter Target = 35.0% Barclays Aggregate Index, 32.0% S&P 500 Index, 19.0% MSCI EAFE Index, 8.0% Russell 2000 Index and 6.0% MSCI

Emerging Mkts Idx.

 33
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Investment Manager Asset Allocation

The table below contrasts the distribution of assets across the Fund’s investment managers as of December 31, 2015, with
the distribution as of September 30, 2015. The change in asset distribution is broken down into the dollar change due to Net
New Investment and the dollar change due to Investment Return.

Asset Distribution Across Investment Managers

December 31, 2015 September 30, 2015

Market Value Net New Inv. Inv. Return Market Value
Consolidated Plan

Domestic Equity $98,268,198 $(715,684) $5,336,133 $93,647,750

 Large Cap $77,549,707 $(715,684) $4,397,260 $73,868,132
Boston Partners 38,448,586 1 1,758,055 36,690,530
SSgA S&P 500 39,101,122 (715,685) 2,639,205 37,177,602

 Small Cap $20,718,491 $0 $938,873 $19,779,618
Atlanta Capital 20,718,491 0 938,873 19,779,618

International Equity $54,669,218 $166,206 $1,975,301 $52,527,711

  International Developed Equity $43,678,685 $0 $2,006,172 $41,672,514
Brandes 11,088 0 (254) 11,342
JP Morgan 22,227,405 0 1,039,276 21,188,128
SSgA EAFE 21,440,192 0 967,149 20,473,043

  Emerging Equity $10,990,533 $166,206 $(30,871) $10,855,197
DFA Emerging Markets 10,990,533 166,206 (30,871) 10,855,197

Fixed Income $85,351,860 $(266,918) $(291,188) $85,909,966
Metropolitan West 85,351,860 (266,918) (291,188) 85,909,966

Total Plan - Consolidated $238,289,276 $(816,396) $7,020,246 $232,085,427

 34
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Sacramento Regional Transit District
Asset Growth

Ending December 31, 2015
($ Thousands)

Ending
Market
Value =

Beginning
Market
Value +

Net New
Investment +

Investment
Return

Total Plan
1/4 Year Ended 12/2015 238,289.3 232,085.4 (816.4) 7,020.2
1/4 Year Ended 9/2015 232,085.4 246,970.5 (534.9) (14,350.2)
1/4 Year Ended 6/2015 246,970.5 247,920.7 (766.8) (183.3)
1/4 Year Ended 3/2015 247,920.7 243,017.9 (295.4) 5,198.2

1/4 Year Ended 12/2014 243,017.9 238,642.3 (1,001.3) 5,377.0
1/4 Year Ended 9/2014 238,642.3 241,859.7 (632.5) (2,584.9)
1/4 Year Ended 6/2014 241,859.7 235,305.8 (752.1) 7,306.0
1/4 Year Ended 3/2014 235,305.8 233,171.6 (781.9) 2,916.1

1/4 Year Ended 12/2013 233,171.6 222,071.8 (913.1) 12,012.9
1/4 Year Ended 9/2013 222,071.8 212,659.5 (1,311.0) 10,723.3
1/4 Year Ended 6/2013 212,659.5 212,527.3 (1,129.6) 1,261.9
1/4 Year Ended 3/2013 212,527.3 202,131.0 (1,047.2) 11,443.5

1/4 Year Ended 12/2012 202,131.0 199,766.3 (1,446.2) 3,810.9
1/4 Year Ended 9/2012 199,766.3 190,468.1 (1,283.9) 10,582.1
1/4 Year Ended 6/2012 190,468.1 196,081.9 (1,011.3) (4,602.5)
1/4 Year Ended 3/2012 196,081.9 180,738.3 (1,404.0) 16,747.5

1/4 Year Ended 12/2011 180,738.3 171,355.1 (1,398.2) 10,781.4
1/4 Year Ended 9/2011 171,355.1 191,013.6 (1,609.4) (18,049.0)
1/4 Year Ended 6/2011 191,013.6 190,138.2 (1,909.6) 2,785.0
1/4 Year Ended 3/2011 190,138.2 185,184.9 (1,829.2) 6,782.6

 35
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Fund’s investment managers over various time periods ended December
31, 2015. Negative returns are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The
first set of returns for each asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

Returns for Periods Ended December 31, 2015

Last Last Last
Last Last  3  5  7

Quarter Year Years Years Years

Domestic Equity 5.69% 0.06% 14.81% 12.98% 16.07%
  Custom Benchmark** 6.39% 0.30% 14.51% 11.97% 14.71%

 Large Cap Equity 5.94% (1.17%) 14.59% 12.78% -
Boston Partners 4.79% (3.75%) 13.98% 12.83% 14.88%
  Russell 1000 Value Index 5.64% (3.83%) 13.08% 11.27% 13.04%
SSgA S&P 500 7.07% 1.46% 15.18% - -
  S&P 500 Index 7.04% 1.38% 15.13% 12.57% 14.82%

 Small Cap Equity 4.75% 5.14% 15.47% 13.82% -
Atlanta Capital 4.75% 5.14% 15.47% 13.82% -
  Russell 2000 Index 3.59% (4.41%) 11.65% 9.19% 14.01%

International Equity 3.77% (4.17%) 2.47% 2.43% 6.45%
  Custom International Benchmark*** 3.84% (3.91%) 3.50% 2.70% 7.16%

 International Developed Equity 4.81% (1.17%) 4.35% - -
JP Morgan 4.90% (1.75%) 3.57% 3.98% 8.73%
SSgA EAFE 4.72% (0.56%) 5.24% - -
  MSCI EAFE Index 4.71% (0.81%) 5.01% 3.60% 7.83%

 Emerging Equity (0.20%) (14.86%) - - -
DFA Emerging Markets (0.03%) (14.25%) - - -
  MSCI Emerging Mkts Idx 0.73% (14.60%) (6.42%) (4.47%) 7.85%

Domestic Fixed Income (0.34%) 0.51% 1.90% 4.21% 7.49%
Met West (0.34%) 0.51% 1.90% 4.21% 7.49%
  BC Aggregate Index (0.57%) 0.55% 1.44% 3.25% 4.09%

Total Plan 3.02% (0.97%) 7.17% 7.42% 10.77%
  Target* 3.32% (0.69%) 6.83% 6.69% 9.23%

* Current Quarter Target = 35.0% Barclays Aggregate Index, 32.0% S&P 500 Index, 19.0% MSCI EAFE Index, 8.0%
Russell 2000 Index and 6.0% MSCI Emerging Mkts Idx.
** Custom Benchmark = 81% S&P500, 19% Russell 2000
*** Custom International Benchmark = MSCI EAFE until 6/30/2013 when it becomes 78.261% MSCI EAFE,
 21.739% MSCI Emerging Markets

 36
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Fund’s investment managers over various time periods ended December
31, 2015. Negative returns are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The
first set of returns for each asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

Returns for Periods Ended December 31, 2015

Last Last Last Last
 10  15  20 21-3/4

Years Years Years Years

Domestic Equity 8.15% 5.93% 8.24% -
  Custom Benchmark** 7.26% 5.49% 8.23% 9.29%
  Russell 1000 Value Index 6.16% 5.86% 8.52% 9.51%
  S&P 500 Index 7.31% 5.00% 8.19% 9.35%
  Russell 2000 Index 6.80% 7.28% 8.03% 8.64%

International Equity 2.67% 4.71% 9.31% -
  MSCI EAFE Index 3.03% 3.54% 4.42% 4.77%

Domestic Fixed Income 6.17% 6.02% 6.14% -
Met West 6.17% - - -
  BC Aggregate Index 4.51% 4.97% 5.34% 5.71%

Total Plan 6.56% 5.92% 7.80% 8.86%
  Target* 5.56% 5.19% 6.74% 7.39%

* Current Quarter Target = 35.0% Barclays Aggregate Index, 32.0% S&P 500 Index, 19.0% MSCI EAFE Index, 8.0%
Russell 2000 Index and 6.0% MSCI Emerging Mkts Idx.
** Custom Benchmark = 81% S&P500, 19% Russell 2000

 37
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Fund’s investment managers over various time periods. Negative returns
are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The first set of returns for each
asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Domestic Equity 0.06% 10.85% 36.44% 19.19% 2.08%
  Custom Benchmark** 0.30% 12.05% 33.61% 16.08% 0.97%

 Large Cap Equity (1.17%) 12.81% 34.96% 21.29% (0.03%)
Boston Partners (3.75%) 11.87% 37.52% 21.95% 1.27%
  Russell 1000 Value Index (3.83%) 13.45% 32.53% 17.51% 0.39%
SSgA S&P 500 1.46% 13.77% 32.39% - -
  S&P 500 Index 1.38% 13.69% 32.39% 16.00% 2.11%

 Small Cap Equity 5.14% 3.49% 41.51% 11.96% 10.81%
Atlanta Capital 5.14% 3.49% 41.51% 11.96% 10.81%
  Russell 2000 Index (4.41%) 4.89% 38.82% 16.35% (4.18%)

International Equity (4.17%) (3.72%) 16.62% 17.28% (10.64%)

 International Developed Equity (1.17%) (4.41%) 20.27% - -
JP Morgan (1.75%) (4.28%) 18.12% 21.23% (9.73%)
SSgA EAFE (0.56%) (4.55%) 22.80% - -
  MSCI EAFE Index (0.81%) (4.90%) 22.78% 17.32% (12.14%)

 Emerging Equity (14.86%) (0.91%) - - -
DFA Emerging Markets (14.86%) (0.91%) - - -
  MSCI Emerging Mkts Idx (14.60%) (1.82%) (2.27%) 18.63% (18.17%)

Domestic Fixed Income 0.51% 6.37% (1.03%) 9.48% 6.10%
Met West 0.51% 6.37% (1.03%) 9.48% 6.10%
  BC Aggregate Index 0.55% 5.97% (2.02%) 4.21% 7.84%

Total Plan (0.97%) 5.61% 17.70% 14.80% 1.22%
  Target* (0.69%) 5.84% 16.00% 11.68% 1.52%

* Current Quarter Target = 35.0% Barclays Aggregate Index, 32.0% S&P 500 Index, 19.0% MSCI EAFE Index, 8.0%
Russell 2000 Index and 6.0% MSCI Emerging Mkts Idx.
Returns are for annualized calendar years.
** Custom Benchmark = 81% S&P500, 19% Russell 2000

 38
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Sponsor’s investment managersover various time periods. Negative returns
are shown in red, positive returns in black.Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The first set of returns for each
asset classrepresents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Domestic Equity 0.06% 32.93% (36.27%) 6.46% 13.68%
  Custom Benchmark** 0.30% 26.65% (36.35%) 4.14% 16.39%
Boston Partners (3.75%) 27.06% (32.69%) 4.02% 19.46%
  Russell 1000 Value Index (3.83%) 19.69% (36.85%) (0.17%) 22.25%
  S&P 500 Index 1.38% 26.47% (37.00%) 5.49% 15.79%
  Russell 2000 Index (4.41%) 27.17% (33.79%) (1.57%) 18.37%

International Equity (4.17%) 28.99% (39.41%) 7.68% 28.72%
  MSCI EAFE Index (0.81%) 31.78% (43.38%) 11.17% 26.34%

Domestic Fixed Income 0.51% 19.88% (3.11%) 7.50% 5.43%
Met West 0.51% 19.88% (3.11%) 7.50% 5.43%
  BC Aggregate Index 0.55% 5.93% 5.24% 6.97% 4.33%

Total Plan (0.97%) 26.91% (23.45%) 7.29% 12.35%
  Target* (0.69%) 20.02% (23.33%) 6.92% 12.98%

* Current Quarter Target = 35.0% Barclays Aggregate Index, 32.0% S&P 500 Index, 19.0% MSCI EAFE Index, 8.0%
Russell 2000 Index and 6.0% MSCI Emerging Mkts Idx.
Returns are for annualized calendar years.
** Custom Benchmark = 81% S&P500, 19% Russell 2000

 39
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Fund’s investment managers over various time periods ended December
31, 2015. Negative returns are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The
first set of returns for each asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

Returns for Periods Ended December 31, 2015

Last Last Last
Last Last  3  5  7

Quarter Year Years Years Years

Net of Fee Returns

 Large Cap Equity
Boston Partners 4.65% (4.28%) 13.36% 12.21% 14.24%
  Russell 1000 Value Index 5.64% (3.83%) 13.08% 11.27% 13.04%
SSgA S&P 500 7.06% 1.41% 15.13% - -
  S&P 500 Index 7.04% 1.38% 15.13% 12.57% 14.82%

 Small Cap Equity
Atlanta Capital 4.54% 4.29% 14.57% 12.96% -
  Russell 2000 Index 3.59% (4.41%) 11.65% 9.19% 14.01%

 International Developed Equity
JP Morgan 4.72% (1.95%) 3.02% 3.36% 8.10%
SSgA EAFE 4.69% (0.67%) 5.13% - -
  MSCI EAFE Index 4.71% (0.81%) 5.01% 3.60% 7.83%

 Emerging Equity
DFA Emerging Markets (0.20%) (14.86%) - - -
  MSCI Emerging Mkts Idx 0.73% (14.60%) (6.42%) (4.47%) 7.85%

Domestic Fixed Income
Met West (0.41%) 0.24% 1.62% 3.92% 7.19%
  BC Aggregate Index (0.57%) 0.55% 1.44% 3.25% 4.09%

Total Plan 2.93% (1.27%) 6.81% 7.00% 10.28%
  Target* 3.32% (0.69%) 6.83% 6.69% 9.23%

* Current Quarter Target = 35.0% Barclays Aggregate Index, 32.0% S&P 500 Index, 19.0% MSCI EAFE Index, 8.0%
Russell 2000 Index and 6.0% MSCI Emerging Mkts Idx.
** Custom International Benchmark = MSCI EAFE until 6/30/2013 when it becomes 78.261% MSCI EAFE,
 21.739% MSCI Emerging Markets

 40
Sacramento Regional Transit District



D
o

m
e

s
tic

 E
q

u
ity

Domestic Equity



Domestic Equity
Period Ended December 31, 2015

Investment Philosophy
The Custom Benchmark consists of 81.0% S&P 500 index and 19.0% Russell 2000 Index.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
Domestic Equity’s portfolio posted a 5.69% return for the quarter placing it in the 72 percentile of the Fund Spnsr-
Domestic Equity group for the quarter and in the 58 percentile for the last year.

Domestic Equity’s portfolio underperformed the Custom Benchmark by 0.70% for the quarter and underperformed the
Custom Benchmark for the year by 0.24%.

Performance vs Fund Spnsr- Domestic Equity (Gross)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

Last Quarter Last 1/2 Year Last Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 5-1/2
Year Years

B(17)
A(72)

(10)

B(26)
A(55)

(32)

B(42)
A(58)

(50)

A(28)
B(32)(42)

A(5)
B(26)(36)

A(14)
B(30)(41)

10th Percentile 6.41 (0.39) 2.10 15.57 12.64 16.12
25th Percentile 6.20 (1.40) 1.11 14.91 12.19 15.64

Median 5.95 (2.11) 0.29 14.35 11.71 15.11
75th Percentile 5.63 (2.93) (0.50) 13.61 11.12 14.54
90th Percentile 5.27 (4.00) (1.65) 12.78 10.35 13.67

Domestic Equity A 5.69 (2.24) 0.06 14.81 12.98 15.90
Russell 3000 Index B 6.27 (1.43) 0.48 14.74 12.18 15.52

Custom Benchmark 6.39 (1.57) 0.30 14.51 11.97 15.32

Relative Return vs Custom Benchmark

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(2.0%)

(1.5%)

(1.0%)

(0.5%)

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Domestic Equity

Cumulative Returns vs Custom Benchmark

C
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(4%)

(3%)

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Domestic Equity

Plan- Dom Equity

 42
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Current Holdings Based Style Analysis
Domestic Equity
As of December 31, 2015

This page analyzes the current investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
actual exposures to various market capitalization and style segments of the domestic equity market. The market is
segmented quarterly by capitalization and style. The capitalization segments are dictated by capitalization decile breakpoints.
The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight fundamental factors used in the MSCI
stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the current market capitalization and style score of the
portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays the current portfolio and index
weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each capitalization/style segment of the market. The middle chart illustrates the
total exposures and stock counts in the three style segments, with a legend showing the total growth, value, and "combined
Z" (growth - value) scores. The bottom chart exhibits the sector weights as well as the style weights within each sector.

Style Map vs Plan- Dom Equity
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

*Domestic Equity

Russell 3000 Index

*Domestic Equity

Russell 3000 Index

Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Total

Value Core Growth Total

29.0% (94) 19.8% (96) 19.8% (92) 68.5% (282)

4.0% (93) 5.3% (79) 7.4% (64) 16.7% (236)

2.4% (19) 7.4% (29) 4.6% (14) 14.4% (62)

0.0% (0) 0.4% (2) 0.0% (1) 0.4% (3)

35.3% (206) 32.8% (206) 31.8% (171) 100.0% (583)

26.9% (94) 20.6% (95) 26.2% (104) 73.8% (293)

5.6% (178) 6.1% (209) 6.0% (201) 17.8% (588)

2.2% (326) 3.0% (489) 2.2% (361) 7.5% (1176)

0.3% (255) 0.5% (442) 0.2% (185) 1.0% (882)

35.1% (853) 30.2% (1235) 34.7% (851) 100.0% (2939)

Combined Z-Score Style Distribution
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Value Core Growth

35.3%

(206)

35.1%

(853)

32.8%

(206)

30.2%

(1235)
31.8%

(171)
34.7%

(851)

Bar #1=*Domestic Equity (Combined Z: -0.11 Growth Z: -0.01 Value Z: 0.10)

Bar #2=Russell 3000 Index (Combined Z: -0.01 Growth Z: 0.00 Value Z: 0.01)

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Sector Weights Distribution
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

COMMUN CONCYC CONSTA ENERGY FINANC HEALTH INDEQU PUBUTL RAWMAT TECH

1.8 2.2

11.9
13.5

6.4

8.8
6.8 6.0

21.9

18.2

14.6 14.8
13.1

10.7

1.6
3.0 3.7 3.1

18.3
19.8

Bar #1=*Domestic Equity

Bar #2=Russell 3000 Index

Value

Core

Growth

*12/31/15 portfolio characteristics generated using most recently available holdings (9/30/15) modified based on a "buy-and-hold" assumption (repriced and

adjusted for corporate actions). Analysis is then done using current market and company financial data.

 43
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Historical Holdings Based Style Analysis
Domestic Equity
For Five and 1/2 Years Ended December 31, 2015

This page analyzes the historical investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
average actual exposures to various market capitalization and style segments of the domestic equity market. The market is
segmented quarterly by capitalization and style. The capitalization segments are dictated by capitalization decile breakpoints.
The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight fundamental factors used in the MSCI
stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the average historical market capitalization and style score of
the portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays the average historical portfolio
and index weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each capitalization/style segment of the market. The next two style
exposure charts illustrate the actual quarterly cap/style and style only segment exposures of the portfolio through history.

Average Style Map vs Plan- Dom Equity
Holdings for Five and 1/2 Years Ended December 31, 2015

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

*Domestic Equity

Russell 3000 Index

Average Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings for Five and 1/2 Years Ended December 31, 2015

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Total

Value Core Growth Total

22.4% (67) 26.1% (84) 20.7% (77) 69.3% (228)

4.6% (65) 6.6% (66) 5.7% (47) 17.0% (178)

1.6% (9) 7.1% (26) 4.7% (16) 13.4% (51)

0.1% (0) 0.2% (1) 0.0% (0) 0.3% (1)

28.8% (141) 40.1% (177) 31.1% (140) 100.0% (458)

23.6% (86) 25.7% (107) 23.8% (105) 73.1% (298)

5.4% (175) 6.2% (212) 6.5% (210) 18.1% (597)

2.3% (345) 3.0% (461) 2.4% (387) 7.7% (1193)

0.4% (307) 0.4% (350) 0.3% (211) 1.1% (868)

31.7% (913) 35.3% (1130) 33.0% (913) 100.0% (2956)

*Domestic Equity Historical Cap/Style Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Micro-Growth

Micro-Core

Micro-Value

Small-Growth

Small-Core

Small-Value

Mid-Growth

Mid-Core

Mid-Value

Large-Growth

Large-Core

Large-Value

*Domestic Equity Historical Style Only Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Growth

Core

Value

*12/31/15 portfolio characteristics generated using most recently available holdings (9/30/15) modified based on a "buy-and-hold" assumption (repriced and

adjusted for corporate actions). Analysis is then done using current market and company financial data.

 44
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Large Cap
Period Ended December 31, 2015

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
Large Cap’s portfolio posted a 5.94% return for the quarter placing it in the 60 percentile of the CAI Large Capitalization
Style group for the quarter and in the 67 percentile for the last year.

Large Cap’s portfolio underperformed the S&P 500 Index by 1.10% for the quarter and underperformed the S&P 500
Index for the year by 2.55%.

Performance vs CAI Large Capitalization Style (Gross)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

Last Quarter Last 1/2 Year Last Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 5-1/2
Year Years

(60)
(37)

(62)

(39)

(67)

(50)

(62)
(55)

(40)(44)

(52)(48)

10th Percentile 8.68 2.70 8.57 18.48 14.70 18.01
25th Percentile 7.63 1.47 5.50 16.94 13.55 16.61

Median 6.45 (0.82) 1.31 15.46 12.32 15.58
75th Percentile 5.35 (3.09) (2.05) 13.78 11.35 14.45
90th Percentile 4.35 (4.77) (4.30) 12.97 10.39 13.40

Large Cap 5.94 (2.05) (1.17) 14.59 12.78 15.50

S&P 500 Index 7.04 0.15 1.38 15.13 12.57 15.68

Relative Return vs S&P 500 Index

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Large Cap

Cumulative Returns vs S&P 500 Index

C
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(5%)

(4%)

(3%)

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Large Cap

CAI Large Cap Style

 45
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Current Holdings Based Style Analysis
Large Cap
As of December 31, 2015

This page analyzes the current investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
actual exposures to various market capitalization and style segments of the domestic equity market. The market is
segmented quarterly by capitalization and style. The capitalization segments are dictated by capitalization decile breakpoints.
The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight fundamental factors used in the MSCI
stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the current market capitalization and style score of the
portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays the current portfolio and index
weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each capitalization/style segment of the market. The middle chart illustrates the
total exposures and stock counts in the three style segments, with a legend showing the total growth, value, and "combined
Z" (growth - value) scores. The bottom chart exhibits the sector weights as well as the style weights within each sector.

Style Map vs CAI Large Cap Style
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

*Large Cap

S&P 500 Index

*Large Cap

S&P 500 Index

Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Total

Value Core Growth Total

36.5% (94) 24.9% (96) 24.9% (92) 86.4% (282)

4.6% (92) 4.8% (76) 2.8% (53) 12.3% (221)

0.5% (12) 0.6% (5) 0.2% (2) 1.3% (19)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (1) 0.0% (1)

41.7% (198) 30.3% (177) 28.0% (148) 100.0% (523)

32.7% (93) 25.3% (95) 31.1% (93) 89.1% (281)

4.4% (88) 3.7% (74) 2.8% (50) 10.8% (212)

0.1% (8) 0.0% (2) 0.0% (1) 0.1% (11)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

37.2% (189) 29.0% (171) 33.9% (144) 100.0% (504)

Combined Z-Score Style Distribution
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Value Core Growth

41.7%

(198)

37.2%

(189)

30.3%

(177)

29.0%

(171)

28.0%

(148) 33.9%

(144)

Bar #1=*Large Cap (Combined Z: -0.20 Growth Z: -0.03 Value Z: 0.18)

Bar #2=S&P 500 Index (Combined Z: -0.04 Growth Z: -0.01 Value Z: 0.03)

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Sector Weights Distribution
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

COMMUN CONCYC CONSTA ENERGY FINANC HEALTH INDEQU PUBUTL RAWMAT TECH

2.2 2.4

11.3
12.9

6.0

10.1
8.2

6.5

22.9

16.5 16.3 15.2

10.3 10.0

2.0 2.9 3.5 2.8

17.3

20.7

Bar #1=*Large Cap

Bar #2=S&P 500 Index

Value

Core

Growth

*12/31/15 portfolio characteristics generated using most recently available holdings (9/30/15) modified based on a "buy-and-hold" assumption (repriced and

adjusted for corporate actions). Analysis is then done using current market and company financial data.

 46
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Historical Holdings Based Style Analysis
Large Cap
For Five and 1/2 Years Ended December 31, 2015

This page analyzes the historical investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
average actual exposures to various market capitalization and style segments of the domestic equity market. The market is
segmented quarterly by capitalization and style. The capitalization segments are dictated by capitalization decile breakpoints.
The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight fundamental factors used in the MSCI
stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the average historical market capitalization and style score of
the portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays the average historical portfolio
and index weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each capitalization/style segment of the market. The next two style
exposure charts illustrate the actual quarterly cap/style and style only segment exposures of the portfolio through history.

Average Style Map vs CAI Large Cap Style
Holdings for Five and 1/2 Years Ended December 31, 2015

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

*Large Cap
S&P 500 Index

Average Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings for Five and 1/2 Years Ended December 31, 2015

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Total

Value Core Growth Total

27.9% (66) 33.0% (85) 25.6% (76) 86.5% (227)

5.0% (63) 4.9% (59) 3.1% (40) 13.0% (162)

0.2% (4) 0.2% (2) 0.1% (1) 0.5% (7)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

33.1% (133) 38.0% (146) 28.8% (117) 100.0% (396)

29.1% (84) 31.5% (104) 28.4% (94) 89.0% (282)

3.9% (81) 3.8% (76) 3.1% (54) 10.8% (211)

0.1% (4) 0.0% (2) 0.0% (1) 0.1% (7)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

33.1% (169) 35.3% (182) 31.6% (149) 100.0% (500)

*Large Cap Historical Cap/Style Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Small-Growth

Small-Core

Small-Value

Mid-Growth

Mid-Core

Mid-Value

Large-Growth

Large-Core

Large-Value

*Large Cap Historical Style Only Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Growth

Core

Value

*12/31/15 portfolio characteristics generated using most recently available holdings (9/30/15) modified based on a "buy-and-hold" assumption (repriced and

adjusted for corporate actions). Analysis is then done using current market and company financial data.

 47
Sacramento Regional Transit District



SSgA S&P 500
Period Ended December 31, 2015

Investment Philosophy
State Street believes that their passive investment strategy can provide market-like returns with minimal transaction costs.
Returns prior to 6/30/2012 are linked to a composite history.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
SSgA S&P 500’s portfolio posted a 7.07% return for the
quarter placing it in the 28 percentile of the CAI Large Cap
Core Style group for the quarter and in the 46 percentile for
the last year.

SSgA S&P 500’s portfolio outperformed the S&P 500 Index
by 0.03% for the quarter and outperformed the S&P 500
Index for the year by 0.08%.

Quarterly Asset Growth

Beginning Market Value $37,177,602

Net New Investment $-715,685

Investment Gains/(Losses) $2,639,205

Ending Market Value $39,101,122

Performance vs CAI Large Cap Core Style (Gross)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

Last Quarter Last Last 3 Years Last 3-1/2 Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years
Year Years

(28)(29)

(46)(50)

(57)(58) (60)(61) (57)(58)

(50)(51)

(51)(53)

10th Percentile 8.23 4.08 17.02 16.50 17.02 14.47 16.39
25th Percentile 7.17 2.99 16.49 16.19 16.49 13.67 15.60

Median 6.59 1.38 15.48 15.20 15.48 12.59 14.92
75th Percentile 5.47 (1.10) 13.96 13.88 13.96 11.28 14.03
90th Percentile 4.70 (2.41) 13.06 12.82 13.06 10.22 12.97

SSgA S&P 500 7.07 1.46 15.18 14.77 15.18 12.62 14.88

S&P 500 Index 7.04 1.38 15.13 14.71 15.13 12.57 14.82

Relative Return vs S&P 500 Index

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(0.02%)

(0.01%)

0.00%

0.01%

0.02%

0.03%

0.04%

0.05%

0.06%

0.07%

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

SSgA S&P 500

CAI Large Cap Core Style (Gross)
Annualized Seven Year Risk vs Return

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19
11%

12%

13%

14%

15%

16%

17%

18%

19%

S&P 500 IndexSSgA S&P 500

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 48
Sacramento Regional Transit District



SSgA S&P 500
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Large Cap Core Style (Gross)

(50%)

(40%)

(30%)

(20%)

(10%)

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

(46)(50)

(47)(48)

(77)(77)

(48)(48)

(35)(36)

(42)(43)

(50)(50)

(64)(65)

10th Percentile 4.08 16.01 37.59 18.81 6.19 18.65 34.96 (31.85)
25th Percentile 2.99 15.35 35.94 17.06 4.37 16.40 32.58 (34.26)

Median 1.38 13.63 34.45 15.89 1.46 14.40 26.51 (36.36)
75th Percentile (1.10) 12.82 32.62 14.42 (1.56) 13.55 22.96 (37.90)
90th Percentile (2.41) 11.16 31.15 11.41 (3.63) 10.96 21.05 (40.00)

SSgA S&P 500 1.46 13.77 32.39 16.07 2.14 15.14 26.57 (36.93)

S&P 500 Index 1.38 13.69 32.39 16.00 2.11 15.06 26.47 (37.00)

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs S&P 500 Index

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(0.5%)

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

3.0%

3.5%

2012 2013 2014 2015

SSgA S&P 500 CAI Large Cap Core Style

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs S&P 500 Index
Rankings Against CAI Large Cap Core Style (Gross)
Seven Years Ended December 31, 2015

(5)

0

5

10

15

20

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

(57)

(56)

10th Percentile 1.41 16.27
25th Percentile 0.96 15.73

Median 0.33 15.06
75th Percentile (0.72) 13.84
90th Percentile (1.45) 13.03

SSgA S&P 500 0.07 14.79

(1.0)

(0.5)

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

(1)

(53)

(1)

10th Percentile 0.61 1.02 0.62
25th Percentile 0.42 1.00 0.33

Median 0.14 0.96 0.03
75th Percentile (0.18) 0.88 (0.24)
90th Percentile (0.46) 0.82 (0.50)

SSgA S&P 500 2.01 0.95 1.63

 49
Sacramento Regional Transit District



SSgA S&P 500
Equity Characteristics Analysis Summary

Portfolio Characteristics
This graph compares the manager’s portfolio characteristics with the range of characteristics for the portfolios which make up
the manager’s style group. This analysis illustrates whether the manager’s current holdings are consistent with other
managers employing the same style.

Portfolio Characteristics Percentile Rankings
Rankings Against CAI Large Cap Core Style
as of December 31, 2015

P
e

rc
e

n
ti
le

 R
a

n
k
in

g

100%

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

Weighted Median Price/Fore- Price/Book Forecasted Dividend MSCI
Market Cap casted Earnings Earnings Growth Yield Combined Z-Score

(28)(30)
(33)(32)

(40)(40)

(78)(78)

(16)(17)

(70)

(62)

10th Percentile 108.74 18.43 2.97 13.03 2.29 0.30
25th Percentile 84.92 16.67 2.78 12.23 2.13 0.15

Median 73.45 15.44 2.58 11.42 1.97 (0.01)
75th Percentile 54.11 14.72 2.38 10.48 1.79 (0.08)
90th Percentile 37.16 14.46 2.26 8.77 1.56 (0.22)

*SSgA S&P 500 81.46 16.26 2.68 10.28 2.20 (0.05)

S&P 500 Index 78.98 16.31 2.67 10.27 2.19 (0.04)

Sector Weights
The graph below contrasts the manager’s sector weights with those of the benchmark and median sector weights across the
members of the peer group. The magnitude of sector weight differences from the index and the manager’s sector
diversification are also shown. Diversification by number and concentration of holdings are also compared to the benchmark
and peer group. Issue Diversification represents by count, and Diversification Ratio by percent, the number of holdings that
account for half of the portfolio’s market value.

Sector Allocation
December 31, 2015

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25%

Information Technology
20.7%
20.7%
20.7%

Financials
16.4%
16.5%

17.7%

Health Care
15.0%

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

15.2%
16.5%

Consumer Discretionary
13.0%
12.9%

14.4%

Industrials
10.2%
10.0%
10.0%

Consumer Staples
10.0%
10.1%

9.1%

Energy
6.5%
6.5%

6.2%

Utilities
2.9%
2.9%

1.6%

Materials
2.9%
2.8%

2.5%

Telecommunications
2.4%
2.4%

1.3%

*SSgA S&P 500 S&P 500 Index CAI Large Cap Core Style

Sector Diversification
Manager 2.86 sectors

Index 2.84 sectors

Diversification
December 31, 2015

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Number of Issue
Securities Diversification

(1)

(4)

10th Percentile 163 36
25th Percentile 124 28

Median 72 20
75th Percentile 50 17
90th Percentile 34 13

*SSgA S&P 500 502 53

S&P 500 Index 504 54

Diversification Ratio
Manager 11%

Index 11%

Style Median 28%

*12/31/15 portfolio characteristics generated using most recently available holdings (9/30/15) modified based on a "buy-and-hold" assumption (repriced and

adjusted for corporate actions). Analysis is then done using current market and company financial data.

 50
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Current Holdings Based Style Analysis
SSgA S&P 500
As of December 31, 2015

This page analyzes the current investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
actual exposures to various market capitalization and style segments of the domestic equity market. The market is
segmented quarterly by capitalization and style. The capitalization segments are dictated by capitalization decile breakpoints.
The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight fundamental factors used in the MSCI
stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the current market capitalization and style score of the
portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays the current portfolio and index
weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each capitalization/style segment of the market. The middle chart illustrates the
total exposures and stock counts in the three style segments, with a legend showing the total growth, value, and "combined
Z" (growth - value) scores. The bottom chart exhibits the sector weights as well as the style weights within each sector.

Style Map vs CAI Large Cap Core Style
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

S&P 500 Index*SSgA S&P 500

*SSgA S&P 500

S&P 500 Index

Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Total

Value Core Growth Total

33.0% (93) 25.2% (93) 31.0% (91) 89.2% (277)

4.3% (89) 3.6% (72) 2.7% (49) 10.6% (210)

0.1% (9) 0.0% (2) 0.0% (1) 0.1% (12)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

37.4% (191) 28.8% (167) 33.7% (141) 100.0% (499)

32.7% (93) 25.3% (95) 31.1% (93) 89.1% (281)

4.4% (88) 3.7% (74) 2.8% (50) 10.8% (212)

0.1% (8) 0.0% (2) 0.0% (1) 0.1% (11)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

37.2% (189) 29.0% (171) 33.9% (144) 100.0% (504)

Combined Z-Score Style Distribution
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Value Core Growth

37.4%

(191)

37.2%

(189)

28.8%

(167)

29.0%

(171) 33.7%

(141)

33.9%

(144)

Bar #1=*SSgA S&P 500 (Combined Z: -0.05 Growth Z: -0.02 Value Z: 0.03)

Bar #2=S&P 500 Index (Combined Z: -0.04 Growth Z: -0.01 Value Z: 0.03)

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Sector Weights Distribution
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

COMMUN CONCYC CONSTA ENERGY FINANC HEALTH INDEQU PUBUTL RAWMAT TECH

2.4 2.4

13.0 12.9

10.0 10.1

6.5 6.5

16.4 16.5
15.0 15.2

10.3 10.0

2.9 2.9 2.8 2.8

20.6 20.7

Bar #1=*SSgA S&P 500

Bar #2=S&P 500 Index

Value

Core

Growth

*12/31/15 portfolio characteristics generated using most recently available holdings (9/30/15) modified based on a "buy-and-hold" assumption (repriced and

adjusted for corporate actions). Analysis is then done using current market and company financial data.

 51
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Boston Partners
Period Ended December 31, 2015

Investment Philosophy
Boston Partners attempts to implement a disciplined investment process designed to find undervalued securities issued by
companies with sound fundamentals and positive business momentum. Boston Partners was funded 6/27/05. The first full
quarter for this portfolio is 3rd quarter 2005.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
Boston Partners’s portfolio posted a 4.79% return for the
quarter placing it in the 75 percentile of the CAI Large Cap
Value Style group for the quarter and in the 68 percentile for
the last year.

Boston Partners’s portfolio underperformed the Russell 1000
Value Index by 0.84% for the quarter and outperformed the
Russell 1000 Value Index for the year by 0.08%.

Quarterly Asset Growth

Beginning Market Value $36,690,530

Net New Investment $1

Investment Gains/(Losses) $1,758,055

Ending Market Value $38,448,586

Performance vs CAI Large Cap Value Style (Gross)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

Last Quarter Last Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years Last 10-1/2
Year Years

B(11)

A(75)
(42)

B(2)

A(68)(70)

B(16)
A(40)

(77) A(13)
B(22)

(60)

A(12)
B(16)

(65)

A(11)
B(37)

(72)

A(7)
B(39)

(77)

10th Percentile 7.07 0.41 15.58 13.18 15.17 8.40 8.74
25th Percentile 6.05 (1.22) 14.50 12.37 14.43 7.74 8.05

Median 5.45 (2.56) 13.76 11.70 13.49 7.01 7.16
75th Percentile 4.73 (4.51) 13.16 10.57 12.65 6.07 6.44
90th Percentile 3.87 (5.86) 12.14 9.62 11.73 4.99 5.31

Boston Partners A 4.79 (3.75) 13.98 12.83 15.01 8.34 8.86
S&P 500 Index B 7.04 1.38 15.13 12.57 14.82 7.31 7.52

Russell 1000
Value Index 5.64 (3.83) 13.08 11.27 13.04 6.16 6.37

Relative Return vs Russell 1000 Value Index

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(4%)

(3%)

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Boston Partners

CAI Large Cap Value Style (Gross)
Annualized Seven Year Risk vs Return

10 12 14 16 18 20 22 24
9%

10%

11%

12%

13%

14%

15%

16%

17%

S&P 500 Index

Boston Partners

Russell 1000 Value Index

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 52
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Boston Partners
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Large Cap Value Style (Gross)

(60%)

(40%)

(20%)

0%

20%

40%

60%

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

B(2)
A(68)70

B(27)
A(62)

31

A(20)
B(75)71

A(5)
B(59)35

B(32)
A(42)53

B(35)
A(44)

28

A(24)
B(31)75

A(9)
B(63)61

B(16)
A(28)61

A(44)
B(83)

18

10th Percentile 0.41 15.03 40.19 21.13 4.62 18.13 34.50 (32.84) 6.97 23.59
25th Percentile (1.22) 13.73 36.85 19.12 2.42 16.01 26.82 (34.74) 4.19 21.18

Median (2.56) 12.54 34.59 16.78 0.61 14.27 22.37 (35.88) 1.12 19.15
75th Percentile (4.51) 11.36 32.38 15.08 (2.48) 12.55 19.65 (38.61) (1.81) 16.95
90th Percentile (5.86) 8.98 30.80 12.71 (5.19) 11.75 15.46 (44.92) (6.22) 14.63

Boston Partners A (3.75) 11.87 37.52 21.95 1.27 14.54 27.06 (32.69) 4.02 19.55
S&P 500 Index B 1.38 13.69 32.39 16.00 2.11 15.06 26.47 (37.00) 5.49 15.79

Russell 1000
Value Index (3.83) 13.45 32.53 17.51 0.39 15.51 19.69 (36.85) (0.17) 22.25

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs Russell 1000 Value Index

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Boston Partners S&P 500 Index CAI Large Cap Value Style

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs Russell 1000 Value Index
Rankings Against CAI Large Cap Value Style (Gross)
Seven Years Ended December 31, 2015

(5)

0

5

10

15

20

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

B(3)
A(19)

B(6)
A(20)

10th Percentile 2.37 16.03
25th Percentile 1.82 14.80

Median 0.96 13.99
75th Percentile 0.16 13.07
90th Percentile (0.72) 12.09

Boston Partners A 2.07 15.24
S&P 500 Index B 2.97 16.70

(0.6)
(0.4)
(0.2)

0.0
0.2
0.4
0.6
0.8
1.0
1.2
1.4

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

B(3)

A(16)

B(4)
A(19)

A(7)
B(14)

10th Percentile 0.78 0.90 0.53
25th Percentile 0.54 0.84 0.39

Median 0.33 0.79 0.14
75th Percentile 0.07 0.75 (0.10)
90th Percentile (0.27) 0.68 (0.33)

Boston Partners A 0.65 0.86 0.55
S&P 500 Index B 1.12 0.95 0.47

 53
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Boston Partners
Risk Analysis Summary

Risk Analysis
The graphs below analyze the risk or variation of a manager’s return pattern. The first scatter chart illustrates the
relationship, called Excess Return Ratio, between excess return and tracking error relative to the benchmark. The second
scatter chart displays the relationship, sometimes called Information Ratio, between alpha (market-risk or "beta" adjusted
return) and residual risk (non-market or "unsystematic" risk). The third chart shows tracking error patterns versus the
benchmark over time. The last two charts show the ranking of the manager’s risk statistics versus the peer group.

Risk Analysis vs CAI Large Cap Value Style (Gross)
Seven Years Ended December 31, 2015

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
(4 )

(3 )

(2 )

(1 )

0

1

2

3

4

Boston Partners

Tracking Error

E
x
c
e
s
s
 R

e
tu

rn

0 1 2 3 4 5 6
(6 )

(4 )

(2 )

0

2

4

6

Boston Partners

Residual Risk

A
lp

h
a

Rolling 12 Quarter Tracking Error vs Russell 1000 Value Index

T
ra

c
k
in

g
 E

rr
o

r

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

3.0%

3.5%

4.0%

4.5%

5.0%

5.5%

05 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Boston Partners

CAI Large Cap Value Style

Risk Statistics Rankings vs Russell 1000 Value Index
Rankings Against CAI Large Cap Value Style (Gross)
Seven Years Ended December 31, 2015

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

Standard Downside Residual Tracking
Deviation Risk Risk Error

(37)

(82)
(49) (59)

10th Percentile 19.09 3.52 4.43 5.34
25th Percentile 17.89 2.76 3.90 4.28

Median 17.09 2.05 3.17 3.34
75th Percentile 16.38 1.61 2.59 2.77
90th Percentile 15.13 1.23 1.99 2.05

Boston
Partners 17.31 1.50 3.21 3.18

0.80

0.85

0.90

0.95

1.00

1.05

1.10

1.15

Beta R-Squared Rel. Std.
Deviation

(41) (48)
(37)

10th Percentile 1.07 0.99 1.10
25th Percentile 1.01 0.98 1.03

Median 0.97 0.97 0.98
75th Percentile 0.92 0.95 0.94
90th Percentile 0.85 0.93 0.87

Boston Partners 0.98 0.97 0.99

 54
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Boston Partners
Equity Characteristics Analysis Summary

Portfolio Characteristics
This graph compares the manager’s portfolio characteristics with the range of characteristics for the portfolios which make up
the manager’s style group. This analysis illustrates whether the manager’s current holdings are consistent with other
managers employing the same style.

Portfolio Characteristics Percentile Rankings
Rankings Against CAI Large Cap Value Style
as of December 31, 2015

P
e

rc
e

n
ti
le

 R
a

n
k
in

g

100%

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

Weighted Median Forecasted Price/ Forecasted Dividend MSCI
Market Cap P/E Book Value Growth in Earnings Yield Combined Z-Score

B(20)

A(72)

(46)

B(3)

A(66)

(21)

B(1)

A(52)

(74)

B(6)

A(32)

(83) B(85)
A(92)

(35)

B(1)

A(17)

(75)

10th Percentile 90.46 15.79 2.29 9.43 3.12 (0.33)
25th Percentile 74.40 14.96 2.08 8.35 2.86 (0.44)

Median 54.16 14.24 1.88 7.66 2.52 (0.63)
75th Percentile 43.13 13.11 1.71 7.01 2.34 (0.77)
90th Percentile 34.24 12.58 1.50 6.04 2.13 (0.99)

Boston Partners A 44.53 13.56 1.87 8.18 2.04 (0.36)
S&P 500 Index B 78.98 16.31 2.67 10.27 2.19 (0.04)

Russell 1000 Value Index 54.73 15.34 1.72 6.42 2.68 (0.78)

Sector Weights
The graph below contrasts the manager’s sector weights with those of the benchmark and median sector weights across the
members of the peer group. The magnitude of sector weight differences from the index and the manager’s sector
diversification are also shown. Diversification by number and concentration of holdings are also compared to the benchmark
and peer group. Issue Diversification represents by count, and Diversification Ratio by percent, the number of holdings that
account for half of the portfolio’s market value.

Sector Allocation
December 31, 2015

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35% 40%

Financials
29.6%

30.4%
27.7%

Health Care
17.5%

12.0%
14.2%

Information Technology
13.9%

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

11.2%
12.5%

Industrials
10.3%
10.4%
10.5%

Energy
10.0%

12.3%
10.3%

Consumer Discretionary
9.5%

5.2%
8.9%

Materials
4.2%

2.6%
3.0%

Telecommunications
2.0%

2.8%
2.3%

Consumer Staples
1.9%

7.0%
6.5%

Utilities
1.0%

6.1%
4.1%

Boston Partners Russell 1000 Value Index

CAI Large Cap Value Style

Sector Diversification
Manager 2.20 sectors

Index 2.62 sectors

Diversification
December 31, 2015

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

Number of Issue
Securities Diversification

(25)

(51)

10th Percentile 143 31
25th Percentile 89 23

Median 58 19
75th Percentile 48 15
90th Percentile 37 13

Boston Partners 88 19

Russell 1000
Value Index 677 41

Diversification Ratio
Manager 21%

Index 6%

Style Median 31%

 55
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Current Holdings Based Style Analysis
Boston Partners
As of December 31, 2015

This page analyzes the current investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
actual exposures to various market capitalization and style segments of the domestic equity market. The market is
segmented quarterly by capitalization and style. The capitalization segments are dictated by capitalization decile breakpoints.
The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight fundamental factors used in the MSCI
stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the current market capitalization and style score of the
portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays the current portfolio and index
weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each capitalization/style segment of the market. The middle chart illustrates the
total exposures and stock counts in the three style segments, with a legend showing the total growth, value, and "combined
Z" (growth - value) scores. The bottom chart exhibits the sector weights as well as the style weights within each sector.

Style Map vs CAI Large Cap Value Style
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Boston Partners

S&P 500 Index

Russell 1000 Value Index

Boston Partners

S&P 500 Index

Russell 1000 Value Index

Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Total

Value Core Growth Total

40.2% (26) 24.7% (21) 18.5% (13) 83.4% (60)

4.9% (11) 6.1% (9) 3.0% (5) 14.0% (25)

1.0% (3) 1.1% (3) 0.5% (1) 2.5% (7)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (1) 0.0% (1)

46.1% (40) 31.9% (33) 22.0% (20) 100.0% (93)

32.7% (93) 25.3% (95) 31.1% (93) 89.1% (281)

4.4% (88) 3.7% (74) 2.8% (50) 10.8% (212)

0.1% (8) 0.0% (2) 0.0% (1) 0.1% (11)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

37.2% (189) 29.0% (171) 33.9% (144) 100.0% (504)

51.6% (88) 22.2% (68) 4.0% (27) 77.9% (183)

10.9% (161) 6.5% (134) 2.0% (49) 19.4% (344)

1.6% (76) 0.9% (57) 0.2% (13) 2.7% (146)

0.0% (1) 0.0% (2) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (3)

64.1% (326) 29.6% (261) 6.3% (89) 100.0% (676)

Combined Z-Score Style Distribution
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

140%

Value Core Growth

46.1%

(40)

37.2%

(189)

64.1%

(326)

31.9%

(33)

29.0%

(171)

29.6%

(261)

22.0%

(20) 33.9%

(144)

6.3%

(89)

Bar #1=Boston Partners (Combined Z: -0.36 Growth Z: -0.04 Value Z: 0.32)

Bar #2=S&P 500 Index (Combined Z: -0.04 Growth Z: -0.01 Value Z: 0.03)

Bar #3=Russell 1000 Value Index (Combined Z: -0.78 Growth Z: -0.35 Value Z: 0.43)

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Sector Weights Distribution
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

COMMUN CONCYC CONSTA ENERGY FINANC HEALTH INDEQU PUBUTL RAWMAT TECH

2.0 2.4 2.8

9.5
12.9

5.2
1.9

10.1
7.0

10.0

6.5

12.3

29.6

16.5

30.4

17.5
15.2

12.0
10.310.010.4

1.0
2.9

6.1
4.2

2.8 2.6

13.9

20.7

11.2

Bar #1=Boston Partners

Bar #2=S&P 500 Index

Bar #3=Russell 1000 Value Index

Value

Core

Growth

 56
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Historical Holdings Based Style Analysis
Boston Partners
For Three Years Ended December 31, 2015

This page analyzes the historical investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
average actual exposures to various market capitalization and style segments of the domestic equity market. The market is
segmented quarterly by capitalization and style. The capitalization segments are dictated by capitalization decile breakpoints.
The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight fundamental factors used in the MSCI
stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the average historical market capitalization and style score of
the portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays the average historical portfolio
and index weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each capitalization/style segment of the market. The next two style
exposure charts illustrate the actual quarterly cap/style and style only segment exposures of the portfolio through history.

Average Style Map vs CAI Large Cap Value Style
Holdings for Three Years Ended December 31, 2015

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Russell 1000 Value Index

Boston Partners

S&P 500 Index

Average Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings for Three Years Ended December 31, 2015

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Total

Value Core Growth Total

38.0% (23) 31.9% (25) 13.7% (12) 83.6% (60)

6.9% (10) 5.7% (9) 2.6% (4) 15.2% (23)

0.5% (2) 0.4% (1) 0.2% (1) 1.2% (4)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

45.5% (35) 38.0% (35) 16.5% (17) 100.0% (87)

30.7% (87) 29.7% (100) 28.5% (96) 88.9% (283)

4.1% (83) 3.9% (78) 3.0% (52) 11.1% (213)

0.1% (3) 0.0% (1) 0.0% (0) 0.1% (4)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

34.9% (173) 33.6% (179) 31.5% (148) 100.0% (500)

48.7% (84) 23.7% (75) 5.9% (32) 78.3% (191)

10.5% (163) 6.4% (141) 2.1% (54) 19.0% (358)

1.5% (63) 1.0% (54) 0.2% (13) 2.6% (130)

0.0% (1) 0.0% (1) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (2)

60.7% (311) 31.2% (271) 8.1% (99) 100.0% (681)

Boston Partners Historical Cap/Style Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2013 2014 2015

Small-Growth

Small-Core

Small-Value

Mid-Growth

Mid-Core

Mid-Value

Large-Growth

Large-Core

Large-Value

Boston Partners Historical Style Only Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2013 2014 2015

Growth

Core

Value

 57
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Boston Partners vs Russell 1000 Value Index
Domestic Equity Daily Performance Attribution
One Quarter Ended December 31, 2015

Return Sources and Timing
The charts below illustrate the timing and cumulative paths of the manager’s performance, as well as attributing relative
performance to three sources: Sector Concentration, Security Selection, and Asset Allocation. The first chart shows the
cumulative absolute return paths for the manager and index. The second chart shows the cumulative relative return path of
the manager and the attributed sources of that value-added. The bottom table breaks the annualized attribution factors down
to the sector level for more insight into sources of return.

Cumulative Manager and Benchmark Returns

(4%)

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

201510 201511 201512

4.79%
5.64%

(0.84%)

Boston Partners

Russell 1000 Value Index

Relative Return

Cumulative Attribution Effects vs. Russell 1000 Value Index

(1.5%)

(1.0%)

(0.5%)

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

201510 201511 201512

0.13%

(0.87%)

(0.10%)

(0.84%)Sector Concentration

Security Selection

Asset Allocation Effect

Value Added

Attribution Effects by Sector vs. Russell 1000 Value Index
One Quarter Ended December 31, 2015

Sector

Manager

Eff Weight

Index

Eff Weight

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Sector

Concentration

Security

Selection

Asset

Allocation

Miscellaneous 0.00% 0.00% (0.06)% 0.00% (0.00)% 0.00% -

Consumer Discretionary 9.00% 5.34% (0.37)% 1.11% (0.17)% (0.13)% -

Consumer Staples 2.36% 6.78% 13.98% 6.04% (0.05)% 0.16% -

Energy 11.59% 13.20% (1.82)% 0.02% (0.03)% (0.20)% -

Financials 29.87% 30.12% 4.91% 5.19% 0.02% (0.09)% -

Health Care 17.02% 11.59% 8.22% 7.87% 0.05% 0.07% -

Industrials 9.77% 10.20% 8.39% 10.73% (0.04)% (0.22)% -

Information Technology 13.68% 11.24% 8.17% 9.54% 0.11% (0.20)% -

Materials 3.90% 2.73% 2.24% 8.68% 0.03% (0.26)% -

Telecommunications 1.73% 2.76% 7.54% 6.77% 0.00% 0.02% -

Utilities 1.06% 6.05% (1.36)% 1.45% 0.21% (0.03)% -

Non Equity 2.86% 0.00% - - - - (0.10)%

Total - - 4.79% 5.64% 0.13% (0.87)% (0.10)%

Manager Return

4.79%
=

Index Return

5.64%

Sector Concentration

0.13%

Security Selection

(0.87%)

Asset Allocation

(0.10%)

 58
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Boston Partners vs Russell 1000 Value Index
Domestic Equity Daily Performance Attribution
One Year Ended December 31, 2015

Return Sources and Timing
The charts below illustrate the timing and cumulative paths of the manager’s performance, as well as attributing relative
performance to three sources: Sector Concentration, Security Selection, and Asset Allocation. The first chart shows the
cumulative absolute return paths for the manager and index. The second chart shows the cumulative relative return path of
the manager and the attributed sources of that value-added. The bottom table breaks the annualized attribution factors down
to the sector level for more insight into sources of return.

Cumulative Manager and Benchmark Returns

(12%)

(10%)

(8%)

(6%)

(4%)

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

201503 201506 201509 201512

(3.75%)
(3.83%)

0.08%

Boston Partners

Russell 1000 Value Index

Relative Return

Cumulative Attribution Effects vs. Russell 1000 Value Index

(1.5%)

(1.0%)

(0.5%)

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

201503 201506 201509 201512

0.32%

(0.36%)

0.12%
0.08%

Sector Concentration

Security Selection

Asset Allocation Effect

Value Added

Attribution Effects by Sector vs. Russell 1000 Value Index
One Year Ended December 31, 2015

Sector

Manager

Eff Weight

Index

Eff Weight

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Sector

Concentration

Security

Selection

Asset

Allocation

Miscellaneous 0.00% 0.00% (0.06)% 0.00% (0.00)% 0.00% -

Consumer Discretionary 9.31% 6.00% (11.72)% (5.95)% (0.09)% (0.58)% -

Consumer Staples 3.46% 6.99% 18.60% (2.51)% (0.08)% 0.60% -

Energy 9.58% 12.25% (14.79)% (23.33)% 0.60% 0.87% -

Financials 28.92% 29.83% (4.19)% (0.91)% (0.02)% (0.97)% -

Health Care 18.22% 13.05% 5.38% 7.85% 0.32% (0.39)% -

Industrials 8.90% 10.16% 1.02% 0.82% 0.01% (0.01)% -

Information Technology 15.54% 10.23% 0.99% (5.07)% (0.38)% 1.03% -

Materials 3.67% 2.95% (25.03)% (11.31)% (0.07)% (0.61)% -

Telecommunications 1.32% 2.42% 3.64% 4.33% (0.06)% (0.00)% -

Utilities 1.08% 6.12% (27.89)% (5.42)% 0.10% (0.29)% -

Non Equity 2.08% 0.00% - - - - 0.12%

Total - - (3.75)% (3.83)% 0.32% (0.36)% 0.12%

Manager Return

(3.75%)
=

Index Return

(3.83%)

Sector Concentration

0.32%

Security Selection

(0.36%)

Asset Allocation

0.12%

 59
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Boston Partners vs Russell 1000 Value Index
Domestic Equity Top 10 Contribution Holdings
One Quarter Ended December 31, 2015

Manager Holdings with Largest (+ or -) Contribution to Performance

Issue Sector

Manager

Eff Wt

Days

Held

Index

Eff Wt

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Contrib

Manager

Perf

Contrib

Excess

Return

Microsoft Corp Information Technology 2.92% 92 1.78% 26.20% 26.20% 0.69% 0.21%

JPMorgan Chase & Co Financials 4.36% 92 2.40% 9.08% 9.08% 0.39% 0.06%

Johnson & Johnson Health Care 3.06% 92 2.41% 10.79% 10.84% 0.34% 0.03%

Activision Blizzard Inc Information Technology 1.34% 92 0.18% 25.32% 25.32% 0.31% 0.21%

Tyson Foods Inc Cl A Consumer Staples 1.29% 92 0.13% 24.03% 24.10% 0.27% 0.14%

Wells Fargo & Co New Financials 3.91% 92 2.52% 6.57% 6.59% 0.26% 0.01%

Medtronic Plc Shs Health Care 1.55% 92 1.04% 15.54% 15.47% 0.26% 0.05%

Western Digital Corp Information Technology 0.75% 92 0.16% (23.64)% (23.79)% (0.23)% (0.23)%

Raytheon Industrials 1.58% 92 0.36% 14.63% 14.67% 0.23% 0.10%

Chubb Limited Financials 1.63% 92 0.37% 13.64% 13.64% 0.22% 0.10%

Index Holdings with Largest (+ or -) Contribution to Performance

Issue Sector

Manager

Eff Wt

Days

Held

Index

Eff Wt

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Contrib

Index

Perf

Contrib

Excess

Return

General Electric Co Industrials - - 2.76% - 24.44% 0.63% (0.47)%

Microsoft Corp Information Technology 2.92% 92 1.78% 26.20% 26.20% 0.42% 0.21%

Johnson & Johnson Health Care 3.06% 92 2.41% 10.79% 10.84% 0.25% 0.03%

Chevron Corp New Energy - - 1.65% - 15.38% 0.24% (0.15)%

Procter & Gamble Co Consumer Staples - - 2.04% - 11.38% 0.23% (0.11)%

Kinder Morgan Inc Del Energy - - 0.47% - (45.09)% (0.22)% 0.25%

JPMorgan Chase & Co Financials 4.36% 92 2.40% 9.08% 9.08% 0.21% 0.06%

Intel Corp Information Technology - - 1.47% - 15.10% 0.21% (0.13)%

Exxon Mobil Corp Energy - - 3.36% - 5.78% 0.20% (0.01)%

Wells Fargo & Co New Financials 3.91% 92 2.52% 6.57% 6.59% 0.16% 0.01%

Positions with Largest Positive Contribution to Excess Return

Issue Sector

Manager

Eff Wt

Days

Held

Index

Eff Wt

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Contrib

Manager

Perf

Contrib

Excess

Return

Kinder Morgan Inc Del Energy - - 0.47% - (45.09)% - 0.25%

Microsoft Corp Information Technology 2.92% 92 1.78% 26.20% 26.20% 0.69% 0.21%

Activision Blizzard Inc Information Technology 1.34% 92 0.18% 25.32% 25.32% 0.31% 0.21%

Tyson Foods Inc Cl A Consumer Staples 1.29% 92 0.13% 24.03% 24.10% 0.27% 0.14%

Delta Air Lines Inc Del Industrials 1.58% 92 - 12.87% - 0.20% 0.12%

Harris Corp Del Information Technology 1.03% 92 0.08% 19.53% 19.53% 0.19% 0.12%

Wal-Mart Stores Inc Consumer Staples - - 0.96% - (4.67)% - 0.12%

Raytheon Industrials 1.58% 92 0.36% 14.63% 14.67% 0.23% 0.10%

Chubb Limited Financials 1.63% 92 0.37% 13.64% 13.64% 0.22% 0.10%

Qualcomm Inc Information Technology - - 0.75% - (6.05)% - 0.09%

Positions with Largest Negative Contribution to Excess Return

Issue Sector

Manager

Eff Wt

Days

Held

Index

Eff Wt

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Contrib

Manager

Perf

Contrib

Excess

Return

General Electric Co Industrials - - 2.76% - 24.44% - (0.47)%

Western Digital Corp Information Technology 0.75% 92 0.16% (23.64)% (23.79)% (0.23)% (0.23)%

Target Corp Consumer Discretionary 1.76% 92 0.45% (6.49)% (6.98)% (0.12)% (0.16)%

Chevron Corp New Energy - - 1.65% - 15.38% - (0.15)%

Capital One Finl Corp Financials 3.15% 92 0.42% 0.03% 0.03% 0.02% (0.14)%

Eog Resources Energy 2.21% 92 0.41% (2.91)% (2.57)% (0.11)% (0.14)%

Intel Corp Information Technology - - 1.47% - 15.10% - (0.13)%

Anadarko Petroleum Corp Energy 0.87% 92 0.32% (19.35)% (19.15)% (0.19)% (0.12)%

Nxp Semiconductors Information Technology 0.55% 29 - (13.58)% - (0.08)% (0.12)%

Cimarex Energy Co Energy 0.45% 86 0.11% (23.10)% (12.66)% (0.12)% (0.11)%

 60
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Atlanta Capital
Period Ended December 31, 2015

Investment Philosophy
Atlanta believes that high quality companies produce consistently increasing earnings and dividends, thereby providing
attractive returns with moderate risk over the long-term. Performance prior to inception on 6/30/2010 is linked to the
composite strategy.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
Atlanta Capital’s portfolio posted a 4.75% return for the
quarter placing it in the 17 percentile of the CAI Small
Capitalization Style group for the quarter and in the 4
percentile for the last year.

Atlanta Capital’s portfolio outperformed the Russell 2000
Index by 1.15% for the quarter and outperformed the Russell
2000 Index for the year by 9.56%.

Quarterly Asset Growth

Beginning Market Value $19,779,618

Net New Investment $0

Investment Gains/(Losses) $938,873

Ending Market Value $20,718,491

Performance vs CAI Small Capitalization Style (Gross)

(15%)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

Last Quarter Last Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 5-1/2 Last 5 Years Last 7 Years
Year Years

(17)
(35)

(4)

(70)

(26)

(73)

(9)

(75)

(15)

(78) (9)

(75)

(33)

(82)

10th Percentile 5.38 3.79 17.06 13.72 18.30 13.72 19.96
25th Percentile 4.28 (0.14) 15.68 12.42 16.91 12.42 17.98

Median 2.91 (2.39) 13.58 10.98 15.09 10.98 16.14
75th Percentile 1.86 (5.13) 11.47 9.20 13.67 9.20 14.77
90th Percentile (0.16) (8.09) 8.60 7.66 12.08 7.66 13.42

Atlanta Capital 4.75 5.14 15.47 13.82 17.53 13.82 17.34

Russell 2000 Index 3.59 (4.41) 11.65 9.19 13.51 9.19 14.01

Relative Return vs Russell 2000 Index

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(6%)

(4%)

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Atlanta Capital

CAI Small Capitalization Style (Gross)
Annualized Seven Year Risk vs Return

14 16 18 20 22 24 26 28 30
8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

20%

22%

24%

26%

Atlanta Capital

Russell 2000 Index

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 61
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Atlanta Capital
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Small Capitalization Style (Gross)

(60%)

(40%)

(20%)

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

4
70

6958

5669

8151 1
67

6764 6969

1
29

34
60

3826

10th Percentile 3.79 10.36 52.61 22.77 5.11 35.51 49.83 (29.60) 20.21 21.82
25th Percentile (0.14) 8.22 46.90 19.49 1.82 31.51 44.51 (33.01) 10.32 18.62

Median (2.39) 5.65 42.33 16.47 (1.75) 28.25 33.93 (37.46) 1.39 14.59
75th Percentile (5.13) 2.28 37.61 13.28 (5.70) 24.96 25.06 (42.30) (5.47) 11.58
90th Percentile (8.09) (2.43) 34.67 10.51 (8.62) 22.04 17.68 (46.47) (11.41) 7.13

Atlanta Capital 5.14 3.49 41.51 11.96 10.81 26.10 27.17 (19.41) 6.76 16.19

Russell
2000 Index (4.41) 4.89 38.82 16.35 (4.18) 26.85 27.17 (33.79) (1.57) 18.37

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs Russell 2000 Index

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Atlanta Capital CAI Small Cap Style

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs Russell 2000 Index
Rankings Against CAI Small Capitalization Style (Gross)
Seven Years Ended December 31, 2015

0

5

10

15

20

25

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

(16)

(7)

10th Percentile 5.78 20.65
25th Percentile 4.23 18.81

Median 2.23 16.41
75th Percentile 1.00 14.79
90th Percentile 0.03 13.67

Atlanta Capital 5.17 21.02

(0.5)

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

(3)

(5)

(31)

10th Percentile 1.18 0.96 0.93
25th Percentile 0.78 0.87 0.64

Median 0.48 0.78 0.37
75th Percentile 0.20 0.70 0.15
90th Percentile 0.01 0.64 (0.08)

Atlanta Capital 1.59 1.01 0.60

 62
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Atlanta Capital
Risk Analysis Summary

Risk Analysis
The graphs below analyze the risk or variation of a manager’s return pattern. The first scatter chart illustrates the
relationship, called Excess Return Ratio, between excess return and tracking error relative to the benchmark. The second
scatter chart displays the relationship, sometimes called Information Ratio, between alpha (market-risk or "beta" adjusted
return) and residual risk (non-market or "unsystematic" risk). The third chart shows tracking error patterns versus the
benchmark over time. The last two charts show the ranking of the manager’s risk statistics versus the peer group.

Risk Analysis vs CAI Small Capitalization Style (Gross)
Seven Years Ended December 31, 2015

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16
(5 )

0

5

10

Atlanta Capital

Tracking Error

E
x
c
e
s
s
 R

e
tu

rn

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16
(6 )

(4 )

(2 )

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Atlanta Capital

Residual Risk

A
lp

h
a

Rolling 12 Quarter Tracking Error vs Russell 2000 Index

T
ra

c
k
in

g
 E

rr
o

r

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

8%

9%

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Atlanta Capital

CAI Small Cap Style

Risk Statistics Rankings vs Russell 2000 Index
Rankings Against CAI Small Capitalization Style (Gross)
Seven Years Ended December 31, 2015

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

Standard Downside Residual Tracking
Deviation Risk Risk Error

(98)

(56) (89)
(58)

10th Percentile 23.67 4.80 7.82 8.29
25th Percentile 21.73 3.94 6.51 6.66

Median 20.56 2.83 4.88 5.27
75th Percentile 19.46 2.11 3.84 3.93
90th Percentile 18.28 1.52 3.23 3.36

Atlanta Capital 17.14 2.68 3.26 4.88

0.75

0.80

0.85

0.90

0.95

1.00

1.05

1.10

1.15

1.20

Beta R-Squared Rel. Std.
Deviation

(93)

(28)

(98)

10th Percentile 1.10 0.98 1.15
25th Percentile 1.03 0.97 1.06

Median 0.97 0.94 1.00
75th Percentile 0.91 0.91 0.95
90th Percentile 0.85 0.86 0.89

Atlanta Capital 0.82 0.97 0.84

 63
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Atlanta Capital
Equity Characteristics Analysis Summary

Portfolio Characteristics
This graph compares the manager’s portfolio characteristics with the range of characteristics for the portfolios which make up
the manager’s style group. This analysis illustrates whether the manager’s current holdings are consistent with other
managers employing the same style.

Portfolio Characteristics Percentile Rankings
Rankings Against CAI Small Capitalization Style
as of December 31, 2015

P
e

rc
e

n
ti
le

 R
a

n
k
in

g

100%

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

Weighted Median Forecasted Price/ Forecasted Dividend MSCI
Market Cap P/E Book Value Growth in Earnings Yield Combined Z-Score

(3)

(62)

(39)

(31)
(34)

(58)

(73)

(58) (56)

(30)

(44)

(53)

10th Percentile 2.51 34.94 3.89 20.85 2.15 0.85
25th Percentile 2.11 26.15 3.14 18.03 1.69 0.67

Median 1.84 17.82 2.15 14.33 1.30 0.13
75th Percentile 1.48 15.41 1.63 10.95 0.56 (0.30)
90th Percentile 1.13 13.87 1.36 8.61 0.39 (0.49)

Atlanta Capital 2.85 20.42 2.92 11.16 1.13 0.24

Russell 2000 Index 1.67 22.62 1.93 13.25 1.60 0.05

Sector Weights
The graph below contrasts the manager’s sector weights with those of the benchmark and median sector weights across the
members of the peer group. The magnitude of sector weight differences from the index and the manager’s sector
diversification are also shown. Diversification by number and concentration of holdings are also compared to the benchmark
and peer group. Issue Diversification represents by count, and Diversification Ratio by percent, the number of holdings that
account for half of the portfolio’s market value.

Sector Allocation
December 31, 2015

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35%

Industrials
23.9%

12.1%
14.9%

Information Technology
21.8%

18.0%
20.7%

Financials
18.3%

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

25.7%
23.2%

Consumer Discretionary
14.0%

13.5%
14.2%

Health Care
8.0%

16.4%
17.7%

Consumer Staples
7.9%

3.4%
2.5%

Materials
4.7%

3.6%
3.6%

Energy
1.4%

2.6%
2.3%

Telecommunications 0.8%

Utilities 3.8%
0.9%

Atlanta Capital Russell 2000 Index CAI Small Cap Style

Sector Diversification
Manager 2.24 sectors

Index 2.39 sectors

Diversification
December 31, 2015

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Number of Issue
Securities Diversification

(84)

(78)

10th Percentile 289 64
25th Percentile 140 43

Median 96 30
75th Percentile 69 23
90th Percentile 49 17

Atlanta Capital 60 20

Russell 2000 Index 1988 354

Diversification Ratio
Manager 34%

Index 18%

Style Median 32%

 64
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Current Holdings Based Style Analysis
Atlanta Capital
As of December 31, 2015

This page analyzes the current investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
actual exposures to various market capitalization and style segments of the domestic equity market. The market is
segmented quarterly by capitalization and style. The capitalization segments are dictated by capitalization decile breakpoints.
The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight fundamental factors used in the MSCI
stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the current market capitalization and style score of the
portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays the current portfolio and index
weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each capitalization/style segment of the market. The middle chart illustrates the
total exposures and stock counts in the three style segments, with a legend showing the total growth, value, and "combined
Z" (growth - value) scores. The bottom chart exhibits the sector weights as well as the style weights within each sector.

Style Map vs CAI Small Cap Style
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Atlanta Capital
Russell 2000 Index

Atlanta Capital

Russell 2000 Index

Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Total

Value Core Growth Total

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

1.5% (1) 7.0% (3) 25.2% (11) 33.6% (15)

9.5% (7) 33.7% (24) 21.4% (12) 64.7% (43)

0.0% (0) 1.7% (2) 0.0% (0) 1.7% (2)

11.0% (8) 42.4% (29) 46.5% (23) 100.0% (60)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

1.9% (9) 2.7% (14) 6.8% (28) 11.4% (51)

19.1% (245) 30.8% (415) 25.3% (332) 75.2% (992)

4.2% (254) 6.1% (438) 3.2% (184) 13.4% (876)

25.2% (508) 39.6% (867) 35.2% (544) 100.0% (1919)

Combined Z-Score Style Distribution
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

Value Core Growth

11.0%

(8)

25.2%

(508)

42.4%

(29)

39.6%

(867) 46.5%

(23)

35.2%

(544)

Bar #1=Atlanta Capital (Combined Z: 0.24 Growth Z: 0.03 Value Z: -0.20)

Bar #2=Russell 2000 Index (Combined Z: 0.05 Growth Z: 0.02 Value Z: -0.03)

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Sector Weights Distribution
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

CONCYC CONSTA ENERGY FINANC HEALTH INDEQU RAWMAT TECH COMMUN PUBUTL

14.0 13.5

7.9

3.4
1.4

2.6

18.3

25.7

8.0

16.4

23.9

12.2

4.7
3.6

21.8

17.9

0.0 0.8 0.0

3.8

Bar #1=Atlanta Capital

Bar #2=Russell 2000 Index

Value

Core

Growth

 65
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Historical Holdings Based Style Analysis
Atlanta Capital
For Five and 1/2 Years Ended December 31, 2015

This page analyzes the historical investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
average actual exposures to various market capitalization and style segments of the domestic equity market. The market is
segmented quarterly by capitalization and style. The capitalization segments are dictated by capitalization decile breakpoints.
The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight fundamental factors used in the MSCI
stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the average historical market capitalization and style score of
the portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays the average historical portfolio
and index weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each capitalization/style segment of the market. The next two style
exposure charts illustrate the actual quarterly cap/style and style only segment exposures of the portfolio through history.

Average Style Map vs CAI Small Cap Style
Holdings for Five and 1/2 Years Ended December 31, 2015

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Atlanta Capital

Russell 2000 Index

Average Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings for Five and 1/2 Years Ended December 31, 2015

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Total

Value Core Growth Total

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

2.9% (2) 13.5% (7) 16.6% (7) 33.0% (16)

7.3% (6) 34.5% (23) 23.8% (15) 65.5% (44)

0.5% (0) 0.9% (1) 0.1% (0) 1.5% (1)

10.7% (8) 48.9% (31) 40.4% (22) 100.0% (61)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

1.4% (7) 2.3% (12) 5.4% (26) 9.1% (45)

21.0% (284) 29.7% (403) 26.6% (360) 77.3% (1047)

5.0% (306) 5.2% (348) 3.4% (210) 13.6% (864)

27.4% (597) 37.2% (763) 35.4% (596) 100.0% (1956)

Atlanta Capital Historical Cap/Style Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Micro-Growth

Micro-Core

Micro-Value

Small-Growth

Small-Core

Small-Value

Mid-Growth

Mid-Core

Mid-Value

Atlanta Capital Historical Style Only Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Growth

Core

Value

 66
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Atlanta Capital vs Russell 2000 Index
Domestic Equity Daily Performance Attribution
One Quarter Ended December 31, 2015

Return Sources and Timing
The charts below illustrate the timing and cumulative paths of the manager’s performance, as well as attributing relative
performance to three sources: Sector Concentration, Security Selection, and Asset Allocation. The first chart shows the
cumulative absolute return paths for the manager and index. The second chart shows the cumulative relative return path of
the manager and the attributed sources of that value-added. The bottom table breaks the annualized attribution factors down
to the sector level for more insight into sources of return.

Cumulative Manager and Benchmark Returns

(4%)

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

201510 201511 201512

4.75%
3.59%

1.15%

Atlanta Capital

Russell 2000 Index

Relative Return

Cumulative Attribution Effects vs. Russell 2000 Index

(3%)

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

201510 201511 201512

(0.19%)

1.49%

(0.15%)

1.15%

Sector Concentration

Security Selection

Asset Allocation Effect

Value Added

Attribution Effects by Sector vs. Russell 2000 Index
One Quarter Ended December 31, 2015

Sector

Manager

Eff Weight

Index

Eff Weight

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Sector

Concentration

Security

Selection

Asset

Allocation

Consumer Discretionary 14.13% 13.93% (0.85)% (3.07)% 0.00% 0.32% -

Consumer Staples 7.67% 3.40% 10.57% 3.29% (0.01)% 0.56% -

Energy 1.49% 2.99% 1.73% (7.76)% 0.19% 0.13% -

Financials 18.50% 25.89% 3.64% 3.11% 0.05% 0.10% -

Health Care 8.55% 15.41% 5.52% 9.87% (0.42)% (0.41)% -

Industrials 22.79% 12.37% 4.82% 2.78% (0.07)% 0.47% -

Information Technology 22.15% 17.71% 7.02% 6.84% 0.16% 0.04% -

Materials 4.73% 3.73% 9.21% 3.19% (0.00)% 0.28% -

Telecommunications 0.00% 0.86% 0.00% 6.35% (0.01)% 0.00% -

Utilities 0.00% 3.71% 0.00% 5.96% (0.08)% 0.00% -

Non Equity 3.82% 0.00% - - - - (0.15)%

Total - - 4.75% 3.59% (0.19)% 1.49% (0.15)%

Manager Return

4.75%
=

Index Return

3.59%

Sector Concentration

(0.19%)

Security Selection

1.49%

Asset Allocation

(0.15%)

 67
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Atlanta Capital vs Russell 2000 Index
Domestic Equity Daily Performance Attribution
One Year Ended December 31, 2015

Return Sources and Timing
The charts below illustrate the timing and cumulative paths of the manager’s performance, as well as attributing relative
performance to three sources: Sector Concentration, Security Selection, and Asset Allocation. The first chart shows the
cumulative absolute return paths for the manager and index. The second chart shows the cumulative relative return path of
the manager and the attributed sources of that value-added. The bottom table breaks the annualized attribution factors down
to the sector level for more insight into sources of return.

Cumulative Manager and Benchmark Returns

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

201503 201506 201509 201512

5.14%

(4.41%)

9.56%

Atlanta Capital

Russell 2000 Index

Relative Return

Cumulative Attribution Effects vs. Russell 2000 Index

(4%)

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

201503 201506 201509 201512

(1.17%)

10.81%

(0.08%)

9.56%

Sector Concentration

Security Selection

Asset Allocation Effect

Value Added

Attribution Effects by Sector vs. Russell 2000 Index
One Year Ended December 31, 2015

Sector

Manager

Eff Weight

Index

Eff Weight

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Sector

Concentration

Security

Selection

Asset

Allocation

Consumer Discretionary 16.96% 14.05% (0.01)% (10.53)% 0.02% 1.88% -

Consumer Staples 7.18% 3.23% 18.00% (3.01)% 0.15% 1.44% -

Energy 1.73% 3.36% (22.81)% (39.20)% 0.77% 0.31% -

Financials 17.32% 24.52% 4.67% (0.31)% (0.44)% 0.88% -

Health Care 8.21% 15.75% 15.29% 8.04% (0.90)% 0.51% -

Industrials 23.51% 13.01% (8.62)% (12.77)% (0.90)% 1.10% -

Information Technology 20.87% 17.63% 20.90% 2.91% 0.30% 3.20% -

Materials 4.22% 4.09% 7.63% (23.06)% (0.03)% 1.49% -

Telecommunications 0.00% 0.80% 0.00% (1.06)% (0.02)% 0.00% -

Utilities 0.00% 3.56% 0.00% (0.81)% (0.13)% 0.00% -

Non Equity 3.30% 0.00% - - - - (0.08)%

Total - - 5.14% (4.41)% (1.17)% 10.81% (0.08)%

Manager Return

5.14%
=

Index Return

(4.41%)

Sector Concentration

(1.17%)

Security Selection

10.81%

Asset Allocation

(0.08%)

 68
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Atlanta Capital vs Russell 2000 Index
Domestic Equity Top 10 Contribution Holdings
One Quarter Ended December 31, 2015

Manager Holdings with Largest (+ or -) Contribution to Performance

Issue Sector

Manager

Eff Wt

Days

Held

Index

Eff Wt

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Contrib

Manager

Perf

Contrib

Excess

Return

Blackbaud Inc Information Technology 2.82% 92 0.16% 17.59% 17.59% 0.47% 0.34%

Caseys General Stores Consumer Staples 2.80% 92 0.25% 17.27% 17.27% 0.46% 0.32%

Sally Beauty Hldgs Inc Consumer Discretionary 2.26% 92 - 17.43% - 0.37% 0.29%

Manhattan Associates Information Technology 4.70% 92 0.30% 6.30% 6.21% 0.37% 0.19%

Rli Corp Financials 1.78% 92 0.15% 19.50% 19.50% 0.33% 0.24%

Columbia Sportswear Co Consumer Discretionary 1.68% 92 0.09% (16.78)% (16.76)% (0.31)% (0.38)%

Exponent Inc Industrials 2.56% 92 0.07% 12.42% 12.42% 0.31% 0.21%

Beacon Roofing Supply Inc Industrials 1.26% 92 0.11% 26.75% 26.75% 0.30% 0.25%

Lancaster Colony Corp Consumer Staples 1.30% 92 0.12% 24.23% 24.23% 0.29% 0.22%

Fair Isaac Corp Information Technology 2.54% 92 0.16% 11.48% 11.48% 0.28% 0.18%

Index Holdings with Largest (+ or -) Contribution to Performance

Issue Sector

Manager

Eff Wt

Days

Held

Index

Eff Wt

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Contrib

Index

Perf

Contrib

Excess

Return

Dyax Corp Health Care - - 0.23% - 97.07% 0.16% (0.16)%

Clovis Oncology Inc Health Care - - 0.12% - (61.94)% (0.09)% 0.10%

Neurocrine Biosciences Inc Health Care - - 0.24% - 42.17% 0.09% (0.08)%

Piedmont Nat Gas Inc Utilities - - 0.24% - 43.12% 0.08% (0.08)%

Tailored Brands Inc Consumer Discretionary - - 0.10% - (65.07)% (0.08)% 0.09%

Pacira Pharmaceuticals Inc Health Care - - 0.11% - 86.84% 0.08% (0.07)%

Chimerix Inc Health Care - - 0.10% - (76.57)% (0.08)% 0.08%

Heartland Pmt Sys Inc Information Technology - - 0.15% - 50.67% 0.07% (0.06)%

Integrated Device Tech Information Technology - - 0.21% - 29.80% 0.05% (0.05)%

Dynegy Inc New Del Utilities - - 0.14% - (35.17)% (0.05)% 0.06%

Positions with Largest Positive Contribution to Excess Return

Issue Sector

Manager

Eff Wt

Days

Held

Index

Eff Wt

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Contrib

Manager

Perf

Contrib

Excess

Return

Blackbaud Inc Information Technology 2.82% 92 0.16% 17.59% 17.59% 0.47% 0.34%

Caseys General Stores Consumer Staples 2.80% 92 0.25% 17.27% 17.27% 0.46% 0.32%

Sally Beauty Hldgs Inc Consumer Discretionary 2.26% 92 - 17.43% - 0.37% 0.29%

Beacon Roofing Supply Inc Industrials 1.26% 92 0.11% 26.75% 26.75% 0.30% 0.25%

Rli Corp Financials 1.78% 92 0.15% 19.50% 19.50% 0.33% 0.24%

Lancaster Colony Corp Consumer Staples 1.30% 92 0.12% 24.23% 24.23% 0.29% 0.22%

Exponent Inc Industrials 2.56% 92 0.07% 12.42% 12.42% 0.31% 0.21%

Manhattan Associates Information Technology 4.70% 92 0.30% 6.30% 6.21% 0.37% 0.19%

Fair Isaac Corp Information Technology 2.54% 92 0.16% 11.48% 11.48% 0.28% 0.18%

Henry Jack & Assoc Inc Information Technology 2.08% 92 - 12.49% - 0.25% 0.18%

Positions with Largest Negative Contribution to Excess Return

Issue Sector

Manager

Eff Wt

Days

Held

Index

Eff Wt

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Contrib

Manager

Perf

Contrib

Excess

Return

Columbia Sportswear Co Consumer Discretionary 1.68% 92 0.09% (16.78)% (16.76)% (0.31)% (0.38)%

Dorman Products Inc Consumer Discretionary 1.88% 92 0.08% (6.72)% (6.72)% (0.14)% (0.22)%

Wolverine World Wide Inc Consumer Discretionary 0.78% 92 0.12% (22.51)% (22.51)% (0.20)% (0.20)%

Hibbett Sports Inc Consumer Discretionary 1.12% 92 0.05% (13.62)% (13.62)% (0.15)% (0.20)%

Corelogic Inc Information Technology 1.47% 92 - (9.04)% - (0.12)% (0.19)%

Dyax Corp Health Care - - 0.23% - 97.07% - (0.16)%

Us Ecology Inc Industrials 0.67% 92 0.05% (16.20)% (16.20)% (0.12)% (0.14)%

Scansource Information Technology 1.18% 92 0.06% (9.14)% (9.14)% (0.10)% (0.14)%

Huron Consulting Group Inc Industrials 1.24% 92 0.08% (5.01)% (5.01)% (0.09)% (0.13)%

Morningstar Inc Financials 3.06% 92 - 0.42% - 0.02% (0.11)%

 69
Sacramento Regional Transit District



In
te

rn
a

tio
n

a
l E

q
u
ity

International Equity



International Equity
Period Ended December 31, 2015

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
International Equity’s portfolio posted a 3.77% return for the quarter placing it in the 72 percentile of the CAI Non-U.S.
Equity Style group for the quarter and in the 86 percentile for the last year.

International Equity’s portfolio underperformed the Custom International Benchmark by 0.08% for the quarter and
underperformed the Custom International Benchmark for the year by 0.26%.

Performance vs CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

Last Quarter Last Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years Last 15-1/2
Year Years

B(48)
A(72)(70)

B(64)

A(86)(84)

B(64)

A(91)

(85) B(70)

A(84)(82)

B(75)

A(93)
(88)

B(90)
A(93)(94)

A(57)

B(93)(95)

10th Percentile 6.42 5.50 8.84 7.03 11.72 6.51 6.88
25th Percentile 5.66 2.76 7.38 5.73 10.47 5.53 5.78

Median 4.65 0.62 5.82 4.70 9.16 4.24 4.66
75th Percentile 3.52 (2.15) 4.04 3.26 7.82 3.55 3.81
90th Percentile 2.59 (4.95) 2.67 1.54 6.81 3.00 2.91

International
Equity A 3.77 (4.17) 2.47 2.43 6.50 2.70 4.50
MSCI

EAFE Index B 4.71 (0.81) 5.01 3.60 7.83 3.03 2.68

Custom International
Benchmark 3.84 (3.91) 3.50 2.70 7.16 2.58 2.39

Relative Returns vs
Custom International Benchmark

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(2.5%)

(2.0%)

(1.5%)

(1.0%)

(0.5%)

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

International Equity

CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)
Annualized Seven Year Risk vs Return

10 15 20 25 30
2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

Custom International Benchmark

International Equity

MSCI EAFE Index

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 71
Sacramento Regional Transit District



International Equity
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)

(80%)
(60%)
(40%)
(20%)

0%
20%
40%
60%

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

B(64)
A(86)84 A(44)

B(60)51

B(52)
A(84)

66 B(69)
A(69)69

A(40)
B(57)57

B(78)
A(84)

78

B(55)
A(73)

55

A(24)
B(55)55

B(61)
A(85)

61

A(31)
B(48)48

10th Percentile 5.50 (0.67) 28.72 23.54 (6.48) 16.72 46.43 (36.18) 22.09 31.47
25th Percentile 2.76 (2.59) 26.08 21.12 (9.56) 14.53 39.21 (39.67) 17.70 29.21

Median 0.62 (4.12) 23.32 18.99 (11.40) 10.84 32.89 (42.97) 13.15 26.02
75th Percentile (2.15) (5.97) 19.49 16.61 (14.02) 8.27 27.71 (46.76) 9.54 23.87
90th Percentile (4.95) (7.74) 14.73 14.45 (16.87) 5.97 24.60 (49.34) 6.21 20.66

International
Equity A (4.17) (3.72) 16.62 17.28 (10.64) 6.83 28.99 (39.41) 7.68 28.72
MSCI

EAFE Index B (0.81) (4.90) 22.78 17.32 (12.14) 7.75 31.78 (43.38) 11.17 26.34

Custom International
Benchmark (3.91) (4.23) 20.46 17.32 (12.14) 7.75 31.78 (43.38) 11.17 26.34

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs Custom International Benchmark

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

International Equity MSCI EAFE Index CAI Non-U.S. Eq. Style

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs Custom International Benchmark
Rankings Against CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)
Seven Years Ended December 31, 2015

(4)
(2)

0
2
4
6
8

10
12
14
16

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

B(78)
A(95)

B(78)
A(94)

10th Percentile 4.75 12.66
25th Percentile 3.53 11.18

Median 2.24 9.40
75th Percentile 0.93 8.00
90th Percentile 0.01 7.04

International
Equity A (0.47) 6.58

MSCI EAFE Index B 0.65 7.75

(1)

0

1

2

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

B(50)

A(97)

B(76)
A(93)

B(39)

A(99)

10th Percentile 1.37 0.63 1.21
25th Percentile 1.08 0.55 0.88

Median 0.68 0.47 0.51
75th Percentile 0.26 0.40 0.16
90th Percentile 0.00 0.34 (0.09)

International Equity A (0.29) 0.33 (0.37)
MSCI EAFE Index B 0.68 0.39 0.66

 72
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Current Holdings Based Style Analysis
International Equity
As of December 31, 2015

This page analyzes the current investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
actual exposures to various regional and style segments of the international/global equity market. The market is segmented
quarterly by region and style. The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight
fundamental factors used in the MSCI stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the current market
capitalization and style score of the portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays
the current portfolio and index weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each region/style segment of the market. The
middle chart illustrates the total exposures and stock counts in the three style segments, with a legend showing the total
growth, value, and "combined Z" (growth - value) scores. The bottom chart exhibits the sector weights as well as the style
weights within each sector.

Style Map vs CAI Non-U.S. Eq. Style
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

International Equity

MSCI EAFE Index

Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

12.6% (122) 14.5% (143) 23.2% (194) 50.4% (459)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (5) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (5)

7.5% (132) 9.3% (187) 9.3% (176) 26.1% (495)

7.6% (856) 9.0% (2250) 7.0% (624) 23.5% (3730)

27.7% (1110) 32.8% (2585) 39.5% (994) 100.0% (4689)

17.7% (122) 19.7% (139) 27.0% (195) 64.5% (456)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

9.6% (131) 13.5% (161) 12.4% (176) 35.5% (468)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

27.3% (253) 33.3% (300) 39.5% (371) 100.0% (924)

Europe/

Mid East

N. America

Pacific

Emerging

Total

Value Core Growth Total

Combined Z-Score Style Distribution
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Value Core Growth

27.7%

(1110)

27.3%

(253) 32.8%

(2585)

33.3%

(300) 39.5%

(994)

39.5%

(371)

Bar #1=International Equity (Combined Z: -0.01 Growth Z: 0.00 Value Z: 0.01)

Bar #2=MSCI EAFE Index (Combined Z: 0.02 Growth Z: 0.01 Value Z: -0.02)

Europe/Mid East

N. America

Pacific

Emerging

Sector Weights Distribution
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

COMMUN CONCYC CONSTA ENERGY FINANC HEALTH INDEQU MISC PUBUTL RAWMAT TECH

0.0 0.0

4.3 5.4

13.5 13.2
10.7 11.9

4.5 4.5

25.1 24.4

11.0 11.9 12.1 13.2

0.0 0.0
2.3

3.7

7.1 6.4

9.4

5.4

Bar #1=International Equity

Bar #2=MSCI EAFE Index

Value

Core

Growth

 73
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Historical Holdings Based Style Analysis
International Equity
For Five and 1/2 Years Ended December 31, 2015

This page analyzes the historical investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
average actual exposures to various region and style segments of the international/global equity market. The market is
segmented quarterly by region and style. The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the
eight fundamental factors used in the MSCI stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the average
historical market capitalization and style score of the portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure
matrix displays the average historical portfolio and index weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each region/style
segment of the market. The next two style exposure charts illustrate the actual quarterly region/style and style only segment
exposures of the portfolio through history.

Average Style Map vs CAI Non-U.S. Eq. Style
Holdings for Five and 1/2 Years Ended December 31, 2015

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

International Equity

MSCI EAFE Index

Average Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings for Five and 1/2 Years Ended December 31, 2015

18.5% (99) 19.4% (100) 20.8% (139) 58.6% (338)

0.1% (1) 0.2% (2) 0.1% (0) 0.4% (3)

7.9% (102) 9.2% (122) 9.3% (123) 26.5% (347)

4.3% (587) 6.6% (757) 3.6% (337) 14.5% (1681)

30.9% (789) 35.4% (981) 33.8% (599) 100.0% (2369)

20.2% (133) 20.1% (126) 24.6% (194) 64.9% (453)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.3% (1) 0.4% (1)

10.1% (136) 12.8% (162) 11.7% (167) 34.7% (465)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (1) 0.1% (1)

30.4% (269) 32.9% (288) 36.6% (363) 100.0% (920)

Europe/

Mid East

N. America

Pacific

Emerging

Total

Value Core Growth Total

International Equity Historical Region/Style Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Emerging-Growth

Emerging-Core

Emerging-Value

Pacific-Growth

Pacific-Core

Pacific-Value

N. America-Growth

N. America-Core

N. America-Value

Europe/Mid East-Growth

Europe/Mid East-Core

Europe/Mid East-Value

International Equity Historical Style Only Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Growth

Core

Value

 74
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Country Allocation
International Equity VS MSCI EAFE Index

Country Allocation
The chart below contrasts the portfolio’s country allocation with that of the index as of December 31, 2015. This chart is
useful because large deviations in country allocation relative to the index are often good predictors of tracking error in the
subsequent quarter. To the extent that the portfolio allocation is similar to the index, the portfolio should experience more
"index-like" performance. In order to illustrate the performance effect on the portfolio and index of these country allocations,
the individual index country returns are also shown.

Country Weights as of December 31, 2015

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30%

Australia
3.3%

6.8%

Austria
0.1%
0.2%

Belgium
1.2%
1.4%

Brazil
1.5%

Chile
0.3%

China
4.3%

Colombia
0.1%

Cyprus
0.0%

Czech Republic
0.0%

Denmark
1.2%

1.9%

Egypt
0.0%

Finland
0.4%

0.9%

France
8.5%

9.7%

Germany
7.0%

9.1%

Greece
0.1%

Hong Kong
4.3%

3.1%

Hungary
0.1%

India
3.2%

Indonesia
0.8%

Ireland
0.2%

0.4%

Israel
0.8%
0.8%

Italy
0.9%

2.4%

Japan
18.5%

23.4%

Luxembourg
0.0%

Malaysia
0.9%

Mexico
1.1%

Netherlands
2.7%

2.9%

New Zealand
0.1%
0.2%

Norway
0.2%

0.6%

Peru
0.0%

Philippines
0.4%

Poland
0.4%

Portugal
0.1%
0.1%

Russia
0.2%

Singapore
0.5%

1.3%

South Africa
1.9%

South Korea
4.0%

Spain
1.3%

3.2%

Sweden
1.1%

2.9%

Switzerland
8.7%

9.4%

Taiwan
3.6%

Thailand
0.5%

Turkey
0.4%

United Kingdom
15.3%

19.4%

United States
0.1%

Percent of Portfolio

International Equity MSCI EAFE Index

Index Rtns

9.96%

6.85%

13.64%

(3.16%)

(0.97%)

4.03%

(9.40%)

-

(11.29%)

6.69%

(7.84%)

9.64%

1.67%

7.70%

(18.99%)

6.01%

11.41%

(0.91%)

20.87%

6.99%

8.91%

(2.32%)

9.34%

-

7.87%

(1.12%)

3.14%

18.15%

(0.52%)

(8.11%)

(0.45%)

(12.90%)

4.23%

(3.99%)

4.24%

(10.51%)

5.72%

(2.55%)

2.43%

2.04%

1.23%

(6.17%)

(0.24%)

0.73%

5.13%

Manager Total Return: 3.77%

Index Total Return: 4.71%

 75
Sacramento Regional Transit District



SSgA EAFE
Period Ended December 31, 2015

Investment Philosophy
State Street’s objective is to provide the most cost-effective implementation of passive investing with stringent risk control
and tracking requirements through a replication method. Returns prior to 6/30/2012 are linked to a composite history.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
SSgA EAFE’s portfolio posted a 4.72% return for the quarter
placing it in the 47 percentile of the CAI Non-U.S. Equity
Style group for the quarter and in the 60 percentile for the
last year.

SSgA EAFE’s portfolio outperformed the MSCI EAFE Index
by 0.01% for the quarter and outperformed the MSCI EAFE
Index for the year by 0.25%.

Quarterly Asset Growth

Beginning Market Value $20,473,043

Net New Investment $0

Investment Gains/(Losses) $967,149

Ending Market Value $21,440,192

Performance vs CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

Last Quarter Last Last 3 Years Last 3-1/2 Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years
Year Years

(47)(48)

(60)(64)

(59)(64)

(57)(62)

(59)(64)
(67)(70)

(71)(75)

10th Percentile 6.42 5.50 8.84 11.68 8.84 7.03 11.72
25th Percentile 5.66 2.76 7.38 10.47 7.38 5.73 10.47

Median 4.65 0.62 5.82 8.78 5.82 4.70 9.16
75th Percentile 3.52 (2.15) 4.04 7.49 4.04 3.26 7.82
90th Percentile 2.59 (4.95) 2.67 6.14 2.67 1.54 6.81

SSgA EAFE 4.72 (0.56) 5.24 8.43 5.24 3.84 8.07

MSCI EAFE Index 4.71 (0.81) 5.01 8.25 5.01 3.60 7.83

Relative Return vs MSCI EAFE Index

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(0.20%)

(0.15%)

(0.10%)

(0.05%)

0.00%

0.05%

0.10%

0.15%

0.20%

0.25%

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

SSgA EAFE

CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)
Annualized Seven Year Risk vs Return

10 15 20 25 30
2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

SSgA EAFE MSCI EAFE Index

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 76
Sacramento Regional Transit District



SSgA EAFE
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)

(80%)

(60%)

(40%)

(20%)

0%

20%

40%

60%

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

(60)(64) (55)(60)

(52)(52) (68)(69)

(54)(57)

(77)(78)

(55)(55)

(51)(55)

10th Percentile 5.50 (0.67) 28.72 23.54 (6.48) 16.72 46.43 (36.18)
25th Percentile 2.76 (2.59) 26.08 21.12 (9.56) 14.53 39.21 (39.67)

Median 0.62 (4.12) 23.32 18.99 (11.40) 10.84 32.89 (42.97)
75th Percentile (2.15) (5.97) 19.49 16.61 (14.02) 8.27 27.71 (46.76)
90th Percentile (4.95) (7.74) 14.73 14.45 (16.87) 5.97 24.60 (49.34)

SSgA EAFE (0.56) (4.55) 22.80 17.57 (11.91) 7.98 32.05 (43.15)

MSCI EAFE Index (0.81) (4.90) 22.78 17.32 (12.14) 7.75 31.78 (43.38)

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs MSCI EAFE Index

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

2012 2013 2014 2015

SSgA EAFE CAI Non-U.S. Eq. Style

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs MSCI EAFE Index
Rankings Against CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)
Seven Years Ended December 31, 2015

(4)
(2)

0
2
4
6
8

10
12
14
16

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

(75)

(75)

10th Percentile 4.16 12.66
25th Percentile 2.97 11.15

Median 1.60 9.38
75th Percentile 0.29 8.00
90th Percentile (0.56) 7.03

SSgA EAFE 0.23 7.98

(0.5)

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

(5)

(72)

(3)

10th Percentile 1.22 0.63 1.03
25th Percentile 0.92 0.55 0.73

Median 0.50 0.47 0.34
75th Percentile 0.09 0.40 (0.00)
90th Percentile (0.19) 0.34 (0.25)

SSgA EAFE 1.43 0.40 1.36

 77
Sacramento Regional Transit District



SSgA EAFE
Equity Characteristics Analysis Summary

Portfolio Characteristics
This graph compares the manager’s portfolio characteristics with the range of characteristics for the portfolios which make up
the manager’s style group. This analysis illustrates whether the manager’s current holdings are consistent with other
managers employing the same style.

Portfolio Characteristics Percentile Rankings
Rankings Against CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style
as of December 31, 2015

P
e

rc
e

n
ti
le

 R
a

n
k
in

g

100%

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

Weighted Median Price/Fore- Price/Book Forecasted Dividend MSCI
Market Cap casted Earnings Earnings Growth Yield Combined Z-Score

(31)(32)

(48)(46)

(60)
(56)

(72)(70)

(20)(22)

(62)
(59)

10th Percentile 41.71 17.97 2.60 12.77 3.63 0.67
25th Percentile 35.89 15.77 2.27 11.55 3.02 0.49

Median 28.52 14.58 1.70 9.51 2.65 0.15
75th Percentile 20.61 13.14 1.45 8.29 2.28 (0.21)
90th Percentile 14.14 12.22 1.24 7.13 1.99 (0.42)

SSgA EAFE 33.57 14.73 1.62 8.42 3.13 (0.02)

MSCI EAFE Index 32.94 14.79 1.65 8.63 3.08 0.02

Sector Weights
The graph below contrasts the manager’s sector weights with those of the benchmark and median sector weights across the
members of the peer group. The magnitude of sector weight differences from the index and the manager’s sector
diversification are also shown. Diversification by number and concentration of holdings are also compared to the benchmark
and peer group. Issue Diversification represents by count, and Diversification Ratio by percent, the number of holdings that
account for half of the portfolio’s market value.

Sector Allocation
December 31, 2015

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35%

Financials
25.6%

24.3%
23.6%

Consumer Discretionary
13.2%
13.2%

14.9%

Industrials
12.6%

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

5
0
%

M
g
r 

M
V

13.2%
12.8%

Consumer Staples
11.9%
11.9%

10.4%

Health Care
11.9%
11.9%

12.8%

Materials
6.4%
6.4%

5.9%

Information Technology
5.2%
5.4%

8.7%

Telecommunications
4.9%
5.4%

5.0%

Energy
4.5%
4.5%
4.4%

Utilities
3.8%
3.7%

1.6%

Miscellaneous
0.0%

SSgA EAFE MSCI EAFE Index CAI Non-U.S. Eq. Style

Sector Diversification
Manager 2.89 sectors

Index 2.95 sectors

Diversification
December 31, 2015

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

Number of Issue
Securities Diversification

(1)

(1)

10th Percentile 303 54
25th Percentile 125 35

Median 79 24
75th Percentile 59 19
90th Percentile 47 15

SSgA EAFE 932 105

MSCI EAFE Index 925 108

Diversification Ratio
Manager 11%

Index 12%

Style Median 31%

 78
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Current Holdings Based Style Analysis
SSgA EAFE
As of December 31, 2015

This page analyzes the current investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
actual exposures to various regional and style segments of the international/global equity market. The market is segmented
quarterly by region and style. The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight
fundamental factors used in the MSCI stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the current market
capitalization and style score of the portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays
the current portfolio and index weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each region/style segment of the market. The
middle chart illustrates the total exposures and stock counts in the three style segments, with a legend showing the total
growth, value, and "combined Z" (growth - value) scores. The bottom chart exhibits the sector weights as well as the style
weights within each sector.

Style Map vs CAI Non-U.S. Eq. Style
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

SSgA EAFE

MSCI EAFE Index

Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

17.8% (122) 19.5% (138) 26.8% (194) 64.0% (454)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (1) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (1)

10.8% (132) 13.2% (161) 12.0% (176) 36.0% (469)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

28.5% (254) 32.6% (300) 38.8% (370) 100.0% (924)

17.7% (122) 19.7% (139) 27.0% (195) 64.5% (456)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

9.6% (131) 13.5% (161) 12.4% (176) 35.5% (468)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

27.3% (253) 33.3% (300) 39.5% (371) 100.0% (924)

Europe/

Mid East

N. America

Pacific

Emerging

Total

Value Core Growth Total

Combined Z-Score Style Distribution
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Value Core Growth

28.5%

(254)

27.3%

(253) 32.6%

(300)

33.3%

(300) 38.8%

(370)

39.5%

(371)

Bar #1=SSgA EAFE (Combined Z: -0.02 Growth Z: -0.01 Value Z: 0.01)

Bar #2=MSCI EAFE Index (Combined Z: 0.02 Growth Z: 0.01 Value Z: -0.02)

Europe/Mid East

N. America

Pacific

Emerging

Sector Weights Distribution
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

COMMUN CONCYC CONSTA ENERGY FINANC HEALTH INDEQU MISC PUBUTL RAWMAT TECH

4.9 5.4

13.2 13.2
11.9 11.9

4.5 4.5

25.6
24.4

11.9 11.9 12.6 13.2

0.0 0.0

3.8 3.7
6.4 6.4 5.2 5.4

Bar #1=SSgA EAFE

Bar #2=MSCI EAFE Index

Value

Core

Growth

 79
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Country Allocation
SSgA EAFE VS MSCI EAFE Index

Country Allocation
The chart below contrasts the portfolio’s country allocation with that of the index as of December 31, 2015. This chart is
useful because large deviations in country allocation relative to the index are often good predictors of tracking error in the
subsequent quarter. To the extent that the portfolio allocation is similar to the index, the portfolio should experience more
"index-like" performance. In order to illustrate the performance effect on the portfolio and index of these country allocations,
the individual index country returns are also shown.

Country Weights as of December 31, 2015

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30%

Australia
6.7%

6.8%

Austria
0.2%

0.2%

Belgium
1.5%

1.4%

Denmark
1.9%

1.9%

Finland
0.9%

0.9%

France
9.8%

9.7%

Germany
9.1%

9.1%

Hong Kong
4.4%

3.1%

Ireland
0.4%

0.4%

Israel
0.8%

0.8%

Italy
2.3%

2.4%

Japan
23.4%

23.4%

Netherlands
2.9%

2.9%

New Zealand
0.2%

0.2%

Norway
0.6%

0.6%

Portugal
0.2%

0.1%

Singapore
1.2%

1.3%

Spain
3.2%

3.2%

Sweden
2.9%

2.9%

Switzerland
9.3%

9.4%

United Kingdom
18.2%

19.4%

United States
0.0%

Percent of Portfolio

SSgA EAFE MSCI EAFE Index

Index Rtns

9.96%

6.85%

13.64%

6.69%

9.64%

1.67%

7.70%

6.01%

6.99%

8.91%

(2.32%)

9.34%

3.14%

18.15%

(0.52%)

4.23%

4.24%

(2.55%)

2.43%

2.04%

0.73%

5.13%

Manager Total Return: 4.72%

Index Total Return: 4.71%

 80
Sacramento Regional Transit District



SSgA EAFE
Top 10 Portfolio Holdings Characteristics
as of December 31, 2015

10 Largest Holdings

Stock Sector

Ending

Market

Value

Percent

of

Portfolio

Qtrly

Return

Market

Capital

Price/

Forecasted

Earnings

Ratio

Dividend

Yield

Forecasted

Growth in

Earnings

Nestle S A Shs Nom New Consumer Staples $403,266 1.9% (0.86)% 237.45 21.32 2.95% 4.10%

Novartis Health Care $335,085 1.6% (4.98)% 232.13 16.24 3.00% 8.78%

Roche Hldgs Ag Basel Div Rts Ctf Health Care $329,451 1.5% 4.66% 193.99 17.96 2.89% 6.80%

Toyota Motor Corp Consumer Discretionary $291,810 1.4% 5.62% 207.78 9.20 3.00% 8.30%

Hsbc Holdings (Gb) Financials $265,723 1.2% 5.96% 157.22 10.32 6.26% 4.43%

Novo Nordisk B Health Care $196,180 0.9% 7.72% 120.06 25.32 1.25% 19.28%

Bayer A G Namen -Akt Health Care $178,956 0.8% 0.14% 104.36 15.23 1.94% 11.00%

Commonwealth Bank of Austral Shs Financials $178,641 0.8% 20.14% 106.26 15.09 4.91% 3.19%

British American Tobacco Consumer Staples $178,085 0.8% (0.20)% 103.61 16.93 3.98% 5.14%

Sanofi Shs Health Care $174,353 0.8% (8.34)% 111.48 14.07 3.63% 6.20%

10 Best Performers

Stock Sector

Ending

Market

Value

Percent

of

Portfolio

Qtrly

Return

Market

Capital

Price/

Forecasted

Earnings

Ratio

Dividend

Yield

Forecasted

Growth in

Earnings

Ono Pharmaceutical Co Health Care $25,450 0.1% 52.82% 21.25 72.36 0.83% 63.20%

Yamazaki Baking Co Consumer Staples $4,362 0.0% 49.29% 5.01 38.81 0.59% (5.77)%

Kaneka Corp Ord Materials $5,014 0.0% 43.35% 3.68 16.97 1.26% 34.71%

Jardine Cycle & Carriage Consumer Discretionary $4,944 0.0% 42.67% 9.71 12.78 3.26% (3.40)%

Renault Sa Shs Sicovam Consumer Discretionary $33,434 0.2% 42.10% 29.76 7.72 2.05% 23.00%

Mitsui Chemicals Inc Shs Materials $6,467 0.0% 42.04% 4.60 13.75 1.29% 39.59%

Nippon Paint Hldgs Co Ltd Shs Materials $6,319 0.0% 41.78% 8.00 26.38 0.91% 17.30%

Marui Group Co Ltd Ord Consumer Discretionary $6,281 0.0% 36.90% 4.58 24.32 1.06% 22.30%

Nitto Denko Corp Ord Materials $20,916 0.1% 36.56% 12.87 15.68 1.51% 13.10%

Yaskawa Electric Corp Ord Information Technology $5,774 0.0% 36.53% 3.69 16.63 1.20% 7.78%

10 Worst Performers

Stock Sector

Ending

Market

Value

Percent

of

Portfolio

Qtrly

Return

Market

Capital

Price/

Forecasted

Earnings

Ratio

Dividend

Yield

Forecasted

Growth in

Earnings

Anglo American Plc Shs Materials $10,621 0.0% (42.78)% 6.19 10.84 19.13% (26.40)%

Amec Foster Wheeler Plc Ord Energy $4,279 0.0% (41.79)% 2.47 7.68 10.10% 3.15%

K Plus S Ag Namen -Akt Materials $8,449 0.0% (36.61)% 4.92 11.28 3.80% 2.70%

Pearson Plc Ord Consumer Discretionary $15,290 0.1% (36.09)% 8.91 11.54 6.93% (0.80)%

Altice NV   B Common Stock Consumer Discretionary $2,751 0.0% (34.68)% 3.98 7.45 0.00% -

Sports Direct International Shs Consumer Discretionary $3,969 0.0% (25.83)% 5.09 12.72 0.00% 7.90%

Meggitt Plc Ord Industrials $7,354 0.0% (23.96)% 4.28 11.52 3.76% 6.00%

Weir Group Plc Ord Industrials $5,404 0.0% (21.01)% 3.15 12.60 4.40% (8.25)%

Tesco Plc Ord Consumer Staples $30,801 0.1% (20.44)% 17.94 18.33 0.00% 11.45%

Millicom Intl Cellular S A Telecommunications $6,222 0.0% (20.40)% 5.57 29.58 4.47% (34.66)%

 81
Sacramento Regional Transit District



JP Morgan
Period Ended December 31, 2015

Investment Philosophy
JPMorgan adds value by using the best ideas of their regional specialist teams, overlaid by global sector research,
combined with the application of disciplined portfolio construction and formal risk control. The first full quarter of
performance is 1Q 2008.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
JP Morgan’s portfolio posted a 4.90% return for the quarter
placing it in the 44 percentile of the CAI Non-U.S. Equity
Style group for the quarter and in the 70 percentile for the
last year.

JP Morgan’s portfolio outperformed the MSCI EAFE Index
by 0.20% for the quarter and underperformed the MSCI
EAFE Index for the year by 0.94%.

Quarterly Asset Growth

Beginning Market Value $21,188,128

Net New Investment $0

Investment Gains/(Losses) $1,039,276

Ending Market Value $22,227,405

Performance vs CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

Last Quarter Last Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 8 Years
Year

(44)(48)

(70)
(64)

(83)

(64)
(63)(70)

(60)
(75)

(44)
(83)

10th Percentile 6.42 5.50 8.84 7.03 11.72 3.21
25th Percentile 5.66 2.76 7.38 5.73 10.47 2.02

Median 4.65 0.62 5.82 4.70 9.16 0.49
75th Percentile 3.52 (2.15) 4.04 3.26 7.82 (0.20)
90th Percentile 2.59 (4.95) 2.67 1.54 6.81 (0.81)

JP Morgan 4.90 (1.75) 3.57 3.98 8.73 0.73

MSCI EAFE Index 4.71 (0.81) 5.01 3.60 7.83 (0.51)

Relative Return vs MSCI EAFE Index

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(3%)

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

JP Morgan

CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)
Annualized Seven Year Risk vs Return

10 15 20 25 30
2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

JP Morgan

MSCI EAFE Index

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 82
Sacramento Regional Transit District



JP Morgan
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)

(80%)

(60%)

(40%)

(20%)

0%

20%

40%

60%

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

7064 5260

7952 2469

2757

7878

3355

3455

6161
7348

10th Percentile 5.50 (0.67) 28.72 23.54 (6.48) 16.72 46.43 (36.18) 22.09 31.47
25th Percentile 2.76 (2.59) 26.08 21.12 (9.56) 14.53 39.21 (39.67) 17.70 29.21

Median 0.62 (4.12) 23.32 18.99 (11.40) 10.84 32.89 (42.97) 13.15 26.02
75th Percentile (2.15) (5.97) 19.49 16.61 (14.02) 8.27 27.71 (46.76) 9.54 23.87
90th Percentile (4.95) (7.74) 14.73 14.45 (16.87) 5.97 24.60 (49.34) 6.21 20.66

JP Morgan (1.75) (4.28) 18.12 21.23 (9.73) 7.84 37.04 (40.98) 11.33 23.95

MSCI
EAFE Index (0.81) (4.90) 22.78 17.32 (12.14) 7.75 31.78 (43.38) 11.17 26.34

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs MSCI EAFE Index

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

JP Morgan CAI Non-U.S. Eq. Style

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs MSCI EAFE Index
Rankings Against CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)
Seven Years Ended December 31, 2015

(4)
(2)

0
2
4
6
8

10
12
14
16

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

(61)

(61)

10th Percentile 4.16 12.66
25th Percentile 2.97 11.15

Median 1.60 9.38
75th Percentile 0.29 8.00
90th Percentile (0.56) 7.03

JP Morgan 0.99 8.79

(0.6)
(0.4)
(0.2)

0.0
0.2
0.4
0.6
0.8
1.0
1.2
1.4

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

(58) (61)
(52)

10th Percentile 1.22 0.63 1.03
25th Percentile 0.92 0.55 0.73

Median 0.50 0.47 0.34
75th Percentile 0.09 0.40 (0.00)
90th Percentile (0.19) 0.34 (0.25)

JP Morgan 0.38 0.44 0.32

 83
Sacramento Regional Transit District



JP Morgan
Risk Analysis Summary

Risk Analysis
The graphs below analyze the risk or variation of a manager’s return pattern. The first scatter chart illustrates the
relationship, called Excess Return Ratio, between excess return and tracking error relative to the benchmark. The second
scatter chart displays the relationship, sometimes called Information Ratio, between alpha (market-risk or "beta" adjusted
return) and residual risk (non-market or "unsystematic" risk). The third chart shows tracking error patterns versus the
benchmark over time. The last two charts show the ranking of the manager’s risk statistics versus the peer group.

Risk Analysis vs CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)
Seven Years Ended December 31, 2015

0 2 4 6 8 10 12
(4 )

(2 )

0

2

4

6

8

JP Morgan

Tracking Error

E
x
c
e
s
s
 R

e
tu

rn

0 2 4 6 8 10 12
(6 )

(4 )

(2 )

0

2

4

6

8

JP Morgan

Residual Risk

A
lp

h
a

Rolling 12 Quarter Tracking Error vs MSCI EAFE Index

T
ra

c
k
in

g
 E

rr
o

r

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

8%

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

JP Morgan

CAI Non-U.S. Eq. Style

Risk Statistics Rankings vs MSCI EAFE Index
Rankings Against CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)
Seven Years Ended December 31, 2015

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

Standard Downside Residual Tracking
Deviation Risk Risk Error

(41)

(74) (82) (87)

10th Percentile 21.39 3.87 5.16 5.70
25th Percentile 20.13 2.93 4.08 4.64

Median 19.39 2.23 3.38 3.70
75th Percentile 18.36 1.60 2.80 3.00
90th Percentile 17.18 1.17 2.14 2.23

JP Morgan 19.57 1.63 2.61 2.59

0.80

0.85

0.90

0.95

1.00

1.05

1.10

1.15

Beta R-Squared Rel. Std.
Deviation

(39) (18) (41)

10th Percentile 1.06 0.99 1.08
25th Percentile 1.01 0.98 1.02

Median 0.96 0.97 0.98
75th Percentile 0.91 0.95 0.93
90th Percentile 0.84 0.93 0.87

JP Morgan 0.98 0.98 0.99

 84
Sacramento Regional Transit District



JP Morgan
Equity Characteristics Analysis Summary

Portfolio Characteristics
This graph compares the manager’s portfolio characteristics with the range of characteristics for the portfolios which make up
the manager’s style group. This analysis illustrates whether the manager’s current holdings are consistent with other
managers employing the same style.

Portfolio Characteristics Percentile Rankings
Rankings Against CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style
as of December 31, 2015

P
e

rc
e

n
ti
le

 R
a

n
k
in

g

100%

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

Weighted Median Forecasted Price/ Forecasted Dividend MSCI
Market Cap P/E Book Value Growth in Earnings Yield Combined Z-Score

(5)

(32)

(53)
(46)

(60)
(56)

(81)

(70)

(52)

(22)

(56)
(59)

10th Percentile 41.71 17.97 2.60 12.77 3.63 0.67
25th Percentile 35.89 15.77 2.27 11.55 3.02 0.49

Median 28.52 14.58 1.70 9.51 2.65 0.15
75th Percentile 20.61 13.14 1.45 8.29 2.28 (0.21)
90th Percentile 14.14 12.22 1.24 7.13 1.99 (0.42)

JP Morgan 49.82 14.42 1.62 7.79 2.62 0.08

MSCI EAFE Index 32.94 14.79 1.65 8.63 3.08 0.02

Sector Weights
The graph below contrasts the manager’s sector weights with those of the benchmark and median sector weights across the
members of the peer group. The magnitude of sector weight differences from the index and the manager’s sector
diversification are also shown. Diversification by number and concentration of holdings are also compared to the benchmark
and peer group. Issue Diversification represents by count, and Diversification Ratio by percent, the number of holdings that
account for half of the portfolio’s market value.

Sector Allocation
December 31, 2015

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35%

Financials
27.5%

24.3%
23.6%

Consumer Discretionary
14.3%

13.2%
14.9%

Health Care
13.2%

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

11.9%
12.8%

Industrials
11.9%

13.2%
12.8%

Consumer Staples
10.0%

11.9%
10.4%

Information Technology
8.8%

5.4%
8.7%

Materials
6.8%

6.4%
5.9%

Energy
4.3%
4.5%
4.4%

Telecommunications
3.3%

5.4%
5.0%

Utilities 3.7%
1.6%

JP Morgan MSCI EAFE Index CAI Non-U.S. Eq. Style

Sector Diversification
Manager 2.63 sectors

Index 2.95 sectors

Diversification
December 31, 2015

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Number of Issue
Securities Diversification

(41)

(33)

10th Percentile 303 54
25th Percentile 125 35

Median 79 24
75th Percentile 59 19
90th Percentile 47 15

JP Morgan 89 29

MSCI EAFE Index 925 108

Diversification Ratio
Manager 32%

Index 12%

Style Median 31%

 85
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Current Holdings Based Style Analysis
JP Morgan
As of December 31, 2015

This page analyzes the current investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
actual exposures to various regional and style segments of the international/global equity market. The market is segmented
quarterly by region and style. The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight
fundamental factors used in the MSCI stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the current market
capitalization and style score of the portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays
the current portfolio and index weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each region/style segment of the market. The
middle chart illustrates the total exposures and stock counts in the three style segments, with a legend showing the total
growth, value, and "combined Z" (growth - value) scores. The bottom chart exhibits the sector weights as well as the style
weights within each sector.

Style Map vs CAI Non-U.S. Eq. Style
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

MSCI EAFE Index JP Morgan

Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

13.7% (12) 16.8% (14) 31.2% (23) 61.7% (49)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

8.1% (9) 10.0% (8) 11.2% (11) 29.3% (28)

2.1% (4) 3.8% (4) 3.1% (3) 9.0% (11)

23.9% (25) 30.6% (26) 45.5% (37) 100.0% (88)

17.7% (122) 19.7% (139) 27.0% (195) 64.5% (456)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

9.6% (131) 13.5% (161) 12.4% (176) 35.5% (468)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

27.3% (253) 33.3% (300) 39.5% (371) 100.0% (924)

Europe/

Mid East

N. America

Pacific

Emerging

Total

Value Core Growth Total

Combined Z-Score Style Distribution
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Value Core Growth

23.9%

(25)
27.3%

(253)
30.6%

(26)
33.3%

(300)
45.5%

(37)

39.5%

(371)

Bar #1=JP Morgan (Combined Z: 0.08 Growth Z: 0.04 Value Z: -0.04)

Bar #2=MSCI EAFE Index (Combined Z: 0.02 Growth Z: 0.01 Value Z: -0.02)

Europe/Mid East

N. America

Pacific

Emerging

Sector Weights Distribution
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

COMMUN CONCYC CONSTA ENERGY FINANC HEALTH INDEQU RAWMAT TECH PUBUTL

3.4
5.4

14.6
13.2

10.2
11.9

4.4 4.5

25.7
24.4

13.5
11.9 12.2 13.2

6.9 6.4
9.0

5.4

0.0

3.7

Bar #1=JP Morgan

Bar #2=MSCI EAFE Index

Value

Core

Growth

 86
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Historical Holdings Based Style Analysis
JP Morgan
For Three Years Ended December 31, 2015

This page analyzes the historical investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
average actual exposures to various region and style segments of the international/global equity market. The market is
segmented quarterly by region and style. The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the
eight fundamental factors used in the MSCI stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the average
historical market capitalization and style score of the portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure
matrix displays the average historical portfolio and index weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each region/style
segment of the market. The next two style exposure charts illustrate the actual quarterly region/style and style only segment
exposures of the portfolio through history.

Average Style Map vs CAI Non-U.S. Eq. Style
Holdings for Three Years Ended December 31, 2015

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

EAFE IMI

JP Morgan

Average Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings for Three Years Ended December 31, 2015

16.3% (12) 22.1% (18) 27.4% (23) 65.9% (53)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

8.4% (8) 8.2% (7) 10.1% (11) 26.7% (26)

2.1% (3) 2.6% (3) 2.7% (3) 7.4% (9)

26.8% (23) 32.9% (28) 40.2% (37) 100.0% (88)

18.7% (430) 21.2% (478) 24.3% (486) 64.3% (1394)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (1) 0.0% (0) 0.1% (1)

10.7% (571) 13.3% (586) 11.6% (515) 35.7% (1672)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

29.5% (1001) 34.5% (1065) 36.0% (1001) 100.0% (3067)

Europe/

Mid East

N. America

Pacific

Emerging

Total

Value Core Growth Total

JP Morgan Historical Region/Style Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2013 2014 2015

Emerging-Growth

Emerging-Core

Emerging-Value

Pacific-Growth

Pacific-Core

Pacific-Value

Europe/Mid East-Growth

Europe/Mid East-Core

Europe/Mid East-Value

JP Morgan Historical Style Only Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2013 2014 2015

Growth

Core

Value

 87
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Country Allocation
JP Morgan VS MSCI EAFE Index

Country Allocation
The chart below contrasts the portfolio’s country allocation with that of the index as of December 31, 2015. This chart is
useful because large deviations in country allocation relative to the index are often good predictors of tracking error in the
subsequent quarter. To the extent that the portfolio allocation is similar to the index, the portfolio should experience more
"index-like" performance. In order to illustrate the performance effect on the portfolio and index of these country allocations,
the individual index country returns are also shown.

Country Weights as of December 31, 2015

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30%

Australia
1.6%

6.8%

Austria 0.2%

Belgium
1.6%

1.4%

China
3.2%

Denmark
1.0%

1.9%

Finland 0.9%

France
11.6%

9.7%

Germany
8.5%

9.1%

Hong Kong
6.4%

3.1%

India
1.1%

Indonesia
0.5%

Ireland 0.4%

Israel
1.3%

0.8%

Italy 2.4%

Japan
22.9%

23.4%

Netherlands
3.7%

2.9%

New Zealand 0.2%

Norway 0.6%

Portugal 0.1%

Singapore 1.3%

South Africa
0.9%

South Korea
2.1%

Spain 3.2%

Sweden 2.9%

Switzerland
12.4%

9.4%

Taiwan
1.1%

United Kingdom
20.1%

19.4%

Percent of Portfolio

JP Morgan MSCI EAFE Index

Index Rtns

9.96%

6.85%

13.64%

4.03%

6.69%

9.64%

1.67%

7.70%

6.01%

(0.91%)

20.87%

6.99%

8.91%

(2.32%)

9.34%

3.14%

18.15%

(0.52%)

4.23%

4.24%

(10.51%)

5.72%

(2.55%)

2.43%

2.04%

1.23%

0.73%

Manager Total Return: 4.90%

Index Total Return: 4.71%

 88
Sacramento Regional Transit District



JP Morgan
Top 10 Portfolio Holdings Characteristics
as of December 31, 2015

10 Largest Holdings

Stock Sector

Ending

Market

Value

Percent

of

Portfolio

Qtrly

Return

Market

Capital

Price/

Forecasted

Earnings

Ratio

Dividend

Yield

Forecasted

Growth in

Earnings

Roche Hldgs Ag Basel Div Rts Ctf Health Care $533,442 2.4% 4.66% 193.99 17.96 2.89% 6.80%

Novartis Health Care $515,423 2.3% (4.98)% 232.13 16.24 3.00% 8.78%

Vodafone Group Plc New Shs New Telecommunications $511,692 2.3% 2.80% 86.50 40.25 5.11% 10.30%

Sumitomo Mitsui Finl Grp Inc Shs Financials $471,526 2.1% 3.09% 54.14 7.91 3.37% 2.20%

Prudential Financials $454,230 2.0% 7.08% 58.03 12.59 2.49% 11.75%

Ubs Ag Shs New Financials $445,831 2.0% 5.70% 75.07 12.37 2.56% 18.50%

Bg Group Energy $430,957 1.9% (1.23)% 49.62 24.20 1.90% (1.24)%

Sap Se Shs Information Technology $422,856 1.9% 25.05% 98.62 18.44 1.49% 8.15%

Japan Tobacco Inc Ord Consumer Staples $409,826 1.8% 24.30% 74.33 17.75 2.89% 12.39%

Toyota Motor Corp Consumer Discretionary $408,617 1.8% 5.62% 207.78 9.20 3.00% 8.30%

10 Best Performers

Stock Sector

Ending

Market

Value

Percent

of

Portfolio

Qtrly

Return

Market

Capital

Price/

Forecasted

Earnings

Ratio

Dividend

Yield

Forecasted

Growth in

Earnings

Nitto Denko Corp Ord Materials $92,188 0.4% 36.56% 12.87 15.68 1.51% 13.10%

Daikin Industries Ltd Shs Industrials $169,750 0.8% 35.38% 21.69 17.80 1.29% 9.75%

Pt Astra International Tbk Shs New Consumer Discretionary $109,574 0.5% 30.21% 17.62 13.33 3.60% 5.93%

Tokyo Electron Information Technology $224,387 1.0% 29.56% 10.99 16.11 3.11% 8.00%

Keyence Corp Ord Information Technology $241,488 1.1% 27.00% 33.90 26.35 0.30% 11.56%

Sap Se Shs Information Technology $422,856 1.9% 25.05% 98.62 18.44 1.49% 8.15%

Japan Tobacco Inc Ord Consumer Staples $409,826 1.8% 24.30% 74.33 17.75 2.89% 12.39%

Smc Corp Shs Industrials $318,504 1.4% 20.11% 17.79 19.81 0.63% 2.53%

Kubota Corp Industrials $314,029 1.4% 19.90% 19.54 13.74 1.59% 12.50%

China Overseas Land &inv Financials $173,728 0.8% 19.51% 34.61 7.60 1.96% 14.30%

10 Worst Performers

Stock Sector

Ending

Market

Value

Percent

of

Portfolio

Qtrly

Return

Market

Capital

Price/

Forecasted

Earnings

Ratio

Dividend

Yield

Forecasted

Growth in

Earnings

Meggitt Plc Ord Industrials $155,732 0.7% (23.96)% 4.28 11.52 3.76% 6.00%

South32 Ltd Common Stock Npv Materials $12,281 0.1% (19.16)% 4.13 15.50 0.00% 0.34%

Bhp Billiton Ltd Shs Materials $194,091 0.9% (15.22)% 41.73 20.30 9.83% (5.60)%

Standard Chartered Plc Ord Usd .50 Financials $253,480 1.1% (13.96)% 27.23 11.18 1.66% (5.40)%

Burberry Group Plc Shs Consumer Discretionary $207,074 0.9% (12.76)% 7.84 15.75 2.99% 1.05%

Barclays Plc Shs Financials $347,097 1.6% (12.03)% 54.21 8.35 2.97% 13.90%

Credit Suisse Group Ord Cl D Financials $339,834 1.5% (11.00)% 42.41 10.57 3.23% 0.30%

Cheung Kong Property Holding Common Financials $199,811 0.9% (10.54)% 25.10 10.15 0.00% 8.98%

Rio Tinto Plc Ord Materials $90,023 0.4% (9.14)% 40.11 14.75 7.42% (20.10)%

Sanofi Shs Health Care $330,639 1.5% (8.34)% 111.48 14.07 3.63% 6.20%

 89
Sacramento Regional Transit



DFA Emerging Markets
Period Ended December 31, 2015

Investment Philosophy
DFA Performance prior to 6/30/2013 is linked to published fund returns.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
DFA Emerging Markets’s portfolio posted a (0.20)% return
for the quarter placing it in the 58 percentile of the CAI MF -
Emerging Markets Style group for the quarter and in the 49
percentile for the last year.

DFA Emerging Markets’s portfolio underperformed the MSCI
Emerging Mkts Idx by 0.93% for the quarter and
underperformed the MSCI Emerging Mkts Idx for the year by
0.26%.

Quarterly Asset Growth

Beginning Market Value $10,855,197

Net New Investment $166,206

Investment Gains/(Losses) $-30,871

Ending Market Value $10,990,533

Percent Cash: 0.0%

Performance vs CAI MF - Emerging Markets Style (Net)

(35%)

(30%)

(25%)

(20%)

(15%)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

Last Quarter Last Last 2-1/2 Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years
Year Years

(58)(39)

(49)(47)

(33)(34)
(35)(35)

(42)(36)

(15)(27)

10th Percentile 2.45 (8.11) 0.18 (1.64) (2.14) 8.63
25th Percentile 1.50 (12.68) (2.26) (3.97) (3.00) 8.09

Median 0.34 (15.19) (5.33) (7.89) (5.10) 6.59
75th Percentile (1.26) (18.88) (7.58) (9.54) (6.73) 5.22
90th Percentile (3.07) (30.02) (16.68) (18.61) (14.96) 1.44

DFA Emerging
Markets (0.20) (14.86) (3.81) (6.35) (4.72) 8.60

MSCI Emerging
Mkts Idx 0.73 (14.60) (3.94) (6.42) (4.47) 7.85

Relative Return vs MSCI Emerging Mkts Idx

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(1.5%)

(1.0%)

(0.5%)

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2013 2014 2015

DFA Emerging Markets

Cumulative Returns vs
MSCI Emerging Mkts Idx

C
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(6%)

(5%)

(4%)

(3%)

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

2013 2014 2015

DFA Emerging Markets

CAI Emerging Mkts MFs

 90
Sacramento Regional Transit District



DFA Emerging Markets
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI MF - Emerging Markets Style (Gross)

(100%)

(50%)

0%

50%

100%

150%

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

(55)(54)
(41)(43) (61)(60)

(34)(50)

(64)(47)

(12)(61)

(31)(35)

(14)(31)

(81)(73)

10th Percentile (6.86) 2.43 5.70 23.20 (13.64) 24.04 118.12 (49.51) 51.95
25th Percentile (11.35) 0.29 1.85 21.25 (15.62) 20.60 91.73 (52.81) 47.10

Median (13.78) (2.82) (0.81) 18.70 (18.50) 19.69 77.50 (54.55) 44.49
75th Percentile (17.92) (6.56) (4.99) 14.27 (21.90) 18.04 72.38 (55.75) 39.47
90th Percentile (29.21) (11.78) (13.11) 9.10 (23.02) 14.02 63.72 (58.60) 31.73

DFA Emerging
Markets (14.86) (0.91) (2.64) 20.49 (20.65) 23.62 83.57 (50.66) 37.47

MSCI Emerging
Mkts Idx (14.60) (1.82) (2.27) 18.63 (18.17) 19.20 79.02 (53.18) 39.78

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs MSCI Emerging Mkts Idx

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(15%)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

DFA Emerging Markets CAI Emerging Mkts MFs

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs MSCI Emerging Mkts Idx
Rankings Against CAI MF - Emerging Markets Style (Gross)
Seven Years Ended December 31, 2015

(10)

(5)

0

5

10

15

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

(54)

(55)

10th Percentile 2.39 10.47
25th Percentile 1.78 9.52

Median 0.45 8.22
75th Percentile (1.20) 6.39
90th Percentile (5.75) 2.07

DFA Emerging
Markets 0.29 7.88

(1.2)
(1.0)
(0.8)
(0.6)
(0.4)
(0.2)

0.0
0.2
0.4
0.6
0.8

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

(50)

(54)
(36)

10th Percentile 0.58 0.46 0.55
25th Percentile 0.44 0.42 0.38

Median 0.12 0.36 0.06
75th Percentile (0.34) 0.28 (0.32)
90th Percentile (0.86) 0.09 (0.57)

DFA Emerging
Markets 0.12 0.35 0.24

 91
Sacramento Regional Transit District



DFA Emerging Markets
Equity Characteristics Analysis Summary

Portfolio Characteristics
This graph compares the manager’s portfolio characteristics with the range of characteristics for the portfolios which make up
the manager’s style group. This analysis illustrates whether the manager’s current holdings are consistent with other
managers employing the same style.

Portfolio Characteristics Percentile Rankings
Rankings Against CAI MF - Emerging Markets Style
as of December 31, 2015

P
e

rc
e

n
ti
le

 R
a

n
k
in

g

100%

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

Weighted Median Price/Fore- Price/Book Forecasted Dividend MSCI
Market Cap casted Earnings Earnings Growth Yield Combined Z-Score

(94)

(57)
(53)

(57)

(74)
(67) (67)

(47) (45)(48)

(78)
(72)

10th Percentile 20.94 15.22 2.57 19.65 4.18 0.65
25th Percentile 16.96 14.58 2.06 14.88 3.22 0.35

Median 14.55 12.59 1.60 12.95 2.62 0.12
75th Percentile 10.20 9.99 1.33 11.72 2.35 (0.16)
90th Percentile 7.97 8.90 0.93 8.61 1.90 (0.62)

DFA Emerging Markets 5.14 12.18 1.34 12.28 2.76 (0.20)

MSCI Emerging
Mkts Idx ($-Gross) 12.99 11.21 1.42 13.13 2.67 (0.14)

Sector Weights
The graph below contrasts the manager’s sector weights with those of the benchmark and median sector weights across the
members of the peer group. The magnitude of sector weight differences from the index and the manager’s sector
diversification are also shown. Diversification by number and concentration of holdings are also compared to the benchmark
and peer group. Issue Diversification represents by count, and Diversification Ratio by percent, the number of holdings that
account for half of the portfolio’s market value.

Sector Allocation
December 31, 2015

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35%

Financials
22.8%

27.8%
28.4%

Information Technology
18.0%

21.4%
22.1%

Consumer Discretionary
12.2%

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

9.7%
14.3%

Industrials
10.5%

6.9%
5.5%

Materials
9.2%

6.2%
4.2%

Consumer Staples
8.9%

8.1%
10.8%

Telecommunications
5.0%

7.2%
4.6%

Energy
4.8%

6.7%
5.6%

Health Care
4.1%

2.9%
2.1%

Utilities
3.9%

3.1%
2.3%

Miscellaneous
0.6%

DFA Emerging Markets MSCI Emerging Mkts Idx ($-Gross)

CAI Emerging Mkts MFs

Sector Diversification
Manager 2.75 sectors

Index 2.07 sectors

Diversification
December 31, 2015

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

Number of Issue
Securities Diversification

(1)

(1)

10th Percentile 272 35
25th Percentile 129 25

Median 72 20
75th Percentile 55 15
90th Percentile 46 9

DFA Emerging
Markets 4005 264

MSCI Emerging
Mkts Idx ($-Gross) 831 92

Diversification Ratio
Manager 7%

Index 11%

Style Median 21%

 92
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Current Holdings Based Style Analysis
DFA Emerging Markets
As of December 31, 2015

This page analyzes the current investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
actual exposures to various regional and style segments of the international/global equity market. The market is segmented
quarterly by region and style. The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight
fundamental factors used in the MSCI stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the current market
capitalization and style score of the portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays
the current portfolio and index weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each region/style segment of the market. The
middle chart illustrates the total exposures and stock counts in the three style segments, with a legend showing the total
growth, value, and "combined Z" (growth - value) scores. The bottom chart exhibits the sector weights as well as the style
weights within each sector.

Style Map vs CAI Emerging Mkts MFs
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

DFA Emerging Markets

EM IMI Index

Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

0.0% (0) 0.0% (2) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (2)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (4) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (4)

0.0% (0) 0.1% (26) 0.0% (0) 0.1% (26)

33.8% (853) 37.4% (2250) 28.7% (623) 99.9% (3726)

33.8% (853) 37.5% (2282) 28.7% (623) 100.0% (3758)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

0.0% (0) 0.1% (7) 0.0% (0) 0.1% (7)

0.0% (0) 0.2% (25) 0.0% (0) 0.2% (25)

33.1% (888) 36.0% (946) 30.7% (793) 99.8% (2627)

33.1% (888) 36.2% (978) 30.7% (793) 100.0% (2659)

Europe/

Mid East

N. America

Pacific

Emerging

Total

Value Core Growth Total

Combined Z-Score Style Distribution
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Value Core Growth

33.8%

(853)

33.1%

(888) 37.5%

(2282)

36.2%

(978)

28.7%

(623)
30.7%

(793)

Bar #1=DFA Emerging Markets (Combined Z: -0.20 Growth Z: -0.07 Value Z: 0.14)

Bar #2=EM IMI Index (Combined Z: -0.13 Growth Z: -0.06 Value Z: 0.07)

Europe/Mid East

N. America

Pacific

Emerging

Sector Weights Distribution
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

COMMUN CONCYC CONSTA ENERGY FINANC HEALTH INDEQU MISC PUBUTL RAWMAT TECH

0.0 0.0

5.0 6.0

12.1 11.6
9.4

7.9

4.6
6.0

22.8
25.2

4.0 3.8

10.7
8.1

0.0 0.0

3.8 3.0

9.1
6.6

18.5

21.7

Bar #1=DFA Emerging Markets

Bar #2=EM IMI Index

Value

Core

Growth

 93
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Country Allocation
DFA Emerging Markets VS MSCI Emerging Mkts Idx ($-Gross)

Country Allocation
The chart below contrasts the portfolio’s country allocation with that of the index as of December 31, 2015. This chart is
useful because large deviations in country allocation relative to the index are often good predictors of tracking error in the
subsequent quarter. To the extent that the portfolio allocation is similar to the index, the portfolio should experience more
"index-like" performance. In order to illustrate the performance effect on the portfolio and index of these country allocations,
the individual index country returns are also shown.

Country Weights as of December 31, 2015

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35%

Brazil
7.2%

5.5%

Chile
1.6%

1.2%

China
15.0%

26.6%

Colombia
0.4%
0.4%

Cyprus
0.0%

Czech Republic
0.2%
0.2%

Egypt
0.1%
0.2%

Greece
0.3%
0.5%

Hong Kong
0.1%

Hungary
0.3%
0.3%

India
13.5%

8.7%

Indonesia
3.1%

2.6%

Luxembourg
0.0%

Malaysia
4.6%

3.3%

Mexico
5.3%

4.5%

Netherlands
0.0%

Peru
0.1%
0.3%

Philippines
1.8%

1.4%

Poland
1.7%

1.3%

Qatar 1.0%

Russia
0.7%

3.4%

South Africa
7.6%

6.8%

South Korea
15.4%
15.6%

Taiwan
15.5%

12.1%

Thailand
2.6%

2.0%

Turkey
2.1%

1.4%

United Arab Emirates 0.9%

United Kingdom
0.0%

United States
0.6%

Percent of Portfolio

DFA Emerging Markets MSCI Emerging Mkts Idx

Index Rtns

(3.16%)

(0.97%)

4.03%

(9.40%)

-

(11.29%)

(7.84%)

(18.99%)

6.01%

11.41%

(0.91%)

20.87%

-

7.87%

(1.12%)

3.16%

(8.11%)

(0.45%)

(12.90%)

(10.21%)

(3.99%)

(10.51%)

5.72%

1.23%

(6.17%)

(0.24%)

(12.61%)

0.74%

5.13%

Manager Total Return: (0.20%)

Index Total Return: 0.73%

 94
Sacramento Regional Transit District



DFA Emerging Markets
Top 10 Portfolio Holdings Characteristics
as of December 31, 2015

10 Largest Holdings

Stock Sector

Ending

Market

Value

Percent

of

Portfolio

Qtrly

Return

Market

Capital

Price/

Forecasted

Earnings

Ratio

Dividend

Yield

Forecasted

Growth in

Earnings

Samsung Electronics Co Ltd Ord Information Technology $318,231 2.9% 12.34% 158.28 8.97 1.63% 3.70%

Tencent Holdings Limited Shs Par Hkd Information Technology $144,380 1.3% 18.87% 185.02 30.37 0.24% 28.66%

Taiwan Semicond Manufac Co L Shs Information Technology $143,561 1.3% 10.27% 112.89 11.95 3.15% 9.81%

Hon Hai Precision Inds Ltd Ord Information Technology $98,724 0.9% (5.38)% 38.47 8.72 4.48% 5.57%

China Construction Bank Shs H Financials $97,187 0.9% (0.06)% 164.72 4.79 6.89% 7.33%

Industrial and Comm Bk of Cn Hkd Shs Financials $84,855 0.8% 6.99% 52.41 4.99 6.81% 15.70%

China Mobile Limited Sponsored Adr Telecommunications $83,338 0.8% (5.33)% 231.17 12.42 4.03% 6.41%

Taiwan Semiconductor Mfg Co Ltd Spon Information Technology $78,590 0.7% 9.64% 112.89 11.95 3.15% 9.81%

Mtn Group Ltd Shs Telecommunications $68,182 0.6% (34.19)% 15.83 9.13 9.63% 3.40%

Nasionale PERS Beperk Ord Cl H Consumer Discretionary $54,465 0.5% 5.17% 59.91 36.33 0.20% 50.60%

10 Best Performers

Stock Sector

Ending

Market

Value

Percent

of

Portfolio

Qtrly

Return

Market

Capital

Price/

Forecasted

Earnings

Ratio

Dividend

Yield

Forecasted

Growth in

Earnings

Cosco International Hldgs Lt Ord Industrials $564 0.0% 1517.50% 0.81 16.56 4.14% (8.74)%

Sunny Electronics Information Technology $281 0.0% 204.17% 0.16 151.28 0.00% -

Cha Diostech Information Technology $147 0.0% 150.00% 0.12 (53.79) 0.00% -

Gintech Energy Corp Shs Information Technology $2,795 0.0% 116.00% 0.44 13.24 0.00% 22.34%

Godfrey Phillips (India) Consumer Staples $537 0.0% 112.02% 1.08 - 0.58% -

Accton Tech Corp Shs Information Technology $2,030 0.0% 107.30% 0.52 10.00 3.37% 31.73%

Majesco Li Unknown $26 0.0% 106.02% 0.22 - 0.00% -

P-Two Industries Information Technology $39 0.0% 105.56% 0.07 (46.15) 0.00% -

Giantplus Tech. Information Technology $679 0.0% 104.42% 0.26 29.00 0.00% (41.83)%

Hanmi Pharm Health Care $5,189 0.0% 102.44% 6.48 40.02 0.00% 20.10%

10 Worst Performers

Stock Sector

Ending

Market

Value

Percent

of

Portfolio

Qtrly

Return

Market

Capital

Price/

Forecasted

Earnings

Ratio

Dividend

Yield

Forecasted

Growth in

Earnings

Piraeus Bk Sa Shs New Financials $17 0.0% (94.97)% 2.64 0.06 0.00% (11.58)%

National Bk Greece S A Spn Adr Rep 1 Financials $15 0.0% (93.28)% 3.41 0.15 0.00% 68.21%

Powszechny Zaklad Ubezpiecze Shs Financials $11,250 0.1% (91.59)% 7.44 11.43 8.82% (5.44)%

Homex Consumer Discretionary $9 0.0% (87.27)% 0.01 0.11 0.00% (36.05)%

National Bank of Greece Common Regst Financials $39 0.0% (86.77)% 3.41 0.15 0.00% 68.21%

Corporacion Geo B Consumer Discretionary $6 0.0% (71.25)% 0.23 6.92 0.00% (8.03)%

Knowledge Plant Information Technology $265 0.0% (66.67)% 0.16 (22.40) 0.00% -

Hibiscus Petroleum Energy $31 0.0% (65.12)% 0.06 (10.80) 0.00% -

China Molybdenum Co Ltd H Materials $666 0.0% (59.33)% 0.74 15.58 5.06% (38.10)%

Hawe Financials $80 0.0% (58.87)% 0.03 (2.39) 0.00% -

 95
Sacramento Regional Transit District



D
o

m
e

s
tic

 F
ix

e
d

 In
c
o

m
e

Domestic Fixed Income



Metropolitan West
Period Ended December 31, 2015

Investment Philosophy
Metropolitan West Asset Management (MWAM) attempts to add value by limiting duration, managing the yield curve,
rotating among bond market sectors and using proprietary quantitative valuation techniques.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
Metropolitan West’s portfolio posted a (0.34)% return for the
quarter placing it in the 26 percentile of the CAI Core Bond
Fixed-Inc Style group for the quarter and in the 71 percentile
for the last year.

Metropolitan West’s portfolio outperformed the Barclays
Aggregate Index by 0.23% for the quarter and
underperformed the Barclays Aggregate Index for the year
by 0.04%.

Quarterly Asset Growth

Beginning Market Value $85,909,966

Net New Investment $-266,918

Investment Gains/(Losses) $-291,188

Ending Market Value $85,351,860

Performance vs CAI Core Bond Fixed-Inc Style (Gross)

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

Last Quarter Last Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years Last 14-1/2
Year Years

(26)(66)

(71)(67)

(27)
(82)

(14)

(94)

(4)

(97)

(2)

(89)

(6)

(92)

10th Percentile (0.19) 1.51 2.26 4.32 6.62 5.63 5.78
25th Percentile (0.34) 1.13 1.93 4.02 5.68 5.33 5.54

Median (0.45) 0.82 1.71 3.77 5.12 4.96 5.31
75th Percentile (0.65) 0.46 1.50 3.54 4.73 4.78 5.13
90th Percentile (0.87) (0.06) 1.33 3.34 4.40 4.47 4.93

Metropolitan West (0.34) 0.51 1.90 4.21 7.50 6.18 5.95

Barclays
Aggregate Index (0.57) 0.55 1.44 3.25 4.09 4.51 4.88

Relative Return vs Barclays Aggregate Index

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(3%)

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Metropolitan West

CAI Core Bond Fixed-Inc Style (Gross)
Annualized Seven Year Risk vs Return

2 3 4 5 6 7 8
3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

8%

9%

Metropolitan West

Barclays Aggregate Index

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 97
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Metropolitan West
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Core Bond Fixed-Inc Style (Gross)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

7167

4170

2383

4

97
97

61

1

90

7

96

78

22
922 880

10th Percentile 1.51 7.21 (0.66) 8.11 8.78 9.35 17.43 6.50 7.39 5.34
25th Percentile 1.13 6.66 (1.12) 7.37 8.25 8.39 13.23 4.78 6.93 4.89

Median 0.82 6.22 (1.47) 6.15 7.89 7.49 10.67 0.96 6.46 4.58
75th Percentile 0.46 5.88 (1.90) 5.40 7.24 6.86 8.65 (2.45) 5.61 4.43
90th Percentile (0.06) 5.35 (2.33) 4.74 6.43 6.57 7.10 (6.01) 4.30 4.21

Metropolitan
West 0.51 6.37 (1.03) 9.48 6.10 12.57 19.88 (3.11) 7.50 5.43

Barclays
Aggregate Index 0.55 5.97 (2.02) 4.21 7.84 6.54 5.93 5.24 6.97 4.33

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs Barclays Aggregate Index

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Metropolitan West CAI Core Bond Style

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs Barclays Aggregate Index
Rankings Against CAI Core Bond Fixed-Inc Style (Gross)
Seven Years Ended December 31, 2015

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

(4)

(4)

10th Percentile 2.12 5.96
25th Percentile 1.53 5.50

Median 0.96 4.96
75th Percentile 0.61 4.61
90th Percentile 0.29 4.27

Metropolitan
West 2.88 6.62

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.2

1.4

1.6

1.8

2.0

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

(53)

(33)

(34)

10th Percentile 1.30 1.71 1.32
25th Percentile 1.12 1.62 1.10

Median 0.93 1.51 0.93
75th Percentile 0.59 1.40 0.61
90th Percentile 0.37 1.35 0.42

Metropolitan West 0.90 1.59 1.04

 98
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Metropolitan West
Risk Analysis Summary

Risk Analysis
The graphs below analyze the risk or variation of a manager’s return pattern. The first scatter chart illustrates the
relationship, called Excess Return Ratio, between excess return and tracking error relative to the benchmark. The second
scatter chart displays the relationship, sometimes called Information Ratio, between alpha (market-risk or "beta" adjusted
return) and residual risk (non-market or "unsystematic" risk). The third chart shows tracking error patterns versus the
benchmark over time. The last two charts show the ranking of the manager’s risk statistics versus the peer group.

Risk Analysis vs CAI Core Bond Fixed-Inc Style (Gross)
Seven Years Ended December 31, 2015

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
(1 )

0

1

2

3

4

5

Metropolitan West

Tracking Error

E
x
c
e
s
s
 R

e
tu

rn

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
(2 )

(1 )

0

1

2

3

4

5

Metropolitan West

Residual Risk

A
lp

h
a

Rolling 12 Quarter Tracking Error vs Barclays Aggregate Index

T
ra

c
k
in

g
 E

rr
o

r

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

01 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Metropolitan West

CAI Core Bond Style

Risk Statistics Rankings vs Barclays Aggregate Index
Rankings Against CAI Core Bond Fixed-Inc Style (Gross)
Seven Years Ended December 31, 2015

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

Standard Downside Residual Tracking
Deviation Risk Risk Error

(5)

(15)

(6) (6)

10th Percentile 4.20 0.95 2.26 2.28
25th Percentile 3.57 0.61 1.61 1.62

Median 3.29 0.39 1.14 1.14
75th Percentile 3.12 0.20 0.76 0.77
90th Percentile 2.94 0.14 0.62 0.64

Metropolitan
West 4.65 0.83 3.19 3.15

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.2

1.4

1.6

1.8

Beta R-Squared Rel. Std.
Deviation

(13)

(94)

(5)

10th Percentile 1.15 0.96 1.37
25th Percentile 1.06 0.94 1.16

Median 1.02 0.88 1.08
75th Percentile 0.95 0.79 1.02
90th Percentile 0.91 0.70 0.96

Metropolitan West 1.12 0.54 1.52

 99
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Metropolitan West
Bond Characteristics Analysis Summary

Portfolio Characteristics
This graph compares the manager’s portfolio characteristics with the range of characteristics for the portfolios which make up
the manager’s style group. This analysis illustrates whether the manager’s current holdings are consistent with other
managers employing the same style.

Fixed Income Portfolio Characteristics
Rankings Against CAI Core Bond Fixed-Inc Style
as of December 31, 2015

(2)

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Average Effective Coupon OA
Duration Life Yield Rate Convexity

(94)
(11)

(23)(33)

(42)(65) (86)(60)

(58)(59)

10th Percentile 5.72 9.48 3.42 3.86 0.54
25th Percentile 5.59 8.02 3.07 3.71 0.31

Median 5.43 7.62 2.82 3.37 0.14
75th Percentile 5.25 7.03 2.50 3.01 0.06
90th Percentile 5.05 6.58 2.30 2.79 (0.14)

Metropolitan West 4.99 8.07 2.84 2.86 0.13

Barclays Aggregate Index 5.68 7.94 2.59 3.18 0.13

Sector Allocation and Quality Ratings
The first graph compares the manager’s sector allocation with the average allocation across all the members of the
manager’s style. The second graph compares the manager’s weighted average quality rating with the range of quality ratings
for the style.

Sector Allocation
December 31, 2015

(20%) (10%) 0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50%

US Trsy
32.7%

26.0%
36.4%

US  RMBS
23.6%

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

23.9%
28.6%

Corp (US$ denom)
20.1%

35.9%
24.3%

US  ABS
10.1%

4.5%
0.6%

US Non-Agency RMBS
7.6%

US CMBS
5.8%

5.3%
1.8%

US CMOs
2.6%

US Muni
0.8%

Gov Rel (US$ denom)
0.5%

3.1%
8.2%

Other
0.1%

Cash
(3.9%)

1.3%

Metropolitan West CAI Core Bond Fixed-Inc Style

Barclays Aggregate Index

Quality Ratings
vs CAI Core Bond Fixed-Inc Style

A

A+

AA-

AA

AA+

AAA

Trsy

Weighted Average
Quality Rating

(8)

(9)

10th Percentile AA
25th Percentile AA

Median AA
75th Percentile AA-
90th Percentile A+

Metropolitan West AA+

Barclays
Aggregate Index AA+

100
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Metropolitan West
Portfolio Characteristics Summary
As of December 31, 2015

Portfolio Structure Comparison
The charts below compare the structure of the portfolio to that of the index from the three perspectives that have the greatest
influence on return. The first chart compares the two portfolios across sectors. The second chart compares the duration
distribution. The last chart compares the distribution across quality ratings.

Sector Distribution

(20%)

(10%)

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

US
Trsy

32.7%

36.4%

US
RMBS

23.6%

28.6%

Corp
(US$

denom)

20.1%

24.3%

US
ABS

10.1%

0.6%

US
Non-Agency

RMBS

7.6%

0.0%

US
CMBS

5.8%

1.8%

US
CMOs

2.6%
0.0%

US
Muni

0.8% 0.0%

Gov
Rel

(US$ denom)

0.5%

8.2%

Other

0.0% 0.1%

Cash

(3.9%)

0.0%

P
e

rc
e

n
t 
o

f 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

Metropolitan West

Barclays Aggregate

Duration Distribution

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

<0

0.0% 0.0%

0-1

19.6%

0.1%

1-2

14.9%
13.1%

2-3

5.3%

13.1%

3-5

24.2%

31.4%

5-7

17.5%

21.3%

7-10

8.8% 8.3%

>10

9.8%
12.7%

Years Duration

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

o
f 

P
o

rt
fo

lio

Weighted Average: Duration

Metropolitan West:

Barclays Aggregate:

4.99
5.68

Quality Distribution

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

AAA

72.3% 71.8%

AA

3.1% 4.4%

A

7.6%
10.6%

BBB

12.0% 13.2%

BB

2.8%
0.0%

B

1.7% 0.0%

CCC

0.1% 0.0%

CC

0.0% 0.0%

C

0.0% 0.0%

D

0.5% 0.0%

Quality Rating

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

o
f 

P
o

rt
fo

lio

Weighted Average: Quality

Metropolitan West:

Barclays Aggregate:

AA+
AA+

101
Sacramento Regional Transit District



D
e

fin
itio

n
s

Definitions



Risk/Reward Statistics

The risk statistics used in this report examine performance characteristics of a manager or a portfolio relative to a benchmark

(market indicator) which assumes to represent overall movements in the asset class being considered. The main unit of

analysis is the excess return, which is the portfolio return minus the return on a risk free asset (3 month T-Bill).

Alpha measures a portfolio’s return in excess of the market return adjusted for risk.  It is a measure of the manager’s

contribution to performance with reference to security selection.  A positive alpha indicates that a portfolio was positively

rewarded for the residual risk which was taken for that level of market exposure.

Beta measures the sensitivity of rates of portfolio returns to movements in the market index.  A portfolio’s beta measures the

expected change in return per 1% change in the return on the market.  If a beta of a portfolio is 1.5, a 1 percent increase in

the return on the market will result, on average, in a 1.5 percent increase in the return on the portfolio.  The converse would

also be true.

Downside Risk stems from the desire to differentiate between "good risk" (upside volatility) and "bad risk" (downside

volatility). Whereas standard deviation punishes both upside and downside volatility, downside risk measures only the

standard deviation of returns below the target. Returns above the target are assigned a deviation of zero. Both the frequency

and magnitude of underperformance affect the amount of downside risk.

Excess Return Ratio is a measure of risk adjusted relative return.  This ratio captures the amount of active management

performance (value added relative to an index) per unit of active management risk (tracking error against the index.)  It is

calculated by dividing the manager’s annualized cumulative excess return relative to the index by the standard deviation of

the individual quarterly excess returns.  The Excess Return Ratio can be interpreted as the manager’s active risk/reward

tradeoff for diverging from the index when the index is mandated to be the "riskless" market position.

Information Ratio measures the manager’s market risk-adjusted excess return per unit of residual risk relative to a

benchmark.  It is computed by dividing alpha by the residual risk over a given time period.  Assuming all other factors being

equal, managers with lower residual risk achieve higher values in the information ratio.  Managers with higher information

ratios will add value relative to the benchmark more reliably and consistently.

R-Squared indicates the extent to which the variability of the portfolio returns are explained by market action.  It can also be

thought of as measuring the diversification relative to the appropriate benchmark.  An r-squared value of .75 indicates that

75% of the fluctuation in a portfolio return is explained by market action.  An r-squared of 1.0 indicates that a portfolio’s

returns are entirely related to the market and it is not influenced by other factors.  An r-squared of zero indicates that no

relationship exists between the portfolio’s return and the market.

Relative Standard Deviation is a simple measure of a manager’s risk (volatility) relative to a benchmark.  It is calculated by

dividing the manager’s standard deviation of returns by the benchmark’s standard deviation of returns.  A relative standard

deviation of 1.20, for example, means the manager has exhibited 20% more risk than the benchmark over that time period.

A ratio of .80 would imply 20% less risk.  This ratio is especially useful when analyzing the risk of investment grade

fixed-income products where actual historical durations are not available.  By using this relative risk measure over rolling

time periods one can illustrate the "implied" historical duration patterns of the portfolio versus the benchmark.

Residual Portfolio Risk is the unsystematic risk of a fund, the portion of the total risk unique to the fund (manager) itself and

not related to the overall market.  This reflects the "bets" which the manager places in that particular asset market.  These

bets may reflect emphasis in particular sectors, maturities (for bonds), or other issue specific factors which the manager

considers a good investment opportunity.  Diversification of the portfolio will reduce or eliminate the residual risk of that

portfolio.

103



Risk/Reward Statistics

Sharpe Ratio is a commonly used measure of risk-adjusted return. It is calculated by subtracting the "risk-free" return

(usually 3 Month Treasury Bill) from the portfolio return and dividing the resulting "excess return" by the portfolio’s risk level

(standard deviation). The result is a measure of return gained per unit of risk taken.

Sortino Ratio is a downside risk-adjusted measure of value-added.  It measures excess return over a benchmark divided by

downside risk.  The natural appeal is that it identifies value-added per unit of truly bad risk.  The danger of interpretation,

however, lies in these two areas:  (1) the statistical significance of the denominator, and (2) its reliance on the persistence of

skewness in return distributions.

Standard Deviation is a statistical measure of portfolio risk.  It reflects the average deviation of the observations from their

sample mean.  Standard deviation is used as an estimate of risk since it measures how wide the range of returns typically is.

The wider the typical range of returns, the higher the standard deviation of returns, and the higher the portfolio risk.  If returns

are normally distributed (ie. has a bell shaped curve distribution) then approximately 2/3 of the returns would occur within

plus or minus one standard deviation from the sample mean.

Total Portfolio Risk is a measure of the volatility of the quarterly excess returns of an asset.  Total risk is composed of two

measures of risk:  market (non-diversifiable or systematic) risk and residual (diversifiable or unsystematic) risk.  The purpose

of portfolio diversification is to reduce the residual risk of the portfolio.

Tracking Error is a statistical measure of a portfolio’s risk relative to an index.  It reflects the standard deviation of a

portfolio’s individual quarterly or monthly returns from the index’s returns.  Typically, the lower the Tracking Error, the more

"index-like" the portfolio.

Treynor Ratio represents the portfolio’s average excess return over a specified period divided by the beta relative to its

benchmark over that same period.  This measure reflects the reward over the risk-free rate relative to the systematic risk

assumed.

Note: Alpha, Total Risk, and Residual Risk are annualized.

104



C
a

lla
n

 R
e

s
e

a
rc

h
/E

d
u

c
a

tio
n

Callan Research/Education



Ρεσεαρχη ανδ Εδυχατιοναλ Προγραmσ

Τηε Χαλλαν Ινϖεστmεντσ Ινστιτυτε προϖιδεσ ρεσεαρχη τηατ κεεπσ χλιεντσ υπδατεδ ον τηε λατεστ ινδυστρψ τρενδσ ωηιλε ηελπινγ τηεm λεαρν 

τηρουγη χαρεφυλλψ στρυχτυρεδ εδυχατιοναλ προγραmσ. 

Ρεχεντ Ρεσεαρχη

Πλεασε ϖισιτ ωωω.χαλλαν.χοm/ρεσεαρχη το σεε αλλ οφ ουρ πυβλιχατιονσ.

ςιδεο: Τηε Εδυχατιον οφ Βετα Ιν τηισ βριεφ ϖιδεο, Ευγενε Ποδκα−

mινερ δεσχριβεσ τηε ρεασονσ ηε δεχιδεδ το εξπλορε τηε �σmαρτ βετα� 

τοπιχ ιν δεταιλ.

2015 Αλτερνατιϖε Ινϖεστmεντσ Συρϖεψ Ουρ 

2015 Αλτερνατιϖε Ινϖεστmεντσ Συρϖεψ προ−

ϖιδεσ ινστιτυτιοναλ ινϖεστορσ α χυρρεντ ρεπορτ ον 

ασσετ αλλοχατιον τρενδσ ανδ ινϖεστορ πραχτιχεσ. 

Ινσιδε Χαλλαν�σ Dαταβασε, 3ρδ Θυαρτερ 2015 Τηισ ρεπορτ γραπησ 

περφορmανχε ανδ ρισκ δατα φροm Χαλλαν�σ προπριεταρψ δαταβασε 

αλονγσιδε ρελεϖαντ mαρκετ ινδιχεσ.

Χαπιταλ Μαρκετ Ρεϖιεω, 3ρδ Θυαρτερ 2015 Ινσιγητσ ον τηε εχονο−

my and recent performance in equities, ixed income, alternatives, 

ρεαλ εστατε, ανδ mορε. 

Μαρκετ Πυλσε Φλιπβοοκ, 3ρδ Θυαρτερ 2015 Α θυαρτερλψ mαρκετ ρεφ−

ερενχε γυιδε χοϖερινγ ινϖεστmεντ ανδ φυνδ σπονσορ τρενδσ ιν τηε 

U.S. economy, U.S. and non-U.S. equities and ixed income, alter−

natives, and deined contribution. 

ΕΣΓ Φαχτορσ: Υ.Σ. Ινϖεστορ Υσαγε 

Χρψσταλιζεσ Τηισ χηαρτιχλε λοοκσ ατ ΕΣΓ 

φροm τηε περσπεχτιϖεσ οφ Υ.Σ. ασσετ οωνερσ 

ανδ γλοβαλ ινϖεστmεντ mαναγερσ, ρεϖεαλινγ 

γροωινγ ινχορπορατιον οφ ΕΣΓ φαχτορσ ιν 

ινϖεστmεντ δεχισιον mακινγ.

Τηε Dεπαρτmεντ οφ Λαβορ Wειγησ ιν ον ΕΣΓ: Κεψ Τακεαωαψσ 

φροm Ιντερπρετιϖε Βυλλετιν 2015−01 Α συmmαρψ οφ τηε DΟΛ�σ Ιν−

terpretive Bulletin 2015-011, relating to the iduciary standard un−

δερ ΕΡΙΣΑ χονσιδερινγ εχονοmιχαλλψ ταργετεδ ινϖεστmεντσ (ΕΤΙσ), 

ανδ τηε ιmπλιχατιονσ φορ ινϖεστορσ.

Ηεδγε Φυνδ Μονιτορ, 3ρδ Θυαρτερ 2015 Αυτηορ ϑιm ΜχΚεε 

προϖιδεσ θυαρτερλψ περφορmανχε ανδ α σναπσηοτ οφ τηε ασσετ 

χλασσ. Τηισ θυαρτερ�σ χοϖερ στορψ: �Βεψονδ τηε Γλιττερ ανδ Ρεγρετ:  

Ρεασσεσσινγ Ηεδγε Φυνδσ� Ρολε ιν Ασσετ Αλλοχατιον.�

ςιδεο: Ιν τηε Σποτλιγητ−Ταργετ Dατε Φυνδσ Λορι Λυχασ δισχυσσ−

εσ σοmε οφ τηε τρενδσ τηατ αρε χαυσινγ ταργετ δατε φυνδσ το ηαϖε 

λοωερ φεεσ.

ΕΣΓ Ιντερεστ ανδ Ιmπλεmεντατιον Συρϖεψ Ρεσυλτσ οφ Χαλλαν�σ 

τηιρδ αννυαλ συρϖεψ το ασσεσσ τηε στατυσ οφ ΕΣΓ φαχτορ ιντεγρα−

τιον ιν τηε Υ.Σ. ινστιτυτιοναλ mαρκετ.

DΧ Οβσερϖερ, 3ρδ Θυαρτερ 2015 Χοϖερ στορψ: Μεετινγ τηε Χηαλ−

λενγε οφ Μαναγεδ Αχχουντ Σελεχτιον ανδ Εϖαλυατιον.

Γραδινγ τηε Πενσιον Προτεχτιον Αχτ, Τεν Ψεαρσ Λατερ: Συχ−

χεσσ Στοριεσ ανδ Νεαρ Μισσεσ  Χαλλαν γραδεσ τηε περφορmανχε 

οφ νινε κεψ ΠΠΑ προϖισιονσ οϖερ τηε παστ δεχαδε, λιστινγ τηεm 

φροm λεαστ το mοστ εφφεχτιϖε.

Πριϖατε Μαρκετσ Τρενδσ, Φαλλ 2015 Γαρψ Ροβερτσον συmmα−

ριζεσ τηε mαρκετ ενϖιρονmεντ, ρεχεντ εϖεντσ, περφορmανχε, ανδ 

οτηερ ισσυεσ ινϖολϖινγ πριϖατε εθυιτψ.

ΧΑΛΛΑΝ 
ΙΝςΕΣΤΜΕΝΤΣ 
ΙΝΣΤΙΤΥΤΕ

Εδυχατιον

4τη Θυαρτερ 2015

2015 Αλτερνατιϖε Ινϖεστmεντσ Συρϖεψ

Οβσερϖατιονσ φροm Υ.Σ. Ινστιτυτιοναλ Ινϖεστορσ

ΧΑΛΛΑΝ 

ΙΝςΕΣΤΜΕΝΤΣ 

ΙΝΣΤΙΤΥΤΕ

  
Συρϖεψ

Ενϖιρονmενταλ, σοχιαλ, ανδ γοϖερνανχε (ΕΣΓ) ισσυεσ αρε θυιχκλψ 

εϖολϖινγ ιν mυλτιπλε διmενσιονσ, ινχλυδινγ τηε ρεγυλατορψ ατmο−

σπηερε. Ιν τηισ χηαρτιχλε, Χαλλαν λοοκσ ατ ΕΣΓ φροm τηε περσπεχ−

τιϖεσ οφ Υ.Σ. ασσετ οωνερσ ανδ γλοβαλ ινϖεστmεντ mαναγερσ. Wε 

present key indings from two independent surveys: on the front, 
Υ.Σ. ινϖεστορσ� ινχορπορατιον οφ ΕΣΓ φαχτορσ, ανδ ον τηε ρεϖερσε, 

ινϖεστmεντ mαναγερσ� υτιλιζατιον οφ ΕΣΓ χονσιδερατιονσ. 

Ιν Οχτοβερ 2015, τηε Dεπαρτmεντ οφ Λαβορ ισσυεδ αν ιντερπρετιϖε 

βυλλετιν το χλαριφψ τηατ χονσιδερατιον οφ ΕΣΓ φαχτορσ χαν βε αχχεπτ−

αβλε υνδερ τηε ριγητ χιρχυmστανχεσ. Τηισ γυιδανχε ωασ ισσυεδ 

αφτερ ουρ συρϖεψ ωασ χονδυχτεδ ιν Σεπτεmβερ 2015, βυτ χουλδ 

αφφεχτ φυτυρε συρϖεψ ρεσυλτσ. Wε συρϖεψεδ Υ.Σ.−βασεδ ινστιτυτιοναλ 

ασσετ οωνερσ το ασσεσσ αττιτυδεσ τοωαρδ ρεσπονσιβλε ανδ συσταιν−

αβλε ινϖεστmεντ. Μορε τηαν 240 υνιθυε ινστιτυτιοναλ φυνδσ τηατ 

ρεπρεσεντ αππροξιmατελψ ∃2.4 τριλλιον ιν ασσετσ ρεσπονδεδ. Χοm−

paring indings to our irst annual survey in 2013, we note growing 
ινχορπορατιον οφ ΕΣΓ φαχτορσ ιν ινϖεστmεντ δεχισιον mακινγ. 

Τοπ Ρεασονσ φορ Ινχορπορατινγ ΕΣΓ Τοπ Ρεασονσ Αγαινστ Ινχορπορατινγ ΕΣΓ

Ινϖεστορσ Ινχορπορατινγ ΕΣΓ Φαχτορσ (2013 ϖσ. 2015)

0% 60%

We expect to achieve an improved
risk profile without sacrificing return

My fund must consider ESG factors as
part of our fiduciary responsibility

 My fund has other goals besides
maximizing risk-adjusted returns,

 and we believe that ESG factors can
 help us attain these other goals

The fund's Investment Policy Statement
dictates that we consider ESG factors 49%

38%

39%

35%

ΕΣΓ Φαχτορσ:  

Υ.Σ. Ινϖεστορ Υσαγε Crystalizes

Χηανγεσ το Υ.Σ. Ινϖεστορ ςιεωσ ον ΕΣΓ (Στρονγλψ αγρεε ορ αγρεε) 

Λοοκ φορ τηε φυλλ ρεσυλτσ οφ τηισ συρϖεψ ατ ωωω.χαλλαν.χοm/ρεσεαρχη/

2013 2015

22%

29%

2013 2015

14% 15% 15%

22%

37%

27%

31%

39%

All Respondents Corporate Public Endowment Foundation

2013 2015

DC

24%

2015

DB

7%

2013 2015

26%

26%

31%

35%

26%

26%

31%

35%

<∃500 mιλλιον

∃500 mιλλιον � 
∃3 βιλλιον

∃3 βιλλιον � 
∃20 βιλλιον

>∃20 βιλλιον

60%

55%
23%

17%6% 12%

Οϖεραλλ, ΕΣΓ φαχτορσ 
αρε οφ εθυαλ ορ γρεατερ 
ιmπορτανχε ασ τραδιτιοναλ 
φυνδαmενταλ φαχτορσ 
(such as proitability 
ανδ ϖαλυατιον) ωηεν 
εϖαλυατινγ χοmπανιεσ

ΕΣΓ ινϖεστινγ ισ α 
σηορτ−τερm τρενδ

Ενγαγεmεντ ισ 
mορε εφφεχτιϖε 
τηαν διϖεστmεντ

20152013

Our latest survey results reveal ESG incorporation rates increased from 22% in 2013 to 
29% ιν 2015 αmονγ Υ.Σ.−βασεδ ινστιτυτιοναλ ινϖεστορσ. Ελεϖεν περχεντ οφ ρεσπονδεντσ τηατ 

ηαϖε νοτ ινχορπορατεδ ΕΣΓ αρε χονσιδερινγ δοινγ σο, ον παρ ωιτη πρεϖιουσ ψεαρσ.

  

Βψ φυνδ τψπε, φουνδατιονσ ανδ ενδοωmεντσ have the highest rates of ESG adoption at 39% 
and 37%, respectively. Πυβλιχ φυνδ υσαγε οφ ΕΣΓ φαχτορσ ηασ νεαρλψ δουβλεδ ιν τηε παστ τωο 

years, from 15% in 2013 to 27% in 2015. Χορπορατε funds were lat overall at 15%, but reveal 
substantial differences when plan type is considered. Corporate deined beneit plans have a 
mere 7% ESG incorporation rate, while nearly one-quarter of deined contribution plans (24%) 
ηαϖε υτιλιζεδ ΕΣΓ.

Incorporation of ESG factors increases with fund size; 35% of funds larger than $20 billion 
υσε ΕΣΓ ιν σοmε ασπεχτ οφ ινϖεστmεντ δεχισιον mακινγ. Τοπ ρεασονσ χιτεδ βψ τηοσε τηατ δο 

ινχορπορατε ΕΣΓ ανδ τηοσε τηατ δο νοτ ηαϖε χηανγεδ λιττλε ιν τηε παστ τηρεε ψεαρσ.

Ινχορπορατιον Ρατεσ βψ Φυνδ Σιζε

 Crystalizes

Ιτ ισ υνχλεαρ ωηατ τηε 

ϖαλυε προποσιτιον ισ
47%

Ι ηαϖε νοτ σεεν αmπλε 

ρεσεαρχη τψινγ ΕΣΓ φαχτορσ 

το ουτπερφορmανχε

45%

Μψ φυνδ ωιλλ νοτ χονσιδερ ανψ φαχτορσ 

that are not purely inancial in our 

ινϖεστmεντ δεχισιον mακινγ

39%



�Wε τηινκ τηε βεστ ωαψ το λεαρν σοmετηινγ ισ το τεαχη ιτ. 

Εντρυστινγ χλιεντ εδυχατιον το ουρ χονσυλταντσ ανδ σπεχιαλιστσ 

ενσυρεσ τηατ τηεψ ηαϖε α τοταλ χοmmανδ οφ τηειρ συβϕεχτ 

mαττερ. Τηισ ισ ονε ρεασον ωηψ εδυχατιον ανδ ρεσεαρχη ηαϖε 

been cornerstones of our irm for more than 40 years.” 

Ρον Πεψτον, Χηαιρmαν ανδ ΧΕΟ

Χαλλαν Ινϖεστmεντσ Ινστιτυτε ανδ τηε �Χαλλαν Χολλεγε�

 

Εϖεντσ

Μισσ ουτ ον α Χαλλαν χονφερενχε ορ ωορκσηοπ? Εϖεντ συmmα−

ριεσ ανδ σπεακερσ� πρεσεντατιονσ αρε αϖαιλαβλε ον ουρ ωεβσιτε:  

ηττπσ://ωωω.χαλλαν.χοm/εδυχατιον/ΧΙΙ/ 

Τηε Νατιοναλ Χονφερενχε, το βε ηελδ ϑανυαρψ 25�27 ιν Σαν Φραν−

χισχο, χονσιστσ οφ γενεραλ σεσσιονσ ωιτη πρεσεντατιονσ βψ ωορλδ, πο−

λιτιχαλ, αρτσ, σχιενχε, ανδ ινϖεστmεντ ινδυστρψ σπεακερσ. Τηε γενεραλ 

σεσσιονσ αρε φολλοωεδ βψ σmαλλερ βρεακουτ σεσσιονσ ον τιmελψ ιν−

δυστρψ τοπιχσ λεδ βψ Χαλλαν σπεχιαλιστσ. Αττενδεεσ ινχλυδε πλαν/φυνδ 

σπονσορσ, ινϖεστmεντ mαναγερσ, ανδ Χαλλαν ασσοχιατεσ. 

Σαϖε τηε δατε φορ ουρ Ρεγιοναλ Wορκσηοπσ: ϑυνε 28 ιν Ατλαντα, 

ϑυνε 29 ιν Σαν Φρανχισχο, Οχτοβερ 25 ιν Νεω Ψορκ, ανδ Οχτοβερ 

26 ιν Χηιχαγο. Αλσο mαρκ ψουρ χαλενδαρσ φορ ουρ φαλλ Ινϖεστmεντ 

Μαναγερ Χονφερενχε, Σεπτεmβερ 11−13.

Φορ mορε ινφορmατιον αβουτ ρεσεαρχη ορ εδυχατιοναλ εϖεντσ, 

πλεασε χονταχτ Αννα Wεστ: 415.974.5060 / ινστιτυτε≅χαλλαν.χοm

Τηε Χεντερ φορ Ινϖεστmεντ Τραινινγ  

Εδυχατιοναλ Σεσσιονσ

Τηε Χεντερ φορ Ινϖεστmεντ Τραινινγ, βεττερ κνοων ασ τηε �Χαλλαν 

Χολλεγε,� προϖιδεσ α φουνδατιον οφ κνοωλεδγε φορ ινδυστρψ προφεσ−

σιοναλσ ωηο αρε ινϖολϖεδ ιν τηε ινϖεστmεντ δεχισιον−mακινγ προ−

cess. It was founded in 1994 to provide clients and non-clients alike 
ωιτη βασιχ− το ιντερmεδιατε−λεϖελ ινστρυχτιον. Ουρ νεξτ σεσσιον ισ:

Ιντροδυχτιον το Ινϖεστmεντσ

Ατλαντα, ΓΑ, Απριλ 19�20, 2016

Σαν Φρανχισχο, ΧΑ, ϑυλψ 19�20, 2016

Χηιχαγο, ΙΛ, Οχτοβερ 18�19, 2016

Τηισ σεσσιον φαmιλιαριζεσ φυνδ σπονσορ τρυστεεσ, σταφφ, ανδ ασσετ 

mαναγεmεντ αδϖισορσ ωιτη βασιχ ινϖεστmεντ τηεορψ, τερmινολογψ, 

ανδ πραχτιχεσ. Ιτ λαστσ ονε−ανδ−α−ηαλφ δαψσ ανδ ισ δεσιγνεδ φορ ιν−

διϖιδυαλσ ωηο ηαϖε λεσσ τηαν τωο ψεαρσ οφ εξπεριενχε ωιτη ασσετ−

mαναγεmεντ οϖερσιγητ ανδ/ορ συππορτ ρεσπονσιβιλιτιεσ. Τυιτιον φορ 

τηε Ιντροδυχτορψ �Χαλλαν Χολλεγε� σεσσιον ισ ∃2,350 περ περσον. 

Τυιτιον ινχλυδεσ ινστρυχτιον, αλλ mατεριαλσ, βρεακφαστ ανδ λυνχη ον 

each day, and dinner on the irst evening with the instructors.

Χυστοmιζεδ Σεσσιονσ

Τηε �Χαλλαν Χολλεγε� ισ εθυιππεδ το χυστοmιζε α χυρριχυλυm το 

meet the training and educational needs of a speciic organization.
Τηεσε ταιλορεδ σεσσιονσ ρανγε φροm βασιχ το αδϖανχεδ ανδ χαν 

take place anywhere—even at your ofice.

Λεαρν mορε ατ ηττπσ://ωωω.χαλλαν.χοm/εδυχατιον/χολλεγε/ ορ 

χονταχτ Κατηλεεν Χυννιε: 415.274.3029 / χυννιε≅χαλλαν.χοm

Υνιθυε πιεχεσ οφ ρεσεαρχη τηε 

Ινστιτυτε γενερατεσ εαχη ψεαρ50+

Τοταλ αττενδεεσ οφ τηε �Χαλλαν 

College” since 19943,300 Ψεαρ τηε Χαλλαν Ινϖεστmεντσ 

Ινστιτυτε ωασ φουνδεδ1980

Αττενδεεσ (ον αϖεραγε) οφ τηε 

Ινστιτυτε�σ αννυαλ Νατιοναλ Χονφερενχε500

Εδυχατιον: Βψ τηε Νυmβερσ



D
is

c
lo

s
u

re
s

Disclosures



 

List of Callan’s Investment Manager Clients 

Confidential – For Callan Client Use Only 
 
Callan takes its fiduciary and disclosure responsibilities to clients very seriously. We recognize that there are numerous potential conflicts of interest 
encountered in the investment consulting industry and that it is our responsibility to manage those conflicts effectively and in the best interest of our 
clients.  At Callan, we employ a robust process to identify, manage, monitor and disclose potential conflicts on an on-going basis.   
 
The list below is an important component of our conflicts management and disclosure process.  It identifies those investment managers that pay Callan 
fees for educational, consulting, software, database or reporting products and services.  We update the list quarterly because we believe that our fund 
sponsor clients should know the investment managers that do business with Callan, particularly those investment manager clients that the fund sponsor 
clients may be using or considering using. Please refer to Callan’s ADV Part 2A for a more detailed description of the services and products that Callan 
makes available to investment manager clients through our Institutional Consulting Group, Independent Adviser Group and Fund Sponsor Consulting 
Group.  Due to the complex corporate and organizational ownership structures of many investment management firms, parent and affiliate firm 
relationships are not indicated on our list.  
 
Fund sponsor clients may request a copy of the most currently available list at any time. Fund sponsor clients may also request specific information 
regarding the fees paid to Callan by particular fund manager clients.  Per company policy, information requests regarding fees are handled exclusively 
by Callan’s Compliance Department. 
 

 

Quarterly List as of  

December 31, 2015 

Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. Page 1 of 2 

Manager Name 
1607 Capital Partners, LLC 
Aberdeen Asset Management 
Acadian Asset Management, Inc. 
Advisory Research 
Affiliated Managers Group 
AllianceBernstein 
Allianz Global Investors U.S. LLC 
Allianz Life Insurance Company of North America 
AlphaOne Investment Services 
American Century Investment Management 
Analytic Investors 
Apollo Global Management 
AQR Capital Management 
Ares Management 
Ariel Investments 
Aristotle Capital Management 
Artisan Partners Limited 
Atlanta Capital Management Co., L.L.C. 
AXA Rosenberg Investment Management 
Babson Capital Management LLC 
Bailard 
Baillie Gifford Overseas Limited  
Baird Advisors 
Bank of America 
Baring Asset Management 
Baron Capital Management 
BlackRock 
Blue Vista Capital Management 
BMO Asset Management 
BNP Paribas Investment Partners 
BNY Mellon Asset Management 
Boston Company Asset Management, LLC (The) 
Boston Partners  
Brandes Investment Partners, L.P. 
Brandywine Global Investment Management, LLC 
Brown Brothers Harriman & Company 
Cadence Capital Management 

Manager Name 
Calamos Advisors 
Capital Group 
CastleArk Management, LLC 
Causeway Capital Management 
Champlain Investment Partners 
Channing Capital Management, LLC 
Charles Schwab Investment Management 
Chartwell Investment Partners 
ClearBridge Investments, LLC (fka ClearBridge Advisors) 
Cohen & Steers 
Columbia Management Investment Advisors, LLC 
Columbus Circle Investors 
Corbin Capital Partners 
Cornerstone Investment Partners, LLC 
Cramer Rosenthal McGlynn, LLC 
Crawford Investment Council 
Credit Suisse Asset Management 
Crestline Investors 
Cutwater Asset Management 
DDJ Capital Management 
DE Shaw Investment Management LLC 
Delaware Investments 
DePrince, Race & Zollo, Inc. 
Deutsche Asset  & Wealth Management 
Diamond Hill Investments 
Duff & Phelps Investment Mgmt. 
Eagle Asset Management, Inc. 
EARNEST Partners, LLC 
Eaton Vance Management 
EnTrust Capital Inc. 
Epoch Investment Partners 
Fayez Sarofim & Company 
Federated Investors 
Fidelity Institutional Asset Management 
First Eagle Investment Management 
First Hawaiian Bank Wealth Management Division 
First State Investments 



 

  Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. December 31, 2015 Page 2 of 2 

Manager Name 

Fisher Investments 

FLAG Capital Management 

Fort Washington Investment Advisors, Inc. 

Franklin Templeton   

Fred Alger Management Co., Inc. 

Fuller & Thaler Asset Management 

GAM (USA) Inc. 

GE Asset Management 

Goldman Sachs Asset Management 

Grand-Jean Capital Management 

GMO (fka Grantham, Mayo, Van Otterloo & Co., LLC) 

Gresham Investment Management, LLC 

Guggenheim Investments Asset Management (fka Security Global) 

Harbor Capital 

Harding Loevner LP 

Harrison Street Real Estate Capital 

Hartford Funds 

Hartford Investment Management Co. 

Henderson Global Investors 

Hotchkis & Wiley 

HSBC Global Asset Management 

Income Research & Management 

Insight Investment Management 

Institutional Capital LLC 

INTECH Investment Management 

Invesco 

Investec Asset Management 

Janus Capital Group (fka Janus Capital Management, LLC) 

Jensen Investment Management 

J.P. Morgan Asset Management 

KeyCorp 

Kopernik Global Investors 

Lazard Asset Management 

LMCG Investments (fka Lee Munder Capital Group) 

Legal & General Investment Management America 

Lincoln National Corporation 

Logan Circle Partners, L.P. 

The London Company 

Longview Partners 

Loomis, Sayles & Company, L.P. 

Lord Abbett & Company 

Los Angeles Capital Management 

LSV Asset Management 

Lyrical Partners 

MacKay Shields LLC 

Man Investments 

Manulife Asset Management 

Martin Currie 

Marvin & Palmer Associates, Inc. 

MFS Investment Management 

MidFirst Bank 

Millstreet Capital Management 

Mondrian Investment Partners Limited 

Montag & Caldwell, Inc. 

Morgan Stanley Investment Management 

Mountain Lake Investment Management LLC 

MUFG Union Bank, N.A. 

Neuberger Berman, LLC (fka, Lehman Brothers) 

Newton Capital Management 

Northern Lights Capital Group 

Manager Name 

Northern Trust Asset Management 

Nuveen Investments Institutional Services Group LLC 

Old Mutual Asset Management 

OppenheimerFunds, Inc. 

Pacific Investment Management Company 

Palisade Capital Management LLC 

PanAgora Asset Management 

Paradigm Asset Management 

Parametric Portfolio Associates 

Peregrine Capital Management, Inc. 

PineBridge Investments (formerly AIG) 

Pinnacle Asset Management 

Pioneer Investment Management, Inc. 

PNC Capital Advisors, LLC (fka Allegiant Asset Mgmt) 

Principal Global Investors 

Private Advisors 

Prudential Investment Management, Inc. 

Putnam Investments, LLC 

Pyramis Global Advisors 

Pzena Investment Management, LLC 

RBC Global Asset Management (U.S.) Inc. 

Regions Financial Corporation 

Riverbridge Partners LLC 

Rothschild Asset Management, Inc. 

Royce & Associates 

RS Investments 

Russell Investment Management 

Santander Global Facilities 

Schroder Investment Management North America Inc. 

Scout Investments 

SEI Investments 

SEIX Investment Advisors, Inc. 

Smith Graham and Company 

Smith Group Asset Management 

Standard Life Investments 

Standish (fka, Standish Mellon Asset Management) 

State Street Global Advisors 

Stone Harbor Investment Partners, L.P. 

Systematic Financial Management 

T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. 

Taplin, Canida & Habacht 

TIAA-CREF 

TCW Asset Management Company 

Tocqueville Asset Management 

UBS Asset Management 

Van Eck 

Versus Capital Group 

Victory Capital Management Inc. 

Vontobel Asset Management 

Voya Investment Management (fka ING) 

Waddell & Reed Asset Management Group 

WCM Investment Management 

WEDGE Capital Management 

Wellington Management Company, LLP 

Wells Capital Management 

Wells Fargo Private Bank 

Western Asset Management Company 

Westwood Management Corp. 

William Blair & Co., Inc. 

 



Page 1 of 1

Pass

Date Run: 01/04/2016Limited Access

A5XB  SACRT - ATLANTA CAPITAL MGMT

Securities + Cash Net Assets

Account Compliance Summary

Production Date: 12/31/2015

Rule Name Limit Type Limit Value Result
Result
Status

20,830,076.66 20,718,492Base Currency USD

0Alerts:

Warnings: 0

Passes: 15

144A and Private Placement
Private Placements are prohibited (gap item 4a) (143653)1 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%

MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Asset Measures
AssetMeasure: AssetMeasure_Funds_Preferred_Denominator (34662)2 20,830,076.66 Value Pass

Asset_Type
International equity securities which trade on U.S.-based exchanges, including
American Depository Receipts (ADRs), shall not exceed 5% of the portfolio at cost (gap
item 4g) (143658)

3 0.00 % Maximum 5.00%
MAX = 5.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 5.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Investments in commodities are prohibited (gap item 4a) (143655)4 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Margin Securities are prohibited (gap item 4a) (143651)5 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Ownership of shares/debt issued limit 5% ex null (gap item 4e) (143652)6 0.04 % Maximum 5.00%
MAX = 5.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 5.00%
WMIN =

Pass

The Fund may not enter into short sales (gap item 4a) (143654)7 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

The Fund may not hold any Options (144454)8 0 Num Bkts Maximum 0
MAX = 0
MIN =
WMAX = 0
WMIN = 0

Pass

The Fund may not hold any Options (gap item 4a) (143657)9 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

The Fund may not hold more than 5% of the shares outstanding of any domestic equity
security (gap item 4e) (143659)

10 0.04 % Maximum 5.00%
MAX = 5.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 5.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Cash
No more than 10% of the Fund in cash and cash equivalents (gap item 4d) (143656)11 4.00 % Maximum 10.00%

MAX = 10.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 10.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Exchange
Flag any non-US exchange traded futures (gap item 4b) (143670)12 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%

MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Industry
Industry Sector GICS - Max 25% at cost (gap item 4f) (143660)13 7.93 % Maximum 25.00%

MAX = 25.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 25.00%
WMIN =

Pass

The Fund shall not invested in any security issued by a company in the Tobacco Sub-
Industry as defined by GICS (gap item 2) (143650)

14 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Issuer
Investments in a single domestic equity issuer shall not exceed 5% at cost (gap item 4e) 
(143661)

15 1.88 % Maximum 5.00%
MAX = 5.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 5.00%
WMIN =

Pass

JAdelman
Text Box
Attachment 3 (1 of 3)



Page 1 of 1

Pass

Date Run: 01/04/2016Limited Access

A5XD  SACRT - METWEST

Securities + Cash Net Assets

Account Compliance Summary

Production Date: 12/31/2015

Rule Name Limit Type Limit Value Result
Result
Status

92,434,656.61 85,338,742Base Currency USD

0Alerts:

Warnings: 0

Passes: 10

144A and Private Placement
The Fund is not permitted to hold any Private Placements excluding 144a (gap item 8a)
(143666)

1 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Asset Measures
AssetMeasure: AssetMeasure_Funds_Preferred_Denominator (34662)2 92,434,656.61 Value Pass

Asset_Type
A5XD: Flag all prohibited security types (gap items 9 & 10) (143665)3 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%

MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Asset-Backed Commercial Paper - Minimum Quality of A2/P2 (157603)4 0 Num Bkts Maximum 0
MAX = 0
MIN =
WMAX = 0
WMIN =

Pass

Flag any Collateralized Mortgage Obligations that not guaranteed by US government and
its agencies and corporate issues rated below AAA at time of purchase (gap item 9j)
(143669)

5 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Credit Quality
Flag any Corporate Debt rated below Investment Grade at time of purchase (gap item 9f) 
(143667)

6 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Minimum Quality must be at lesst 80% Baa or above (157604)7 94.12 % Minimum 80.00%
MAX =
MIN = 80.00%
WMAX =
WMIN = 80.00%

Pass

No Commercial Paper rated < A2/P2 at time of purchase (gap item 9a) (143662)8 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

The Weighted Average Credit Rating of the Fund must be A or better (gap item 8c)
(143663)

9 23.08 Rank Minimum 20
MAX =
MIN = 20
WMAX =
WMIN = 20

Pass

Industry
The Fund shall not invested in any security issued by a company in the Tobacco Sub-
Industry as defined by GICS (gap item 2) (143650)

10 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

JAdelman
Text Box
Attachment 3 (2 of 3)



Page 1 of 1

Pass

Date Run: 01/04/2016Limited Access

A5Z8  SACRT - ROBECO

Securities + Cash Net Assets

Account Compliance Summary

Production Date: 12/31/2015

Rule Name Limit Type Limit Value Result
Result
Status

38,415,330.59 38,456,741Base Currency USD

0Alerts:

Warnings: 0

Passes: 15

144A and Private Placement
Private Placements are prohibited (gap item 4a) (143653)1 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%

MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Asset Measures
AssetMeasure: AssetMeasure_Funds_Preferred_Denominator (34662)2 38,415,330.59 Value Pass

Asset_Type
International equity securities which trade on U.S.-based exchanges, including
American Depository Receipts (ADRs), shall not exceed 5% of the portfolio at cost (gap
item 4g) (143658)

3 3.21 % Maximum 5.00%
MAX = 5.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 5.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Investments in commodities are prohibited (gap item 4a) (143655)4 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Margin Securities are prohibited (gap item 4a) (143651)5 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Ownership of shares/debt issued limit 5% ex null (gap item 4e) (143652)6 0.01 % Maximum 5.00%
MAX = 5.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 5.00%
WMIN =

Pass

The Fund may not enter into short sales (gap item 4a) (143654)7 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

The Fund may not hold any Options (144454)8 0 Num Bkts Maximum 0
MAX = 0
MIN =
WMAX = 0
WMIN = 0

Pass

The Fund may not hold any Options (gap item 4a) (143657)9 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

The Fund may not hold more than 5% of the shares outstanding of any domestic equity
security (gap item 4e) (143659)

10 0.01 % Maximum 5.00%
MAX = 5.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 5.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Cash
No more than 10% of the Fund in cash and cash equivalents (gap item 4d) (143656)11 2.36 % Maximum 10.00%

MAX = 10.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 10.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Exchange
Flag any non-US exchange traded futures (gap item 4b) (143670)12 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%

MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Industry
Industry Sector GICS - Max 25% at cost (gap item 4f) (143660)13 11.37 % Maximum 25.00%

MAX = 25.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 25.00%
WMIN =

Pass

The Fund shall not invested in any security issued by a company in the Tobacco Sub-
Industry as defined by GICS (gap item 2) (143650)

14 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Issuer
Investments in a single domestic equity issuer shall not exceed 5% at cost (gap item 4e) 
(143661)

15 3.19 % Maximum 5.00%
MAX = 5.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 5.00%
WMIN =

Pass

JAdelman
Text Box
Attachment 3 (3 of 3)



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER                                  Page 1 of 1 
Agenda 
Item No. 

Board Meeting 
Date 

Open/Closed 
Session 

Information/Action 
Item 

Issue 
Date 

23 03/16/16 Retirement Information 02/01/16 

 

Subject:  Receive Updated Information on Status of Retirement Plans Experience and 
Valuation Studies and Resulting Actuarially Determined Contribution Rate (ALL). 
(Bonnel) 

 

Approved:  Presented: 

Final 03/07/16   
Director, Human Resources  Director, Human Resources 
  J:\Retirement Board\2016\IP's\March 16, 2016\Combined Actuarial Valuation 

3_7_16.docx 

 
 

ISSUE 
 
Receive Updated Information on Status of Retirement Plans Experience and Valuation Studies and 
Resulting Actuarially Determined Contribution Rate. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
There is no action associated with this matter. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no fiscal impact associated with this update.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The purpose of the annual Actuarial Valuation is to compute the annual actuarially determined 
contribution rate required to fund the Plan according to actuarial principles and to present items 
required for disclosure under Statement No. 67 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB). The purpose of the Experience Study is to align the Plans’ mortality tables and mortality 
assumptions with the most up-to-date actuarial assumptions available. 
 
Graham Schmidt from Cheiron attended the January 27, 2016 Special Retirement Board meeting 
and provided the Boards draft results of the Valuation and Experience studies as well as various 
options related to the Assumed Rate of Return, the Assumed Rate of Inflation and how to structure 
the Actuarially Determined Contribution Rate in a way that will benefit the plan, without significantly 
increasing costs to the District.   
 
As a result of the Cheiron presentation, the Boards provided Cheiron instructions to lower the 
Assumed Rate of Interest to 7.5% while lowering the Assumed Inflation Rate to 3.15% and to 
smooth those lowered rates over a 3 year period.  As a result of those instructions Cheiron will then 
apply the results of the Valuation and Experience studies to compute the final Actuarially 
Determined Contribution Rate for Fiscal Year 2017. 
 
Cheiron indicated at the January 2016 meeting that the deadline to meet the distribution 
requirements associated with the March Quarterly Meeting would be difficult to achieve.  After 
numerous discussions with Cheiron, staff made the decision that Cheiron should present the 
preliminary results on an information basis at the March Quarterly meeting, and will provide final 
results for adoption at the April 2016 Special Meeting. 
 
Graham Schmidt will attend both meetings and will provide all information required for the Boards to 
review and adopt the Actuarially Determined Contribution Rate for the FY2017. 



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 1 of 1 
Agenda 
Item No. 

Board Meeting 
Date 

Open/Closed 
Session 

Information/Action 
Item 

Issue 
Date 

24 03/16/16 Retirement Information 02/01/16 

 

Subject: Update on Roles and Responsibilities Related to Pension Administration (ALL). (Bonnel) 

 

Approved:  Presented: 

Final 02/26/16   
Director, Human Resources  Director, Human Resources 
  J:\Retirement Board\2016\IP's\March 16, 2016\Reference\Final Update from Staff on Pension 

Tasks.doc 

 

ISSUE 
 
Presentation by Donna Bonnel, Pension Plan Administrator, regarding the roles and 
responsibilities of various District staff members and Legal Counsel related to administration of 
the Pension Plans. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
None associated with this matter. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None associated with this matter. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
At the  December 16, 2015 Quarterly Retirement Board Meeting, all Boards adopted a Staff Cost 
Allocation Policy.  In accordance with the adoption of that Policy, the attached documents are 
provided to ensure the Boards have a greater understanding of the various duties of RT staff and 
consultants (including the Retirement Boards’ Legal Counsel) as related to administration of the 
Pension Plans. 
 
Attachment A – Pension Administration Staff Roles and Responsibilities 
Attachment B – RT Staff Costs (Excluding the Pension and Retiree Services Administrator)   

Charged to RT Pension Plans  
Attachment C – Summary of Legal Services Provided for the Quarter Ending December 31, 

2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1 11286012.1

Attachment A

Pension Administration
Staff Roles and Responsibilities

In order to ensure efficient management of the administration of the RT sponsored pension plans, the
following roles and responsibilities have been established.

Plan Documents

Task Primary
Responsibility

Back Up
Responsibility Status

Negotiation of Benefits,
Provisions Director, Labor Relations To be determined Pending 2017

Negotiations
Incorporate Negotiated
Benefits/Provisions into
Plan Documents Deputy Chief Counsel,

RT Chief Counsel, RT

ATU/IBEW and AFSCME
A/T changes will be part

of 2017 negotiations;
AEA, AFSMCE Supv.,

and MCEG
review/amendments will

begin Summer 2015
Interpretation of
Provisions

Deputy Chief Counsel,
RT Chief Counsel, RT As needed

Guidance to Staff
regarding legal changes
that affect Plans

Deputy Chief Counsel,
RT Chief Counsel, RT

As needed

Plan Administration
Customer Relations:

Task Primary
Responsibility

Back Up
Responsibility Status

Creation of Pension
Estimates

Pension and Retiree
Services Administrator

Director, Human
Resources Ongoing

Retirement Meetings Pension and Retiree
Services Administrator

Director, Human
Resources Ongoing

Administration of Active
and Term Vested
Retirement Process,
including:

 Collection of all
required documents

 Legal/Compliance
Review

 Approval by General
Manager

Pension and Retiree
Services Administrator

Director, Human
Resources Ongoing

48-Month Salary
Calculations

Payroll Analyst and
Pension and Retiree

Services Administrator

Payroll Supervisor and
Director, Human

Resources

Ongoing



2 11286012.1

Customer Relations – continued:

Task Primary
Responsibility

Back Up
Responsibility Status

Enrollment/Changes in
employee information
including:
 Medical benefits
 W4P/DE4P
 Addresses

HR Analysts/Pension and
Retiree Services

Administrator

Sr. HR Analysts/Director,
Human Resources

Ongoing

Copies of Retiree Pay
Stubs and 1099R’s Payroll Analyst Payroll Supervisor Ongoing

Printing, Stuffing, and
Mailing Pay Stubs Payroll Analyst Payroll Supervisor Ongoing

Special Payouts, Direct
Deposit Changes,
Withholding Orders, Final
Checks, Benefit Changes

Payroll Analyst Payroll Supervisor Ongoing

Verification of Retiree
Wages: gross pay, net
wages, no pre-tax
deductions, taxes

Payroll Analyst Payroll Supervisor Ongoing

Managing Stale Dated
and Lost Check
Replacement

Payroll Analyst and
Senior Accountant Payroll Supervisor Ongoing

Administration:

Task Primary
Responsibility

Back Up
Responsibility Status

Legal Services (Hanson
Bridgett) Contract
Procurement

Director, Finance and
Director, Human

Resources

Pension and Retiree
Services Administrator,

Senior Accountant

As needed

Actuarial Services
(Cheiron) Contract
Procurement

Pension and Retiree
Services Administrator

Director, Human
Resources

RFP Issue paper
presented at June 2015

Quarterly Retirement
Board Meeting

Retirement Board Policy
Development and
Administration

Pension and Retiree
Services Administrator
and Senior Accountant

Hanson Bridgett and
Cheiron

Director, Human
Resources or Director,

Finance

Hanson Bridgett and
Cheiron

As needed



3 11286012.1

Retirement Board Administration:

Task Primary
Responsibility

Back Up
Responsibility Status

Creation of Agenda/IPs Staff Presenting Issue to
Board n/a As needed, at least

quarterly
Creation and Distribution
of Retirement Board
Packages

Pension and Retiree
Services Administrator

Director, Human
Resources

As needed, at least
quarterly

Management of
Retirement Board
Meetings

Assistant Secretary to the
Retirement Boards

Pension and Retiree
Services Administrator

As needed, at least
quarterly

Training of Staff/Board
Members

Pension and Retiree
Services Administrator As needed

New Retirement Board
Member Training

Director, Human
Resources or Director,

Finance

Pension and Retiree
Services Administrator or

Sr. Accountant
As needed

Semi-Annual/Annual/Bi-Annual Administration:

Task Primary
Responsibility

Back Up
Responsibility Status

Valuation Study
Director, Finance and

Director, Human
Resources

Pension and Retiree
Services Administrator,

Senior Accountant

Commences in
July/August of each year

with target completion
date of November

Experience Study
Director, Finance and

Director, Human
Resources

Pension and Retiree
Services Administrator,

Senior Accountant

Will commence in
conjunction with the

Valuation Study (every 5
years)

Fiduciary Liability
Insurance

Pension and Retiree
Services Administrator

Director, Human
Resources

Annual policy
placement/renewal;

Current policy period:
5/2015-5/2016

OPEB Valuation Study Director, Finance and
Director, Human

Resources

Pension and Retiree
Services Administrator,

Senior Accountant

Completed; results
pending from Actuary

Responses to Public
Records Act Requests

Director, Human
Resources

Pension and Retiree
Services Administrator As needed

Statement of Investment
Objectives and Policy
Guidelines management

Sr. Accountant Director, Finance
Proposed revision to the
Policy presented to the
Board on June 17, 2015



4 11286012.1

Contract Administration:

Task Primary
Responsibility

Back Up
Responsibility Status

Adherence to contract
provisions

Pension and Retiree
Services Administrator or

Sr. Accountant

Director, Human
Resources or Director,

Finance
On-going

Payment of Invoices Sr. Accountant or
Director, Human

Resources
Director, Finance On-going

Contract Management,
including RFP process

Director, Human
Resources or Director,

Finance

Pension and Retiree
Services Administrator or

Sr. Accountant
On-going

Asset Management:

Task Primary
Responsibility

Back Up
Responsibility Status

Asset Rebalancing Sr. Accountant Director, Finance On-going
Account Reconciliations Sr. Accountant Director, Finance On-going
Cash Transfers Sr. Accountant Director, Finance On-going
Fund Accounting Sr. Accountant Director, Finance On-going
Investment Management Sr. Accountant Director, Finance On-going
Financial Statement
Preparation Sr. Accountant Director, Finance On-going

Annual Audit Sr. Accountant Director, Finance Commences each year
during Sept/Oct

State Controller’s Office
Reporting Sr. Accountant Director, Finance Commences each year

during Nov/Dec
U.S. Census Bureau
Reporting Sr. Accountant Director, Finance Commences each year

during Nov/Dec
Work with Contractors
(Investment advisors
(Callan), Custodian (State
Street), Fund Managers,
Auditors, and Actuary
(Cheiron))

Sr. Accountant Director, Finance

On-going

Review Monthly Asset
Rebalancing Director, Finance CFO On-going



Attachment B

Charagable to RT Pension Plans, but current paid for by the District
Excluding Valerie Weekly, Pension and Retiree Services Administrator

Time Period: October 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015
Sum of Value TranCurr
WBS Element Source object name Period Total

SAXXXX.PENSION Board Support / Brooks, Cynthia 4 73.19
6 219.57

Board Support / Brooks, Cynthia Total 292.76
Chief Financial Off / Bernegger, Brent 4 56.93

5 227.70
6 796.95

Chief Financial Off / Bernegger, Brent Total 1,081.58
Finance And Treasury / Adelman, Jamie 4 1,807.20

5 1,027.62
6 2,728.51

Finance And Treasury / Adelman, Jamie Total 5,563.33
Finance And Treasury / Gardner, Leona 4 546.74

Finance And Treasury / Gardner, Leona Total 546.74
Finance And Treasury / Mata, Jennifer 4 1,043.76

5 1,084.28
6 1,314.99

Finance And Treasury / Mata, Jennifer Total 3,443.03
Human Resources / Bonnel, Donna 4 3,912.63

5 3,721.77
6 4,389.78

Human Resources / Bonnel, Donna Total 12,024.18
SAXXXX.PENSION Total 22,951.62
Grand Total 22,951.62



  

11990516.1 

HANSON BRIDGETT LLP & 

SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT DISTRICT RETIREMENT BOARDS 

 

LEGAL SERVICES SUMMARY 

 

Set forth below is a broad summary report of significant legal matters addressed by Hanson 

Bridgett LLP for the Sacramento Regional Transit District Retirement Boards during the Quarter 

ended December 31, 2015. 

1. Weekly client conference calls and internal conferences on pending matters, 

upcoming Board meetings and follow-up from prior Board meetings. 

2. Preparation for and participation in Quarterly Retirement Board Meeting, including 

review and markup of agenda materials. 

3. Quarterly Board Chair conference calls. 

4. Draft/provide comments/confer on updated/new policies and procedures on: 

a. Board and Staff Education and Travel;  

b. Procurements;   

c. Staff time allocation and expenses; and 

d. Domestic Relations Orders (QDRO). 

5. Assist with establishment of trusts. 

6. Address director transitions. 

7. Prepare and present fiduciary training. 

8. Revise and advise on scope of work for actuarial services contract. 

9. Provide counsel regarding questions on individual members’ vesting and access to 

benefits, e.g., for former employee convicted of embezzling public funds. 

10. Negotiate audit funding agreement with SACOG. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

/s/ 

 

Shayna M. van Hoften 

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
Attachment C



REGIONAL TRANSIT  Page 1 of 2 
Agenda 
Item No. 

Board Meeting 
Date 

Open/Closed 
Session 

Information/Action 
Item 

Issue 
Date 

25 03/16/16 Retirement Information 02/01/16 

 

Subject:  Update on Status of Trust Documents (ALL). (Bonnel) 

 

Approved:  Presented: 

Final 03/05/16   
Director, Human Resources  Director, Human Resources 
  J:\Retirement Board\2016\IP's\March 16, 2016\Final Administrative IPs\Final CLEAN [HB edits] 

Updated Trust IP.DOC 

 
11992148.4 

ISSUE 
 
Receive Updated Information on Status of Retirement Plan Trust Documents. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
There is no action associated with this matter. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no fiscal impact associated with this update.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The Internal Revenue Code requires that tax-qualified retirement plan funds be set aside and 
held in trust for the exclusive benefit of participants and beneficiaries.  To ensure that the 
three Retirement Plans for employees of Sacramento Regional Transit District (Retirement 
Plans) adequately meet this legal requirement, both the District and the Retirement Boards 
took steps to ensure Declaration of Trust documents were put into place for all three 
Retirement Plans.  Staff provided the initial documents to the Retirement Boards in March 
2015.  The Boards provided final comments to the District in July 2015.  The Retirement 
Boards approved and adopted the final trust documents at the December 16, 2015 Retirement 
Board meeting. 
 
Due to this diligence on the part of District Staff and the Retirement Boards, the trust 
documents were signed in time to be mailed to the IRS by January 31, 2016 as part of the 
District's application to the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) for a "Determination Letter" and a 
Voluntary Correction Program (VCP) for each of the three Retirement Plans.  A Determination 
Letter from the IRS signifies that the IRS finds that a retirement plan document meets all of the 
requirements to receive favorable tax treatment – in other words, the plan is "tax-qualified" in 
form.  The VCP application process allows plan sponsors to receive IRS approval for any 
required plan document or operational error corrections while retaining the plans' tax-qualified 
status.  The District and Staff anticipate a response from the IRS with respect to these 
applications within the next six to nine months. 
 
While the trust documents are now complete, there are two additional IRS requirements that 
must be accomplished related to the trust assets.  Currently, the assets of all three Retirement 
Plans are commingled for investment purposes.  Trusts that are a part of a tax-qualified 
retirement plan like the District's plans can "pool" their assets in a group trust for commingling 
investments like this without affecting the tax-exempt status of the separate plans and trusts, 



REGIONAL TRANSIT  Page 2 of 2 
Agenda 

 Item No. 
Board Meeting  

Date 
Open/Closed 

Session 
Information/Action 

Item 
Issue  
Date 

25 03/16/16 Retirement Information 02/01/16 

 

Subject:      Update on Status of Trust Documents (ALL). (Bonnel) 

 

 
11992148.4 

provided the plans satisfy certain IRS requirements.  One of these requirements is that each 
Retirement Plan also enter into a group trust agreement, in addition to its separate trust 
agreement.  In other words, the pooled Retirement Plan assets must be administered pursuant 
to the terms of a group trust agreement that allows all Retirement Plan assets to be invested 
jointly, while each Retirement Plan also continues to maintain its separate trust agreement.  
Furthermore, the IRS requires that the assets of each Retirement Plan be accounted for and 
tracked separately. 
 
District Finance staff is working toward implementing a group trust agreement and separate 
asset accounting for the ATU, IBEW and Salaried Retirement Plans, as the IRS requires, as 
soon as practicable. The IRS will provide a 150-day window following its issuance of a VCP 
compliance statement for each Retirement Plan to accomplish these tasks.  Completion of 
these tasks will finalize full implementation of these corrections. 
 
District legal counsel will provide an update on the status of the IRS Determination Letter 
process, as well as the IRS requirements for the group trust agreement and plan asset 
tracking requirements.   
 
Finance staff will provide an update on the cost of the group trust agreement and the joint 
asset tracking requirements, as will as any other costs of compliance with the IRS 
requirements. 
 
 



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 1 of 1
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

26 03/16/16 Retirement Information 02/01/16

Subject: Staff Update on Status of Actuary and Legal Services Request for Proposals (ALL).
(Bonnel)

Approved: Presented:

Director, Human Resources Director, Human Resources
C:\Temp\Status Update on Actuary and Legal Services RFPs_9B4887.doc

11491477.1

ISSUE

Staff Update on Status of Actuary and Legal Services Request for Proposals (ALL). (Bonnel)

RECOMMENDED ACTION

None associated with this matter.

FISCAL IMPACT

None associated with this matter.

DISCUSSION

Donna Bonnel, Pension Plan Administrator, will provide an update on status of the Requests
for Proposal both Actuarial and Legal Services.

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
Final 02/26/16



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 1 of 1 
Agenda 
Item No. 

Board Meeting 
Date 

Open/Closed 
Session 

Information/Action 
Item 

Issue 
Date 

27 03/16/16 Retirement Information 2/15/16 

 

Subject:  Update on 2016 Work Plan (ALL). (Bonnel)  

 

Approved:  Presented: 

Final 02/26/16   
Director, Human Resources  Director, Human Resources 
  J:\Retirement Board\2016\IP's\March 16, 2016\Final Administrative IPs\Final IP Update on 2016 

Work Plan.doc 

 
11992037.1 

ISSUE 
 
Staff will provide the Boards information on the 2016 Work Plan. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
None associated with this matter. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None associated with this matter. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Each year, pension plan staff provides an update on various matters, projects, training, etc., that 
will be considered for the upcoming year.  All projects under consideration for 2016 are listed on 
Attachment A.  Valerie Weekly, Pension and Retiree Services Administrator will provide the 
Boards an overview of the projects and the tasks/plans associated with each. 
 
 
 
 



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 1 of 2
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

Subject: Addition of Second Staff Member to Support Pension Plan Activities (ALL). (Bonnel)

Approved: Presented:

Final 02/26/16
Director, Human Resources Director, Human Resources

C:\Temp\Final Additional of Second Staff Member_1992EC.doc

11992016.1

ISSUE

Addition of Second Staff Member to Support Pension Plan Activities.

RECOMMENDED ACTION

No action is required by this matter.

FISCAL IMPACT

Budgeted: Yes, FY17 This FY: $ Approx.  20,000
Budget Source: Pension Plans Next FY: $ Approx. 80,000
Funding Source: Pension Plans Annualized: $ Approx. 80,000
Cost Cntr/GL Acct(s) or

Capital Project #:
210037
210038

Total Amount: $ Approx. 80,000

Total Budget: $ Approx. 80,000

DISCUSSION

At the December 2015 Quarterly Retirement Board Meeting, staff presented the Retirement
Boards with staffing data associated with other agency plans that are a similar size to Sacramento
Regional Transit District’s (District) pension plans (Pension
Plans).  While the Boards approved the cost sharing policy and plan for District staff to charge
expenses to the Pension Plans, the need for additional staff continues to grow.  A review of the
following data presented in December provides the Boards with insight into the staff necessary to
administer Plans of a similar size:

Pension Plan Assets &
Participants Staff Size

AC Transit $400M & 3,500 3 budgeted positions. Salaries of budgeted
positions total $297,400.

Imperial County $700M & 3,368 8 budgeted positions. Salaries of budgeted
positions total $451,769.

Mendocino County $360M & 2,803 5 budgeted positions. Salaries of budgeted
positions total $313,393.

Merced County $600M & 4,703 8 filled positions (6 budgeted). Salaries of filled
positions total $896,994.

Sacramento RT $241M & 2,008 1 budgeted position. Salary of budgeted position
$91,000.

28 03/16/16 Retirement Information 02/01/16



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 2 of 2
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

Subject: Addition of Second Staff Member to Support Pension Plan Activities (ALL).
(Bonnel)

11992016.1

Based on the upcoming District headcount growth a number of and the complexity of
managing multiple Pension Plans, staff approached District leadership and has been given the
approval to hire a second staff member solely dedicated to the administration of the Pension
Plans.  In accordance with the Cost Allocation Policy, the salary of the second employee will
be charged to the Pension Plans.

Recruiting efforts will commence in the April/May timeframe, with an anticipated June or July
2016 hire date.  As the recruitment progresses, staff will provide the Boards an update.

28 03/16/16 Retirement Information 02/01/16



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER                                        Page 1 of 1  
Agenda 
Item No. 

Board Meeting 
Date 

Open/Closed 
Session 

Information/Action 
Item 

Issue 
Date 

29 03/16/16 Retirement Action 02/01/16 

 

Subject: Approving a Contract Renewal with Federal Insurance Company (CHUBB) for 
Fiduciary Insurance for All Retirement Boards (ALL). (Bonnel) 

 

Approved:  Presented: 

Final 3/5/16   
Director, Human Resources  Director, Human Resources 
  

 

 

ISSUE 
 
Approving a Contract Renewal with Federal Insurance Company (CHUBB) for Fiduciary 
Insurance for All Retirement Boards (ALL). 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Adopt Resolution No. 16-03-_____, Approving Contract Renewal with Federal Insurance 
Company (CHUBB) for Fiduciary Insurance for All Retirement Boards (ALL). 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Budgeted: Yes This FY: $  

Budget Source: Retirement Fund Next FY: $ TBD 

Funding Source: Retirement Fund Annualized: $  

Cost Cntr/GL Acct(s) or 

Capital Project #: 
210037 

210038 

Total Amount: $  

Total Budget: $    

 
DISCUSSION 
 
Each year, staff contacts the District’s insurance broker, AON, to secure fiduciary liability 
insurance for the Boards.  
 
The Boards’ current policy, which expires _______________, provides a $10 million limit, 
with a deductible of $25,000, for an annual premium of $__________.  AON informed staff 
on _______________ that CHUBB has agreed to renew coverage and write a policy for the 
next year with no changes from the current policy terms, including the coverage limit, 
deductible or premium.  
 
The policy includes provisions governing how the policy would be applied in case of a claim 
implicating the deductible, including waivers in specific limited conditions, and including 
personal coverage for each member/alternate of the Retirement Boards who pays a 
nominal amount for their own coverage ($25 each). 
 
Staff seeks authorization to bind the policy, thereby providing continuous coverage for the 
Boards.   
 



 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-03-_____ 
 

Adopted by the Retirement Board for the Retirement Plan for RT Employees  
Who Are Members of the AEA on this date: 

 
 

March 16, 2016 
 
 

APPROVING CONTRACT RENEWAL WITH FEDERAL INSURANCE COMPANY 

(CHUBB) FOR FIDUCIARY INSURANCE FOR ALL RETIREMENT BOARDS 
 
 

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE RETIREMENT BOARD FOR THE 
RETIREMENT PLAN FOR RT EMPLOYEES WHO ARE MEMBERS OF THE AEA AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 

THAT, the Board of Directors of the Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional 
Transit District Employees Who are Members of the AEA (Retirement Board) hereby 
authorizes the General Manager/CEO of the Sacramento Regional Transit District to 
execute an agreement with Federal Insurance Company (CHUBB) and take any other 
steps necessary to secure fiduciary liability insurance coverage for the Boards through 
___________, 2017, with a $10 million policy limit and deductible of $25,000 at an annual 
premium of $______________.   

 
 
 
 

 
 
A T T E S T: 
 
Russell Devorak, Secretary 
 
 
By: 

James Drake, Chair 
 

 Donna Bonnel, Assistant Secretary  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
10968493.2 

 

 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-03-_____ 
 

Adopted by the Retirement Board for the Retirement Plan for RT Employees  
Who Are Members of AFSCME on this date: 

 
 

March 16, 2016 
 
 

APPROVING CONTRACT RENEWAL WITH FEDERAL INSURANCE COMPANY 

(CHUBB) FOR FIDUCIARY INSURANCE FOR ALL RETIREMENT BOARDS 
 
 

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE RETIREMENT BOARD FOR THE 
RETIREMENT PLAN FOR RT EMPLOYEES WHO ARE MEMBERS OF AFSCME AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
THAT, the Board of Directors of the Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional Transit 
District Employees Who are Members of the AFSCME (Retirement Board) hereby 
authorizes the General Manager/CEO of the Sacramento Regional Transit District to 
execute an agreement with Federal Insurance Company (CHUBB) and take any other 
steps necessary to secure fiduciary liability insurance coverage for the Boards through 
___________, 2017, with a $10 million policy limit and deductible of $25,000 at an annual 
premium of $______________.   
 
 

 
 
A T T E S T: 
 
Rob Hoslett, Secretary 
 
 
By: 

Charles Mallonee, Chair 
 

 Donna Bonnel, Assistant Secretary  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
RESOLUTION NO. 16-03-_____ 

 
Adopted by the Retirement Board for the Retirement Plan for RT Employees  

Who Are Members of the MCEG on this date: 
 
 

March 16, 2016 
 
 

APPROVING CONTRACT RENEWAL WITH FEDERAL INSURANCE COMPANY 

(CHUBB) FOR FIDUCIARY INSURANCE FOR ALL RETIREMENT BOARDS 
 
 

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE RETIREMENT BOARD FOR THE 
RETIREMENT PLAN FOR RT EMPLOYEES WHO ARE MEMBERS OF THE MCEG AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 

THAT, the Board of Directors of the Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional 
Transit District Employees Who are Members of the MCEG (Retirement Board) hereby 
authorizes the General Manager/CEO of the Sacramento Regional Transit District to 
execute an agreement with Federal Insurance Company (CHUBB) and take any other 
steps necessary to secure fiduciary liability insurance coverage for the Boards through 
___________, 2017, with a $10 million policy limit and deductible of $25,000 at an annual 
premium of $______________.   
 
 

 
 
A T T E S T: 
 
Alane Masui, Secretary 
 
 
By: 

Roger Thorn, Chair 
 

 Donna Bonnel, Assistant Secretary  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 
10968493.2 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-03-_____ 
 

Adopted by the Retirement Board for the Retirement Plan for RT Employees  
Who Are Members of IBEW, Local Union 1245 on this date: 

 
March 16, 2016 

 
 

APPROVING CONTRACT RENEWAL WITH FEDERAL INSURANCE COMPANY 

(CHUBB) FOR FIDUCIARY INSURANCE FOR ALL RETIREMENT BOARDS 
 
 

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE RETIREMENT BOARD FOR THE 
RETIREMENT PLAN FOR RT EMPLOYEES WHO ARE MEMBERS OF THE IBEW, 
LOCAL UNION 1245 AS FOLLOWS: 
 

THAT, the Board of Directors of the Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional 
Transit District Employees Who are Members of the IBEW, Local Union 1245 (Retirement 
Board) hereby authorizes the General Manager/CEO of the Sacramento Regional Transit 
District to execute an agreement with Federal Insurance Company (CHUBB) and take any 
other steps necessary to secure fiduciary liability insurance coverage for the Boards 
through ___________, 2017, with a $10 million policy limit and deductible of $25,000 at an 
annual premium of $______________.   
 
 
 

 
 
A T T E S T: 
 
Lorrin Burdick, Secretary 
 
 
By: 

Eric Ohlson, Chair 
 

 Donna Bonnel, Assistant Secretary  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 16-03-_____ 
 

Adopted by the Retirement Board for the Retirement Plan for RT Employees  
Who Are Members of ATU, Local Union 256 on this date: 

 
March 16, 2016 

 
 

APPROVING CONTRACT RENEWAL WITH FEDERAL INSURANCE COMPANY 

(CHUBB) FOR FIDUCIARY INSURANCE FOR ALL RETIREMENT BOARDS 
 
 

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE RETIREMENT BOARD FOR THE 
RETIREMENT PLAN FOR RT EMPLOYEES WHO ARE MEMBERS OF ATU, LOCAL 
UNION 256 AS FOLLOWS: 
 

THAT, the Board of Directors of the Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional 
Transit District Employees Who are Members of the ATU, Local Union 256 (Retirement 
Board) hereby authorizes the General Manager/CEO of the Sacramento Regional Transit 
District to execute an agreement with Federal Insurance Company (CHUBB) and take any 
other steps necessary to secure fiduciary liability insurance coverage for the Boards 
through ___________, 2017, with a $10 million policy limit and deductible of $25,000 at an 
annual premium of $______________.   
 
 

 
 
A T T E S T: 
 
Corina De La Torre, Secretary 
 
 
By: 

Ralph Niz, Chair 
 

 Donna Bonnel, Assistant Secretary  



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER                                  Page 1 of 2 
Agenda 
Item No. 

Board Meeting 
Date 

Open/Closed 
Session 

Information/Action 
Item 

Issue 
Date 

30 03/16/16 Retirement Action 02/18/16 

 

Subject:  Approving the First Amendment to the Agreement with Hanson Bridgett and 
Non-Core Task Work Orders with Hanson Bridgett for Legal Services Under the 
Principal Agreement (ALL). (Bonnel) 

 

Approved:  Presented: 

Final 03/07/16   
Director, Human Resources  Director, Human Resources 
  J:\Retirement Board\2016\IP's\March 16, 2016\Final Administrative IPs\HB Contract 

Extension and Work Order Combined 3.7.16.doc 

 

 

ISSUE 
 
Approving the First Amendment to the Agreement with Hanson Bridgett and Non-Core 
Task Work Orders with Hanson Bridgett for Legal Services under the Principal Agreement  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Adopt Resolution No. 16-03-       ,  Approving the First Amendment to the Agreement with 
Hanson Bridgett and Non-Core Task Work Orders with Hanson Bridgett for Legal Services 
under the Principal Agreement  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Budgeted: Yes This FY: $ $65,208.17 

Budget Source: Pension Funds Next FY: $45,624.51 

Funding Source: Pension Funds Annualized: $ $110,832.70 
Cost Cntr/GL Acct(s) or 

Capital Project #: 
210037 

210038 

Total Amount: $ 
110,832.70 

Total Budget:  $110,832.70   

 

Contract Extension Amount:  $60,832.68  
 

 June 2016 - $15,208.17 

 July 2016 - $15,208.17 

 August 2016 - $15,208.17 

 September 2016 - $15,208.17 
 

Work order amounts not to exceed:  
 
International Fund Manager Search - $25,000 
Actuary Request for Proposal - $25,000 
 
Total contract consideration for the 5.5 year contact not to exceed $1,100,000.00 
 



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER                                  Page 2 of 2 
Agenda 
Item No. 

Board Meeting 
Date 

Open/Closed 
Session 

Information/Action 
Item 

Issue 
Date 

30 03/16/16 Retirement Action 02/18/16 

 

Subject:  Approving the First Amendment to the Agreement with Hanson Bridgett and 
Non-Core Task Work Orders with Hanson Bridgett for Legal Services Under the 
Principal Agreement (ALL). (Bonnel) 

 

 

 
DISCUSSION 
 
Attorneys from the law firm of Hanson Bridgett LLP p serve as legal counsel to all five  
Retirement Boards under a five-year agreement (Principal Agreement) due to expire on 
June 30, 2016.  Staff will work with the Retirement Boards to issue a new solicitation 
seeking proposals for Legal Service under the RFP process generally used by RT’s 
Retirement Board to secure consultant services.  , Staff does not believe that the process 
will be completed prior to the expiration of the term of the contract. Because the current 
agreement does not provide the Retirement Boards the right to exercise an option term, 
staff has approached Hanson Bridgett and asked for a short term contract extension to 
keep Hanson Bridgett on while the procurement is completed.  Hanson Bridgett submitted 
a contract extension proposal that contains a 4 percent increase in the monthly retainer fee 
during the short term extension.  The increase in the monthly retainer will cost the Plans 
approximately $600 more per month.  
 
The proposed extension will extend the contract through September 30, 2016, and is 
necessary to facilitate continued work on several ongoing and upcoming projects, including 
the conclusion of contract negotiations with the Internal Fund Manager, the actuarial RFP, 
the IRS determination letter process for the Trust as well as ongoing legal representation.  
Staff recommends that the Boards (1) approve an amendment to the agreement between 
the Retirement Boards and Hanson Bridgett and (2) authorize the Sacramento Regional 
Transit District's General Manager/CEO to execute the amendment and take any other 
actions necessary to give effect to this action. 
 
In addition to approving the contract extension, the Boards need to consider the approval 
of Work Orders for two upcoming projects.  During 2016, Pension Plan staff will administer 
two key RFPs, one for an International Fund Manager, Work Order #8 and pending 
Actuary search, Work Order #9 and subsequent contract.  Hanson Bridgett staff will work 
on these projects  until the contracts are successfully negotiated between the parties.  The 
Boards’ current contract with Hanson Bridgett does not include RFP and contract review as 
non-core tasks, thus requiring work orders to be completed and approved by the Boards 
before Hanson Bridgett can work on the projects. 
   
Staff recommends that the Board approve the First Amendment to the Hanson Bridgett 
contract and Work Orders 8 and 9. 
 
 



. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-03_____ 
 

Adopted by the Retirement Board for the Retirement Plan for RT Employees who 
are Members of AEA on this date: 

 
 

March 16, 2016 
 
 

APPROVING THE FIRST  AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT WITH HANSON 

BRIDGETT  AND NON CORE TASK WORK ORDERS WITH HANSON BRIDGETT 

FOR LEGAL SERVICES 

 
 
 

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE RETIREMENT BOARD FOR THE 
RETIREMENT PLAN FOR RT EMPLOYEES WHO ARE MEMBERS OF AEA AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 

THAT, the Board of Directors of the Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional 
Transit District Employees who are Members of the AEA (Retirement Board) hereby  
approves the First Amendment to the agreement with Hanson Bridgett  for Legal services 
and Non-Core Task Work Orders with Hanson Bridgett for Legal Services under the terms 
of the Principal Agreement. 

 
THAT, the Retirement Board herby authorizes the General Manager/CEO of the 

Sacramento Regional Transit District to execute said Amendment and Work Orders, 
subject to District Legal Counsel’s review and approval, and to take other actions that may 
be necessary to give effect to this resolution. 
 
 
 

 
 
A T T E S T: 
 
Russel Devorak, Secretary 
 
 
By: 

James Drake, Chair 
 

 Donna Bonnel, Assistant Secretary  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 
RESOLUTION NO. 16-03_____ 

 
Adopted by the Retirement Board for the Retirement Plan for RT Employees who 

are Members of AFSCME on this date: 
 
 

March 16, 2016 
 
 

APPROVING THE FIRST  AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT WITH HANSON 

BRIDGETT  AND NON CORE TASK WORK ORDERS WITH HANSON BRIDGETT 

FOR LEGAL SERVICES 

 
 
 

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE RETIREMENT BOARD FOR THE 
RETIREMENT PLAN FOR RT EMPLOYEES WHO ARE MEMBERS OF AFSCME AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 

THAT, the Board of Directors of the Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional 
Transit District Employees who are Members of the AFSCME (Retirement Board) hereby  
approves the First Amendment to the agreement with Hanson Bridgett  for Legal services 
and Non-Core Task Work Orders with Hanson Bridgett for Legal Services under the terms 
of the Principal Agreement. 

 
THAT, the Retirement Board herby authorizes the General Manager/CEO of the 

Sacramento Regional Transit District to execute said Amendment and Work Orders, 
subject to District Legal Counsel’s review and approval, and to take other actions that may 
be necessary to give effect to this resolution. 
 
 
 

 
 
A T T E S T: 
 
Rob Hoslett, Secretary 
 
 
By: 

Charles Mallonee, Chair 
 

 Donna Bonnel, Assistant Secretary  
 



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-03_____ 
 

Adopted by the Retirement Board for the Retirement Plan for RT Employees who 
are Members of ATU, Local Union 256 on this date: 

 
 

March 16, 2016 
 
 

APPROVING THE FIRST  AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT WITH HANSON 

BRIDGETT  AND NON CORE TASK WORK ORDERS WITH HANSON BRIDGETT 

FOR LEGAL SERVICES 

 
 
 

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE RETIREMENT BOARD FOR THE 
RETIREMENT PLAN FOR RT EMPLOYEES WHO ARE MEMBERS OF ATU, LOCAL 
UNION 256 AS FOLLOWS: 
 

THAT, the Board of Directors of the Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional 
Transit District Employees who are Members of the ATU, Local Union 256 (Retirement 
Board) hereby  approves the First Amendment to the agreement with Hanson Bridgett  for 
Legal services and Non-Core Task Work Orders with Hanson Bridgett for Legal Services 
under the terms of the Principal Agreement. 

 
THAT, the Retirement Board herby authorizes the General Manager/CEO of the 

Sacramento Regional Transit District to execute said Amendment and Work Orders, 
subject to District Legal Counsel’s review and approval, and to take other actions that may 
be necessary to give effect to this resolution. 
 
 
 

 
 
A T T E S T: 
 
Corina De La Torre, Secretary 
 
 
By: 

Ralph Niz, Chair 
 

 Donna Bonnel, Assistant Secretary  



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-03_____ 
 

Adopted by the Retirement Board for the Retirement Plan for RT Employees who 
are Members of IBEW, Local Union 1245 on this date: 

 
 

March 16, 2016 
 
 

APPROVING THE FIRST  AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT WITH HANSON 

BRIDGETT  AND NON CORE TASK WORK ORDERS WITH HANSON BRIDGETT 

FOR LEGAL SERVICES 

 
 
 

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE RETIREMENT BOARD FOR THE 
RETIREMENT PLAN FOR RT EMPLOYEES WHO ARE MEMBERS OF IBEW, LOCAL 
UNION 1245 AS FOLLOWS: 
 

THAT, the Board of Directors of the Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional 
Transit District Employees who are Members of the IBEW, Local Union 1245 (Retirement 
Board) hereby  approves the First Amendment to the agreement with Hanson Bridgett  for 
Legal services and Non-Core Task Work Orders with Hanson Bridgett for Legal Services 
under the terms of the Principal Agreement. 

 
THAT, the Retirement Board herby authorizes the General Manager/CEO of the 

Sacramento Regional Transit District to execute said Amendment and Work Orders, 
subject to District Legal Counsel’s review and approval, and to take other actions that may 
be necessary to give effect to this resolution. 
 
 
 

 
 
A T T E S T: 
 
Lorrin Burdick, Secretary 
 
 
By: 

Eric Ohlson, Chair 
 

 Donna Bonnel, Assistant Secretary  



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-03_____ 
 

Adopted by the Retirement Board for the Retirement Plan for RT Employees who 
are Members of MCEG on this date: 

 
 

March 16, 2016 
 
 

APPROVING THE FIRST  AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT WITH HANSON 

BRIDGETT  AND NON CORE TASK WORK ORDERS WITH HANSON BRIDGETT 

FOR LEGAL SERVICES 

 
 
 

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE RETIREMENT BOARD FOR THE 
RETIREMENT PLAN FOR RT EMPLOYEES WHO ARE MEMBERS OF MCEG AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 

THAT, the Board of Directors of the Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional 
Transit District Employees who are Members of the MCEG (Retirement Board) hereby  
approves the First Amendment to the agreement with Hanson Bridgett  for Legal services 
and Non-Core Task Work Orders with Hanson Bridgett for Legal Services under the terms 
of the Principal Agreement. 

 
THAT, the Retirement Board herby authorizes the General Manager/CEO of the 

Sacramento Regional Transit District to execute said Amendment and Work Orders, 
subject to District Legal Counsel’s review and approval, and to take other actions that may 
be necessary to give effect to this resolution. 
 
 
 

 
 
A T T E S T: 
 
Lorrin Burdick, Secretary 
 
 
By: 

Eric Ohlson, Chair 
 

 Donna Bonnel, Assistant Secretary  
 



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 1 of 1 
Agenda 
Item No. 

Board Meeting 
Date 

Open/Closed 
Session 

Information/Action 
Item 

Issue 
Date 

Subject:   Election and Appointment of Governing Board Officers of the Retirement Plan for 
Sacramento Regional Transit District (District) Employees who are members of the 
Administrative Employees Association Group (AEA). (Bonnel) 

 

Approved:  Presented: 

Final 02/26/16   
Director, Human Resources  Director, Human Resources  

J:\Retirement Board\2016\IP's\March 16, 2016\Final Administrative IPs\Final Election 
of Chairperson AEA.doc 

   

 
11991907.1 

ISSUE 
 
Election and Appointment of Governing Board Officers of the Retirement Plan for Sacramento 
Regional Transit District (District) Employees who are members of the Administrative Employees 
Association Group (AEA). 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Adopt Resolution No. 16-03-_____ Election and Appointment of Governing Board Officers of the 
Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional Transit District (District) Employees who are members 
of the Administrative Employees Association Group (AEA). 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no fiscal impact associated with this action. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
On June 17, 2015, after adoption of updated Bylaws, the Board of Directors of the Retirement 
Board for District employees who are members of the AEA elected James Drake as Chair,  Mark 
Bennett as Vice Chair and Mike Wiley as Secretary.  The Board also appointed Donna Bonnel as 
the Assistant Secretary. 
 
Russell Devorak has now replaced Mark Bennet as a regular member of the Board.  Accordingly, 
staff recommends that the Retirement Board: 

1. Elect (or re-elect, where relevant) a Chair, Vice Chair and Secretary from among its 
members, in accordance with Sections 2.21 through 2.24 of the Bylaws; and 

2. Reappoint Donna Bonnel, the Sacramento Regional Transit District’s Director of Human 
Resources, as Assistant Secretary to assist with administration of the Boards’ business in 
accordance with Sections 2.24 and 2.25 of the Bylaws. 

 
These actions will have no effect on the Board’s prior election of a Common Chair and a 
Common Vice Chair. 
 

31 03/16/16 Retirement Action 02/01/16 

 



 

 
 

11991907.1 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 16-03-_____ 

 
Adopted by the Retirement Board for the Retirement Plan for RT Employees Who 

Are Members of Administrative Employees Association Group on this date: 
 

March 16, 2016 
 

ELECTING AND APPOINTING OFFICERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

RETIREMENT PLAN FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT DISTRICT 

EMPLOYEES WHO ARE MEMBERS OF THE ADMINISTRATIVE EMPLOYEES 

ASSOCIATION GROUP 
 

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE RETIREMENT BOARD FOR THE 
RETIREMENT PLAN FOR RT EMPLOYEES WHO ARE MEMBERS OF  THE 
ADMINISTRATIVE EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION GROUP AS FOLLOWS: 
 

THAT, the Board of Directors: 
 

1. Elects _________________ as Chair; 

2. Elects _________________ as Vice Chair; 

3. Elects _________________ as Secretary; and  

4. Re-appoints Sacramento Regional Transit District Human Resources 

Director Donna Bonnel as Assistant Secretary. 

THAT, the above-listed individuals will serve in these elected and appointed roles 
until this Board elects to change its leadership; until the elected or appointed individuals 
resigns from such positions; or until any of the above-listed individuals leaves the Board 
(for the Chair, Vice Chair and Secretary) or is no longer a current employee of RT with job 
duties related to administration of the Pension Plans (for the Assistant Secretary). 

 
THAT, this action does not alter this Board’s previous election of Andy Morin and 

________________,  Chair 
 

 Donna Bonnel, Assistant Secretary  
 

Mike Wiley as Common Chair and Common Vice Chair, respectively, of the five 
Sacramento Regional Transit District Retirement Boards. 
 
 
 

 
A T T E S T: 
 
________________,Secretary 
 
 By: 



 

 
 

11991907.1 

Exhibit A 
 
 

ADOPTED BY THE: 
AEA, MCEG, AFSCME and ATU Retirement Boards on June 18, 2014 

IBEW Retirement Board on December 17, 2014 

 

 

 

BY-LAWS FOR THE RETIREMENT BOARDS  

 

CHAPTER 1 
 

RETIREMENT BOARDS COMPOSITION AND PURVIEW 
 
 

ARTICLE 1 
 

GOVERNANCE 
 
§ 1.10  Retirement Plans; Application of By-Laws 
 
These By-laws govern the three retirement plans established for employees of the 
Sacramento Regional Transit District (hereinafter “RT”) pursuant to California Public 
Utilities Code Section 102430 to provide retirement benefits to qualified RT employees 
upon service or disability retirement from RT: The Retirement Plan for Regional Transit 
Employees Who Are Members of ATU Local 256; the Retirement Plan Between 
International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW) Local Union 1245, AFL-CIO and 
Sacramento Regional Transit District; and The Sacramento Regional Transit District 
Retirement Plan for AFSCME, AEA, and Non-Represented (Salaried) Employees.  
 
Each plan is referred to herein individually as “Retirement Plan” and jointly as “Retirement 
Plans.” 
 
These By-laws apply to the Retirement Plans as they may be amended from time to time, 
except when the terms of a Plan are inconsistent with the terms of these By-laws, in which 
case the terms of that Plan will govern its operations. 
 
 
§1.11  Governance of the Retirement Plans 
 
The ATU and IBEW Retirement Plans are each governed by one board and the Salaried 
Plan is governed by three boards (hereinafter individually referred to as “Board” or 
“Retirement Board” or jointly as “Boards” or “Retirement Boards”).  Each Retirement Board 
consists of an equal number of representatives from RT and from the Union or 
bargaining/business unit (ATU, IBEW, AFSCME, AEA and MCEG) as required under 
California Public Utilities Code Section 99159.     
 



 

 
 

11991907.1 

 
§1.12  Retirement Board Composition 
 
Each Retirement Board consists of not more than four (4) members and two (2) alternates. 
 Two voting members and one alternate are appointed by the RT Board of Directors and 
two voting members and one alternate are appointed by the Union or bargaining/business 
unit.  
 
The alternate Board Members serve on the Retirement Board during the absence of a 
Board member appointed by the same entity as the alternate.  When an alternate Board 
Member serves in place of a regular Board Member, the alternate has all of the rights, 
duties and obligations of the Board member he or she is replacing, except for those rights, 
duties and obligations associated with a Board office held by the Board member. 
 
 
§1.13  Retirement Board Member Term of Office 
 
Each Retirement Board Member is appointed to a four-year term of office.  Members' terms 
of office are to be staggered so that the term of one member appointed by the RT Board of 
Directors and the term of one member appointed by the Union or bargaining/business unit 
expire every other year. 
 
For Retirement Board Members seated as of adoption of this section of the By-laws, the 
appointing entity will determine which seat will expire at the end of the following calendar 
year, and which will expire at the end of the calendar year ending two years later.  The term 
of the alternates seated as of adoption of this section of the By-laws will expire as of the 
end of the calendar year after the year in which this section of the By-laws is adopted. 
 
In the event of a vacancy because of death, resignation, illness, or other reason, the 
Secretary of the Board must, within thirty (30) days after such vacancy, transmit a written 
notification to the appointing member entity requesting that a replacement member be 
appointed to fill the remainder of the vacating member's term. 
 
 
§1.14  Retirement Board Fiduciary Duty 
 
The duties and responsibilities of each Retirement Board Member must be executed in 
accordance and in full compliance with the requirements of Section 17 of Article XVI of the 
California Constitution and applicable law. 
 
 
§ 1.15  Retirement Board Authority 
 
Each Retirement Board has plenary authority and duty to administer its Retirement Plan 
and manage the assets of its Retirement Plan consistently with the powers and duties 
conferred upon the Board pursuant to Article 16, Section 17, of the California Constitution, 
which include, but are not limited to, those set forth in each Plan. 



 

 
 

11991907.1 

 
CHAPTER 2 

 

RETIREMENT BOARD RULES 

 
ARTICLE 1 

 
MEETINGS 

 
§2.10 Regular Quarterly Retirement Board Meeting Schedule 
 
Each Board must hold regular meetings no later than the last day of each calendar quarter 
(“regular meetings” or “Quarterly Retirement Board Meetings”).  No later than December 
31

st
 of each year, the Boards must adopt a resolution setting forth their regular meeting 

schedule for the 12-month calendar period following the month and year in which the 
resolution is adopted.  The resolution establishing each Board’s regular meeting schedule 
shall state the date and time for each meeting, and the place for each such meeting if it 
differs from the place set out in this section.  Unless otherwise specified in the resolutions 
establishing the regular meeting schedule, the Boards will conduct their regular meetings at 
RT’s Administrative Offices located at 1400 29

th
 Street, Sacramento, California in Room 

114 (First Floor, Auditorium).   
 
 
§2.11 Special Meetings 
 
A special meeting may be called at any time by the Chair, or by a majority of the members 
of a Board, by delivering personally, via electronic mail (“e-mail”) or by U.S. mail, written 
notice to each member of the Board, and to each local newspaper, radio, or television 
station requesting notice in writing, and by posting a notice on the Sacramento Regional 
Transit District's internet web site.  Such notice must be delivered and received at least 24 
hours before the time of such meeting.  The call and notice shall specify the time and place 
of the special meeting and the business to be transacted.  No business other than as 
specified in the notice shall be considered at such meeting.  Such written notice may be 
dispensed with as to any member who, at or prior to the time the meeting convenes, files 
with the Secretary of the Board a written waiver of notice.  Any defect in the above notice 
procedure shall be deemed cured by actual attendance of the member at the meeting.   
 
 
§2.12 Quorum 
 
Three Board members constitute a quorum of any Board for purposes of convening a 
meeting and for the transaction of business.  Alternate Board members are seated on the 
Board and counted towards a quorum only when serving in the place of a Regular Board 
member appointed by the same body (e.g., the Alternate appointed by the RT Governing 
Board is only seated and counted towards a quorum when a Board member appointed by 
the RT Governing Board is absent). 
 
§2.13 Joint Meetings 



 

 
 

11991907.1 

 
The Retirement Boards may meet together for any regular or special meeting.  The Boards 
may select a Common Chair and Common Vice Chair to preside over common meetings 
on an ad hoc or standing basis. 
 
 
§2.14 Open Meetings; Application of the Ralph M. Brown Act 
 
All meetings and associated notices must comply with the provisions of the Ralph M. 
Brown Act.  (Government Code Sections 54950, et seq.)  Accordingly, all Board meetings 
are open to the public except when the subject matter may be properly addressed in, and 
properly noticed for, a closed session.   
 
 
§2.15 Agenda Preparation, Delivery and Posting 
 
In addition to those requirements set forth in the Brown Act, each meeting agenda, 
together with all supporting documents, must be mailed or delivered to the Board members 
and Legal Counsel to the Board at least three days before the meeting.  The purpose of 
this requirement is to give Board members at least two days’ notice of all business coming 
before them.  In the case of special meetings which may be called less than seven (7) days 
in advance of the meeting date, the requesting individual shall receive such notice as soon 
as may be practical under the circumstances. 
 

 
§2.16 Access to Public Records Distributed at Meeting 
 
Writings which are public records and which are distributed during a meeting are made 
available for public inspection at the meeting if prepared by RT or a member of the Board 
or after the meeting if prepared by some other person. 
 
 
§2.17 Continuing Body 
 
Each Board is a continuing body and no measure pending before it is abated or 
discontinued by reason of the expiration of the term of office or removal of a member of the 
Board. 
 
 
§2.18 Adjournment of Meeting 
 
The Board may adjourn any regular, adjourned regular, special or adjourned special 
meeting to a time and place specified in the order of adjournment.  Less than a quorum 
may so adjourn from time to time.  Notice of adjournment of a duly called special meeting 
at which less than a quorum is present shall be given in the same manner as notice of the 
original meeting.  If all members are absent from any regular or adjourned regular meeting, 
the Secretary of the Board may declare the meeting adjourned to a stated time and place 
and he or she shall cause a written notice of the adjournment to be given in the same 



 

 
 

11991907.1 

manner as provided herein for special meetings.  In the case of all adjournments, a copy of 
the order or notice of adjournment shall be conspicuously posted on the door to the 
Regional Transit District Auditorium, Room 114, within 24 hours after the time of the 
adjournment.  When an order of adjournment of any meeting fails to state the time at which 
the adjourned meeting is to be held, it shall be held at the time specified for regular 
meetings. 
 

 
ARTICLE 2 

 
OFFICERS 
 
§2.21 Officers 
 
Each Board elects a Chair, Vice Chair, and Secretary from among its members.  Alternate 
members cannot be elected as Board officers. 
 
The five Retirement Boards, together, may elect a Common Chair and Common Vice 
Chair. 
 
 
§2.22 Chair Responsibilities 
 

1. Except at meetings presided over by a Common Chair or Common Vice Chair (as 
set forth in Section 2.28), the Chair presides over and preserves order at all regular 
meetings, special meetings and hearings of the Board.  The Chair states every 
question coming before the Board, and decides all questions of order without 
debate, subject, however, to an appeal by a member of the Board.  The Chair may 
move, second and debate from the chair, subject only to such limitations of debate 
as are imposed on all members, and has all other rights or privileges of all others 
members.   

 
2. In all cases, the Chair can direct the Secretary to include discussion or action items 

on the agenda for future Board meetings, and the Chair signs all Board resolutions 
and all minutes of Board meetings or hearings which he or she has witnessed being 
adopted or approved. 

 
 
§2.23 Vice Chair 
 
The Vice Chair serves as the Chair Pro Tem in the Chair’s absence.  When serving as the 
Chair Pro Tem, the Vice Chair has all of the rights, duties and responsibilities of the Chair 
as set forth in Section 2.22 above. 
 
 
§2.24 Secretary 
 
The Secretary serves as the Chair Pro Tem in the absence of the Chair and Vice Chair.   



 

 
 

11991907.1 

 
In addition, the Secretary has the following powers and duties, any or all of which may be 
delegated by the Secretary to the Assistant Secretary: 
 

1. Create meeting notices and agendas; 
 
2.  Post agendas; 

 
3. Call the roll at the beginning of each Board meeting and for each roll call vote; 

 
4. Announce the result of each vote; 

  
5. Attend and keep minutes of all meetings and hearings of the Board; 

 
6. Furnish each Board member a copy of the minutes of each meeting with the 

agenda for the following meeting; 
 

7. Attest all resolutions of the Board and the minutes of all meetings or hearings 
which have been approved by the Board; 

 
8. Keep and have custody of all books, records and papers of the Board, and 

certify true copies thereof whenever necessary; 
 

9. Perform such other duties as may be required either by statute, ordinance, 
resolution or order. 

 
 
§2.25 Assistant Secretary  
 
The Boards may appoint an Assistant Secretary, who must be a current employee of RT 
with job duties related to administration of the Pension Plans. 
 
 
§2.26 Vacancy 
 
In an officer vacates his or her seat on the Board because of death, resignation, illness, or 
other reason, officer elections must be held at the first Board meeting after the vacancy 
has been filled. 
 
 
§2.27 Additional Delegable Duties 
 
Each Board, at its discretion and by resolution, may authorize its Chair and/or the General 
Manager/CEO of RT or other RT staff to exercise additional administrative authority, such 
as to execute contracts or other legally-binding documents, manage Board-awarded 
contracts, make purchases up to Board-authorized limits, and approve service retirements.  
 
The Board may also authorize the General Manager/CEO of RT or other delegees to carry 



 

 
 

11991907.1 

out other support functions for the Retirement Plan.  
 



 

 
 

11991907.1 

 
§2.28 Common Chair, Vice Chair 
 
If desired, the five Retirement Boards may elect a Common Chair and Common Vice Chair 
to preside over and preserve order at meetings of more than one Board.  At such 
meetings, the Common Chair, or the Common Vice Chair in the absence of the Common 
Chair, states every question coming before the Board, and decides all questions of order 
without debate, subject, however, to an appeal by a member of the Board.   
 
The Common Chair (or Vice Chair) may move, second and debate from the chair, subject 
only to such limitations of debate as are imposed on all members, and has all other rights 
or privileges of all others members.  In an action to adopt a motion or resolution, the 
Common Chair (or Vice Chair) votes after all other members present have cast their votes. 
 
ARTICLE 3 

 
ORDER OF BOARD BUSINESS 
 
§2.31 Agenda  
 
The order of business for regular and special meetings will be as follows: 
 

1. Call to Order  
2. Roll Call 
3. Consent Calendar 
4. Unfinished Business 
5. New Business 
6. Public Addresses the Board on Matters Not on the Agenda 
7. Reports, Ideas and Communications 
8. Recess to Closed Session 
9. Closed Session  
10. Reconvene in Open Session 
11. Closed Session Report 
12. Adjourn 

 
Notwithstanding the above, closed sessions (and associated announcements) may be 
included on the agenda at any point after Roll Call and before Adjournment, at the 
discretion of the Secretary or Assistant Secretary.   
 
The order of business during any meeting may be changed upon order of the Chair with 
consent of the Board, or upon motion of the Board. 
 
 
§2.32 Contents of Agenda 
 
The agenda must specify the time and location of the meeting and must contain a brief 
general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.  
The descriptions must be reasonably calculated to adequately inform the public of the 



 

 
 

11991907.1 

general matter or subject matter of each agenda item.   
 
Members of the public who wish to address the Board on matters not listed on the agenda, 
but on an item coming within the jurisdiction of the Board, are provided with the opportunity 
to do so under the agenda item heading “Public addresses Board on matters not on 
agenda.”   
 
The Board shall not act upon or discuss an item that is not listed on the agenda except as 
provided under Section 2.36. 
 
 
 
§2.33 Common Agenda 
 
When the Boards of two or more Retirement Plans for Employees of Sacramento Regional 
Transit meet together, the Boards’ may share a common agenda, which must designate 
which Boards will discuss which items. 
 
 
§2.34 Consent Calendar 
 
The Consent Calendar shall consist of matters requiring Board action of a routine nature or 
on which staff comment is not appropriate or necessary, or which have previously been 
discussed and appear on the Agenda for final action only. 
 
All items listed under the Consent Calendar, excepting those individual items which are 
removed separate discussion or vote at the request of any Board member, may be acted 
upon by a single motion and vote. 
 
Board minutes are included as part of the Consent Calendar to be approved without 
reading unless a member requests such reading, in which case the minutes require action 
by a separate motion and vote. 
 
 
§2.35 Quarterly Investment Performance Reviews 
 
The Boards must review the performance of Retirement Plans’ fund managers and 
investment manager at each Quarterly Retirement Board Meeting as part of Unfinished or 
New Business, as appropriate.   
 
Each of the fund managers retained by the Boards will be requested to attend and present 
its annual report at one Quarterly Retirement Board Meeting each calendar year.  The 
Boards’ investment manager must be present at each Quarterly Retirement Board Meeting 
and must report on its performance on a quarterly basis.  The Board will review the 
performance of each fund manager at each regular meeting based upon criteria set forth in 
the Sacramento Regional Transit District’s Statement Investment Objectives and Policy 
Guidelines for Contract Employees’ Retirement Funds, whether or not the investment 
manager is present.   



 

 
 

11991907.1 

 
 
§2.36 Items Not on the Agenda 
 
A matter requiring Board action must be listed on the posted agenda before the Board may 
discuss and/or act upon it except as contemplated under the Ralph M. Brown Act. 
 
The Board may take action on items of business not appearing on the posted agenda 
under any of the following conditions: 
 

1. Upon a determination by an affirmative vote of the Board that an emergency 
situation exists, as defined in Section 54956.5 of the Government Code. 

 
2. Upon the affirmative vote of three Board Members that the need to take 

action arose subsequent to the agenda being posted. 
 
3. If the item was properly posted for action at a prior meeting of the Board 

occurring not more than ten (10) calendar days prior to the date action is 
taken on the item, and at the prior meeting the item was continued to the 
meeting at which action is being taken. 

 
4. By directing the Chair or Secretary to place an item of business for 

discussion and/or action on a subsequent agenda. 
 

 
ARTICLE 4 
 
MEMBERS ADDRESSING THE BOARD 

 
§2.41 Recognition of the Chair 
 
Any Board member desiring to speak on any item on the agenda must address the Chair 
during the public comment period on such item, and upon recognition by the Chair, may 
speak.  The speaker must confine himself or herself to the question under debate, avoiding 
indecorous language. 
 
Comments on items not on the agenda will be heard at the time noticed on the agenda for 
such public comment. 
 
 
§2.42 Speaking Interruption 
 
A member will not be interrupted when speaking unless it is to call him or her to order, for 
the purpose of explanation or to permit solicited responses.  If a member, while speaking, 
is called to order, he or she must cease speaking until the question of order is determined, 
when, if permitted, he or she may proceed. 
 
 



 

 
 

11991907.1 

§2.43  Limitation of Presentations, Discussion 
 
The Chair may limit discussion at any particular meeting by a Board member to such time 
as the Chair may find to be reasonable under the circumstances, provided that any 
decision of the Chair to limit discussion may be overruled by the Board. 
 
 
§2.44 Impertinence 
 
Any Board member making personal, impertinent or indecorous remarks may be barred by 
the Chair from further appearance before the Board at that meeting, unless permission to 
continue is granted by an affirmative vote of the Board. 
 
 
§2.45 Minutes 
 
The Secretary shall prepare minutes in the form of an action summary; however, during the 
consideration on any particular matter, a Board member may make a request that the 
minutes contain a more thorough description of the discussion or deliberations of any 
question coming before the Board.  
 
 
§2.46 Debate Closing 
 
The member moving the adoption of a resolution or motion shall have the privilege of 
closing the debate. 
 
 
§2.47 Disqualification of Members 
 
Any member who is legally disqualified from participating in Board action on any particular 
matter must, as soon as such matter is reached on the agenda, disclose his or her 
disqualification and the reason therefore and may take no part in the discussion, debate or 
vote on such matter.  If such disqualification is not known to him or her at the time such 
matter is reached on the agenda, he or she must make such disclosure as soon as he or 
she knows his or her disqualification. 
 
ARTICLE 5 

 
OTHERS ADDRESSING THE BOARD 
 
 
§2.51 Recognition of the Chair 
 
Non-Board members in attendance may address the Boards or members thereof only 
when invited by the Chair.  Though the Chair will not require a speaker to introduce himself 
or herself, individuals who do not identify themselves may not be included in the minutes 
for the meeting at which they speak.  



 

 
 

11991907.1 

 



 

 
 

11991907.1 

 
§2.52  Limitation of Presentations, Discussion 
 
Except as otherwise herein provided, the Chair may specify a time limitation on any 
presentation made before the Board.  The Chair cannot limit presentations made by 
members of the public to less than three (3) minutes.   
 
 
§2.53 Impertinence 
 
Any person making personal, impertinent or indecorous remarks while addressing the 
Board may be barred by the Chair from further appearance before the Board at that 
meeting, unless permission to continue is granted by an affirmative vote of the Board. 
 
In extreme situations where persistent disruptions from multiple members of the public 
prevent an orderly meeting, the Chair, subject to Board appeal, or the Board itself, may 
order that all members of the public except the media be removed from the public meeting, 
or the public meeting may be recessed and closed pursuant to state law. 
 
 
ARTICLE 6 

 
OFFICIAL ACTIONS 

 
§2.61 Timing of An Action 
 
Motions and resolutions, unless put over to a future meeting by a majority vote of the 
Board, may be acted upon on the day of introduction or presentation.  No continuance will 
be granted if the effect of such a continuance is to render useless a subsequent vote on 
the issue. 
 
 
§2.62 Form of Action 
 
Motions are considered an act of the Board and carry the same weight as a resolution.  
Resolutions are typically used for actions that will be referred to for historical purposes, 
such as adoption of a policy, award of a contract or grant of an individual’s disability 
retirement. 
 
 
§2.63 Votes, Signature and Attestation 
 
Votes upon an action item, whether motion or resolution, are cast as “ayes” and “noes” 
pursuant to roll call and so recorded.  Each resolution must be in written or printed form.  
Procedural motions do not require a roll call vote. 
 
Every resolution shall be signed by the Chair/Chair Pro Tem (depending upon who 
presided at the meeting of enactment) and attested by the Secretary/Assistant Secretary 



 

 
 

11991907.1 

(as determined by the Secretary). 
 
 
§2.64 Codification 
 
Resolutions are codified as follows: [Year]-[Month]-[Resolution Number].  For example, the 
fifth resolution a board adopts at its March 2015 meeting is codified: 15-03-0005. 
 
 
§2.65 Vote Threshold; Majority Minimum 
 
All official acts of the Board shall require the affirmative vote of a majority of the members 
of the Board unless law requires a greater number of affirmative votes. 
 
 
§2.66 Motion Reconsideration 
 
A motion to reconsider any action taken by the Board may be made only on the day such 
action was taken, either during the same session or at an adjourned session thereof.  Such 
motion must be made by a member on the prevailing side and seconded by any member.  
The motion, which may be made at any time during said meeting, has precedence over all 
other motions.  The motion to reconsider is debatable unless the action to be reconsidered 
is not debatable. 
 
 
§ 2.67  Mandatory Arbitration 
 
If a motion or resolution is brought before the Board for a vote and the measure fails to 
gain the support of a majority of the voting members as required in Section 2.65, the 
measure will fail passage.  However, if a quorum is present and votes on a matter 
pertaining to the management or administration of the Plan and the matter receives an 
equal number of “aye” votes as it does “no” votes, then the matter shall be resolved in the 
manner set forth in Public Utilities Code Section 99159 by referring it to binding arbitration 
if such a motion is made and at least two Board Members vote affirmatively, as further set 
forth in the Retirement Plan.   
 
 
ARTICLE 7 

 
COMMITTEES 

 
§2.71 Appointment 
 
The Chair may create and appoint ad hoc committees. 
 
 
§2.72 Ad Hoc Advisory Committee Meetings 
 



 

 
 

11991907.1 

Ad Hoc Committees are limited-term, limited scope advisory committees comprised 
exclusively of less than a quorum of the Board. For example, an advisory committee 
comprised of two members for the purpose of producing a report in six months on trends in 
public agency benefit policies would be considered an ad hoc committee because it is 
composed of less than a quorum of the Board and it is charged with accomplishing a 
specific task in a limited period of time.  
 
Ad hoc committee meetings are specifically exempt from open meeting requirements under 
these Bylaws and under the Brown Act.  However, when creating and appointing an Ad 
Hoc Committee, the Chair retains authority to direct that meetings of that committee shall 
be noticed and open to the public.  
 
 
ARTICLE 8 

 
RULES 
 
§2.81 Amendment 
 
Any provision hereof may be altered, amended or annulled at any time by an affirmative 
vote of the Board as provided in Section 2.65, provided a week’s notice of such change is 
given to each board member. 
 
 
§2.82 Suspension 
 
Any section of these By-laws may be temporarily suspended by an affirmative vote of the 
Board as provided in Section 2.65. 
 
 
§2.83 Robert’s Rules 
 
All rules of order not herein provided for shall be determined in accordance with “Robert’s 
Rules of Order.” 
 
 
§2.84 Copies – By-laws 
 
The Secretary shall furnish each Board member copies of these By-laws and provide a 
supply for public purposes. 
 
 
 



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER                                   Page 1 of 1  
Agenda 
Item No. 

Board Meeting 
Date 

Open/Closed 
Session 

Information/Action 
Item 

Issue 
Date 

Subject:   Election and Appointment of Governing Board Officers of the Retirement Plan 
for Sacramento Regional Transit District (District) Employees who are members 
of the Management and Confidential Employee Group (MCEG). (Bonnel) 

 

 
Approved:  Presented: 

Final 02/26/16   
Director, Human Resources  Director, Human Resources  

J:\Retirement Board\2016\IP's\March 16, 2016\Final Administrative IPs\Final Election 
of Chairperson MCEG.doc 

   

 

ISSUE 
 
Election and Appointment of Governing Board Officers of the Retirement Plan for 
Sacramento Regional Transit District (District) Employees who are members of the 
Management and Confidential Employee Group (MCEG). 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Adopt Resolution No. 16-03-_____ Electing and Appointing Governing Board Officers of 
the Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional Transit District Employees who are Members 
of the Management and Confidential Employee Group (MCEG). 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no fiscal impact associated with this action. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
On June 17, 2015, after adoption of updated Bylaws, the Board of Directors of the 
Retirement Board for District employees who are members of the MCEG elected Mike 
Mattos as Chair,  Alane Masui as Vice Chair and Mike Wiley as Secretary.  The Board also 
appointed Donna Bonnel as the Assistant Secretary. 
 
Roger Thorn has now replaced Mike Mattos as a regular member of the Board.  
Accordingly, staff recommends that the Retirement Board: 

1. Elect (or re-elect, where relevant) a Chair, Vice Chair and Secretary from among its 
members, in accordance with Sections 2.21 through 2.24 of the Bylaws; and 

2. Reappoint Donna Bonnel, the Sacramento Regional Transit District’s Director of 
Human Resources, as Assistant Secretary to assist with administration of the 
Board’s business in accordance with Sections 2.24 and 2.25 of the Bylaws. 

 
These actions will have no effect on the Board’s prior election of a Common Chair and a 
Common Vice Chair. 
 

32 03/16/16 Retirement Action 02/01/16 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-03-_____ 
 

Adopted by the Retirement Board for the Retirement Plan for RT Employees Who 
Are Members of Management and Confidential Employee Group on this date: 

 
March 16, 2016 

 

ELECTING AND APPOINTING OFFICERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

RETIREMENT PLAN FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT DISTRICT 

EMPLOYEES WHO ARE MEMBERS OF THE MANAGEMENT AND CONFIDENTIAL 

EMPLOYEE GROUP 
 

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE RETIREMENT BOARD FOR THE 
RETIREMENT PLAN FOR RT EMPLOYEES WHO ARE MEMBERS OF THE 
MANAGEMENT AND CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEE GROUP AS FOLLOWS: 
 

THAT, the Board of Directors: 
 

1. Elects _________________ as Chair; 

2. Elects _________________ as Vice Chair; 

3. Elects _________________ as Secretary; and  

4. Re-appoints Sacramento Regional Transit District Human Resources 
Director Donna Bonnel as Assistant Secretary. 
 

THAT, the above-listed individuals will serve in these elected and appointed roles 
until this Board elects to change its leadership; until the elected or appointed individuals 
resigns from such positions; or until any of the above-listed individuals leaves the Board 
(for the Chair, Vice Chair and Secretary) or is no longer a current employee of RT with job 
duties related to administration of the Pension Plans (for the Assistant Secretary). 

 
THAT, this action does not alter this Board’s previous election of Andy Morin and 

Mike Wiley as Common Chair and Common Vice Chair, respectively, of the five 
Sacramento Regional Transit District Retirement Boards. 
 
 
 

 
A T T E S T: 
 
_____________, Secretary 
 
 By: 

________________, Chair 
 

 Donna Bonnel, Assistant Secretary  
 



 

 

Exhibit A 
 
 

ADOPTED BY THE: 
AEA, MCEG, AFSCME and ATU Retirement Boards on June 18, 2014 

IBEW Retirement Board on December 17, 2014 

 

 

 

BY-LAWS FOR THE RETIREMENT BOARDS  

 

CHAPTER 1 
 

RETIREMENT BOARDS COMPOSITION AND PURVIEW 
 
 

ARTICLE 1 
 

GOVERNANCE 
 
§ 1.10  Retirement Plans; Application of By-Laws 
 
These By-laws govern the three retirement plans established for employees of the 
Sacramento Regional Transit District (hereinafter “RT”) pursuant to California Public 
Utilities Code Section 102430 to provide retirement benefits to qualified RT employees 
upon service or disability retirement from RT: The Retirement Plan for Regional Transit 
Employees Who Are Members of ATU Local 256; the Retirement Plan Between 
International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW) Local Union 1245, AFL-CIO and 
Sacramento Regional Transit District; and The Sacramento Regional Transit District 
Retirement Plan for AFSCME, AEA, and Non-Represented (Salaried) Employees.  
 
Each plan is referred to herein individually as “Retirement Plan” and jointly as “Retirement 
Plans.” 
 
These By-laws apply to the Retirement Plans as they may be amended from time to time, 
except when the terms of a Plan are inconsistent with the terms of these By-laws, in which 
case the terms of that Plan will govern its operations. 
 
 
§1.11  Governance of the Retirement Plans 
 
The ATU and IBEW Retirement Plans are each governed by one board and the Salaried 
Plan is governed by three boards (hereinafter individually referred to as “Board” or 
“Retirement Board” or jointly as “Boards” or “Retirement Boards”).  Each Retirement Board 
consists of an equal number of representatives from RT and from the Union or 
bargaining/business unit (ATU, IBEW, AFSCME, AEA and MCEG) as required under 
California Public Utilities Code Section 99159.     
 



 

 

 
§1.12  Retirement Board Composition 
 
Each Retirement Board consists of not more than four (4) members and two (2) alternates. 
 Two voting members and one alternate are appointed by the RT Board of Directors and 
two voting members and one alternate are appointed by the Union or bargaining/business 
unit.  
 
The alternate Board Members serve on the Retirement Board during the absence of a 
Board member appointed by the same entity as the alternate.  When an alternate Board 
Member serves in place of a regular Board Member, the alternate has all of the rights, 
duties and obligations of the Board member he or she is replacing, except for those rights, 
duties and obligations associated with a Board office held by the Board member. 
 
 
§1.13  Retirement Board Member Term of Office 
 
Each Retirement Board Member is appointed to a four-year term of office.  Members' terms 
of office are to be staggered so that the term of one member appointed by the RT Board of 
Directors and the term of one member appointed by the Union or bargaining/business unit 
expire every other year. 
 
For Retirement Board Members seated as of adoption of this section of the By-laws, the 
appointing entity will determine which seat will expire at the end of the following calendar 
year, and which will expire at the end of the calendar year ending two years later.  The term 
of the alternates seated as of adoption of this section of the By-laws will expire as of the 
end of the calendar year after the year in which this section of the By-laws is adopted. 
 
In the event of a vacancy because of death, resignation, illness, or other reason, the 
Secretary of the Board must, within thirty (30) days after such vacancy, transmit a written 
notification to the appointing member entity requesting that a replacement member be 
appointed to fill the remainder of the vacating member's term. 
 
 
§1.14  Retirement Board Fiduciary Duty 
 
The duties and responsibilities of each Retirement Board Member must be executed in 
accordance and in full compliance with the requirements of Section 17 of Article XVI of the 
California Constitution and applicable law. 
 
 
§ 1.15  Retirement Board Authority 
 
Each Retirement Board has plenary authority and duty to administer its Retirement Plan 
and manage the assets of its Retirement Plan consistently with the powers and duties 
conferred upon the Board pursuant to Article 16, Section 17, of the California Constitution, 
which include, but are not limited to, those set forth in each Plan. 



 

 

 
CHAPTER 2 

 

RETIREMENT BOARD RULES 

 
ARTICLE 1 

 
MEETINGS 

 
§2.10 Regular Quarterly Retirement Board Meeting Schedule 
 
Each Board must hold regular meetings no later than the last day of each calendar quarter 
(“regular meetings” or “Quarterly Retirement Board Meetings”).  No later than December 
31

st
 of each year, the Boards must adopt a resolution setting forth their regular meeting 

schedule for the 12-month calendar period following the month and year in which the 
resolution is adopted.  The resolution establishing each Board’s regular meeting schedule 
shall state the date and time for each meeting, and the place for each such meeting if it 
differs from the place set out in this section.  Unless otherwise specified in the resolutions 
establishing the regular meeting schedule, the Boards will conduct their regular meetings at 
RT’s Administrative Offices located at 1400 29

th
 Street, Sacramento, California in Room 

114 (First Floor, Auditorium).   
 
 
§2.11 Special Meetings 
 
A special meeting may be called at any time by the Chair, or by a majority of the members 
of a Board, by delivering personally, via electronic mail (“e-mail”) or by U.S. mail, written 
notice to each member of the Board, and to each local newspaper, radio, or television 
station requesting notice in writing, and by posting a notice on the Sacramento Regional 
Transit District's internet web site.  Such notice must be delivered and received at least 24 
hours before the time of such meeting.  The call and notice shall specify the time and place 
of the special meeting and the business to be transacted.  No business other than as 
specified in the notice shall be considered at such meeting.  Such written notice may be 
dispensed with as to any member who, at or prior to the time the meeting convenes, files 
with the Secretary of the Board a written waiver of notice.  Any defect in the above notice 
procedure shall be deemed cured by actual attendance of the member at the meeting.   
 
 
§2.12 Quorum 
 
Three Board members constitute a quorum of any Board for purposes of convening a 
meeting and for the transaction of business.  Alternate Board members are seated on the 
Board and counted towards a quorum only when serving in the place of a Regular Board 
member appointed by the same body (e.g., the Alternate appointed by the RT Governing 
Board is only seated and counted towards a quorum when a Board member appointed by 
the RT Governing Board is absent). 
 
§2.13 Joint Meetings 
 
The Retirement Boards may meet together for any regular or special meeting.  The Boards 



 

 

may select a Common Chair and Common Vice Chair to preside over common meetings 
on an ad hoc or standing basis. 
 
 
§2.14 Open Meetings; Application of the Ralph M. Brown Act 
 
All meetings and associated notices must comply with the provisions of the Ralph M. 
Brown Act.  (Government Code Sections 54950, et seq.)  Accordingly, all Board meetings 
are open to the public except when the subject matter may be properly addressed in, and 
properly noticed for, a closed session.   
 
 
§2.15 Agenda Preparation, Delivery and Posting 
 
In addition to those requirements set forth in the Brown Act, each meeting agenda, 
together with all supporting documents, must be mailed or delivered to the Board members 
and Legal Counsel to the Board at least three days before the meeting.  The purpose of 
this requirement is to give Board members at least two days’ notice of all business coming 
before them.  In the case of special meetings which may be called less than seven (7) days 
in advance of the meeting date, the requesting individual shall receive such notice as soon 
as may be practical under the circumstances. 
 

 
§2.16 Access to Public Records Distributed at Meeting 
 
Writings which are public records and which are distributed during a meeting are made 
available for public inspection at the meeting if prepared by RT or a member of the Board 
or after the meeting if prepared by some other person. 
 
 
§2.17 Continuing Body 
 
Each Board is a continuing body and no measure pending before it is abated or 
discontinued by reason of the expiration of the term of office or removal of a member of the 
Board. 
 
 
§2.18 Adjournment of Meeting 
 
The Board may adjourn any regular, adjourned regular, special or adjourned special 
meeting to a time and place specified in the order of adjournment.  Less than a quorum 
may so adjourn from time to time.  Notice of adjournment of a duly called special meeting 
at which less than a quorum is present shall be given in the same manner as notice of the 
original meeting.  If all members are absent from any regular or adjourned regular meeting, 
the Secretary of the Board may declare the meeting adjourned to a stated time and place 
and he or she shall cause a written notice of the adjournment to be given in the same 
manner as provided herein for special meetings.  In the case of all adjournments, a copy of 
the order or notice of adjournment shall be conspicuously posted on the door to the 
Regional Transit District Auditorium, Room 114, within 24 hours after the time of the 
adjournment.  When an order of adjournment of any meeting fails to state the time at which 



 

 

the adjourned meeting is to be held, it shall be held at the time specified for regular 
meetings. 
 

 
ARTICLE 2 

 
OFFICERS 
 
§2.21 Officers 
 
Each Board elects a Chair, Vice Chair, and Secretary from among its members.  Alternate 
members cannot be elected as Board officers. 
 
The five Retirement Boards, together, may elect a Common Chair and Common Vice 
Chair. 
 
 
§2.22 Chair Responsibilities 
 

1. Except at meetings presided over by a Common Chair or Common Vice Chair (as 
set forth in Section 2.28), the Chair presides over and preserves order at all regular 
meetings, special meetings and hearings of the Board.  The Chair states every 
question coming before the Board, and decides all questions of order without 
debate, subject, however, to an appeal by a member of the Board.  The Chair may 
move, second and debate from the chair, subject only to such limitations of debate 
as are imposed on all members, and has all other rights or privileges of all others 
members.   

 
2. In all cases, the Chair can direct the Secretary to include discussion or action items 

on the agenda for future Board meetings, and the Chair signs all Board resolutions 
and all minutes of Board meetings or hearings which he or she has witnessed being 
adopted or approved. 

 
 
§2.23 Vice Chair 
 
The Vice Chair serves as the Chair Pro Tem in the Chair’s absence.  When serving as the 
Chair Pro Tem, the Vice Chair has all of the rights, duties and responsibilities of the Chair 
as set forth in Section 2.22 above. 
 
 
§2.24 Secretary 
 
The Secretary serves as the Chair Pro Tem in the absence of the Chair and Vice Chair.   
 
In addition, the Secretary has the following powers and duties, any or all of which may be 
delegated by the Secretary to the Assistant Secretary: 
 

1. Create meeting notices and agendas; 
 



 

 

2.  Post agendas; 
 

3. Call the roll at the beginning of each Board meeting and for each roll call vote; 
 

4. Announce the result of each vote; 
  

5. Attend and keep minutes of all meetings and hearings of the Board; 
 

6. Furnish each Board member a copy of the minutes of each meeting with the 
agenda for the following meeting; 
 

7. Attest all resolutions of the Board and the minutes of all meetings or hearings 
which have been approved by the Board; 

 
8. Keep and have custody of all books, records and papers of the Board, and 

certify true copies thereof whenever necessary; 
 

9. Perform such other duties as may be required either by statute, ordinance, 
resolution or order. 

 
 
§2.25 Assistant Secretary  
 
The Boards may appoint an Assistant Secretary, who must be a current employee of RT 
with job duties related to administration of the Pension Plans. 
 
 
§2.26 Vacancy 
 
In an officer vacates his or her seat on the Board because of death, resignation, illness, or 
other reason, officer elections must be held at the first Board meeting after the vacancy 
has been filled. 
 
 
§2.27 Additional Delegable Duties 
 
Each Board, at its discretion and by resolution, may authorize its Chair and/or the General 
Manager/CEO of RT or other RT staff to exercise additional administrative authority, such 
as to execute contracts or other legally-binding documents, manage Board-awarded 
contracts, make purchases up to Board-authorized limits, and approve service retirements.  
 
The Board may also authorize the General Manager/CEO of RT or other delegees to carry 
out other support functions for the Retirement Plan.  
 



 

 

 
§2.28 Common Chair, Vice Chair 
 
If desired, the five Retirement Boards may elect a Common Chair and Common Vice Chair 
to preside over and preserve order at meetings of more than one Board.  At such 
meetings, the Common Chair, or the Common Vice Chair in the absence of the Common 
Chair, states every question coming before the Board, and decides all questions of order 
without debate, subject, however, to an appeal by a member of the Board.   
 
The Common Chair (or Vice Chair) may move, second and debate from the chair, subject 
only to such limitations of debate as are imposed on all members, and has all other rights 
or privileges of all others members.  In an action to adopt a motion or resolution, the 
Common Chair (or Vice Chair) votes after all other members present have cast their votes. 
 
ARTICLE 3 

 
ORDER OF BOARD BUSINESS 
 
§2.31 Agenda  
 
The order of business for regular and special meetings will be as follows: 
 

1. Call to Order  
2. Roll Call 
3. Consent Calendar 
4. Unfinished Business 
5. New Business 
6. Public Addresses the Board on Matters Not on the Agenda 
7. Reports, Ideas and Communications 
8. Recess to Closed Session 
9. Closed Session  
10. Reconvene in Open Session 
11. Closed Session Report 
12. Adjourn 

 
Notwithstanding the above, closed sessions (and associated announcements) may be 
included on the agenda at any point after Roll Call and before Adjournment, at the 
discretion of the Secretary or Assistant Secretary.   
 
The order of business during any meeting may be changed upon order of the Chair with 
consent of the Board, or upon motion of the Board. 
 
 
§2.32 Contents of Agenda 
 
The agenda must specify the time and location of the meeting and must contain a brief 
general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.  
The descriptions must be reasonably calculated to adequately inform the public of the 
general matter or subject matter of each agenda item.   
 



 

 

Members of the public who wish to address the Board on matters not listed on the agenda, 
but on an item coming within the jurisdiction of the Board, are provided with the opportunity 
to do so under the agenda item heading “Public addresses Board on matters not on 
agenda.”   
 
The Board shall not act upon or discuss an item that is not listed on the agenda except as 
provided under Section 2.36. 
 
 
 
§2.33 Common Agenda 
 
When the Boards of two or more Retirement Plans for Employees of Sacramento Regional 
Transit meet together, the Boards’ may share a common agenda, which must designate 
which Boards will discuss which items. 
 
 
§2.34 Consent Calendar 
 
The Consent Calendar shall consist of matters requiring Board action of a routine nature or 
on which staff comment is not appropriate or necessary, or which have previously been 
discussed and appear on the Agenda for final action only. 
 
All items listed under the Consent Calendar, excepting those individual items which are 
removed separate discussion or vote at the request of any Board member, may be acted 
upon by a single motion and vote. 
 
Board minutes are included as part of the Consent Calendar to be approved without 
reading unless a member requests such reading, in which case the minutes require action 
by a separate motion and vote. 
 
 
§2.35 Quarterly Investment Performance Reviews 
 
The Boards must review the performance of Retirement Plans’ fund managers and 
investment manager at each Quarterly Retirement Board Meeting as part of Unfinished or 
New Business, as appropriate.   
 
Each of the fund managers retained by the Boards will be requested to attend and present 
its annual report at one Quarterly Retirement Board Meeting each calendar year.  The 
Boards’ investment manager must be present at each Quarterly Retirement Board Meeting 
and must report on its performance on a quarterly basis.  The Board will review the 
performance of each fund manager at each regular meeting based upon criteria set forth in 
the Sacramento Regional Transit District’s Statement Investment Objectives and Policy 
Guidelines for Contract Employees’ Retirement Funds, whether or not the investment 
manager is present.   
 
 



 

 

§2.36 Items Not on the Agenda 
 
A matter requiring Board action must be listed on the posted agenda before the Board may 
discuss and/or act upon it except as contemplated under the Ralph M. Brown Act. 
 
The Board may take action on items of business not appearing on the posted agenda 
under any of the following conditions: 
 

1. Upon a determination by an affirmative vote of the Board that an emergency 
situation exists, as defined in Section 54956.5 of the Government Code. 

 
2. Upon the affirmative vote of three Board Members that the need to take 

action arose subsequent to the agenda being posted. 
 
3. If the item was properly posted for action at a prior meeting of the Board 

occurring not more than ten (10) calendar days prior to the date action is 
taken on the item, and at the prior meeting the item was continued to the 
meeting at which action is being taken. 

 
4. By directing the Chair or Secretary to place an item of business for 

discussion and/or action on a subsequent agenda. 
 

 
ARTICLE 4 
 
MEMBERS ADDRESSING THE BOARD 

 
§2.41 Recognition of the Chair 
 
Any Board member desiring to speak on any item on the agenda must address the Chair 
during the public comment period on such item, and upon recognition by the Chair, may 
speak.  The speaker must confine himself or herself to the question under debate, avoiding 
indecorous language. 
 
Comments on items not on the agenda will be heard at the time noticed on the agenda for 
such public comment. 
 
 
§2.42 Speaking Interruption 
 
A member will not be interrupted when speaking unless it is to call him or her to order, for 
the purpose of explanation or to permit solicited responses.  If a member, while speaking, 
is called to order, he or she must cease speaking until the question of order is determined, 
when, if permitted, he or she may proceed. 
 
 
§2.43  Limitation of Presentations, Discussion 
 
The Chair may limit discussion at any particular meeting by a Board member to such time 
as the Chair may find to be reasonable under the circumstances, provided that any 



 

 

decision of the Chair to limit discussion may be overruled by the Board. 
 
 
§2.44 Impertinence 
 
Any Board member making personal, impertinent or indecorous remarks may be barred by 
the Chair from further appearance before the Board at that meeting, unless permission to 
continue is granted by an affirmative vote of the Board. 
 
 
§2.45 Minutes 
 
The Secretary shall prepare minutes in the form of an action summary; however, during the 
consideration on any particular matter, a Board member may make a request that the 
minutes contain a more thorough description of the discussion or deliberations of any 
question coming before the Board.  
 
 
§2.46 Debate Closing 
 
The member moving the adoption of a resolution or motion shall have the privilege of 
closing the debate. 
 
 
§2.47 Disqualification of Members 
 
Any member who is legally disqualified from participating in Board action on any particular 
matter must, as soon as such matter is reached on the agenda, disclose his or her 
disqualification and the reason therefore and may take no part in the discussion, debate or 
vote on such matter.  If such disqualification is not known to him or her at the time such 
matter is reached on the agenda, he or she must make such disclosure as soon as he or 
she knows his or her disqualification. 
 
ARTICLE 5 

 
OTHERS ADDRESSING THE BOARD 
 
 
§2.51 Recognition of the Chair 
 
Non-Board members in attendance may address the Boards or members thereof only 
when invited by the Chair.  Though the Chair will not require a speaker to introduce himself 
or herself, individuals who do not identify themselves may not be included in the minutes 
for the meeting at which they speak.  
 



 

 

 
§2.52  Limitation of Presentations, Discussion 
 
Except as otherwise herein provided, the Chair may specify a time limitation on any 
presentation made before the Board.  The Chair cannot limit presentations made by 
members of the public to less than three (3) minutes.   
 
 
§2.53 Impertinence 
 
Any person making personal, impertinent or indecorous remarks while addressing the 
Board may be barred by the Chair from further appearance before the Board at that 
meeting, unless permission to continue is granted by an affirmative vote of the Board. 
 
In extreme situations where persistent disruptions from multiple members of the public 
prevent an orderly meeting, the Chair, subject to Board appeal, or the Board itself, may 
order that all members of the public except the media be removed from the public meeting, 
or the public meeting may be recessed and closed pursuant to state law. 
 
 
ARTICLE 6 

 
OFFICIAL ACTIONS 

 
§2.61 Timing of An Action 
 
Motions and resolutions, unless put over to a future meeting by a majority vote of the 
Board, may be acted upon on the day of introduction or presentation.  No continuance will 
be granted if the effect of such a continuance is to render useless a subsequent vote on 
the issue. 
 
 
§2.62 Form of Action 
 
Motions are considered an act of the Board and carry the same weight as a resolution.  
Resolutions are typically used for actions that will be referred to for historical purposes, 
such as adoption of a policy, award of a contract or grant of an individual’s disability 
retirement. 
 
 
§2.63 Votes, Signature and Attestation 
 
Votes upon an action item, whether motion or resolution, are cast as “ayes” and “noes” 
pursuant to roll call and so recorded.  Each resolution must be in written or printed form.  
Procedural motions do not require a roll call vote. 
 
Every resolution shall be signed by the Chair/Chair Pro Tem (depending upon who 
presided at the meeting of enactment) and attested by the Secretary/Assistant Secretary 
(as determined by the Secretary). 
 



 

 

 
§2.64 Codification 
 
Resolutions are codified as follows: [Year]-[Month]-[Resolution Number].  For example, the 
fifth resolution a board adopts at its March 2015 meeting is codified: 15-03-0005. 
 
 
§2.65 Vote Threshold; Majority Minimum 
 
All official acts of the Board shall require the affirmative vote of a majority of the members 
of the Board unless law requires a greater number of affirmative votes. 
 
 
§2.66 Motion Reconsideration 
 
A motion to reconsider any action taken by the Board may be made only on the day such 
action was taken, either during the same session or at an adjourned session thereof.  Such 
motion must be made by a member on the prevailing side and seconded by any member.  
The motion, which may be made at any time during said meeting, has precedence over all 
other motions.  The motion to reconsider is debatable unless the action to be reconsidered 
is not debatable. 
 
 
§ 2.67  Mandatory Arbitration 
 
If a motion or resolution is brought before the Board for a vote and the measure fails to 
gain the support of a majority of the voting members as required in Section 2.65, the 
measure will fail passage.  However, if a quorum is present and votes on a matter 
pertaining to the management or administration of the Plan and the matter receives an 
equal number of “aye” votes as it does “no” votes, then the matter shall be resolved in the 
manner set forth in Public Utilities Code Section 99159 by referring it to binding arbitration 
if such a motion is made and at least two Board Members vote affirmatively, as further set 
forth in the Retirement Plan.   
 
 
ARTICLE 7 

 
COMMITTEES 

 
§2.71 Appointment 
 
The Chair may create and appoint ad hoc committees. 
 
 
§2.72 Ad Hoc Advisory Committee Meetings 
 
Ad Hoc Committees are limited-term, limited scope advisory committees comprised 
exclusively of less than a quorum of the Board. For example, an advisory committee 
comprised of two members for the purpose of producing a report in six months on trends in 
public agency benefit policies would be considered an ad hoc committee because it is 



 

 

composed of less than a quorum of the Board and it is charged with accomplishing a 
specific task in a limited period of time.  
 
Ad hoc committee meetings are specifically exempt from open meeting requirements under 
these Bylaws and under the Brown Act.  However, when creating and appointing an Ad 
Hoc Committee, the Chair retains authority to direct that meetings of that committee shall 
be noticed and open to the public.  
 
 
ARTICLE 8 

 
RULES 
 
§2.81 Amendment 
 
Any provision hereof may be altered, amended or annulled at any time by an affirmative 
vote of the Board as provided in Section 2.65, provided a week’s notice of such change is 
given to each board member. 
 
 
§2.82 Suspension 
 
Any section of these By-laws may be temporarily suspended by an affirmative vote of the 
Board as provided in Section 2.65. 
 
 
§2.83 Robert’s Rules 
 
All rules of order not herein provided for shall be determined in accordance with “Robert’s 
Rules of Order.” 
 
 
§2.84 Copies – By-laws 
 
The Secretary shall furnish each Board member copies of these By-laws and provide a 
supply for public purposes. 
 
 
 


	- 03.16.16 Retirement Board Quarterly Combined Agenda.pdf (p.1-4)
	IP #1 (12-16-15) AEA Board Meeting Minutes.pdf (p.5-9)
	IP #2 Admin Reports AEA (salaried).pdf (p.10-20)
	03-16-16 Administrative Reports - Salary#2 AEA.pdf (p.1-3)
	03-16-16 Administrative Reports - Salary Attachments 1-9.pdf (p.4-12)

	IP #3 Audit Report AEA.pdf (p.21-58)
	03-16-16 Audit Report IP.pdf (p.1-2)
	03-16-16 Audit Report Attachment #1.pdf (p.3-39)
	CASH AND SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS
	An annual Board-adopted policy, the Statement of Investment Objectives and Policy Guidelines for the Sacramento Regional Transit District Retirement Plans (Policy), governs the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ investments. This Policy focuses on the conti...
	For the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, the annual money-weighted rate of return on pension plan investments, net of pension plan investment expenses, was 3.25% and 15.64%, respectively. The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment perfo...
	4. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
	The following table identifies the investment types that are authorized by the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ Retirement Boards. The table also identifies certain provisions of the Investment Objectives and Policy that address interest rate risk, credit...
	(1) The fixed income portion of the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans shall be limited in duration to between 75% and 125% of the benchmark.
	(6) Other Fixed Income Securities includes: Fixed income commingled and mutual funds, futures and options, swap agreements, and reverse repurchase agreements.
	4. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
	INTEREST RATE RISK
	CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK
	CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK



	IP #4 State Co. Report AEA(salaried).pdf (p.59-69)
	03-16-16 SCO Report Salary.pdf (p.1-2)
	03-16-16 SCO Report Salary Attachment #1.pdf (p.3-12)

	IP #5 (12-16-15) AFSCME Board Meeting Minutes.pdf (p.70-74)
	INSERT AEA 6-8 FORM.pdf (p.75-83)
	IP #9 [HB edts] 12-16-15 ATU Board Meeting Minutes.pdf (p.84-88)
	IP #10 Admin Reports ATUIBEW( ATU).pdf (p.89-99)
	03-16-16 Administrative Reports - #10 ATU-IBEW.pdf (p.1-3)
	03-16-16 Administrative Reports - ATU-IBEW Attachments 1-9.pdf (p.4-12)

	IP #11 Audit Report ATU.pdf (p.100-137)
	03-16-16 Audit Report IP.pdf (p.1-2)
	03-16-16 Audit Report Attachment #1.pdf (p.3-39)
	CASH AND SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS
	An annual Board-adopted policy, the Statement of Investment Objectives and Policy Guidelines for the Sacramento Regional Transit District Retirement Plans (Policy), governs the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ investments. This Policy focuses on the conti...
	For the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, the annual money-weighted rate of return on pension plan investments, net of pension plan investment expenses, was 3.25% and 15.64%, respectively. The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment perfo...
	4. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
	The following table identifies the investment types that are authorized by the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ Retirement Boards. The table also identifies certain provisions of the Investment Objectives and Policy that address interest rate risk, credit...
	(1) The fixed income portion of the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans shall be limited in duration to between 75% and 125% of the benchmark.
	(6) Other Fixed Income Securities includes: Fixed income commingled and mutual funds, futures and options, swap agreements, and reverse repurchase agreements.
	4. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
	INTEREST RATE RISK
	CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK
	CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK



	IP #12 State Co. Report ATUIBEW(ATU).pdf (p.138-148)
	03-16-16 SCO Report ATU-IBEW.pdf (p.1-2)
	03-16-16 SCO Report ATU-IBEW Attachment #1.pdf (p.3-12)

	IP #13 [HB edits] 12-16-15 IBEW Board Meeting Minutes.pdf (p.149-153)
	ATU 10-14 FORM.pdf (p.154-162)
	IP #17 [HB edits] 12-16-15 MCEG Board Meeting Minutes.pdf (p.163-167)
	MCEG 18-20FORM.pdf (p.168-171)
	IP #21 Invest Perf. Review JP (ALL).pdf (p.172-231)
	03-16-16 JP Morgan Manager Review.pdf (p.1)
	03-16-16 JP Morgan Manager Review Attachment #1.pdf (p.2-60)

	IP #22 Investment Performance(ALL).pdf (p.232-360)
	03-16-16 Investment Performance.pdf (p.1-2)
	03-16-16 Investment Performance Attachment #1.pdf (p.3-15)
	03-16-16 Investment Performance Attachment #2.pdf (p.17-126)
	03-16-16 Investment Performance Attachment #3.pdf (p.127-129)

	IP #23 Combined Actuarial Valuation 3_7_16.pdf (p.361)
	IP #24 Update on Roles and Resp.pdf (p.362-368)
	Final Update from Staff on Pension Tasks.pdf (p.1)
	[HB edits]  Staff Roles and Resp. Attachment A Pension AdministrationChart (p.2-5)
	Attachment B 03-16-16 Staff Costs 10-1-15 to 12-31-15.pdf (p.6)
	Sacramento Regional TransitRetirement Boards Legal Task Summary - Q4 2015.pdf (p.7)

	IP #25 Updated Trust IP.pdf (p.369-370)
	IP #26 Status Update on Actuary and Legal Services RFPs.pdf (p.371)
	IP #27 2016 Work Plan.pdf (p.372)
	IP #28 Additional of Second Staff Member.pdf (p.373-374)
	IP #29 CHUBB Fiduciary Insurance.pdf (p.375-380)
	IP #30 HB Work Orders-Legal Services Under the Principal Agreement.pdf (p.381-387)
	(1)HB Contract Extension and Work Order Combined 3.7.16.pdf (p.1-2)
	(2)HB Contract Extension and Work Order Combined 3.7.16.pdf (p.3-7)

	IP #31 Election of Chairperson AEA.pdf (p.388-404)
	IP #32 Election of Chairperson MCEG.pdf (p.405-419)

